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Application for listing and admission to trading on Euronext Paris of all the issued and to be issued common shares in the
share capital of Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V., intended to be renamed Stellantis N.V.

This document (this "Prospectus") is published in connection with (1) the listing and admission to trading on the Mercato Telematico
Azionario ("MTA") organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. of up to 1,545,221,900 common shares in the share capital of Fiat
Chrysler Automobiles N.V. ("FCA N.V." or the "Company", intended to be renamed Stellantis N.V. ("Stellantis"), with effect from the
Governance Effective Time (as defined below)) with a nominal value of €0.01 each (the "FCA Common Shares" or, at or after the
effective time of the Merger (as defined below), the "Stellantis Common Shares") and (2) the listing and admission to trading on
Euronext in Paris, a regulated market of Euronext Paris S.A. ("Euronext Paris") of the FCA Common Shares (the events under (1)
and (2) together, the "Listing").

On December 17, 2019, FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A., a French Société Anonyme ("Peugeot S.A.") entered into a combination
agreement (the "Original Combination Agreement") providing for the combination of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. through a cross-
border merger (the "Merger"), with FCA N.V. as the surviving company in the merger. On September 14, 2020, the parties entered
into an amendment to the Original Combination Agreement (the "Combination Agreement Amendment”, and together with the
QOriginal Combination Agreement, the "Combination Agreement"), amending certain terms of the combination. In connection with the
Merger, FCA N.V. intends to issue up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares to holders (each a "PSA Shareholder") of ordinary
shares in the share capital of Peugeot S.A. with a nominal value of €1.00 each (the "PSA Ordinary Shares") through the centralized
depository and clearing systems of the Depository Trust Company ("DTC") and Euroclear France. Unless the context otherwise
requires, this Prospectus has been prepared on the assumption that the Merger will become effective as proposed and as described
in further detail in this Prospectus.

The Combination Agreement provides that, subject to requisite shareholder approvals and the other conditions precedent included in
the Combination Agreement and described in this Prospectus, PSA Shareholders will receive through the centralized depository and
clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France 1.742 FCA Common Shares for each PSA Ordinary Share (the "Exchange Ratio")
that they hold immediately prior to completion of the Merger. The Exchange Ratio is fixed and will not be adjusted for changes in the
market value of the FCA Common Shares or the PSA Ordinary Shares.

PSA Shareholders will vote on the Merger at an extraordinary meeting of shareholders and a special meeting of shareholders entitled
to double voting rights both of which to be held on January 4, 2021. Separately, holders of FCA Common Shares (each an "FCA
Shareholder") will vote on the Merger at an extraordinary meeting of shareholders, to be held on January 4, 2021. Subject to the
satisfaction and/or waiver of the other conditions precedent contained in the Combination Agreement, the Merger will not become
effective unless (a) a resolution approving the Merger is passed at (i) the extraordinary meeting of PSA Shareholders (the "PSA
General Meeting Approval") with a two-thirds majority of the votes cast by the shareholders present or represented at such meeting,
provided that at least 25 percent of the PSA Ordinary Shares carrying voting rights are present or represented at the first convening
of such meeting, or at least 20 percent of the PSA Ordinary Shares carrying voting rights are present or represented at the second
convening of such meeting and at (ii) the special meeting of PSA Shareholders entitled to double voting rights (the "PSA Special
Meeting Approval" and together with the PSA General Meeting Approval, the "PSA Shareholders Approval") with a two-thirds
majority of the votes cast by the shareholders entitled to double voting rights present or represented at such meeting, provided that
at least one-third of the PSA Ordinary Shares carrying double voting rights are present or represented at the first convening of such
meeting, or at least 20 percent of the PSA Ordinary Shares carrying double voting rights are present or represented at the second
convening of such meeting, and (b) a resolution approving the Merger is passed at the FCA N.V. extraordinary shareholder meeting
(the "FCA Shareholder Approval") with the affirmative vote of the holders of (i) a majority of the votes cast at the FCA N.V.
shareholders meeting (provided that one half or more of the issued and outstanding share capital of FCA N.V. is represented at such
meeting) or (ii) if less than one half of the issued and outstanding share capital of FCA N.V. is represented at the FCA N.V.
shareholders meeting, at least two-thirds of the votes cast at such meeting. As of November 13, 2020, which is the latest practicable
date prior to the date of this Prospectus (the "Latest Practicable Date"), (a) Etablissements Peugeot Fréres and FFP, owned, directly
through their wholly-owned subsidiary Maillot | ("Maillot", and together with Etablissements Peugeot Fréres and FFP, "EPF/FFP"),
owned 12.36 percent of Peugeot S.A.'s share capital and 18.01 of the total voting rights of Peugeot S.A., (b) Bpifrance Participations
S.A. ("BPI S.A.") owned, directly and indirectly through its wholly-owned subsidiary Lion Participations SAS ("Lion SAS", and, together
with BPI S.A.,"BPI"), 12.36 percent of Peugeot S.A.'s share capital and 18.01 of the total voting rights of Peugeot S.A., and (c)
Dongfeng Motor Group Company Ltd. ("DFG") and Dongfeng Motor (Hong-Kong) International Co Ltd. ("DMHK", and, together with
DFG, "Dongfeng") owned 11.24 percent of Peugeot S.A.'s share capital and 16.38 percent of the total voting rights of Peugeot S.A.
Each of EPF/FFP, BPI and Dongfeng has agreed to vote in favor of the Merger. As of the Latest Practicable Date, Exor N.V. ("Exor"
and, together with EPF/FFP, BPI and Dongfeng, the "Reference Shareholders") owned 28.54 of FCA N.V.'s issued and outstanding
share capital, and, based on the loyalty voting system of FCA N.V., 44.40 percent of the total voting rights in FCA N.V. Exor has
agreed to vote in favor of the Merger.

Based on the number of FCA Common Shares and PSA Ordinary Shares outstanding on the date of the Combination Agreement, and
without giving effect to the repurchase of PSA Ordinary Shares by Peugeot S.A. from Dongfeng as described under "The Combination
Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Shareholders Undertakings—Lock-up" below, upon effectiveness of the Merger the pre-
Merger PSA Shareholders would collectively hold approximately 50 percent of the Stellantis Common Shares, and the pre-Merger
shareholders of FCA N.V. would collectively hold the remaining approximately 50 percent of the Stellantis Common Shares. The
Merger will become effective at 00:00 a.m. Central European Time on the first day after the date on which the notarial deed of merger
between FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. is executed. Based on the number of PSA Ordinary Shares outstanding on the Latest Practicable
Date, FCA N.V. will issue up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares to PSA Shareholders as part of the Merger.

Upon completion of the Merger, the newly issued FCA Common Shares will be credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all
respects with the FCA Common Shares in issue at the time that the new FCA Common Shares are issued pursuant to the Merger.



FCA Common Shares are currently traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") and on the MTA, trading under the symbol
"FCAU" on the NYSE and under the symbol "FCA" on the MTA, with international securities identification number ("ISIN")
NL0010877643, to be changed to NLO0150001Q9 on or around the first business day following the Governance Effective Time. FCA
N.V. will apply to list the FCA Common Shares to be issued in the Merger on the NYSE and on the MTA. The listing on MTA is
expected to take place on the first business day following the closing of the Merger. FCA N.V. will also apply for listing and admission
to trading of all FCA Common Shares on Euronext Paris, on which the PSA Ordinary Shares are currently listed. The admission to
listing on Euronext Paris is expected to occur prior to the Merger, while the first day of trading on Euronext Paris is expected to be on
the first business day following the closing of the Merger, subject to the approval by the competent authorities.

This Prospectus is issued solely in connection with the Listing. This Prospectus does not constitute or form part of an offer or invitation
to sell or issue, or any solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe for, any securities by any person.

INVESTING IN THE STELLANTIS COMMON SHARES INVOLVES RISKS. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD READ THIS
WHOLE DOCUMENT, INCLUDING THE DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE, IN ITS ENTIRETY. IN PARTICULAR,
INVESTORS SHOULD TAKE ACCOUNT OF THE CHAPTER ENTITLED "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 23 OF THIS
PROSPECTUS FOR A DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN RISKS THAT SHOULD BE CAREFULLY CONSIDERED BEFORE INVESTING
IN THE STELLANTIS COMMON SHARES.

This Prospectus has been approved by the Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets (Stichting Autoriteit Financiéle Markten, the
"AFM"), as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of June 14, 2017 on
the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market, and repealing
Directive 2003/71/EC (the "Prospectus Regulation"). The AFM has only approved this Prospectus as meeting the standards of
completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as
an endorsement of the issuer that is the subject of this Prospectus or of the quality of the securities that are the subject of this
Prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Stellantis Common Shares. FCA N.V.
has requested the AFM to notify its approval in accordance with article 25(1) of the Prospectus Regulation to the competent authority
in France, the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF"), and to the competent authority in Italy, the Commissione Nazionale per
le Societa e la Borsa ("CONSOB"), with a certificate of approval attesting that this Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with
the Prospectus Regulation.

This Prospectus is dated November 20, 2020.
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SUMMARY

Section A — Introduction and Warnings

Introduction. This summary should be read as an introduction to the prospectus (the "Prospectus") relating to (1) the listing and admission
to trading on the Mercato Telematico Azionario ("MTA") organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. of up to 1,545,221,900 common
shares in the share capital of Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. ("FCA N.V." or the "Company", intended to be renamed Stellantis N.V.
("Stellantis"), with effect from 01.00 Central European Time on the day immediately following the day on which the Merger (as defined
below) occurs, unless a later time or date is mutually agreed upon in writing by FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. (the "Governance Effective
Time")) with a nominal value of €0.01 each (the "FCA Common Shares" or, as of the Governance Effective Time, the "Stellantis Common
Shares") and (2) the listing and admission to trading on Euronext in Paris, a regulated market of Euronext Paris S.A. ("Euronext Paris") of
the FCA Common Shares (the events under (1) and (2) together, the "Listing"). The Listing is to take place in the context of the intended
combination of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. (Peugeot S.A. together with its subsidiaries within the meaning of article L. 233-1 of the French
Commercial Code, "PSA") through a cross-border merger (the "Merger"), with FCA N.V. as the surviving company in the merger (the
enlarged group comprising FCA (as defined below) and PSA, the "Combined Group"). In connection with the Merger, FCA N.V. intends to
issue up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares to holders (each a "PSA Shareholder") of ordinary shares in the share capital of Peugeot
S.A. with a nominal value of €1.00 each (the "PSA Ordinary Shares") through the centralized depository and clearing systems of the
Depository Trust Company ("DTC") and Euroclear France. Any decision to invest in the Stellantis Common Shares should be based on a
consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the investor. An investor could lose all or part of the invested capital. Where a claim relating
to the information contained in the Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under the relevant national legislation,
have to bear the costs of translating the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated. Civil liability attaches only to those persons
who have tabled the summary including any translation thereof, but only where the summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent, when
read together with the other parts of the Prospectus, or it does not provide, when read together with the other parts of this Prospectus, key
information in order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the Stellantis Common Shares.

The international securities identification number ("ISIN") of the FCA Common Shares is NLO010877643, to be changed to NLO0150001Q9
on or around the first business day following the Governance Effective Time. The issuer's legal and commercial name is Fiat Chrysler
Automobiles N.V., which is intended to be renamed Stellantis N.V. FCA N.V.'s address is 25 St. James's Street, London SW1A 1HA, United
Kingdom, its telephone number is +44 20 7766 0311 and its website is www.fcagroup.com. FCA N.V. is registered in the Commercial
Register of the Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel) under number 60372958 and its legal entity
identifier ("LEI") is 549300LKTO9PW7ZIBDF31.

Competent Authority. The competent authority approving the Prospectus is the Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets (Stichting
Autoriteit Financiéle Markten, the "AFM"). The AFM's address is Vijzelgracht 50, 1017 HS Amsterdam, the Netherlands. Its telephone
number is +31 (0)20 797 2000 and its website is www.afm.nl. The AFM has approved the Prospectus on November 20, 2020.

Section B — Key Information on the Issuer
Who is the issuer of the securities?

Domicile and legal form. The issuer of the FCA Common Shares is FCA N.V., to be renamed Stellantis as of the Governance Effective
Time. FCA N.V. is a public limited liability company (naamloze vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) incorporated under the laws
of, and is domiciled in the Netherlands. Its LEI is 549300LKT9PW7ZIBDF31 and it operates under the law of the Netherlands.

Principal Activities. FCA N.V., together with its subsidiaries within the meaning of article 2:24b of the Dutch Civil Code as at the date of
this Prospectus ("FCA"), is a global automotive group engaged in designing, engineering, manufacturing, distributing and selling vehicles,
components and production systems worldwide through over a hundred manufacturing facilities and over forty research and development
centers. FCA has operations in more than forty countries and sells its vehicles directly or through distributors and dealers in more than a
hundred and thirty countries. FCA designs, engineers, manufactures, distributes and sells vehicles for the mass-market under the Abarth,
Alfa Romeo, Chrysler, Dodge, Fiat, Fiat Professional, Jeep, Lancia and Ram brands and the SRT performance vehicle designation. For its
mass-market vehicle brands, FCA has centralized design, engineering, development and manufacturing operations, which allows it to
efficiently operate on a global scale. FCA supports its vehicle shipments with the sale of related service parts and accessories, as well as
service contracts, worldwide under the Mopar brand name for mass-market vehicles. In addition, FCA designs, engineers, manufactures,
distributes and sells luxury vehicles under the Maserati brand. FCA makes available retail and dealer financing, leasing and rental services
through its subsidiaries, joint ventures and commercial arrangements with third party financial institutions.

Major Shareholders. Based on the information in FCA N.V.'s shareholder register, regulatory filings with the AFM and the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission and other sources available to FCA N.V., the following persons owned, directly or indirectly, in excess
of three percent of FCA N.V's capital and/or voting interest as of November 13, 2020 (the "Latest Practicable Date"):

Number of Issued

FCA Common
FCA Shareholders Shares Percentage Owned
Exor N.V.® 449,410,092 28.54
BlackRock, Inc.® 66,230,261 4.21

(1) In addition, Exor N.V. ("Exor") holds 449,410,092 special voting shares in the share capital of FCA N.V. ("FCA Special Voting Shares"); Exor's beneficial
ownership in FCA N.V. is 44.40 percent, calculated as the ratio of (i) the aggregate number of common and FCA Special Voting Shares owned by Exor and (ii)
the aggregate number of outstanding FCA Common Shares and issued FCA Special Voting Shares.

(2) BlackRock, Inc. beneficially owns 66,230,261 FCA Common Shares (3.27 percent of total issued shares, which is the aggregate number of outstanding
FCA Common Shares and issued FCA Special Voting Shares) and 77,260,142 voting rights (4.91 percent of outstanding FCA Common Shares and 3.82
percent of total issued shares issued by FCA N.V.).



Based on the shareholding information of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. as of the Latest Practicable Date, the exchange ratio of 1.742 FCA
Common Shares for each PSA Ordinary Share (the "Exchange Ratio") and certain shareholders undertakings, it is expected that the
following persons will own, directly or indirectly, in excess of three percent of Stellantis's share capital immediately following completion of
the Merger:

Anticipated
Number of Stellantis Common Ownership
Stellantis Shareholders Shares Percentage®
Exor 449,410,092 14.4%
EPF/FFP 224,228,122 7.2%
BPI 192,703,907 6.2%
Dongfeng 175,283,907 5.6%

(1) The percentages of voting rights may differ immaterially from the percentages of ownership due to the fact that a de minimis number of FCA Special Voting
Shares will remain outstanding following the Merger. These shares will constitute the Class B Special Voting Shares of Stellantis following closing of the Merger,
and may cause an immaterial deviation between percentages of ownership and voting rights.

The numbers and percentages in the table above reflect certain factual assumptions, and therefore the actual numbers and percentages of
ownership following the Merger may vary.

Board Members. The members of the board of directors of FCA N.V. (the "FCA Board") are John Elkann, Michael Manley, Richard K.
Palmer, Ronald L. Thompson, John Abbott, Andrea Agnelli, Tiberto Brandolini d'’Adda, Glenn Earle, Valerie A. Mars, Michelangelo A. Volpi,
Patience Wheatcroft and Ermenegildo Zegna.

Independent auditor. FCA N.V.'s statutory auditor is Ernst & Young Accountants LLP.
What is the key financial information regarding the issuer?

Selected historical financial information. The following tables set out selected historical financial information from FCA's and PSA's
consolidated statements of income, financial position and cash flows as at the dates and for the period indicated, respectively.

FCA

The selected consolidated financial information set forth below for FCA has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements
of FCA as at December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and the accompanying notes
thereto and the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information of FCA as at and for the three- and nine months ended
September 30, 2020 (including comparative financial information for the three- and nine months ended September 30, 2019) and the
accompanying notes thereto.

Selected Information Consolidated Income Statement FCA

Nine months ended 30

Years ended 31 December September
(€ million, except per share amounts) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Net revenues € 108,187 € 110,412 € 105,730 € 58,088 € 78,544
Year-on-year revenue growth -2.0% 4.4% -26.0%
Profit/(loss) before taxes € 4,021 € 4,108 € 5,879 € (412) € 2,091
Net profit/(loss) from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the
parent € 2,694 € 3,323 € 3,281 € (1,536) € 1,118
Net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the parent € 6,622 € 3,608 € 3,491 € (1,536) € 5,086
Basic earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing and discontinued operations € 4.23 € 2.33 € 2.27 € (0.98) € 3.25
Basic earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing operations € 1.72 € 2.15 € 2.14 € (0.98) € 0.72

Selected Information Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FCA

As at 31 December As at 30 September

(€ million) 2019 2018 2017 2020
Total assets € 98,044 € 96,873 € 96,299 € 104,248
Total equity € 28,675 € 24903 € 20,987 € 25,181
Selected Information Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows FCA

Years ended 31 December Nine months ended 30 September
(€ million) 2019 2018 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities € 10,462 € 9,948 € 2,898 € 6,094



Of which discontinued operations € (308) € 484 € - £ (308)
Cash flows used in investing activities € (2,985) € (6,738) € (5,194) € (91)
Of which net cash proceeds from disposal
of discontinued operations € 5,348 € - € - £ 5,348
Of which discontinued operations € (155) € (632) € - € (155)
Cash flows used in financing activities € (5,827) € (2,785) € 14,200 € (3,737)
Of which discontinued operations € 325 € (90) € - £ 325

PSA

The selected consolidated financial information set forth below for PSA has been extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements of PSA as at and for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and the accompanying notes thereto and the unaudited
condensed interim consolidated financial statements of PSA as at and for the six months ended June 30, 2020 which has been reviewed in
accordance with ISA (ISRE 2410) (including comparative financial information for the six months ended June 30, 2019) and the
accompanying notes thereto.

The independent auditors' report to the 2018 consolidated financial statements of PSA includes the following emphasis of matter: "We draw
attention to Note 1.2 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the impact of the first-time application of standards of IFRS
15 "Revenue from contracts with customers" and IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter."

The independent auditors' report to the 2019 consolidated financial statements of PSA includes the following emphasis of matter: "We draw
attention to Notes 2.2 and 2.3 to the consolidated financial statements, which describe the impacts of first-time application of IFRS 16
"Leases". Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter."

Selected Information Consolidated Income Statement PSA

Years ended 31 December Six months ended 30 June
(€ million, except per share amounts) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Revenue € 74,731 € 74,027 € 62,256 € 25,120 € 38,340
Operating income (loss) € 4,668 € 4,400 € 3,074 € 482 € 2,491
Consolidated profit (loss) for the period € 3,584 € 3,295 € 2,347 € 376 € 2,048
Basic earnings per €1 par value share
attributable to the owners of the parent € 3.58 € 3.16 € 2.17 € 0.66 € 2.05
Selected Information Consolidated Balance Sheet PSA

As at 31 December As at 30 June

(€ million) 2019%2 2018 2017 2020
Total assets € 69,766 € 61,952 € 57,915 € 67,422
Total equity € 21,801 € 19,594 € 16,706 € 21,994

(1) The consolidated statements of financial position of PSA for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 have not been restated to reflect the effects of
the application of IFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements of PSA, which has been adopted effective 1 January 2019 applying the modified
retrospective approach as described in Note 2.3 to the PSA Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

(2) IFRS 15 was adopted retrospectively by PSA on 1 January 2018. The consolidated statements of financial position of PSA for the years ended 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019 reflect the effects of the application of IFRS 15.

Selected Information Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows PSA

Years ended 31 December Six months ended 30 June
(€ million) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Net cash from (used in) operating activities of
continuing operations € 8,705 € 8,395 € 5,459 € (2,740) € 4,997
Net cash from (used in) investing activities of
continuing operations € (5,972) € (4,739) € (5,156) € (1,913) € (3,365)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities of
continuing operations € (309) £ 7 € (354) € 2,838 € (559)
Net cash from the transferred assets and
liabilities of operations held for sale € - £ - £ @) € - € -

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information addresses a hypothetical situation and has been prepared for illustrative
purposes only; namely, to illustrate the effect of the Merger. It is not intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated profit/(loss)
or financial position that would have been reported had the Merger been completed as of the dates presented, and should not be taken as
representative of the future consolidated profit/(loss) or financial position of the Combined Group following the Merger. The actual financial
position and profit/(loss) of the Combined Group following the Merger may differ significantly. The key pro forma financial information set
forth below has been derived from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.



Selected Information Unaudited Pro forma Condensed Combined Statement of Financial Position as of June 30, 2020

At June 30, 2020

Pro Forma Financial Pro Forma Financial
Information Before Information Post
Faurecia Distribution Faurecia Distribution
(€ million)
Total assets € 137,809 £ 135,514
Total equity € 37,250 € 34,904

Selected Information Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement Of Income For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Pro Forma Financial Information Pro Forma Financial Information
Before Faurecia Distribution Post Faurecia Distribution

(€ million, except per share amounts)
Revenue € 166,748 166,748
Operating income (loss) € 9,597 9,597

Income (loss) before tax of fully consolidated
companies € 8,535 8,535

Consolidated profit (loss) from continuing
operations attributable to the Owners of the

parent € 6,829 6,829
Consolidated profit (loss) attributable to the
Owners of the parent € 10,757 10,757

Basic earnings per €1 par value share of
continuing operations - attributable to Owners
of the parent € 2.19 2.19

Selected Information Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement Of Income For The Period Ended June 30, 2020

For the period ended June 30, 2020

Pro Forma Financial Information Pro Forma Financial Information
Before Faurecia Distribution Post Faurecia Distribution

(€ million, except per share amounts)
Revenue € 51,655 51,655

Operating income (loss) € (449) (449)

Income (loss) before tax of fully consolidated
companies € (991) (991)

Consolidated profit (loss) from continuing
operations attributable to the Owners of the

parent € (1,742) (1,742)
Consolidated profit (loss) attributable to the
Owners of the parent € (1,742) (1,742)

Basic earnings per €1 par value share of
continuing operations - attributable to Owners
of the parent € (0.56) (0.56)

What are the key risks that are specific to the issuer?

The following is a selection of key risks that relate to the Merger, FCA, PSA and, following the Merger, the Combined Group's industry and
business, operations, financial condition. In making the selection, FCA N.V. has considered circumstances, such as the probability of the
risk materializing on the basis of the current state of affairs, the potential impact which the materialization of the risk could have on FCA,
PSA and, following the Merger, the Combined Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, and the attention
that management of FCA, PSA or the Combined Group, as applicable, would, on the basis of the current expectations, have to devote to
these risks if they were to materialize.

. The Exchange Ratio is fixed and therefore a shareholder will not be compensated for changes in the value of FCA Common Shares
or PSA Ordinary Shares, as applicable, prior to effectiveness of the Merger.

. The Merger is subject to receipt of antitrust approvals from several competition authorities. If such approvals are not obtained, this
could prevent the consummation of the Merger.

. The Combined Group may fail to realize some or all of the anticipated benefits of the Merger, which could adversely affect the
value of the Stellantis Common Shares.

. Business interruptions resulting from the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak could cause disruption to the manufacture and sale of
the Combined Group's products and the provision of its services and could adversely impact its business.

. If the Combined Group's vehicle shipment volumes deteriorate, particularly shipments of pickup trucks and larger sport utility

vehicles in the U.S. market for FCA brands, and shipments of vehicles in the European market for PSA brands, the Combined
Group's results of operations and financial condition will suffer.



. The Combined Group's businesses may be adversely affected by global financial markets, general economic conditions,
enforcement of government incentive programs, and geopolitical volatility as well as other macro developments over which the
Combined Group will have little or no control.

. The Combined Group may be unsuccessful in efforts to increase the growth of some of its brands that it believes have global
appeal and reach, which could have material adverse effects on the Combined Group's business.

. The automotive industry is highly competitive and cyclical, and the Combined Group may suffer from those factors more than some
of its competitors.

. Vehicle retail sales depend heavily on affordable interest rates and availability of credit for vehicle financing and a substantial
increase in interest rates could adversely affect the Combined Group's business.

. Current and more stringent future or incremental laws, regulations and governmental policies, including those regarding increased

fuel efficiency requirements and reduced greenhouse gas and tailpipe emissions, may have a significant effect on how the
Combined Group does business and may increase its cost of compliance, result in additional liabilities and negatively affect its
operations and results.

. The Combined Group will remain subject to ongoing diesel emissions investigations by several governmental agencies and to a
number of related private lawsuits, which may lead to further claims, lawsuits and enforcement actions, and result in additional
penalties, settlements or damage awards and may also adversely affect the Combined Group's reputation with consumers.

. The Combined Group's business operations and reputation may be impacted by various types of claims, lawsuits, and other
contingencies.
. Limitations on the Combined Group's liquidity and access to funding, as well as its significant outstanding indebtedness, may

restrict the Combined Group's financial and operating flexibility and its ability to execute its business strategies, obtain additional
funding on competitive terms and improve its financial condition and results of operations.

. The French tax authorities may not grant or may deny or revoke in whole or in part the benefit of the rulings confirming the neutral
tax treatment of the Merger for PSA and the PSA Shareholders and the transfer of tax losses carried forward of the existing PSA
French tax consolidated group.

Section C — Key Information on the Securities
What are the main features of the securities?

Share capital. The FCA Common Shares are common shares in the share capital of FCA N.V. with a nominal value of €0.01 each. The
ISIN of the FCA Common Shares is NL0010877643, to be changed to NLO0150001Q9 on or around the first business day following the
Governance Effective Time. The FCA Common Shares and, following completion of the Merger, the Stellantis Common Shares, are
denominated in Euro and trade in Euro on the MTA and in USD on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE").

New shares. FCA N.V. intends to issue up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares in connection with the Merger. Upon completion of the
Merger, the newly issued FCA Common Shares will be credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with the FCA Common
Shares in issue at the time that the new FCA Common Shares are issued in connection with the Merger. The FCA Common Shares and,
following the Merger, the Stellantis Common Shares, carry dividend rights. Each FCA Common Share and, following the Merger, each
Stellantis Common Share, confers the right to cast one vote in the general meeting of FCA N.V. Each holder of Stellantis Common Shares
(a "Stellantis Shareholder") may at any time elect to participate in the loyalty voting structure by requesting that Stellantis registers all or
some of their Stellantis Common Shares in the loyalty register of Stellantis (the "Loyalty Register"). The registration of Stellantis Common
Shares in the Loyalty Register blocks such shares from trading. If such number of Stellantis Common Shares has been registered in the
Loyalty Register (and thus blocked from trading) for an uninterrupted period of three years in the name of the same Stellantis Shareholder,
such shares (the "Qualifying Common Shares") become eligible to receive class A special voting shares in the share capital of Stellantis
with a nominal value of €0.01 each ("Class A Special Voting Shares") and the relevant Stellantis Shareholder will be entitled to receive
one Class A Special Voting Share for each such Qualifying Common Share. If, at any time, such Stellantis Common Shares are de-registered
from the Loyalty Register for whatever reason, the relevant Stellantis Shareholder will lose its entitlement to hold a corresponding number
of Class A Special Voting Shares or Class B Special Voting Shares (as defined below), as the case may be. Stellantis Shareholders holding
Class A Special Voting Shares are entitled to exercise one vote for each Class A Special Voting Share held and one vote for each Stellantis
Common Share held. Class B special voting shares in the share capital of Stellantis with a nominal value of €0.01 each ("Class B Special
Voting Shares") will be created at the Governance Effective Time and such shares will only be held by FCA Shareholders other than Exor
who held FCA Special Voting Shares prior to the "Effective Time" (00:00 a.m. Central European Time on the first day after the date on
which a Dutch civil law notary executes a notarial deed of cross-border merger with respect to the Merger between FCA N.V. and Peugeot
S.A. in accordance with applicable Dutch law and French law). Stellantis Shareholders holding Class B Special Voting Shares are entitled
to exercise one vote for each Class B Special Voting Share held and one vote for each Stellantis Common Share held.

Share issuance and pre-emptive rights. Upon issue of FCA Common Shares or grant of rights to subscribe for FCA Common Shares,
and, following the Merger, the Stellantis Common Shares, each holder of FCA Common Shares ("FCA Shareholder") and, following the
Merger, each Stellantis Shareholder, shall have a pre-emptive right in proportion to the aggregate nominal amount of its FCA Common
Shares or, following the Merger, Stellantis Common Shares. Shareholders do not have pre-emptive rights in respect of FCA Common Shares
issued against contributions in kind, FCA Common Shares issued to employees of FCA pursuant to any option plan or FCA Common Shares
issued to persons exercising a previously granted right to subscribe for FCA Common Shares, or, following completion of the Merger, in
respect of Stellantis Common Shares so issued, or in respect of any shares issued in accordance with the FCA or, following completion of
the Merger, the Stellantis loyalty voting structure. Pre-emptive rights may be limited or excluded by a resolution of the general meeting of
FCA N.V. or a resolution of the FCA Board if the FCA Board has been designated to do so by the general meeting and provided the FCA
Board has also been authorized to resolve on the issuance of shares.

Insolvency. In the event of insolvency, any claims of the FCA Shareholders or, following the Merger, Stellantis Shareholders are
subordinated to those of the creditors of FCA N.V. and Stellantis, respectively. This means that an investor could potentially lose all or part
of its invested capital.



Transferability. There are no restrictions on the transferability of the FCA Common Shares in FCA's articles of association, or following the
Merger, of the Stellantis Common Shares in Stellantis's articles of association.

Dividend Policy. At the time of this Prospectus, no dividend policy for Stellantis has been adopted.
Where will the securities be traded?

FCA Common Shares are currently traded on the NYSE and on the MTA, trading under the symbol "FCAU" on the NYSE and under the
symbol "FCA" on the MTA. FCA N.V. will apply to list the FCA Common Shares to be issued in the Merger on the NYSE and on the MTA.
The listing on MTA is expected to take place on the first business day following the closing of the Merger. FCA N.V. will also apply for listing
and admission to trading of all FCA Common Shares on Euronext Paris, on which the PSA Ordinary Shares are currently listed. The
admission to listing on Euronext Paris is expected to occur prior to the Merger, while the first day of trading on Euronext Paris is expected
to be on the first business day following the closing of the Merger, subject to the approval by the competent authorities.

What are the key risks that are specific to the securities?

The following is the key risk relating to the ownership of the Stellantis Common Shares. In selecting this risk, FCA N.V. has considered
circumstances such as the probability of the risk materializing and the potential impact which the materialization of the risk could have on
Stellantis Shareholders.

. Stellantis's maintenance of three exchange listings may adversely affect liquidity in the market for Stellantis Common Shares and
result in pricing differentials of Stellantis Common Shares between the three exchanges.

Section D — Key Information on the Listing
Under which conditions and timetable can | invest in this security?

The Prospectus is issued in connection with the Listing. The Prospectus does not constitute or form part of an offer or invitation to sell or
issue, or any solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe for, any securities by any person. FCA N.V. will not receive any proceeds in
connection with the Listing.

Delivery of Shares

The FCA Common Shares issued as part of the Merger and represented by the book-entry positions referred to below, shall be issued and
allotted to Cede & Co, as nominee for DTC, for inclusion in the centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France,
and ultimately, directly or indirectly, on behalf and for the benefit of the former holders of PSA Ordinary Shares.

Each book-entry position previously representing PSA Ordinary Shares (other than any PSA Ordinary Share held in treasury by Peugeot
S.A. or by FCA N.V. and any other PSA Ordinary Shares referred to by Article L. 236-3(ll) of the French Commercial Code, if any (the
"Excluded PSA Shares")), which includes all PSA Ordinary Shares (other than any Excluded PSA Shares) held in:

(a) pure registered form (nominatif pur);
(b) administered registered form (nominatif administré); and
(c) bearer form (au porteur),

shall following implementation of the Merger, and as further described in the Prospectus, be exchanged for book-entry positions representing
FCA Common Shares in the same form, issued and allotted in accordance with the Exchange Ratio, it being specified that the book-entry
positions representing FCA Common Shares in pure registered form (nominatif pur) shall be recorded by Société Générale Securities
Services within Euroclear France.

Depending on each PSA Shareholder's custodian/depository, the book-entry positions representing FCA Common Shares should be visible
in the securities accounts of the PSA Shareholders between the first business day following the Effective Time and the effective delivery
date of the positions in Euroclear France.

No fractional FCA Common Shares shall be issued and allotted and any fractional entitlements in connection with the Merger will be settled
as further described in the Prospectus.

Each Excluded PSA Share, if any, shall be cancelled by operation of Law in accordance with Article 2:325(4) Dutch Civil Code and no
consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.

Following implementation of the Merger, any holder of FCA Common Shares registered in the name of Cede & Co, as nominee for DTC,
and included in the centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France is entitled to request, through its intermediary
for such FCA Common Shares, to be registered in its own name in FCA's shareholders' register, provided that such FCA Common Shares
shall no longer be included in the centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France and may no longer be traded
on Euronext Paris.

Dilution

Subject to the Merger becoming effective, up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares will be issued to PSA Shareholders. The issuance of
FCA Common Shares in connection with the Merger will result in FCA N.V.'s share capital increasing by approximately 100 percent, relative
to the number of FCA Common Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date. If the Merger becomes effective, FCA Shareholders (who
do not hold PSA Ordinary Shares) will suffer an immediate dilution as a result of the Merger. Assuming that the maximum number of FCA
Common Shares is issued to PSA Shareholders, each FCA Shareholder (who does not hold PSA Ordinary Shares) will be diluted by
approximately 50 percent. The dilution for FCA Shareholders will impact the exercise of voting rights similarly (disregarding the minimal
impact of the transfer of the FCA Special Voting Shares from Exor to FCA N.V.). If the Merger becomes effective, PSA Shareholders and



FCA Shareholders respectively will, immediately following completion of the Merger, hold approximately 50 percent of FCA N.V.'s enlarged
share capital, and, at the Governance Effective Time, of Stellantis's share capital.

Estimated expenses
The expenses related to the Listing are estimated at approximately €2,317,000.
Why is this Prospectus being produced?

As part of the Merger, new FCA Common Shares will be issued to PSA Shareholders, which will need to be admitted to trading on the MTA.
In addition, FCA N.V. will also apply for listing and admission to trading of all FCA Common Shares on Euronext Paris, on which the PSA
Ordinary Shares are currently listed (together referred to as the Listing). The Prospectus is being produced in connection with the Listing.

Most material conflicts of interest

Certain of the directors and officers of FCA and PSA may have interests in the Merger, in relation to having the prospect of a management
position in the Combined Group, or receiving compensation or benefits that they would not receive if the Merger did not occur, that are
different from, or in addition to, the interests of the FCA Shareholders and the PSA Shareholders, respectively, which the FCA Board and
the PSA Supervisory Board, respectively, considered during their deliberations on the merits of the Merger or in approving the related
arrangements. Such interests may influence these persons in making their recommendation that FCA Shareholders or PSA Shareholders,
respectively vote in favor of approval of the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement. These interests are
the following:

FCA

. The fact that certain directors and officers of FCA will continue to serve as directors or officers of Stellantis following the Merger.

. The eligibility of each holder of an outstanding FCA equity award to receive a substitute Stellantis restricted share unit award that
will continue to be governed by the same terms and conditions (other than performance-based vesting) as were applicable to the
FCA equity award prior to the effective time of the merger. Any performance conditions will be deemed satisfied at target or, in the
event that FCA's performance exceeds the target level as assessed by the FCA Board or a committee of the FCA Board, at that
assessed level.

. Certain officers' eligibility to receive a one-time cash award.

. Severance benefits, including the accelerated vesting of outstanding equity awards, in the event of a termination of employment
of certain officers without cause or by the officer for good reason within a certain period of time following the Merger.

PSA:

. Certain directors and officers of PSA will continue to serve as directors and officers of Stellantis following the Merger.

. At the Effective Time, each holder of equity incentive awards with respect to PSA ordinary shares will be entitled to have such

award converted into a restricted share unit award with respect to a number of Stellantis Common Shares equal to the product of
the number of PSA Ordinary Shares underlying the PSA equity incentive award and the Exchange Ratio.

. Certain directors and officers are eligible to receive incentive payments in connection with the Merger. In addition, PSA has
proposed increasing the base compensation and annual bonus targets for certain of its officers in consideration of their enhanced
responsibilities, including in connection with the Merger.

. Stellantis will maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance for a period of at least six years from the Effective Time covering
all persons who were previously covered by PSA's directors' and officers' liability insurance policies prior to the Effective Time.



RESUME
The French translation of the summary below has not been part of the approval process of the Prospectus by the AFM.

Section A - Introduction et avertissements

Introduction. Le présent résumé doit étre lu comme une introduction au prospectus (ci-aprés le « Prospectus ») relatif (1) a la cotation et
a l'admission aux négociations sur le Mercato Telematico Azionario (« MTA »), organisé et géré par Borsa Italiana S.p.A., d'un maximum
de 1 545 221 900 actions ordinaires du capital social de Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. (« FCA N.V. » ou la « Société », destinée a étre
renommée Stellantis N.V. (« Stellantis »), avec effet a 01h00 heure d'Europe centrale, le jour suivant immédiatement le jour ou la Fusion
(telle que définie ci-dessous) sera réalisée, & moins qu'une heure ou une date ultérieure ne soit mutuellement convenue par écrit entre FCA
N.V. et Peugeot S.A. (lax Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance »)) avec une valeur nominale de 0,01 € chacune (les
« Actions Ordinaires FCA » ou, a la Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance, les « Actions Ordinaires Stellantis ») et
(2) a la cotation et I'admission aux négociations sur Euronext a Paris, le marché réglementé d'Euronext Paris S.A. (« Euronext Paris ») des
Actions Ordinaires FCA (les événements (1) et (2) sont dénommés ensemble la « Cotation »). La Cotation aura lieu dans le cadre du projet
de rapprochement de FCA N.V. et de Peugeot S.A. (Peugeot S.A. ainsi que ses filiales, au sens de l'article L. 233-1 du Code de commerce,
ci-aprés « PSA ») par le biais d'une fusion transfrontaliére (ci-aprés « la Fusion »), avec FCA N.V. en tant que société survivante a la
Fusion (le groupe élargi comprenant FCA (tel que défini ci-dessous) et PSA, ci-aprés le « Groupe Combiné »). Dans le cadre de la Fusion,
FCA N.V. a l'intention d'émettre jusqu'a 1 545 221 900 Actions Ordinaires FCA au bénéfice des porteurs (chacun étant un « Actionnaire
de PSA ») d'actions ordinaires du capital social de Peugeot S.A. d'une valeur nominale de 1,00 € chacune (ci-aprés les « Actions
Ordinaires PSA ») par l'intermédiaire des systemes centralisés de dépdt et compensation de la Depository Trust Company (« DTC ») et
d'Euroclear France. Toute décision d'investir dans les Actions Ordinaires Stellantis doit étre fondée sur I'examen par l'investisseur du
Prospectus dans son ensemble. Un investisseur peut perdre tout ou partie du capital investi. Lorsqu'une action judiciaire portant sur
I'information contenue dans le Prospectus est intentée devant une juridiction, l'investisseur plaignant peut, selon la législation nationale
applicable, avoir a supporter les frais de traduction du Prospectus avant le début de la procédure judiciaire. La responsabilité civile n'est
encourue que par les personnes qui ont déposé le résumé, y compris toute traduction de celui-ci, mais uniguement lorsque le résumé est
trompeur, inexact ou contradictoire, lorsqu'il est lu conjointement avec les autres parties du Prospectus, ou lorsqu'il ne fournit pas, lu
conjointement avec les autres parties du présent Prospectus, les informations clés permettant aux investisseurs de décider d'investir dans
les Actions Ordinaires Stellantis.

Le numéro international d'identification des titres (« ISIN ») des Actions Ordinaires FCA est NL0O010877643. Cet ISIN sera remplacé par
I'ISIN NL00150001Q9 le premier jour ouvré suivant la Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance ou a une date proche. La
dénomination sociale et commerciale de I'émetteur est Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V., qui sera renommé Stellantis N.V. L'adresse de FCA
N.V. est 25 St. James's Street, Londres SW1A 1HA, Royaume-Uni, son numéro de téléphone est le +44 20 7766 0311 et son site Internet
est www.fcagroup.com. FCA N.V. est inscrite au registre du commerce de la Chambre de commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van
Koophandel) sous le numéro 60372958 et son identifiant d'entité juridique (« LEI ») est 549300LKT9PW7ZIBDF31.

Autorité compétente. L'autorité compétente pour approuver le Prospectus est I'Autorité néerlandaise des marchés financiers (Stichting
Autoriteit Financiéle Markten, ci-aprés I'« AFM »). L'adresse de I'AFM est la suivante : Vijzelgracht 50, 1017 HS Amsterdam, Pays-Bas. Son
numéro de téléphone est le +31 (0)20 797 2000 et son site Internet est www.afm.nl. L'AFM a approuvé le Prospectus le 20 novembre 2020.

Section B - Informations clés sur I'Emetteur

Qui est I'émetteur des valeurs mobiliéres ?

Siege social et forme juridique. L'émetteur des Actions Ordinaires FCA est FCA N.V., qui sera renommé Stellantis a partir de la Date
d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance. FCA N.V. est une société a responsabilité limitée (naamloze vennootschap met beperkte
aansprakelijkheid) constituée selon le droit néerlandais et dont le siége social est situé aux Pays-Bas. Son LEI est 549300LKT9PW7ZIBDF31,
et elle est soumise au droit des Pays-Bas.

Activités principales. FCA N.V., avec ses filiales au sens de l'article 2:24b du Code civil néerlandais, a la date du présent Prospectus
(« FCA »), est un groupe automobile mondial qui crée, congoit, développe, produit, distribue et commercialise des véhicules, des
composants et des systéemes de production dans le monde entier par l'intermédiaire de plus de cent sites de production et de plus de
guarante centres de recherche et de développement. FCA est présente dans plus de quarante pays et vend ses véhicules directement ou
par l'intermédiaire de distributeurs et de concessionnaires dans plus de cent trente pays. FCA crée, congoit, développe, produit, distribue
et commercialise des véhicules destinés au marché grand public sous les marques Abarth, Alfa Romeo, Chrysler, Dodge, Fiat, Fiat
Professional, Jeep, Lancia et Ram et sous la catégorie de véhicules de performance SRT. Pour ses marques de véhicules grand public,
FCA a centralisé les opérations de création, de conception, de développement et de production, ce qui lui permet d'opérer efficacement a
I'échelle mondiale. FCA soutient la commercialisation de ses véhicules par la vente de piéces de rechange et d'accessoires connexes, ainsi
que par des contrats de prestation de services dans le monde entier sous la marque Mopar pour les véhicules grand public. En outre, FCA
crée, congoit, développe, produit, distribue et commercialise des véhicules de luxe sous la marque Maserati. FCA propose des services de
financement, de crédit-bail et de location aux particuliers et aux concessionnaires par I'intermédiaire de ses filiales, de ses joint-ventures et
d'accords commerciaux avec des institutions financiéres tierces.

Principaux actionnaires. Sur la base des informations contenues dans le registre des actionnaires de FCA N.V., des formulaires
réglementaires déposés auprés de I'AFM et de la Securities and Exchange Commission des Etats-Unis et des autres sources d'information
dont dispose FCA N.V., les personnes suivantes détenaient, directement ou indirectement, plus de 3% du capital social et/ou des droits de
vote de FCA N.V. au 13 novembre 2020 (la « Derniere Date Retenue »).

Nombre d'Actions

Ordinaires FCA Pourcentage de
Actionnaires de FCA émises Détention
Exor N.V.® 449 410 092 28,54
BlackRock, Inc.® 66 230 261 4,21




(1) En outre, Exor N.V. (« Exor ») détient 449 410 092 actions a droit de vote spécial au sein du capital social de FCA N.V. (« Actions FCA a Droit de Vote
Spécial »); la détention effective d'Exor dans FCA N.V. s'éleve a 44,40%, calculé comme étant le rapport entre
(i) le nombre total d'Actions Ordinaires FCA et d'Actions FCA a Droit de Vote Spécial détenues par Exor et (ii) le nombre total d'Actions Ordinaires FCA en
circulation et d'Actions FCA a Droit de Vote Spécial émises.

(2) BlackRock, Inc. est propriétaire de 66 230 261 Actions Ordinaires FCA (représentant 3,27% du total des actions émises (qui comprennent le nombre total
d'Actions Ordinaires FCA en circulation et d'Actions FCA a Droit de Vote Spécial émises)) et de 77 260 142 droits de vote (représentant 4,91% des droits de
vote relatifs aux Actions Ordinaires FCA en circulation et 3,82% des droits de vote relatifs au total des actions émises par FCA N.V.).

Sur la base des informations relatives a l'actionnariat de FCA N.V. et de Peugeot S.A. a la Derniere Date Retenue, du rapport d'échange
de 1,742 Action Ordinaire FCA pour chaque Action Ordinaire PSA (le « Rapport d'Echange »), et de certains engagements des actionnaires,
il est prévu que les personnes suivantes détiendront, directement ou indirectement, plus de 3% du capital social de Stellantis immédiatement
aprés la réalisation de la Fusion :

Pourcentage de

Nombre d'Actions Ordinaires Détention
Actionnaires de Stellantis Stellantis Prévue®
Exor 449 410 092 14,4 %
EPF/FFP 224 228 122 7,2%
BPI 192 703 907 6,2 %
Dongfeng 175 283 907 5,6 %

(1) Les pourcentages de détention des droits de vote peuvent différer de fagon non significative des pourcentages de détention d'actions en raison du fait qu'un
nombre minimum d'Actions FCA a Droit de Vote Spécial restera en circulation aprés la Fusion. Ces actions constitueront les Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial B
de Stellantis aprés la réalisation de la Fusion, et elles pourront étre la cause d'un écart non significatif entre les pourcentages de détention d'actions et les
pourcentages de droits de vote.

Les chiffres et pourcentages figurant dans le tableau ci-dessus reflétent certaines hypothéses factuelles, par conséquent, les chiffres et
pourcentages réels de détention a la suite de la Fusion peuvent varier.

Membres du conseil d'administration. Les membres du conseil d'administration de FCA N.V. (le « Conseil d'administration de FCA »)
sont John Elkann, Michael Manley, Richard K. Palmer, Ronald L. Thompson, John Abbott, Andrea Agnelli, Tiberto Brandolini d'’Adda, Glenn
Earle, Valerie A. Mars, Michelangelo A. Volpi, Patience Wheatcroft et Ermenegildo Zegna.

Auditeur indépendant. Le cabinet d'audit en charge du contrdle |égal des comptes de FCA N.V. est Ernst & Young Accountants LLP.

Quelles sont les informations financiéres clés concernant I'émetteur ?

Informations financiéres historiques sélectionnées. Les tableaux suivants présentent une sélection d'informations financieres
historiques extraites des comptes de résultats consolidés, de la situation financiére et des flux de trésorerie respectifs de FCA et de PSA,
aux dates et pour la période indiquées.

FCA

Les informations financiéres consolidées sélectionnées présentées ci-dessous pour FCA ont été établies a partir des états financiers
consolidés de FCA audités aux 31 décembre 2019, 2018 et 2017 et pour les exercices clos aux 31 décembre 2019, 2018 et 2017 et des
notes y afférentes, ainsi que des informations financiéres intermédiaires consolidées résumées de FCA non auditées au 30 septembre 2020
et pour les trois et neuf mois clos a cette date (y compris les informations financiéres comparatives pour les trois et neuf mois clos au 30
septembre 2019) et des notes y afférentes.

Informations sélectionnées - Compte de résultat consolidé de FCA

Neuf mois clos le 30

Exercice clos le 31 décembre septembre
(en millions d'euros, sauf pour
les montants par action) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Chiffre d'affaires net € 108 187 € 110412 € 105730 € 58088 € 78 544
Croissance du chiffre d'affaires
d'une année sur l'autre -2,0% 4,4 % -26,0%
Bénéfice avant impots € 4021 € 4108 € 5879 € (412) € 2 091
Résultat net des activités
poursuivies — part du Groupe € 2694 € 3323 € 3281 € (1536) € 1118
Résultat net — part du Groupe € 6622 £ 3608 € 3491 € (1536) € 5086
Résultat net par action des
activités poursuivies et
abandonnées € 4,23 € 2,33 € 2,27 € (0,98) € 3,25
Résultat net par action des
activités poursuivies € 1,72 € 2,15 € 2,14 € (0,98) € 0,72
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Informations sélectionnées - Etat de la situation financiére consolidée de FCA

Au 31 décembre Au 30 septembre
(en millions d'euros) 2019 2018 2017 2020
Total Actif € 98 044 € 96 873 € 96 299 € 104 248
Total des capitaux propres € 28675 £ 24903 € 20 987 € 25181

Informations sélectionnées - Etat des flux de trésorerie consolidé de FCA

Neuf mois clos le 30

Exercice clos le 31 décembre septembre
(en millions d'euros) 2019 2018 2020 2019
Flux de trésorerie provenant de
I'exploitation € 10 462 € 9948 € 2898 € 6 094
Dont activités abandonnées € (308) € 484 € - € (308)
Flux de trésorerie provenant des
activités d'investissements € (2 985) € (6738) € (5194) € (91)
Dont produit de cession net en
trésorerie des activités abandonnées € 5348 € - € - £ 5348
Dont activités abandonnées € (155) € (632) € - € (155)
Flux de trésorerie provenant des
activités de financement € (5 827) € (2785) € 14 200 € (3737)
Dont activités abandonnées € 325 € (90) € - € 325

PSA

Les informations financiéres consolidées sélectionnées présentées ci-dessous pour PSA ont été tirées des états financiers consolidés
audités de PSA aux 31 décembre 2019, 2018 et 2017 et des notes y afférentes, ainsi que des informations financiéres intermédiaires
consolidées résumées non auditées de PSA au 30 juin 2020 examinées conformément a la Norme Internationale d'Audit (ISRE 2410) (y
compris les informations financiéres comparatives pour les six mois clos au 30 juin 2019) et des notes y afférentes.

Le rapport des commissaires aux comptes sur les comptes consolidés 2018 de PSA contient I'observation suivante : « Sans remettre en
cause |'opinion exprimée ci-dessus, nous attirons votre attention sur la note 1.2 de I'annexe aux comptes consolidés qui expose les impacts
des premiéres applications des normes IFRS 15 « Produits des activités ordinaires tirés de contrats conclus avec des clients » et IFRS 9
« Instruments financiers ». »

Le rapport des commissaires aux comptes sur les comptes consolidés 2019 de PSA contient I'observation suivante : « Sans remettre en
cause l'opinion exprimée ci-dessus, nous attirons votre attention sur les notes 2.2 et 2.3 de I'annexe aux comptes consolidés qui exposent
les impacts de la premiére application de la norme IFRS 16 « Contrats de location ». »

Informations sélectionnées - Compte de résultat consolidé de PSA

Exercice clos le 31 décembre Semestre clos le 30 juin
(en millions d'euros, sauf pour
les montants par action) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Chiffre d'affaires € 74 731 € 74 027 € 62 256 € 25120 € 38 340
Résultat opérationnel € 4 668 € 4 400 € 3074 € 482 € 2491
Résultat net consolidé € 3584 € 3295 € 2347 € 376 € 2048
Résultat net — part du Groupe — par
action de 1 euro € 3,58 € 3,16 € 2,17 € 0,66 € 2,05
Informations sélectionnées - Bilan consolidé de PSA

Au 31 décembre Au 30 juin

(en millions d'euros) 2019%2 2018 2017 2020
Total Actif € 69766 € 61952 € 57 915 € 67 422
Total des capitaux propres € 21801 € 19594 € 16 706 € 21994

(1) Les états consolidés de la situation financiére de PSA pour les exercices clos les 31 décembre 2018 et 2017 n'ont pas été retraités pour refléter les effets
de [l'application de la norme IFRS 16 sur les états financiers consolidés de PSA, qui a été adoptée avec effet au
1¢ janvier 2019 en appliquant I'approche rétrospective modifiée telle que décrite dans la note 2.3 des états financiers consolidés de PSA pour I'exercice clos
le 31 décembre 2019.

(2) La norme IFRS 15 a été adoptée de maniére rétrospective par PSA le 1* janvier 2018. Les états consolidés de la situation financiere de PSA pour les
exercices clos les 31 décembre 2017, 2018 et 2019 reflétent les effets de I'application de la norme IFRS 15.
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Informations sélectionnées - Tableau des flux de trésorerie consolidé de PSA

Exercice clos le 31 décembre

Semestre clos le 30 juin

(en millions d'euros)

2019

2020 2019

2018 2017

Flux liés a I'exploitation des activités
poursuivies €

8 705

5 459 € 4 997

€ 8395 € (2740) €

Flux liés aux investissements des
activités poursuivies €

(5 972)

€ (4739 € (5156) € (1913) € (3365)

Flux des opérations financiéres des
activités poursuivies €

(309)

€ (7) € (354) € 2838 € (559)

Flux liés aux actifs et passifs transférés
des activités destinées a étre cédées €

Informations financiéres pro forma non auditées
Les informations financiéres pro forma condensées combinées non auditées portent sur une situation hypothétique et ont été préparées a
des fins d'illustration uniquement, a savoir pour illustrer I'effet de la Fusion. Ces informations ne sont pas destinées a étre représentatives
ou indicatives du bénéfice (ou de la perte) consolidé ou de la situation financiere qui auraient été présentés si la Fusion avait été réalisée
aux dates présentées, et ne doivent pas étre considérées comme représentatives du bénéfice (ou de la perte) consolidé ou de la situation
financiére futurs du Groupe Combiné postérieurement a la Fusion. La situation financiére et le bénéfice (ou la perte) réel du Groupe Combiné
a la suite de la Fusion peuvent sensiblement différer. Les principales informations financieres pro forma présentées ci-dessous ont été
établies a partir des informations financiéres combinées pro forma résumées et non auditées.

€ - € @ € - € ]

Informations sélectionnées - Etat de la situation financiére pro forma, combinée, résumée et non auditée au 30 juin 2020

Total Actif
Total des capitaux propres

Au 30 juin 2020

Informations
financiéeres pro forma
apreés distribution
Faurecia

Informations
financieres pro forma
avant distribution
Faurecia

(en millions d'euros)
€ 137809 €
€ 37250 €

135 514
34 904

Informations sélectionnées - Compte de résultat pro forma, combiné, résumé et non audité pour I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2019

Pour I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2019

Informations financiéres pro

Informations financiéres pro forma tions financ ]
forma apres distribution Faurecia

avant distribution Faurecia

Chiffre d'affaires
Résultat opérationnel courant
Résultat avant imp6t des sociétés intégrées

Résultat consolidé des activités
poursuivies — part du Groupe

Résultat consolidé — part du Groupe

Résultat net des activités poursuivies — part
du Groupe — par action de 1 euro

(en millions d'euros, sauf pour les montants par action)

166 748 166 748

9 597 9 597

8 535 8 535

6 829 6 829

10 757 10 757

€ 2,19 2,19

Informations sélectionnées - Compte de résultat pro forma, combiné, résumé et non audité pour I'exercice clos le 30 juin 2020

Pour I'exercice clos le 30 juin 2020

Informations financiéres pro

Informations financieres pro forma s financ )
forma aprés distribution Faurecia

avant distribution Faurecia

Chiffre d'affaires

Résultat opérationnel courant

Résultat avant imp6t des sociétés intégrées

Résultat consolidé des activités
poursuivies — part du Groupe

Résultat consolidé — part du Groupe

Résultat net des activités poursuivies — part

du Groupe — par action de 1 euro

(en millions d'euros, sauf pour les montants par action)

51 655 51 655

(449) (449)

(991) (991)

(1 742) (1 742)

1 742) (1 742)

€ (0,56) (0,56)

Quels sont les principaux risques spécifiques a I'émetteur ?
Sont ci-aprés présentés, les principaux risques associés a la Fusion, a FCA, a PSA et, postérieurement a la Fusion, au secteur et a l'activité

du Groupe Combiné, a ses opérations ainsi qu'a sa situation financiére. Pour les identifier, FCA N.V. a apprécié les éléments suivants, la
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probabilité de réalisation du risque, compte tenu des circonstances connues et existantes, du potentiel impact que la réalisation de ce risque
pourrait engendrer pour FCA, et/ou PSA et, postérieurement a la Fusion, l'impact de ce risque sur l'activité, la situation financiere, les
résultats d'exploitation et les perspectives du Groupe Combiné, ainsi que I'attention que la direction de FCA, de PSA ou le cas échéant, du
Groupe Combiné, devrait porter a ces risques, sur la base des prévisions actuelles, si ces derniers devaient se réaliser.

. Le Rapport d'Echange est fixe et, par conséquent un actionnaire ne sera pas dédommagé si la valeur des Actions Ordinaires FCA
ou des Actions Ordinaires PSA était, le cas échéant, amenée a évoluer avant que la Fusion soit réalisée.

. La réalisation de la Fusion est subordonnée a I'obtention d'autorisations auprés de plusieurs autorités de la concurrence. Si ces
autorisations ne sont pas obtenues, cela ferait obstacle a la réalisation de la Fusion.

. Le Groupe Combiné pourrait ne pas réaliser tout ou partie des bénéfices escomptés a la suite de la Fusion, ce qui pourrait affecter
négativement la valeur des Actions Ordinaires Stellantis.

. Les interruptions d'activité résultant de I'épidémie de coronavirus (COVID-19) pourraient perturber la production et la

commercialisation des produits du Groupe Combiné, ainsi que des services dont il assure la prestation, et pourraient avoir un
impact négatif sur ses résultats.

. Si les volumes des commandes de véhicules du Groupe Combiné se détériorent, en particulier les commandes de camionnettes
et de gros véhicules utilitaires (sport utility vehicle) sur le marché américain pour les marques FCA, et les commandes de véhicules
sur le marché européen pour les marques PSA, les résultats d'exploitation et la situation financiére du Groupe Combiné en patiront.

. Les activités du Groupe Combiné peuvent étre affectées par les marchés financiers mondiaux, les conditions économiques
générales, l'application de programmes d'incitation gouvernementaux et la volatilité géopolitique, ainsi que par d'autres
développements macroéconomiques sur lesquels le Groupe Combiné n'aura que peu ou pas de contrdle.

. Le Groupe Combiné pourrait ne pas réussir a renforcer la croissance de certaines de ses marques qui, selon lui, ont un attrait et
une portée mondiale, ce qui pourrait avoir des effets négatifs importants sur les résultats du Groupe Combiné.

. L'industrie automobile est trés compétitive et cyclique, et le Groupe Combiné pourrait davantage patir de ces facteurs que certains
de ses concurrents.

. La vente au détail de véhicules dépend fortement de I'accés a des taux d'intérét abordables et de la disponibilité de crédits pour

le financement de véhicules, une augmentation substantielle des taux d'intérét pourrait ainsi avoir un effet négatif sur les activités
du Groupe Combiné.

. Les lois, réglementations et politiques gouvernementales actuelles et celles futures, dont le champ d'application serait, le cas
échéant, plus contraignant ou plus étendu, y compris celles portant sur des exigences accrues en matiére de rendement
énergétique et sur la réduction des gaz a effet de serre et des émissions des gaz d'échappement, peuvent avoir un effet important
sur la maniére dont le Groupe Combiné exerce ses activités et peuvent augmenter les codts de mise en conformité, entrainer des
cas d'engagement de responsabilités supplémentaires et avoir une incidence négative sur ses activités et ses résultats.

. Le Groupe Combiné restera soumis aux enquétes en cours sur les émissions provenant des moteurs diesel initiées par plusieurs
organismes gouvernementaux et a un certain nombre de poursuites privées connexes. Celles-ci pourraient donner lieu a de
nouvelles réclamations, poursuites et mesures d'exécution, et entrainer des pénalités, des accords ou des dommages et intéréts
supplémentaires, et pourraient également nuire a la réputation du Groupe Combiné auprés des consommateurs.

. Les activités commerciales et la réputation du Groupe Combiné peuvent étre affectées par divers types de plaintes, de poursuites
et autres impondérables.
. Les limites imposées et relatives a la liquidité et a I'accés au financement du Groupe Combiné, ainsi que son important encours

de dette, peuvent restreindre la flexibilité financiere et opérationnelle du Groupe Combiné et sa capacité a mettre en ceuvre ses
stratégies commerciales, a obtenir des financements supplémentaires a des conditions concurrentielles et a améliorer sa situation
financiere et ses résultats d'exploitation.

. L'administration fiscale frangaise pourrait ne pas accorder, ou pourrait refuser, ou révoquer, en tout ou en partie, le bénéfice des
décisions confirmant la neutralité au plan fiscal de la Fusion a I'égard de PSA et des Actionnaires de PSA, ainsi que le transfert
des pertes fiscales reportées du groupe fiscal frangais PSA existant.

Section C - Informations clés sur les valeurs mobiliéres

Quelles sont les principales caractéristiques des valeurs mobiliéres ?

Capital social. Les Actions Ordinaires FCA sont des actions ordinaires du capital social de FCA N.V. ayant une valeur nominale de 0,01 €
chacune. L'ISIN des actions ordinaires de FCA est NL0010877643. Cet ISIN sera remplacé par I'|SIN NL00150001Q9 le premier jour ouvré
suivant la Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance ou a une date proche. Les Actions Ordinaires FCA et, apres la réalisation
de la Fusion, les Actions Ordinaires Stellantis, sont libellées en euros et se négocient en Euros sur le MTA et en Dollars américains sur le
New York Stock Exchange (« NYSE »).

Nouvelles actions. Dans le cadre de la Fusion, FCA N.V. a l'intention d'émettre jusqu'a 1 545 221 900 Actions Ordinaires FCA. A l'issue
de la Fusion, les Actions Ordinaires FCA nouvellement émises seront considérées comme étant entierement libérées et seront de rang pari
passu a tous égards avec les Actions Ordinaires FCA en circulation, au moment ou les nouvelles Actions Ordinaires FCA seront émises
dans le cadre de la Fusion. Les Actions Ordinaires FCA et, postérieurement a la Fusion, les Actions Ordinaires Stellantis, donnent droit a
des dividendes. Chaque Action Ordinaire FCA et, postérieurement a la Fusion, chaque Action Ordinaire Stellantis, confere le droit d'exprimer
une voix a l'assemblée générale de FCA N.V. Chaque détenteur d'Actions Ordinaires Stellantis (un « Actionnaire de Stellantis ») peut a
tout moment choisir de participer au programme de vote de fidélité en demandant a Stellantis d'inscrire tout ou partie de ses Actions
Ordinaires Stellantis dans le registre de fidélité de Stellantis (le « Registre du Programme de Fidélité »). L'inscription d'Actions Ordinaires
Stellantis dans le Registre du Programme de Fidélité a pour conséquence que ces actions ne sont plus négociables. Si des Actions
Ordinaires Stellantis ont été inscrites dans le Registre du Programme de Fidélité (et sont donc devenues non négociables) pour une période
ininterrompue de trois ans au nom du méme Actionnaire de Stellantis, ces actions (les « Actions Ordinaires Eligibles ») permettent de
recevoir des actions a droit de vote spécial de catégorie A, composant le capital social de Stellantis et d'une valeur nominale unitaire de
0.01€ (« Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial A »), et les Actionnaires de Stellantis concernés seront en droit de recevoir une Action a Droit
de Vote Spécial A pour chaque Action Ordinaire Eligible détenue. Si, a tout moment et quelle qu'en soit la cause, les Actions Ordinaires
Stellantis sont radiées du Registre du Programme de Fidélité, I'Actionnaire de Stellantis concerné perdra tout droit de détenir le nombre
correspondant d'Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial A ou d'Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial B (tel que ce terme est défini ci-apres), selon le cas.
Les Actionnaires de Stellantis détenant des Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial A bénéficient d'une voix pour chaque Action a Droit de Vote
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Spécial A détenue et d'une voix pour chaque Action Ordinaire Stellantis détenue. Des actions Stellantis a droit de vote spécial catégorie B
d'une valeur nominale de 0,01 € chacune (« Actions a Droit de Vote Spécial B ») seront créées a la Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives
a la Gouvernance et ces actions seront uniquement détenues par les Actionnaires de FCA autres qu'Exor qui détenaient des Actions FCA
a Droit de Vote Spécial avant la Date d'Effet (définie comme étant 00h00, heure d'Europe centrale, le premier jour suivant la date a laquelle
un notaire de droit civil néerlandais signera l'acte notarié de fusion transfrontaliére relatif a la fusion entre FCA N.V. et Peugeot S.A,,
conformément au droit néerlandais et au droit frangais applicables). Les Actionnaires de Stellantis qui détiennent des Actions a Droit de
Vote Spécial B sont titulaires d'une voix pour chaque Action a Droit de Vote Spécial B détenue et d'une voix pour chagque Action Ordinaire
Stellantis détenue.
Emission d'actions et droits préférentiels de souscription. Au moment de I'émission d'Actions Ordinaires FCA ou de l'octroi de droits
de souscription d'Actions Ordinaires FCA et, postérieurement a la Fusion, d'Actions Ordinaires Stellantis, chaque détenteur d'Actions
Ordinaires FCA (« Actionnaire de FCA ») et, postérieurement a la Fusion, chaque Actionnaire de Stellantis, disposera d'un droit préférentiel
de souscription proportionnel au montant nominal total d'Actions Ordinaires FCA ou, postérieurement a la Fusion, d'Actions Ordinaires
Stellantis, qu'il détient. Les actionnaires ne bénéficient pas de droit préférentiel de souscription des lors qu'il s'agit d'Actions Ordinaires FCA
émises en rémunération d'apports en nature, d'Actions Ordinaires FCA émises au bénéfice des employés de FCA dans le cadre d'un plan
d'options, d'Actions Ordinaires FCA émises au bénéfice de personnes exergcant un droit de souscription d'Actions Ordinaires FCA
précédemment accordé, ou, apres la réalisation de la Fusion, s'agissant d'Actions Ordinaires Stellantis ainsi émises, ou encore a I'occasion
de I'émission d'actions s'inscrivant dans le cadre du programme de vote de fidélité de FCA ou, apres la réalisation de la Fusion, de Stellantis.
Les droits préférentiels de souscription peuvent étre limités ou exclus par une résolution de l'assemblée générale de FCA N.V. ou une
résolution du Conseil d'administration de FCA, si le Conseil d'administration de FCA a été mandaté a cet effet par I'assemblée générale, et
a condition que le Conseil d'administration de FCA ait également été autorisé a prendre une décision relative a I'émission d'actions.
Insolvabilité. En cas d'insolvabilité, les éventuelles créances des Actionnaires de FCA ou, postérieurement a la Fusion, des Actionnaires
de Stellantis, sont subordonnées par rapport a celles des créanciers respectifs de FCA N.V. et de Stellantis. Cela signifie qu'un investisseur
pourrait potentiellement perdre tout ou partie de son capital investi.
Négociabilité. Il n'y a aucune restriction a la négociabilité des Actions Ordinaires FCA dans les statuts de FCA, ou postérieurement a la
Fusion, des Actions Ordinaires Stellantis dans les statuts de Stellantis.
Politigue en matiere de dividendes. A la date de ce Prospectus, aucune politique de dividende n'a été adoptée par Stellantis.
Ou les valeurs mobiliéres seront-elles négociées ?
Les Actions Ordinaires FCA sont actuellement négociées sur le NYSE et sur le MTA, sous le sigle « FCAU » sur le NYSE et sous le sigle
« FCA » sur le MTA. FCA N.V. présentera une demande d'admission a la cote des Actions Ordinaires FCA qui seront émises dans le cadre
de la Fusion au NYSE et au MTA. La cotation sur le MTA devrait intervenir le premier jour ouvré suivant la réalisation de la Fusion. FCA
N.V. présentera également une demande d'admission & la cote et aux négociations de toutes les Actions Ordinaires FCA sur Euronext Paris,
marché sur lequel les Actions Ordinaires PSA sont actuellement cotées. L'admission a la cote sur Euronext Paris devrait intervenir avant la
Fusion, tandis le début des négociations des valeurs mobilieres sur Euronext Paris devrait avoir lieu le premier jour ouvré suivant la
réalisation de la Fusion, sous réserve de I'obtention des autorisations et agréments aupres des autorités compétentes.
Quels sont les principaux risques spécifiques aux valeurs mobilieres ?
Est ci-aprés présenté, le principal risque associé aux  Actions Ordinaires Stellantis. Pour l'identifier,
FCA N.V. a apprécié la probabilité de réalisation du risque, ainsi que le potentiel impact que la réalisation de ce risque pourrait engendrer
pour les Actionnaires de Stellantis.
. Le maintien de la cotation des titres de Stellantis sur trois places de cotation différentes pourrait affecter la liquidité du marché
des Actions Ordinaires Stellantis et entrainer des écarts de prix entre les trois places de cotation.

Section D — Informations clés sur I'offre au public de valeurs mobiliéres et /ou I'admission a la négociation sur un marché
réglementé

Dans quelles conditions et selon quel calendrier puis-je investir dans cette valeur mobiliere ?

Le Prospectus est établi dans le cadre de la Cotation. Le Prospectus ne constitue pas une offre ou une invitation a vendre ou a émettre, ni
une sollicitation d'offre pour I'achat ou la souscription de valeurs mobilieres par quiconque. FCA N.V. ne retirera aucun produit en lien avec
la Cotation.

Livraison des actions

Les Actions Ordinaires FCA émises dans le cadre de la Fusion et représentées par les inscriptions en compte visées ci-dessous, seront
émises et allouées a Cede & Co, en tant que personne désignée par DTC, pour inclusion dans les systémes centralisés de dépbt et de
compensation de DTC et d'Euroclear France, et, directement ou indirectement, pour le compte et le bénéfice des anciens porteurs d'Actions
Ordinaires PSA.

Chacune des inscriptions en compte représentant des Actions Ordinaires PSA (autres que les Actions Ordinaires PSA détenues en propre
par Peugeot S.A. ou par FCA N.V. et, le cas échéant, toute autre Action Ordinaire PSA visée a l'article L. 236-3 Il du Code de commerce
(le « Actions PSA Exclues »)), ce qui comprend I'ensemble des Actions Ordinaires PSA (autres que les Actions PSA Exclues) détenues
dans les comptes de la société :

(@) au nominatif pur ;
(b) au nominatif administré ; et
(©) au porteur,

sera, apres la réalisation de la Fusion, et comme décrit plus en détails dans le Prospectus, remplacée par une inscription en compte de la
méme forme représentant les Actions Ordinaires FCA, émises et allouées conformément au Ratio d'Echange, étant précisé que les
inscriptions en compte représentant des Actions Ordinaires FCA au nominatif pur seront enregistrées par Société Générale Securities
Services au sein d'Euroclear France.

En fonction du dépositaire (ou custodian) de chacun des Actionnaires de PSA, les inscriptions en compte représentant les Actions Ordinaires
FCA devraient étre visibles dans les comptes-titres des Actionnaires de PSA entre le premier jour ouvrable suivant la Date d'Effet la Date
d'Effet et la date de livraison effective des actions en Euroclear France.

Aucun rompu d'Action Ordinaire FCA ne sera émis et alloué et tout droit a rompu d'action dans le cadre la Fusion sera réglé comme décrit
plus en détails dans le Prospectus.
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Chaque Action PSA Exclue (le cas échéant) sera annulée de plein droit conformément a l'article 2:325(4) du Code civil néerlandais et
aucune contrepartie ne sera délivrée en échange.

Apreés la réalisation de la Fusion, tout détenteur d'Actions Ordinaires FCA enregistrées au nom de Cede & Co, en tant que représentant de
DTC, et incluses dans les systémes centralisés de dép6t et de compensation de DTC et d'Euroclear France, sera en droit de demander a
son intermédiaire financier que ses Actions Ordinaires FCA soient enregistrées en son nom propre dans le registre des actionnaires de
FCA, étant précisé que cela aura pour conséquence que ces Actions Ordinaires FCA ne seront plus incluses dans les systéemes centralisés
de dépdt et de compensation de DTC et d'Euroclear France et qu'elles ne pourront plus étre négociées sur Euronext Paris.

Dilution

Sous réserve que la Fusion soit pleinement effective, un maximum de 1 545 221 900 Actions Ordinaires FCA seront émises au bénéfice
des Actionnaires de PSA. L'émission d'Actions Ordinaires FCA dans le cadre de la Fusion entrainera une augmentation du capital social de
FCA N.V. d'environ 100% compte tenu du nombre d'Actions Ordinaires FCA en circulation a la Derniére Date Retenue. Sous réserve de la
réalisation de la Fusion, les Actionnaires de FCA (qui ne détiennent pas d'Actions Ordinaires PSA) subiront une dilution immédiate du fait
de la Fusion. En supposant que le nombre maximum d'Actions Ordinaires FCA soit émis au bénéfice des Actionnaires de PSA, chaque
Actionnaire de FCA (qui ne détiendra pas d'Actions Ordinaires PSA) sera alors dilué d'environ 50%. La dilution aura, pour les Actionnaires
de FCA, un impact similaire sur I'exercice de leurs droits de vote (sans tenir compte de I'impact minimal qu'aura le transfert des Actions
FCA & Droit de Vote Spécial d'Exor a FCA N.V.). Sous réserve de la réalisation de la Fusion, les Actionnaires de PSA et les Actionnaires
de FCA détiendront respectivement, immédiatement apres la réalisation de la Fusion, environ 50% du capital social élargi de FCA N.V. et,
a la Date d'Effet des Stipulations Relatives a la Gouvernance, du capital social de Stellantis.

Estimation des dépenses
Les dépenses liées a la Cotation sont estimées a environ 2 317 000 €.

Pourquoi ce Prospectus est-il produit ?

Dans le cadre de la Fusion, de nouvelles Actions Ordinaires FCA seront émises au bénéfice des Actionnaires de PSA, qui devront étre
admises aux négociations sur le MTA. En outre, FCA N.V. demandera également I'admission a la cote et aux négociations de toutes les
Actions Ordinaires FCA sur Euronext Paris, marché sur lequel les Actions Ordinaires PSA sont actuellement cotées (ensemble, la
« Cotation »). Le Prospectus est produit dans le cadre de la Cotation.

Conflits d'intéréts les plus importants

Certains des administrateurs et dirigeants de FCA et de PSA peuvent avoir des intéréts dans la Fusion (tels que la perspective d'obtenir
une fonction de direction dans le Groupe Combiné ou de recevoir une rémunération ou des avantages qu'ils ne toucheraient pas si la Fusion
ne se réalisait pas) qui sont différents ou complémentaires des intéréts des actionnaires de FCA et de PSA respectivement, et que le conseil
d'administration de FCA et le conseil de surveillance de PSA respectivement, ont examinés lors de leurs délibérations sur I'opportunité de
réalisation de la Fusion ou lors de I'approbation des accords relatifs a la Fusion. De tels intéréts pourraient avoir influencé les personnes
concernées dans leur recommandation faite aux actionnaires de FCA ou de PSA respectivement, de voter en faveur de I'approbation de la
Fusion et des opérations prévues par I'Accord de Rapprochement. Ces intéréts sont les suivants :

FCA :

. Le fait que certains administrateurs et dirigeants de FCA continueront d'exercer leurs fonctions d'administrateurs ou de dirigeants
de Stellantis apres la Fusion.

. Le fait que chaque titulaire d'un droit conditionnel a recevoir des Actions Ordinaires FCA verra ce droit converti en un droit
conditionnel (restricted share unit award) a recevoir actions ordinaires de Stellantis, étant précisé que ce droit continuera a étre
régi par les mémes termes et conditions (autres que la condition de performance) que ceux applicables a au droit a recevoir des
Actions Ordinaires FCA avant la Date d'Effet de la Fusion. Toute condition de performance sera considérée comme satisfaite ou,
dans le cas ou la performance de FCA dépasserait un niveau cible fixé par le conseil d'administration de FCA ou un comité du
Conseil de la FCA, il sera considéré que ce niveau aura été atteint.

. Le fait que certains dirigeants pourront recevoir un bonus en espéces.

. Le fait que des indemnités de départ pourront étre versées, y compris l'acquisition accélérée des attributions d'actions en cours,
en cas de licenciement de certains dirigeants sans motif ou en cas de démission des dirigeants pour une juste cause pendant une
certaine période de temps apres la Fusion.

PSA:

. Certains membres du directoire ou du conseil de surveillance ou dirigeants de PSA continueront d'exercer des fonctions
d'administrateurs et de dirigeants de Stellantis aprés la Fusion.

. A la Date d'Effet, chaque titulaire d'un droit conditionnel & recevoir des Actions Ordinaires PSA verra ce droit converti en un droit

conditionnel (restricted share unit award) a recevoir des actions ordinaires de Stellantis, dont le nombre sera égal au produit du
nombre total d'Actions Ordinaires PSA pouvant étre antérieurement obtenues et du Ratio d'Echange.

. Certains membres du directoire et dirigeants pourront recevoir des primes en rapport avec la réalisation de la Fusion. En outre,
PSA a proposé d'augmenter la rémunération de base et les primes annuelles cibles pour certains de ses dirigeants en
considération de leurs responsabilités accrues, y compris en relation avec la Fusion.

. Stellantis maintiendra une assurance responsabilité des administrateurs et des dirigeants pendant une période d'au moins six ans
a compter de la Date d'Effet, couvrant toutes les personnes qui étaient auparavant couvertes par les polices d'assurance
responsabilité des administrateurs et des dirigeants de PSA avant la Date d'Effet.
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NOTA DI SINTESI
The ltalian translation of the summary below has not been part of the approval process of the Prospectus by the AFM.

Sezione A - Introduzione e avvertenze

Introduzione. La presente nota di sintesi va letta come un'introduzione al prospetto informativo (il "Prospetto”) relativo a (1) la quotazione
e I'ammissione alla negoziazione sul Mercato Telematico Azionario ("MTA") organizzato e gestito da Borsa lItaliana S.p.A. di massime
1.545.221.900 azioni ordinarie del capitale sociale di Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. ("FCA N.V." o la "Societd", che sara ridenominata
Stellantis N.V. ("Stellantis") a decorrere dalle ore 01.00 CET del giorno immediatamente successivo alla Data di Efficacia della Fusione
(come di seguito definita), salvo che non sia concordata per iscritto tra FCA N.V. e Peugeot S.A. un'ora o una data successiva, (la "Data di
Efficacia della Governance")), con un valore nominale di €0,01 ciascuna (le "Azioni Ordinarie FCA" o, a partire dalla Data di Efficacia
della Governance, le "Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis") e (2) la quotazione e I'ammissione alla negoziazione su Euronext a Parigi, un mercato
regolamentato di Euronext Paris S.A. ("Euronext Paris") delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA (gli eventi di cui ai punti (1) e (2), congiuntamente, la
"Quotazione"). La Quotazione avra luogo nel contesto della prevista fusione tra FCA N.V. e Peugeot S.A. (Peugeot S.A. congiuntamente
con le proprie controllate ai sensi dell'articolo L. 233-1 del Codice di Commercio francese, "PSA") attraverso una fusione transfrontaliera (la
"Fusione"), con FCA N.V. come societa incorporante (il gruppo allargato comprendera FCA (come definita di seguito) e PSA, il "Gruppo
Combinato"). Nell'ambito della Fusione, FCA N.V. intende emettere massime 1.545.221.900 Azioni Ordinarie FCA a favore dei titolari
(ciascuno dei quali denominato "Azionista PSA") di azioni ordinarie del capitale sociale di Peugeot S.A. ciascuna del valore nominale di
€1,00 (le "Azioni Ordinarie PSA") per mezzo dei sistemi centralizzati di deposito e compensazione di Depository Trust Company ("DTC")
ed Euroclear France. Qualsiasi decisione di investire nelle Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis dovrebbe basarsi sull'esame del Prospetto completo
da parte degli investitori. Gli investitori potrebbero incorrere in una perdita totale o parziale del capitale investito. Qualora sia proposto un
ricorso dinanzi ad un organo giurisdizionale in merito alle informazioni contenute nel presente Prospetto, l'investitore ricorrente potrebbe
essere tenuto, a norma del diritto nazionale applicabile, a sostenere le spese di traduzione del Prospetto prima dell'inizio del procedimento.
La responsabilita civile incombe esclusivamente sulle persone che hanno presentato la nota di sintesi, comprese le sue eventuali traduzioni,
ma soltanto se tale nota di sintesi risulta fuorviante, imprecisa o incoerente se letta insieme con le altre parti del Prospetto o non offre, se
letta insieme alle altre parti del Prospetto, le informazioni fondamentali per aiutare gli investitori al momento di valutare I'opportunita di
investire in Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis.

Il numero di identificazione internazionale dei titoli ("ISIN") delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA & NL0010877643, il quale sara sostituito da
NL00150001Q9 all'incirca il primo giorno feriale successivo alla Data di Efficacia della Governance. La denominazione legale e commerciale
dell'emittente & Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V., che assumera la denominazione di Stellantis N.V. L'indirizzo di FCA N.V. € 25 St. James's
Street, Londra SW1A 1HA, Regno Unito. Numero di telefono: +44 20 7766 0311 — Sito web: www.fcagroup.com. FCA N.V. é iscritta nel
registro commerciale della Camera di Commercio (Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel) con il numero 60372958; il codice LEI
(Legal Entity Identifier - LEI) dell'emittente &: 549300LKT9PW7ZIBDF31.

Autorita competente. L'autorita competente che approva il Prospetto & I'Autorita olandese per i mercati finanziari (Stichting Autoriteit
Financiéle Markten, "AFM"). L'indirizzo delllAFM ¢ Vijzelgracht 50, 1017 HS Amsterdam, Paesi Bassi. Numero di telefono: +31 (0)20 797
2000 - Sito web: www.afm.nl. Il presente Prospetto € stato approvato dall'AFM in data 20 novembre 2020.

Sezione B - Informazioni fondamentali concernenti I'Emittente

Chi é I'emittente dei titoli?

Domicilio e forma giuridica. L'emittente delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA & FCA N.V., che assumera la denominazione di Stellantis a partire
dalla Data di Efficacia. FCA N.V. & una societa per azioni (naamloze vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) costituita ai sensi del
diritto olandese, domiciliata in Olanda e che opera secondo il diritto olandese. Il codice LEI & 549300LKT9PW7ZIBDF31.

Attivita principali. FCA N.V., insieme alle proprie controllate ai sensi dell'articolo 2:24b del Codice Civile olandese alla data del presente
Prospetto ("FCA"), € un gruppo automobilistico globale che progetta, ingegnerizza, produce, distribuisce e commercializza in tutto il mondo
veicoli, ricambi e sistemi di produzione attraverso piu di 100 stabilimenti produttivi e oltre 40 centri di ricerca e sviluppo. FCA ha una presenza
industriale in oltre 40 Paesi e vende i propri veicoli direttamente o attraverso concessionari e distributori in oltre 130 Paesi. FCA progetta,
ingegnerizza, produce, distribuisce e commercializza veicoli nel segmento di mercato mass-market con i marchi Abarth, Alfa Romeo,
Chrysler, Dodge, Fiat, Fiat Professional, Jeep, Lancia e Ram, e con la denominazione SRT per veicoli ad alta prestazione. Per quanto
concerne i marchi mass-market, FCA ha centralizzato la progettazione, l'ingegnerizzazione, lo sviluppo e la produzione e cio le consente di
operare in modo efficiente su scala globale. FCA affianca alle vendite di veicoli dei marchi mass-market anche la vendita di componentistica
e accessori e contratti di servizio con il marchio Mopar in tutto il mondo. Inoltre, FCA progetta, ingegnerizza, produce, distribuisce e
commercializza veicoli di lusso con il marchio Maserati. FCA offre ai concessionari e alla clientela retail finanziamenti, servizi di leasing e
di noleggio attraverso societa controllate, joint venture e accordi commerciali con istituti finanziari terzi.

Maggiori azionisti. Sulla base delle informazioni contenute nel libro soci di FCA N.V., delle notifiche effettuate nei confronti del'’AFM e
della US Securities and Exchange Commission e di altre fonti a disposizione di FCA N.V., i seguenti soggetti possedevano, direttamente o
indirettamente, pit del 3% del capitale e/o dei diritti di voto di FCA N.V. in data 13 novembre 2020 (I"'UItima Data Utile").

Numero di Azioni

Ordinarie FCA Quota di
Azionisti FCA emesse partecipazione
Exor N.V. @ 449.410.092 28,54
BlackRock, Inc. @ 66.230.261 4,21

(1) Inoltre, Exor N.V. ("Exor") detiene 449.410.092 azioni a voto speciale del capitale sociale di FCA N.V. ("Azioni a Voto Speciale di FCA"); la titolarita
effettiva di Exor in FCA N.V. é pari al 44,40%, calcolato come il rapporto tra (i) il numero complessivo delle azioni ordinarie e delle Azioni a Voto Speciale di
FCA detenute da Exor e (ii) il numero complessivo delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA in circolazione e delle Azioni a Voto Speciale di FCA emesse.

(2) BlackRock, Inc. detiene 66.230.261 azioni ordinarie FCA (3,27% del totale delle azioni emesse, ovvero il numero complessivo delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA
in circolazione e delle Azioni a Voto Speciale di FCA emesse) e 77.260.142 diritti di voto (4,91% delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA in circolazione e 3,82% del totale
delle azioni emesse da FCA N.V.).
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Sulla base delle informazioni sulle partecipazioni azionarie in FCA N.V. e Peugeot S.A. all'Ultima Data Utile, del rapporto di cambio di 1,742
Azioni Ordinarie FCA per ciascuna Azione Ordinaria PSA (il "Rapporto di Cambio") e di alcuni obblighi degli azionisti, si prevede che i
seguenti soggetti deterranno, direttamente o indirettamente, una quota superiore al 3% del capitale sociale di Stellantis inmediatamente
dopo il perfezionamento della Fusione:

Quota di
partecipazione
Azionisti Stellantis Numero di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis prevista®
Exor 449.410.092 14,4%
EPF/FFP 224.228.122 7.2%
BPI 192.703.907 6,2%
Dongfeng 175.283.907 5,6%

(1) Le percentuali dei diritti di voto potrebbero differire in misura non significativa dalle percentuali di partecipazione in ragione di un numero minimo di Azioni
a Voto Speciale di FCA che rimarranno in circolazione a seguito della Fusione. Tali azioni andranno a costituire le Azioni a voto speciale di Classe B di Stellantis
successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione e potrebbero determinare deviazioni non significative tra le percentuali di partecipazione e dei diritti di voto.

I numeri e le percentuali nella tabella sopra riportata riflettono alcune ipotesi di fatto, pertanto i numeri e le quote di partecipazione effettivi
a seguito della Fusione potrebbero variare.

Membri del Consiglio di Amministrazione. | membri del consiglio di amministrazione di FCA N.V. (il "Consiglio di Amministrazione
FCA") sono: John Elkann, Michael Manley, Richard K. Palmer, Ronald L. Thompson, John Abbott, Andrea Agnelli, Tiberto Brandolini d'Adda,
Glenn Earle, Valerie A. Mars, Michelangelo A. Volpi, Patience Wheatcroft ed Ermenegildo Zegna.

Revisore contabile indipendente. Il revisore legale dei conti di FCA N.V. & Ernst & Young Accountants LLP.

Quali sono le informazioni finanziarie fondamentali relative all'emittente?

Informazioni finanziarie storiche selezionate. Le tabelle che seguono riportano una selezione delle informazioni finanziarie storiche tratte
dai conti economici consolidati, dalle situazioni patrimoniali consolidate e dai rendiconti finanziari consolidati di FCA e PSA rispettivamente
alle date e per il periodo indicato.

FCA

Le informazioni finanziarie consolidate selezionate relative a FCA, di seguito riportate, sono state estratte dai bilanci consolidati certificati
di FCA al 31 dicembre 2019, 2018 e 2017 e per gli esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre 2019, 2018 e 2017 e relative note esplicative, e dai
resoconti intermedi di gestione consolidati, non sottoposti a revisione, di FCA per il terzo trimestre ed i primi nove mesi del 2020 (inclusi i
dati finanziari comparati rispetto al terzo trimestre ed i primi nove mesi del 2019) e dalle relative note esplicative.

Informazioni sintetiche Conto economico consolidato FCA

Nove mesi chiusi al 30

Esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre settembre
(in milioni di euro, esclusi gli
importi per azione) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Ricavi netti € 108.187 € 110.412 € 105.730 € 58.088 € 78.544
Crescita dei ricavi su base annua -2,0% 4,4% -26.0%
Utile/(perdita) ante imposte € 4.021 € 4,108 € 5.879 € (412) € 2.091
Utile/(perdita) netta delle
Continuing Operation attribuibile ai
soci della controllante € 2694 € 3323 € 3281 € (1.536) € 1.118
Utile/(perdita) netta attribuibile ai
soci della controllante € 6.622 € 3.608 € 3.491 € (1.536) € 5.086
Utile/(perdita) base per azione
delle Continuing Operation e delle
Discontinued Operation € 4,23 € 2,33 € 2,27 € (0,98) € 3,25
Utile/(perdita) base per azione
delle Continuing Operation £ 1,72 £ 2,15 £ 2,14 £ (0,98) € 0,72
Informazioni selezionate Situazione patrimoniale consolidata FCA

Al 31 dicembre Al 30 settembre

(in milioni di euro) 2019 2018 2017 2020
Totale attivo € 98.044 € 96.873 € 96.299 € 104.248
Patrimonio netto € 28.675 € 24903 € 20.987 € 25.181
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Informazioni selezionate Rendiconto finanziario consolidato FCA

Nove mesi chiusi al 30

Esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre settembre
(in milioni di euro) 2019 2018 2020 2019
Disponibilita generate dalle attivita
operative € 10.462 € 9.948 € 2.898 € 6.094
Di cui Discontinued Operation € (308) € 484 - € (308)
Disponibilita assorbite dalle attivita di
investimento € (2.985) € (6.738) € (5.194) € (91)
Di cui incasso netto da cessione di
Discontinued Operation € 5.348 € - - € 5.348
Di cui Discontinued Operation € (155) € (632) =€ (155)
Disponibilita assorbite dalle attivita di
finanziamento € (5.827) € (2.785) 14.200 € (3.737)
Di cui Discontinued Operation € 325 € (90) - £ 325

PSA

Le informazioni finanziarie consolidate selezionate relative a PSA di seguito riportate sono state estratte dai bilanci consolidati certificati di
PSA al 31 dicembre 2019, 2018 e 2017 e relative note esplicative, nonché dal bilancio consolidato semestrale abbreviato, non sottoposto a

revisione contabile, di PSA al 30 giugno 2020, riesaminato in conformita agli stan
rispetto al semestre chiuso al 30 giugno 2019) e relative note esplicative.

dard ISA (ISRE 2410) (inclusi i dati finanziari comparati

La relazione del revisore indipendente sul bilancio consolidato di PSA relativo all'esercizio 2018 contiene il seguente richiamo d'informativa:
"Si richiama all'attenzione la Nota 1.2 al bilancio consolidato, che descrive I'impatto derivante dalla prima applicazione degli standard IFRS
15 "Ricavi provenienti da contratti con i clienti" e IFRS 9 "Strumenti finanziari". La nostra opinione rimane immutata con riferimento a tale

profilo."

La relazione del revisore indipendente sul bilancio consolidato di PSA relativo all'esercizio 2019 contiene il seguente richiamo d'informativa:

"Si richiamano all'attenzione le Note 2.2 e 2.3 al bilancio consolidato, che descri

vono gli impatti derivanti dalla prima applicazione dello

standard IFRS 16 "Leasing". La nostra opinione rimane immutata con riferimento a tale profilo."

Informazioni selezionate Conto economico consolidato PSA

Semestre chiuso al 30

Esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre giugno
(in milioni di euro, esclusi gli
importi per azione) 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019
Ricavi € 74.731 € 74.027 € 62.256 € 25.120 € 38.340
Utile/(Perdita) operativa € 4.668 € 4.400 € 3.074 € 482 € 2.491
Utile/(perdita) consolidata del
periodo € 3.584 € 3.295 € 2.347 € 376 € 2.048
Utile base per azione al valore
nominale di €1 attribuibile ai soci
della controllante € 3,58 € 3,16 € 2,17 € 0,66 € 2,05
Informazioni sintetiche Stato patrimoniale consolidato PSA

Al 31 dicembre Al 30 giugno

(in milioni di euro) 201942 2018 2017 2020
Totale attivo € 69.766 € 61.952 € 57.915 € 67.422
Patrimonio netto € 21.801 € 19.594 € 16.706 € 21.994

(1) | prospetti di situazione patrimoniale-finanziaria consolidata di PSA per gli esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre 2018 e 2017 non sono stati rideterminati per
riflettere gli effetti dell'applicazione sui bilanci consolidati di PSA dell'lFRS 16, adottato a partire dal 1° gennaio 2019 applicando I'approccio retrospettivo
modificato come descritto nella Nota 2.3 del bilancio consolidato di PSA per I'esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre 2019.

(2) L'IFRS 15 é stato adottato con approccio retrospettivo da PSA il 1° gennaio 2018. | prosp
gli esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre 2017, 2018 e 2019 riflettono gli effetti dell'applicazione dell'l

Informazioni selezionate Rendiconto finanziario consolidato PSA

Esercizi chiusi al 31 dicembre

etti di situazione patrimoniale-finanziaria consolidata di PSA per
FRS 15.

Semestre chiuso al 30 giugno

(in milioni di euro) 2019 2018 2017

2020 2019

Disponibilita generate/(assorbite) dalle
attivita operative delle Continuing
Operation € 8.705 € 8.395 € 5.459

€  (2.740) €  4.997

Disponibilita generate/(assorbite) dalle
attivita di investimento delle Continuing
Operation € (5.972) € (4.739) € (5.156)

€ (1.913) € (3.365)
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Disponibilita generate/(assorbite) dalle
attivita di finanziamento delle
Continuing Operation €

(354) € 2.838 € (559)

Liquidita netta da attivita e passivita
trasferite delle operazioni destinate alla
vendita

(7 € - € -

Informazioni finanziarie pro forma non sottoposte a revisione contabile
Le informazioni finanziarie combinate sintetiche pro forma, non sottoposte a revisione contabile, si riferiscono ad una situazione ipotetica e
sono state redatte esclusivamente a titolo illustrativo, ovvero per illustrare I'effetto della Fusione. Non intendono quindi rappresentare o
essere indicative della situazione economica o finanziaria consolidata che sarebbe stata presentata se la Fusione fosse stata completata
alle date indicate e non devono essere considerate rappresentative della futura situazione economica o finanziaria consolidata del Gruppo
Combinato successivamente alla Fusione. La situazione patrimoniale, economica e finanziaria effettiva del Gruppo Combinato
successivamente alla Fusione potrebbe differire significativamente. Le principali informazioni finanziarie pro forma di seguito riportate sono
state ricavate dalle informazioni finanziarie sintetiche pro forma non sottoposte a revisione contabile.

Informazioni selezionate Situazione patrimoniale-finanziaria consolidata pro forma del Gruppo Combinato non sottoposta a revisione

contabile al 30 giugno 2020

Totale attivo

Patrimonio netto

Al 30 giugno 2020

Informazioni finanziarie Informazioni finanziarie
pro forma prima della pro forma successive

distribuzione di

alla distribuzione di

Faurecia Faurecia

(in milioni di euro)
€ 137.809 €
€ 37.250 €

135.514

34.904

Informazioni selezionate Conto Economico Consolidato pro forma del Gruppo Combinato non sottoposto a revisione contabile per

I'esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre 2019

Per I'esercizio chiuso al 31 dicembre 2019

Informazioni finanziarie pro forma
prima della distribuzione di

Informazioni finanziarie pro forma
i successive alla distribuzione di
Faurecia Faurecia

Ricavi

Utile/(perdita) operativa

Utile/(perdita) ante imposte delle societa
integralmente consolidate

Utile/(perdita) consolidata delle Continuing
Operation attribuibile ai soci della
controllante

Utile/(perdita) consolidata attribuibile ai soci
della controllante

Utile base per azione al valore nominale di €1
delle Continuing Operation - attribuibile ai soci
della controllante

(in milioni di euro, esclusi gli importi per azione)

166.748 166.748
9.597 9.597
8.535 8.535
6.829 6.829

10. 757 10. 757
2,19 2,19

Informazioni selezionate Conto Economico Consolidato pro forma del Gruppo Combinato non sottoposto a revisione contabile per il

periodo chiuso al 30 giugno 2020

Per il periodo chiuso al 30 giugno 2020

Informazioni finanziarie pro forma
prima della distribuzione Faurecia

Informazioni finanziarie pro forma
successive alla distribuzione
Faurecia

Ricavi

Utile/(perdita) operativa

Utile/(perdita) ante imposte delle societa
integralmente consolidate

Utile/(perdita) consolidata delle Continuing
Operation attribuibile ai soci della
controllante

Utile/(perdita) consolidata attribuibile ai soci
della Controllante

Utile base per azione al valore nominale di €1
delle Continuing Operation - attribuibile ai soci
della controllante

(in milioni di euro, esclusi gli importi per azione)

51.655 51.655
(449) (449)
(991) (991)

(1.742) (1.742)

(1.742) (1.742)
(0,56) (0,56)
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Quali sono i principali rischi specifici dell'emittente?

Di seguito € riportata una selezione dei principali rischi che riguardano la Fusione, FCA, PSA e, successivamente alla Fusione, il settore
industriale in cui il Gruppo Combinato opera nonché le sue attivita, operazioni e situazione finanziaria. Nell'effettuare tale selezione, FCA
N.V. ha considerato circostanze, come la probabilita che il rischio si concretizzi sulla base dello stato attuale delle cose, il potenziale impatto
che la materializzazione del rischio potrebbe avere su FCA, PSA e, successivamente alla Fusione, sulle attivita, la situazione finanziaria, i
risultati operativi e le prospettive del Gruppo Combinato, nonché I'attenzione che il management di FCA, di PSA o del Gruppo Combinato,
a seconda dei casi, dovrebbe, in base alle attuali previsioni, dedicare a tali rischi qualora dovessero concretizzarsi.

. Il Rapporto di Cambio € fisso, pertanto gli azionisti non saranno ristorati per variazioni del valore delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA o
delle Azioni Ordinarie PSA, a seconda dei casi, antecedenti all'efficacia della Fusione.

. La Fusione é soggetta all'ottenimento di autorizzazioni antitrust da parte di diverse autorita garanti della concorrenza. L'eventuale
esito negativo nell'ottenimento di tali autorizzazioni potrebbe impedire il perfezionamento della Fusione.

. Il Gruppo Combinato potrebbe non riuscire a realizzare tutti o parte dei benefici attesi dalla Fusione, e cio potrebbe influire
negativamente sul valore delle Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis.

. Interruzioni di attivita derivanti dall'epidemia di coronavirus (COVID-19) potrebbero causare interruzioni nella produzione e nella
vendita dei prodotti, oltre che nella fornitura di servizi, del Gruppo Combinato, con un potenziale impatto negativo sull'attivita
aziendale.

. Un'eventuale diminuzione dei volumi di consegna dei veicoli del Gruppo Combinato, in particolare di pickup e SUV di grandi

dimensioni dei marchi FCA nel mercato statunitense, e di veicoli dei marchi PSA nel mercato europeo, potrebbe incidere
negativamente sui risultati economici e sulla situazione finanziaria del Gruppo Combinato.

. Le attivita del Gruppo Combinato potrebbero essere influenzate negativamente dai mercati finanziari globali, dalle condizioni
economiche generali, dall'imposizione di programmi di incentivi governativi, dalla volatilita geopolitica e da altri macro-sviluppi al
rispetto ai quali il Gruppo Combinato non avra alcun controllo o avra controllo limitato.

. Il Gruppo Combinato potrebbe non riuscire a incrementare la crescita di alcuni dei propri marchi che ritiene abbiano un appeal e
un raggio d'azione globale, e cid potrebbe comportare significativi effetti negativi sulle attivita del Gruppo Combinato.

. L'industria automobilistica & altamente competitiva e ciclica, e il Gruppo Combinato potrebbe risentire di tali fattori in misura
maggiore rispetto a taluni dei suoi concorrenti.

. Le vendite di veicoli ai clienti finali dipendono fortemente dalla disponibilita di tassi di interesse accessibili e di credito per il

finanziamento di veicoli, pertanto un sostanziale aumento dei tassi di interesse potrebbe avere un impatto negativo sulle attivita
del Gruppo Combinato.

. Leggi, normative e politiche governative attuali e piu stringenti per il futuro o incrementali, incluse quelle riguardanti I'aumento dei
requisiti di efficienza dei consumi e la riduzione delle emissioni di gas serra e gas di scarico, potrebbero avere un impatto
significativo sul modo in cui il Gruppo Combinato svolge la propria attivita e generare un aumento dei costi di adeguamento,
determinando passivita aggiuntive e influenzando negativamente le attivita e i risultati economici del Gruppo Combinato.

. Il Gruppo Combinato continuera ad essere soggetto ad indagini sulle emissioni diesel da parte di diversi enti governativi e ad una
serie di procedimenti giudiziari privati correlati, che potrebbero condurre ad ulteriori richieste di risarcimento, procedimenti
giudiziari e azioni esecutive, e comportare sanzioni, transazioni o risarcimenti di danni aggiuntivi, influenzando negativamente la
reputazione del Gruppo Combinato presso i consumatori.

. La reputazione e le attivita del Gruppo Combinato potrebbero essere influenzate da vari tipi di richieste di indennizzo, procedimenti
giudiziari e altre contingenze.
. Eventuali limitazioni alla liquidita e all'accesso a fonti di finanziamento del Gruppo Combinato, nonché il significativo livello di

indebitamento esistente, potrebbero limitare la flessibilita finanziaria e operativa del Gruppo Combinato e la sua capacita di attuare
strategie di business, ottenere ulteriori finanziamenti a condizioni competitive e migliorare le proprie condizioni finanziarie e i
risultati di gestione.

. Le autorita fiscali francesi potrebbero non concedere o negare o revocare integralmente o in parte il beneficio derivante da tax
ruling che confermano la neutralita fiscale della Fusione per PSA e per gli Azionisti PSA e il trasferimento delle perdite fiscali
riportate dell'esistente gruppo fiscale consolidato francese di PSA.

Sezione C - Informazioni fondamentali sui titoli

Quali sono le principali caratteristiche dei titoli?

Capitale sociale. Le Azioni Ordinarie FCA sono azioni ordinarie del capitale sociale di FCA N.V. del valore nominale di 0,01 euro ciascuna.
L'ISIN delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA € NL0010877643, il quale sara sostituito da NL0O0150001Q9 all'incirca il primo giorno feriale successivo
alla Data di Efficacia della Governance. Le Azioni Ordinarie FCA e, successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione, le Azioni Ordinarie
Stellantis sono denominate in euro e negoziabili su MTA in euro e sul New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") in dollari USA.

Azioni di nuova emissione. FCA N.V. intende emettere massime 1.545.221.900 Azioni Ordinarie FCA in relazione alla Fusione. Al
perfezionamento della Fusione, le Azioni Ordinarie FCA di nuova emissione saranno accreditate come interamente liberate e saranno
parificate a tutti gli effetti alle Azioni Ordinarie FCA in circolazione al momento dell'emissione delle nuove Azioni Ordinarie FCA relative alla
Fusione. Le Azioni Ordinarie FCA e, successivamente alla Fusione, le Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis conferiscono diritti ai dividendi. Ciascuna
Azione Ordinaria FCA e, successivamente alla Fusione, ciascuna Azione Ordinaria Stellantis, conferisce il diritto di esprimere un voto
nell'assemblea generale di FCA N.V. Ciascun titolare di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis (I"Azionista Stellantis") avra la facolta di partecipare in
qualsiasi momento al meccanismo di voto speciale richiedendo a Stellantis la registrazione di tutte o parte delle proprie Azioni Ordinarie
Stellantis nel registro degli azionisti di Stellantis appositamente istituito (il "Registro Speciale"). L'iscrizione delle Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis
nel Registro Speciale esclude tali azioni dalla negoziazione. Qualora le Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis rimangano iscritte nel Registro Speciale
(e quindi escluse dalle negoziazioni) a nome dello stesso Azionista Stellantis per un periodo ininterrotto di tre anni, tali azioni (le "Azioni
Ordinarie Legittimate") daranno il diritto a ricevere le azioni a voto speciale di classe A rappresentative del capitale sociale di Stellantis,
con valore nominale di €0,01 ("Azione a Voto Speciale di Classe A") per ciascuna Azione Ordinaria Legittimata. Se, in qualsiasi momento,
le Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis venissero cancellate dal Registro Speciale per qualsiasi motivo, il relativo Azionista Stellantis perdera il diritto
di detenere un numero corrispondente di Azioni a Voto Speciale di Classe A o di Azioni a Voto Speciale di Classe B (come di seguito
definita), a seconda dei casi. Gli Azionisti Stellantis che detengono Azioni a Voto Speciale di Classe A hanno il diritto di esprimere un voto
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per ogni Azione a Voto Speciale di Classe A posseduta e un voto per ogni Azione Ordinaria Stellantis posseduta. Le azioni a voto speciale
di classe B rappresentative del capitale sociale, con valore nominale di €0.01 ("Azioni a Voto Speciale di Classe B") saranno create alla
Data di Efficacia della Governance e saranno detenute esclusivamente da Azionisti FCA diversi da Exor i quali detenevano Azioni a Voto
Speciale FCA prima della "Data di Efficacia" (le ore 00.00 CET del primo giorno successivo alla data in cui un notaio olandese firmera un
atto di fusione transfrontaliera relativo alla Fusione tra FCA N.V.e Peugeot S.A. conformemente alla legge olandese e francese applicabile).
Gli Azionisti Stellantis che detengono Azioni a Voto Speciale di Classe B hanno il diritto di esprimere un voto per ogni Azione a Voto Speciale
di Classe B posseduta e un voto per ogni Azione Ordinaria Stellantis posseduta.

Emissione delle azioni e diritto di opzione. All'emissione di Azioni Ordinarie FCA o alla concessione di diritti di sottoscrizione di Azioni
Ordinarie FCA e, successivamente alla Fusione, di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis, ogni titolare di Azioni Ordinarie FCA ("Azionista FCA") e,
successivamente alla Fusione, ogni Azionista Stellantis avra un diritto di opzione proporzionale allammontare nominale complessivo di
Azioni Ordinarie FCA (o, successivamente alla Fusione, di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis) possedute. Gli azionisti non avranno diritto di opzione
su Azioni Ordinarie FCA emesse a fronte di conferimenti in natura, su Azioni Ordinarie FCA emesse a favore di dipendenti di FCA in base
ad eventuali piani di opzione o su Azioni Ordinarie FCA emesse a favore di soggetti che esercitano un diritto di sottoscrizione di Azioni
Ordinarie FCA precedentemente concesso, 0, successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione, su Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis cosi
emesse, 0 su azioni emesse in base al meccanismo di voto speciale di FCA o, successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione, in base
al meccanismo di voto speciale di Stellantis. | diritti di opzione possono essere soggetti a limitazione o esclusione mediante delibera
dell'assemblea generale di FCA N.V. o delibera del Consiglio di Amministrazione di FCA se quest'ultimo & stato designato a tal fine
dall'assemblea generale e a condizione che sia stato autorizzato a deliberare anche sull'emissione di azioni.

Insolvenza. In caso di insolvenza dell'emittente, le eventuali richieste di rimborso degli Azionisti FCA o, successivamente alla Fusione,
degli Azionisti Stellantis, saranno subordinate a quelle, rispettivamente, dei creditori di FCA N.V. e di Stellantis. Cio significa che gli investitori
potrebbero incorrere in una perdita totale o parziale del capitale investito.

Trasferibilita. Non sono previste limitazioni alla trasferibilita di Azioni Ordinarie FCA nello statuto di FCA, o, successivamente alla Fusione,
di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis nello statuto di Stellantis.

Politica dei dividendi. Alla data del presente Prospetto, non & stata approvata alcuna politica dei dividendi di Stellantis.

Dove saranno negoziati i titoli azionari?

Le Azioni Ordinarie FCA sono attualmente negoziate sul NYSE con il simbolo "FCAU" e sul MTA con il simbolo "FCA". FCA N.V. fara
richiesta di quotazione delle Azioni Ordinarie FCA da emettere nell'ambito della Fusione sul NYSE e sul MTA. La quotazione sul'MTA e
prevista per il primo giorno lavorativo successivo al perfezionamento della Fusione . FCA N.V. chiedera inoltre la quotazione e I'ammissione
alla negoziazione di tutte le Azioni Ordinarie FCA su Euronext Paris, dove sono attualmente quotate le Azioni Ordinarie PSA. L'ammissione
alla quotazione su Euronext Paris € prevista prima della Fusione, mentre il primo giorno di negoziazione su Euronext Paris € previsto per il
primo giorno lavorativo successivo al perfezionamento della Fusione, previa approvazione delle autorita competenti.

Quali sono i principali rischi specifici dei titoli azionari?

Di seguito viene riportato il rischio principale relativo al possesso di Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis. Nella scelta di tale rischio, FCA N.V. ha

considerato circostanze quali la probabilita che esso si concretizzi e il potenziale impatto che la sua materializzazione potrebbe avere sugli

Azionisti Stellantis.

. La quotazione di Stellantis su 3 mercati azionari potrebbe incidere negativamente sulla liquidita sul mercato delle Azioni Ordinarie
Stellantis e determinare differenziali di prezzo delle Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis tra i tre mercati.

Sezione D - Informazioni fondamentali relative alla Quotazione

A quali condizioni posso investire in questo titolo e qual € il calendario previsto?

Il Prospetto viene pubblicato in relazione alla Quotazione. Il Prospetto non costituisce, o forma parte di, un'offerta o un invito alla vendita o
una sollecitazione o offerta all'acquisto o alla sottoscrizione di titoli da parte di alcun soggetto. FCA N.V. non ricevera proventi in relazione
alla Quotazione.

Consegna delle azioni

Le Azioni Ordinarie FCA emesse nell'ambito della Fusione e rappresentate dalle posizioni contabili di seguito indicate, saranno emesse a
favore di Cede & Co in qualita di rappresentante di DTC, a fini di inclusione nei sistemi centralizzati di deposito e compensazione di DTC e
Euroclear France, e, da ultimo, direttamente o indirettamente, in nome e per conto degli ex possessori di Azioni Ordinarie PSA.

Ciascuna posizione contabile che in precedenza rappresentava Azioni Ordinarie PSA (diverse dalle Azioni Ordinarie PSA detenute da
Peugeot S.A. o da FCA N.V. e da eventuali altre Azioni Ordinarie PSA di cui all'Articolo L. 236-3 (ll) del Codice di Commercio
francese(collettivamente, le "Azioni PSA Escluse")), incluse le Azioni Ordinarie PSA (diverse dalle Azioni PSA Escluse) detenute:

(@ in forma registrata pura (nominatif pur);

(b) in forma registrata amministrata (nominatif administré); e

(c) al portatore (au porteur),

sara, successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione, e come ulteriormente descritto nel Prospetto, scambiata con posizioni contabili
rappresentative di Azioni Ordinarie FCA nella medesima forma, emesse e assegnate in base al Rapporto di Cambio, fermo restando che le
posizioni contabili rappresentative di Azioni Ordinarie FCA in forma registrata pura (nominatif pur) saranno registrate da Société Générale
Securities Services all'interno di Euroclear France.

A seconda del depositario di ciascun Azionista PSA, le posizioni contabili rappresentative di Azioni Ordinarie FCA dovrebbero risultare
visibili nei conti titoli degli Azionisti PSA tra il primo giorno lavorativo successivo alla Data di Efficacia e la data di effettiva consegna di tali
posizioni in Euroclear France.

Nel contesto della Fusione non saranno emesse frazioni di Azioni Ordinarie FCA e saranno liquidati eventuali diritti frazionari come piu
dettagliatamente descritto nel Prospetto.
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Le eventuali Azioni PSA Escluse saranno annullate per legge ai sensi dell'articolo 2:325(4) del Codice Civile olandese e senza che ne derivi
alcun corrispettivo.

Successivamente al perfezionamento della Fusione, qualsiasi detentore di Azioni Ordinarie FCA registrate in nome di Cede & Co, in qualita
di incaricato di DTC, e incluse nei sistemi centralizzati di deposito e compensazione di DTC ed Euroclear France ha il diritto di richiedere,
tramite il proprio intermediario, che tali Azioni Ordinarie FCA siano registrate a suo nome nel registro degli azionisti di FCA, a condizione
che tali Azioni Ordinarie FCA non siano piu incluse nei sistemi centralizzati di deposito e compensazione di DTC ed Euroclear France e non
possano pill essere negoziate su Euronext Paris.

Diluizione

Subordinatamente all'efficacia della Fusione, saranno emesse massime 1.545.221.900 Azioni Ordinarie FCA a favore degli Azionisti PSA.
L'emissione di Azioni Ordinarie FCA in relazione alla Fusione comportera un aumento del capitale sociale di FCA N.V. pari a circa il 100%
in relazione al numero di Azioni Ordinarie FCA in circolazione all'Ultima Data Utile. Al momento dell'efficacia della Fusione, gli Azionisti FCA
(che non detengono Azioni Ordinarie PSA) subiranno un'immediata diluizione per effetto della Fusione. Presumendo che il numero massimo
di Azioni Ordinarie FCA venga emesso a favore degli Azionisti PSA, ogni Azionista FCA (che non detiene Azioni Ordinarie PSA) andra
incontro ad una diluizione pari a circa il 50%. La diluizione per gli Azionisti FCA avra un impatto analogo sull'esercizio dei diritti di voto (non
tenendo conto dell'impatto minimo del trasferimento delle Azioni a Voto Speciale di FCA da Exor a FCA N.V.). Se la Fusione viene
perfezionata, gli Azionisti PSA e gli Azionisti FCA deterranno rispettivamente, immediatamente dopo il perfezionamento della Fusione, circa
il 50% del capitale sociale allargato di FCA N.V. e, alla Data di Efficacia, del capitale sociale di Stellantis.

Stima delle spese
Le spese relative alla Quotazione sono stimate in €2.317.000 circa.

Perché e redatto il presente Prospetto?

Nell'ambito della Fusione, verranno emesse nuove Azioni Ordinarie FCA a favore degli Azionisti PSA, le quali dovranno essere ammesse
alla negoziazione su MTA. FCA N.V. richiedera inoltre la quotazione e I'ammissione alla negoziazione di tutte le Azioni Ordinarie FCA su
Euronext Paris, dove sono attualmente quotate le Azioni Ordinarie PSA (collettivamente, la Quotazione). Il Prospetto viene redatto in
relazione alla Quotazione.

Conflitti di interesse piu significativi

Taluni amministratori e dirigenti di FCA e PSA potrebbero avere interessi nella Fusione, correlati alla prospettiva di ottenere posizioni
manageriali nel Gruppo Combinato ovvero di ricevere compensi o benefici che non otterrebbero qualora la Fusione non avesse luogo,
diversi o ulteriori rispetto agli interessi degli Azionisti FCA e degli Azionisti PSA. Il consiglio di amministrazione di FCA e il consiglio di
sorveglianza di PSA hanno rispettivamente considerato tali interessi in sede di deliberazione in merito alla Fusione o di approvazione dei
relativi provvedimenti. Tali interessi potrebbero influenzare i medesimi amministratori e dirigenti e la loro raccomandazione agli Azionisti
FCA e agli Azionisti PSA di votare rispettivamente a favore dell'approvazione della Fusione e delle operazioni contemplate dal contratto di
fusione. Tali interessi sono i seguenti:

FCA

. Il fatto che taluni amministratori e dirigenti di FCA continueranno a ricoprire il ruolo di amministratori o dirigenti di Stellantis dopo
la Fusione.

. L'eleggibilita di ciascun beneficiario di uno strumento di incentivazione azionaria di FCA in essere a ricevere uno strumento limitato
di incentivazione azionaria (restricted share unit) di Stellantis che continuera a essere regolato dagli stessi termini e condizioni (a
eccezione del vesting basato su criteri di performance) applicabili allo strumento di incentivazione azionaria FCA prima del
momento di efficacia della Fusione. Qualsiasi condizione di performance sara considerata soddisfatta al target o, nel caso in cui
la performance di FCA superi il livello target in base al giudizio del consiglio di amministrazione di FCA o di un comitato del
consiglio di amministrazione di FCA, al livello cosi stabilito.

. L'eleggibilita di taluni dirigenti a ricevere un premio in denaro una tantum.

. Benefici di fine rapporto, incluso il vesting accelerato di strumenti di incentivazione azionaria in essere, in caso di cessazione del
rapporto di lavoro di taluni dirigenti senza giusta causa o da parte del dirigente per ragioni giustificate entro un certo periodo di
tempo successivo alla Fusione.

PSA:

. Taluni amministratori e dirigenti di PSA continueranno a ricoprire il ruolo di amministratori o dirigenti di Stellantis dopo la Fusione.

. Alla Data di Efficacia, ciascun detentore di strumenti di incentivazione azionaria relativi ad Azioni Ordinarie PSA avra diritto alla

conversione di tali strumenti in uno strumento limitato di incentivazione azionaria (restricted share unit) relativo a un numero di
Azioni Ordinarie Stellantis pari al prodotto del numero di Azioni Ordinarie PSA sottostanti lo strumento di incentivazione azionaria
di PSA e il Rapporto di Cambio.

. Taluni amministratori e dirigenti hanno diritto a ricevere pagamenti di incentivo in relazione alla Fusione. Inoltre, PSA ha proposto
di aumentare la retribuzione di base e i target del bonus annuale per taluni dei suoi dirigenti in considerazione delle loro maggiori
responsabilita, anche in relazione alla Fusione.

. Stellantis manterra un'assicurazione della responsabilita civile degli amministratori e dei dirigenti per un periodo di almeno sei anni
dalla Data di Efficacia, a copertura di tutti i soggetti precedentemente coperti dalle polizze assicurative di responsabilita civile degli
amministratori e dei dirigenti di PSA prima della Data di Efficacia.
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RISK FACTORS

If the Merger becomes effective, PSA Shareholders will be issued Stellantis Common Shares (in this
Prospectus, unless a contrary indication appears, a reference to the "issue of shares to PSA
Shareholders" in connection with the Merger means, from a Dutch perspective, the allotment of shares
(toekenning van aandelen) through the centralized depository and clearing systems of the DTC and
Euroclear France (and all related references, including "to be issued" and "issued", should be construed
accordingly)). Before investing in the Stellantis Common Shares, prospective investors should carefully
consider the risks and uncertainties described below, together with the other information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

The occurrence of any of the events or circumstances described in these risk factors, individually or
together with other circumstances, could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects of FCA N.V., together with its subsidiaries within the
meaning of article 2:24b of the Dutch Civil Code ("FCA"), Peugeot S.A., together with its subsidiaries
within the meaning of article L. 233-1 of the French Commercial Code ("PSA") or, if the Merger becomes
effective, the enlarged group comprising FCA and PSA (together, the "Combined Group"). In that event,
the value of the Stellantis Common Shares could decline, and an investor might lose part or all of its
investment.

All of these risk factors and events are contingencies, which may or may not occur. FCA, PSA or the
Combined Group may face a number of these risks described below simultaneously, and one or more
risks described below may be interdependent. Where this is the case, interdependent risk factors contain
a cross reference to the relevant other risk factor(s) and a description of the interdependence. In
accordance with article 16 of the Prospectus Regulation, the most material risk factors have been
presented first in each category of risks, but the order in which the remaining risk factors are presented
is not necessarily an indication of the likelihood of the risks actually materializing, of the potential
significance of the risks or of the scope of any potential harm to the business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects of FCA, PSA or the Combined Group.

In selecting and ordering the risk factors, FCA N.V. has considered circumstances such as the probability
of the risk materializing on the basis of the current state of affairs, the potential impact which the
materialization of the risk could have on the FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects, and the attention that management of FCA, PSA or the
Combined Group would on the basis of current expectations have to devote to these risks if they were to
materialize.

Although FCA N.V. believes that the risks and uncertainties described below are the material risks and
uncertainties concerning FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's business and the Stellantis Common
Shares, they are not the only risks and uncertainties relating to FCA, PSA or the Combined Group and
the Stellantis Common Shares. Other risks, facts or circumstances not presently known to FCA N.V., or
that FCA N.V. currently deems to be immaterial, could, individually or cumulatively, prove to be important
and could have a material adverse effect on FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects. The value of the Stellantis Common Shares could decline
as a result of the occurrence of any such risks, facts or circumstances, or as a result of the events or
circumstances described in these risk factors, and investors could lose part or all of their investment.

Prospective investors should carefully read this Prospectus in its entirety and the documents incorporated
by reference herein and should reach their own views before making an investment decision with respect
to any Stellantis Common Shares. Furthermore, before making an investment decision with respect to
any Stellantis Common Shares, prospective investors should consult their own stockbroker, bank
manager, lawyer, auditor or other financial, legal and tax advisers, and carefully review the risks
associated with an investment in the Stellantis Common Shares and consider such an investment decision
in light of their personal circumstances.
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Risks Related to the Merger

The Exchange Ratio is fixed and therefore a shareholder will not be compensated for changes in
the value of FCA Common Shares or PSA Ordinary Shares, as applicable, prior to the effectiveness
of the Merger

Upon the consummation of the Merger, PSA Shareholders will be entitled to receive 1.742 FCA Common
Shares for each PSA Ordinary Share that they own. This Exchange Ratio will not be adjusted for changes
in the value of FCA Common Shares or the value of PSA Ordinary Shares, or for changes in the relative
value of the businesses of FCA or PSA between the date of the Combination Agreement and the date of
the closing of the Merger. Share price changes may result from a variety of factors including changes in
their respective businesses, operations or prospects, regulatory considerations, legal proceedings or in
the general business, market, industry or economic conditions. Market assessments of the benefits of the
Merger and of the likelihood that the Merger will be completed, and related arbitrage activities, may also
have an effect on share prices. If the value of FCA Common Shares relative to the value of PSA Ordinary
Shares increases or decreases (or the value of FCA business increases or decreases relative to the value
of the PSA business) prior to the effectiveness of the Merger, the market value of the Stellantis Common
Shares that shareholders will hold following the Merger may be higher or lower than the relative values of
their shares on a standalone basis at the date of the Combination Agreement, the date of this document
or at the date of the extraordinary general meetings.

The Merger is subject to receipt of antitrust approvals from several competition authorities. If such
approvals are not obtained, this could prevent the consummation of the Merger.

Before the Merger may be completed, any waiting period (or extension of such waiting period) applicable
to the Merger must have expired or been terminated and any antitrust approvals, consents or clearances
required in connection with the Merger must have been received, in each case, under the applicable
competition laws of the European Union and under the competition laws of the following countries, where
approvals remain outstanding at the date of this prospectus: the Republic of Chile, Ukraine and the
Republic of Turkey. While clearance has been obtained in the Federative Republic of Brazil, a waiting
period of 15 calendar days from the publication of a summary of the clearance decision must be observed
before the decision is declared final, during which period the clearance decision could be challenged. The
antitrust and other regulatory approval processes in certain jurisdictions may be impacted by the entry
into the Combination Agreement Amendment on September 14, 2020, which may potentially result in a
delay in obtaining approvals in those jurisdictions. The consummation of the Merger might be delayed
due to the time required to fulfill the requests for information by the relevant competition authorities. In
addition, in certain jurisdictions there may be unforeseen or other extensions of deadlines by the relevant
competition authorities for the review of the Merger. Such extensions are more likely to happen in the
context of the current COVID-19 crisis. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. may each terminate the Combination
Agreement if the Merger has not been completed by June 30, 2021 as a result of a failure to obtain the
required approvals from the relevant competition regulatory authorities. For a more detailed description
of the antitrust approval process, see the section entitled "The Merger—Regulatory Approvals Required
to Complete the Merger". See also "—Because completion of the Merger is subject to several conditions
precedent, there is a risk that the Merger will not be completed, or may be delayed, which could negatively
affect FCA's and PSA's business plans and operations and FCA N.V's and Peugeot S.A.'s share prices".

The Combined Group may fail to realize some or all of the anticipated benefits of the Merger, which
could adversely affect the value of the Stellantis Common Shares.

FCA and PSA currently operate, and up to the closing of the Merger will continue to operate, independently
as separate companies. The success of the Merger will depend, in part, on the Combined Group's ability
to realize the anticipated cost savings, synergies, growth opportunities and other benefits from combining
the businesses. The achievement of the anticipated benefits of the Merger is subject to a number of
uncertainties, including general competitive factors in the marketplace and whether FCA and PSA are
able to integrate their businesses in an efficient and effective manner and establish and implement
effective operational principles and procedures. Failure to achieve these anticipated benefits could result
in increased costs, decreases in the revenues of the Combined Group and diversion of management's
time and energy, and could materially impact the Combined Group's business, cash flows, financial
condition or results of operations. If the Combined Group is not able to successfully achieve these
objectives, the anticipated cost savings, synergies, growth opportunities and other benefits that FCA and
PSA expect to achieve as a result of the Merger may not be realized fully, or at all, or may take longer
than expected to realize.
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The Combined Group will have to devote significant management attention and resources to integrating
the business practices and operations of FCA and PSA. Potential difficulties that the Combined Group
may encounter as part of the integration process include complexities associated with managing the
business of the Combined Group, such as difficulty integrating manufacturing processes, systems and
technology, in a seamless manner, as well as integration of the workforces of the two companies. In
addition, the integration of FCA's and PSA's businesses may result in additional and unforeseen expenses,
capital investments and financial risks, such as the incurrence of unexpected write-offs, the possible effect
of adverse tax treatments and unanticipated or unknown liabilities relating to FCA, PSA or the Merger. All
of these factors could decrease or delay the expected accretive effect of the Merger.

It is possible that the integration process could take longer or be more costly than anticipated or could
result in the loss of key employees, the disruption of each company's ongoing businesses or
inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect the ability of the
Combined Group to maintain relationships with suppliers, customers and employees, achieve the
anticipated benefits of the Merger or maintain quality standards. An inability to realize the full extent of,
or any of, the anticipated benefits of the Merger, as well as any delays encountered in the integration
process, could have an adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, cash flows, financial condition
or results of operations, which may affect the value of Stellantis Common Shares following the
consummation of the Merger.

As a condition to obtaining the required antitrust approvals, the relevant regulatory authorities
may impose conditions that could have an adverse effect on the Combined Group and may delay
completion of the Merger.

FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. are obligated under the Combination Agreement to take all actions necessary
to consummate the Merger as soon as reasonably practicable, including the relevant competition
approvals and to undertake and comply with such commitments as the regulatory authorities may require
as a condition for such competition approvals. As an exception to the foregoing, neither FCA N.V. nor
Peugeot S.A. is required to nor may, without the consent of the other party, undertake or comply with any
commitments or take any action (i) if any such commitment or action, individually or in the aggregate,
would, or would reasonably be expected to, result in a substantial detriment to the Combined Group or (ii)
unless any such commitment or action is conditioned upon the consummation of the Merger.

Regulatory authorities may impose conditions, and any such conditions may have the effect of delaying
the consummation of the Merger or imposing additional material costs on, or materially limiting, the
revenues of the Combined Group following the consummation of the Merger. In addition, any such
conditions may result in the delay or abandonment of the Merger. If the Merger is abandoned because of
a failure to obtain required antitrust approvals, FCA, PSA and the FCA Shareholders and PSA
Shareholders would be adversely affected because of the inability to achieve the expected benefits of the
Merger while having suffered the costs of the transaction, distraction of management resources and
potential lost opportunities during the pendency of the Merger. If the Merger is delayed because of the
timing of antitrust approvals, the benefit of the synergies would be delayed, thereby adversely affecting
the results of the two companies in the interim period or going forward. These impacts are more fully
described under "—Because completion of the Merger is subject to several conditions precedent, there is
a risk that the Merger will not be completed, or may be delayed, which could negatively affect FCA's and
PSA's business plans and operations and FCA N.V's and Peugeot S.A.'s share prices".

Because completion of the Merger is subject to several conditions precedent, there is a risk that
the Merger will not be completed, or may be delayed, which could negatively affect FCA's and
PSA's business plans and operations and FCA N.V's and Peugeot S.A.'s share prices.

Although FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. expect to complete the Merger within 12-15 months from the date
of the Combination Agreement, the obligation of each party to effect the Merger is subject to various
closing conditions, which are largely beyond FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s control and any of which may
prevent, delay or otherwise materially adversely affect the consummation of the Merger. The
consummation of the Merger is conditioned upon, among other conditions, (i) the approval of the Merger
by each of the FCA Shareholders and PSA Shareholders; (ii) the approval from the NYSE, Euronext Paris
and the MTA for listing of the Stellantis Common Shares; (iii) the effectiveness of FCA N.V.'s registration
statement on Form F-4 under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") in connection with the Merger (the
"Registration Statement"); (iv) upon FCA N.V.'s request, the AFM having notified its approval of this
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Prospectus in accordance with article 25(1) of the Prospectus Regulation to the competent authority in
France, the AMF, and to the competent authority in Italy, the CONSOB, with a certificate of approval
attesting that this Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation; (v) the
receipt of the required approvals from antitrust authorities; (vi) the receipt of any consents necessary to
be obtained in order to consummate the merger; (vii) the receipt of clearance from the European Central
Bank (the "ECB™"); and (viii) the absence of injunctions or restraints of any governmental entity that prohibit
or make illegal the consummation of the Merger, but only to the extent that any failure to comply with such
prohibition would reasonably be expected to result in a substantial detriment to the Combined Group. FCA
and PSA cannot provide any assurance as to when these conditions will be satisfied or waived, if at all,
or that other events will not intervene to delay or result in the failure to complete the Merger. With respect
to most of the closing conditions, closing of the Merger without satisfying the condition would either be
impossible or give rise to penalties or other sanctions. Therefore, it would be impossible or unlikely as a
practical matter that the parties would be in a position to waive satisfaction of those conditions. Any delay
in completing the Merger could prevent or delay the Combined Group from realizing some or all of the
anticipated cost savings, synergies, growth opportunities and other benefits that FCA N.V. and Peugeot
S.A. expect to achieve if the Merger is successfully completed within the expected time frame.

The market price of FCA Common Shares and PSA Ordinary Shares currently, and in the period prior to
termination, if the Combination Agreement were to be terminated, may reflect a market assumption that
the Merger will occur. If the Merger is not completed for any reason, including as a result of FCA and PSA
Shareholders failing to approve the Merger, the business, cash flows, financial condition or results of
operations of FCA and PSA may be materially adversely affected. Without realizing any of the anticipated
benefits of completing the Merger, FCA and PSA would be subject to a number of risks, including:

o FCA N.V and Peugeot S.A. may experience negative reactions from the financial markets,
including a decline of their respective share prices;

o FCA and PSA may experience negative reactions from their customers, suppliers, regulators,
employees and other stakeholders; and

FCA and PSA may be adversely affected by the substantial commitments of time and resources
undertaken by their respective management teams in connection with the Merger, which would otherwise
have been devoted to day-to-day operations and other opportunities that may have been beneficial to
FCA and PSA had the Merger not been contemplated. If the Merger is completed but delayed, this could
prevent or delay the Combined Group from realizing some or all of the anticipated cost savings, synergies,
growth opportunities and other benefits that FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. expect to achieve if the Merger
is successfully completed within the expected time frame.

The pendency of the Merger could adversely affect each of FCA's and PSA's business, cash flows,
financial condition or results of operations.

The pendency of the Merger could cause disruptions in and create uncertainty surrounding FCA's and
PSA's business, including with respect to FCA's and PSA's relationships with existing and future
customers, suppliers and employees, which could have an adverse effect on FCA's or PSA's business,
cash flows, financial condition or results of operations, irrespective of whether the Merger is completed.
The business relationships of FCA or PSA may be subject to disruption as customers, suppliers and other
persons with whom FCA or PSA have a business relationship may delay or defer certain business
decisions or might decide to seek to terminate, change or renegotiate their relationships or consider
entering into business relationships with other parties. The risk, and adverse effect, of any such
disruptions could be exacerbated by a delay in the consummation of the Merger.

The Combined Group, FCA and PSA will incur significant transaction costs in connection with the
Merger and, if the Merger is consummated, the Combined Group will incur significant integration
costs.

FCA and PSA have incurred, and expect to continue to incur, significant costs in connection with the
Merger, including the fees of their respective professional advisors. FCA and PSA may also incur
unanticipated costs associated with the Merger, the listings on the NYSE, Euronext Paris and the MTA of
the Stellantis Common Shares and the migration of Stellantis's headquarters to the Netherlands as
required in connection with the Merger, and these unanticipated costs may have an adverse impact on
the results of operations of the Combined Group following the effectiveness of the Merger. In addition, if
the Merger is consummated, the Combined Group will incur integration costs following the consummation
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of the Merger. FCA and PSA cannot provide assurance that the realization of efficiencies related to the
integration of the businesses of FCA and PSA will offset the incremental transaction and integration costs
in the near term, if at all.

Uncertainties associated with the Merger may cause a loss of management personnel or other key
employees of FCA or PSA which could adversely affect the future business and operations of the
Combined Group.

FCA and PSA depend on the experience and industry knowledge of their management personnel and
other key employees to execute their respective business plans. The Combined Group's success after
the consummation of the Merger will also depend, in part, upon the ability of Stellantis to attract and retain
management personnel and other key employees. Current employees of FCA and PSA may experience
uncertainty about their roles within the Combined Group following the consummation of the Merger, which
may have an adverse effect on the ability of FCA and PSA to retain management and other key personnel.

While the Merger is pending, FCA and PSA are subject to restrictions on their business activities.

Under the Combination Agreement, FCA and PSA are subject to certain restrictions on the conduct of
their respective businesses and generally must operate in the ordinary course and consistent with past
practice (subject to certain exceptions agreed between the parties in the Combination Agreement), which
may restrict FCA's and PSA's ability to carry out certain of their respective business strategies. These
restrictions may prevent FCA and PSA from pursuing otherwise attractive business opportunities, making
certain investments or acquisitions, selling assets, engaging in capital expenditures in excess of certain
agreed limits, incurring certain indebtedness or making changes to FCA's and PSA's respective
businesses prior to the completion of the Merger or termination of the Combination Agreement, as
applicable. These restrictions could have an adverse effect on FCA's and PSA's respective businesses,
cash flows, financial condition, results of operations or FCA N.V's and Peugeot S.A.'s share price.

For a discussion of the Combination Agreement and the restrictions imposed on the operations of FCA
and PSA prior to completion of the Merger, see "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger
Terms".

Certain of FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s directors and executive officers have benefit
arrangements and other interests that may result in their interests in the Merger being different
from those of other FCA Shareholders or PSA Shareholders.

Some of FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s directors who recommend that FCA and PSA Shareholders vote
in favor of the Merger and the transactions contemplated thereby, as well as some of FCA N.V.'s and
Peugeot S.A.'s executive officers, have benefit arrangements and other interests that may provide them
with interests in the Merger that may be different from those of FCA Shareholders or PSA Shareholders
generally. For example, the prospect of a management position in the Combined Group, or compensation
that would not be payable if the Merger did not occur provide an interest in the Merger that is not shared
by shareholders. The receipt of compensation or other benefits in connection with the Merger may
influence these persons in making their recommendation that FCA Shareholders and PSA Shareholders
vote in favor of approval of the Merger and the transactions contemplated thereby. See "The Merger—
Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger".

There can be no assurance that the Faurecia Distribution will occur promptly following the closing
of the Merger, or at all, and until it occurs, the terms of the Faurecia Distribution may change.

Following agreement between PSA and FCA, on October 29, 2020, Peugeot S.A. sold 9,663,000 ordinary
shares of Faurecia S.E. ("Faurecia"), representing approximately seven percent of the share capital of
Faurecia with proceeds of approximately €308 million. FCA and PSA intend that, promptly following the
Effective Time, Stellantis will distribute to the Stellantis Shareholders through a dividend or other form of
distribution (including through a reduction of the share capital of Stellantis) (i) its remaining Faurecia
ordinary shares, representing approximately 39 percent of the share capital of Faurecia, and (ii) cash
equal to the proceeds of the sale of the Faurecia ordinary shares described above ((i) and (ii) collectively,
the "Faurecia Distribution"), subject to any corporate approvals required in relation thereto (including
the prior approval of the board of directors of Stellantis (the "Stellantis Board") and the Stellantis
Shareholders), which will be sought promptly following the Effective Time. The Faurecia Distribution is
subject to approval by the Stellantis Board following the closing of the merger, and until the Faurecia
Distribution occurs, Stellantis will have discretion to determine and change the terms of the distribution or
decide not to proceed with the distribution. In addition, the Stellantis shareholders will be required to
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approve the Faurecia Distribution, and they may decline to do so. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that the Faurecia Distribution will occur promptly following the closing of the Merger, or at all, or on the
terms contemplated by the parties. If the Faurecia Distribution is not approved, the Stellantis Shareholders
would not benefit from the rights and powers they would have as direct shareholders of Faurecia, such
as the rights to dividends declared, the ability to vote at shareholders meeting of Faurecia, or the ability
to sell the Faurecia shares. If the Faurecia Distribution is delayed, the Stellantis Shareholders would suffer
a delay in benefiting from such rights and powers. For further information on the Faurecia Distribution see
"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and
Shareholder Undertakings—Certain Covenants—Faurecia Distribution”.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Stellantis Shares

Stellantis's maintenance of three exchange listings may adversely affect liquidity in the market for
Stellantis Common Shares and result in pricing differentials of Stellantis Common Shares between
the three exchanges.

FCA Common Shares are currently traded on the NYSE and on MTA. PSA Ordinary Shares are currently
listed on Euronext Paris. FCA N.V. will apply to list the Stellantis Common Shares on the NYSE and on
MTA as required in connection with the Merger. FCA N.V. will also apply for admission to listing and
trading of the Stellantis Common Shares on Euronext Paris, subject to approval by the competent
authorities. It is not possible to predict how trading will develop on these markets. The tripartite listing of
Stellantis Common Shares may adversely affect the liquidity of the shares in one or several markets,
which in turn may adversely affect prices as investors are less willing to hold illiquid shares.

Resales of Stellantis Common Shares following the Merger may cause the market value of
Stellantis Common Shares to decline.

FCA N.V. expects that it will issue up to 1,545,221,900 FCA Common Shares in connection with the
Merger. Several Reference Shareholders of Stellantis will be subject to restrictions on share sales for a
three-year period following the Merger, but will be free to sell once those restrictions expire. See "The
Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms". Furthermore, if Dongfeng does not exercise
the right to sell 20.7 million PSA Ordinary Shares to PSA by the earlier of December 31, 2020 and the
Effective Time, Dongfeng is required to sell such PSA Ordinary Shares (or the corresponding number of
Stellantis Common Shares following the Merger) to third parties by December 31, 2022; in addition,
Dongfeng is not subject to any resale restriction relating to its Stellantis Common Shares following the
Merger. See "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination
Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings—Shareholders Undertakings—Lock-up”. All other Stellantis
Shareholders, which will own the majority of Stellantis Common Shares following the Merger, are not
subject to any resale restrictions. The resale of such shares in the public market from time to time,
particularly on the part of Dongfeng, or on the part of any Reference Shareholder following expiration of
the lock-up, or the perception that such resales may occur could have the effect of depressing the market
value for Stellantis Common Shares.

The loyalty voting structure to be implemented in connection with the Merger may concentrate
voting power in a small number of Stellantis Shareholders and such concentration may increase
over time.

Following the Merger, shareholders who hold Stellantis Common Shares for an uninterrupted period of at
least three years may elect to receive one Special Voting Share (as defined below) in addition to each
Stellantis Common Share held, provided that such Stellantis Common Shares have been registered in the
loyalty register of Stellantis (the "Loyalty Register") upon application by the relevant Stellantis
Shareholder. If Stellantis Shareholders holding a significant number of Stellantis Common Shares for an
uninterrupted period of at least three years elect to receive Special Voting Shares (as defined in "The
Stellantis Shares, Articles of Association and Terms and Conditions of the Special Voting
Shares—Corporate Offices and Home Member State"), a relatively large proportion of the voting power
of Stellantis could be concentrated in a relatively small number of shareholders who would have significant
influence over Stellantis. As a result, the ability of other Stellantis Shareholders to influence the decisions
of Stellantis would be reduced.
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The loyalty voting structure may affect the liquidity of the Stellantis Common Shares and reduce
the Stellantis share price.

Stellantis's loyalty voting structure could reduce the liquidity of the Stellantis Common Shares and
adversely affect the trading prices of the Stellantis Common Shares. The loyalty voting structure is
intended to reward Stellantis Shareholders for maintaining long-term share ownership by granting persons
holding shares continuously for at least three years at any time following the effectiveness of the merger
the option to elect to receive Special Voting Shares. Special Voting Shares cannot be traded and,
immediately prior to the transfer of Stellantis Common Shares from the Loyalty Register, any
corresponding Special Voting Shares will be transferred to Stellantis for no consideration (om niet). This
loyalty voting structure is designed to encourage a stable shareholder base for Stellantis and, conversely,
it may deter trading by those shareholders who are interested in gaining or retaining Special Voting Shares.
Therefore, the loyalty voting structure may reduce liquidity in Stellantis Common Shares and adversely
affect their trading prices, because investors typically require a discount to hold illiquid securities, which
may adversely affect such shares' trading price.

The loyalty voting structure may prevent or frustrate attempts by Stellantis Shareholders to
change Stellantis's management and hinder efforts to acquire a controlling interest in Stellantis,
and the market price of Stellantis Common Shares may be lower as a result.

Stellantis's loyalty voting structure may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or attempt to
acquire, control of Stellantis, even if a change of control were considered favorably by shareholders
holding a majority of Stellantis Common Shares. As a result of the loyalty voting structure, a relatively
large proportion of the voting power of Stellantis could be concentrated in a relatively small number of
shareholders, which may make it more difficult for third parties to seek to acquire control of Stellantis by
purchasing shares that do not benefit from the additional voting power of the Special Voting Shares. The
possibility or expectation of a change of control transaction typically leads to higher trading prices and
conversely, if that possibility is low, trading prices may be lower. The loyalty voting structure may also
prevent or discourage Stellantis Shareholders' initiatives aimed at changing Stellantis's management.

Risks Related to the Combined Group's Business, Strategy and Operations

Business interruptions resulting from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic could continue to
cause disruption to the manufacture and sale of the Combined Group's products and the provision
of its services and adversely impact its business.

Public health crises such as pandemics or similar outbreaks could adversely impact the Combined
Group's business. On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the
World Health Organization ("WHQO"), leading to government-imposed quarantines, travel restrictions,
"stay-at-home" orders and similar mandates for many individuals to substantially restrict daily activities
and for businesses to curtail or cease normal operations. The impact of COVID-19, including changes in
consumer behavior, pandemic fears and market downturns, as well as restrictions on business and
individual activities, has led to a global economic slowdown and a significant decrease in demand in the
global automotive market, which may persist even after certain restrictions related to the COVID-19
outbreak are lifted.

FCA and PSA took a number of steps as a result of the pandemic, in line with advice provided by the
WHO and the public health measures imposed in the countries in which they operate. For example, FCA
implemented a temporary suspension of production across its facilities: in Asia-Pacific ("APAC"), starting
with China on January 23, 2020; in Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"), starting with Italy from
March 11, 2020; in the United States, Canada, Mexico and the Caribbean Islands ("North America"),
phased in progressively from March 18, 2020; and in Latin America ("LATAM"), on March 23, 2020 (for
more information on FCA's segments, see "FCA 2019 Annual Report—Notes to the Financial
Statements—Note 28 (Segment Reporting). On February 19, 2020 and February 24, 2020, production
restarted at FCA's GAC Fiat Chrysler Automobiles Co. joint venture plants in Guangzhou and Changsha,
China, respectively. On April 27, 2020, production restarted at FCA's Sevel joint venture plant in Atessa,
Italy. Production restarted in all North American plants by June 1, 2020; in India on May 18, 2020; and in
Latin America by May 11, 2020. European production has resumed and a full restart is expected in the
third quarter of 2020.

PSA also temporarily suspended operations at its facilities. After closing its production sites in China in
mid-January 2020, PSA announced, beginning on March 16, 2020, the successive closure of its European
production sites followed by the rest of the world. PSA's production sites in China restarted operations in
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mid-March 2020, while production sites in Europe and the rest of the world gradually restarted operations
beginning on May 4, 2020, with all production facilities having resumed operations by mid-August 2020.

As a result of the restrictions described above, and consumers' reaction to the COVID-19 outbreak in
general, showroom traffic at FCA's and PSA's dealers has dropped significantly and many dealers have
temporarily ceased operations, thereby reducing the demand for FCA's and PSA's products and leading
to dealers purchasing fewer vehicles, parts and accessories. In addition, the COVID-19 outbreak may
cause significant disruptions of the supply chains of FCA, PSA and the Combined Group. These
disruptions may negatively impact the availability and price at which FCA, PSA or the Combined Group
are able to source components and raw materials globally, which could reduce the number of vehicles
FCA, PSA or the Combined Group will be able to manufacture and sell. FCA, PSA or the Combined Group
may not be able to pass on increases in the price of components and raw materials to their customers,
which may adversely impact their results of operations. Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic may lead
to financial distress for FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's suppliers or dealers, as a result of which
they may have to permanently discontinue or substantially reduce their operations. The pandemic may
also lead to downward pressure on vehicle prices and contribute to an already challenging pricing
environment in the automotive industry. In addition, the COVID-19 outbreak has led to higher working
capital needs and reduced liquidity or limitations in the supply of credit, which may lead to higher costs of
capital for FCA, PSA and the Combined Group. Lastly, COVID-19 has resulted in a sharp increase in
unemployment rates compared to pre-COVID-19 levels. FCA and PSA expect that the economic
uncertainty and higher unemployment may result in higher defaults in their consumer financing portfolio
and prolonged unemployment may negatively impact demand for both new and used vehicles. These and
other factors arising from the COVID-19 pandemic have had, and could continue to have a material
adverse impact on FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

FCA's and PSA's automotive operations generally realize minimal revenue while their respective plants
are shut down, but they continue to incur expenses. The negative cash impact is exacerbated by the fact
that, despite not producing vehicles, FCA and PSA have to continue to pay suppliers for components
purchased earlier in a high volume environment. In addition, FCA and PSA deferred a significant number
of capital expenditure programs, delayed or eliminated non-essential spending, and significantly reduced
marketing expenses. These measures could have a material adverse effect on FCA's and PSA's ability to
reach, and subsequently, maintain full production levels.

Further, even if restrictions on movement and business operations are eased, FCA, PSA or the Combined
Group may still elect to continue the shutdown of some, or all, of its production sites and other facilities,
either in the event of an outbreak of COVID-19 among their employees, or as a preventive measure to
contain the spread of the virus and protect the health of their workforce and their respective communities.
Such restrictions on movement and business operations may be reimposed by governments in response
to a recurrence or "multiple waves" of the outbreak.

In addition, government-sponsored liquidity or stimulus programs in response to the COVID-19 pandemic
may not be available to FCA's and PSA's customers, suppliers, dealers, or the Combined Group, and if
available, the terms may be unattractive or may be insufficient to address the impact of COVID-19.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Combined Group's results will depend on the
scale, duration, severity and geographic reach of future developments, which are highly uncertain and
cannot be predicted, including notably the possibility of a recurrence or "multiple waves" of the outbreak.
There have been instances where local lockdowns have been re-imposed where infection rates have
started to increase again and there is a risk that widespread measures such as strict social distancing
and curtailing or ceasing normal business activities may be reintroduced in the future until effective
treatments or vaccines have been developed. Recently, in response to a rapid acceleration of infections,
the governments of several European countries, including France, Germany, Italy and the United Kingdom,
have started re-imposing increasingly stringent measures. In addition, the ultimate impact of the COVID-
19 outbreak will also depend on any new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the
COVID-19 pandemic, its impact on customers, dealers and suppliers, how quickly normal economic
conditions, operations and demand for vehicles can resume, the severity of the current recession, any
permanent behavioral changes that the pandemic may cause and any additional actions to contain the
spread or mitigate the impact of the outbreak, whether government-mandated or elected by FCA, PSA or
the Combined Group. For example, in the event manufacturing operations are again suspended, fully
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ramping up production schedules to prior levels may take several months, depending, in part, on
developments in global demand for vehicles and whether FCA's, PSA's and the Combined Group's
suppliers will have resumed normal operations. The future impact of COVID-19 developments will be
greater if the regions and markets that are most profitable for FCA and PSA are particularly affected. See
"—If the Combined Group's vehicle shipment volumes deteriorate, particularly shipments of pickup trucks
and larger sport utility vehicles in the U.S. market for FCA brands, and shipments of vehicles in the
European market for PSA brands, the Combined Group's results of operations and financial condition will
suffer.". While the Combined Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present requirements, these
disruptions could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic may exacerbate many of the other risks
described in this Prospectus (see for example "—If the Combined Group's vehicle shipment volumes
deteriorate, particularly shipments of pickup trucks and larger sport utility vehicles in the U.S. market for
FCA brands, and shipments of vehicles in the European market for PSA brands, the Combined Group's
results of operations and financial condition will suffer.”), including, but not limited to, the general
economic conditions in which the Combined Group will operate, increases in the cost of raw materials
and components and disruptions to the Combined Group's supply chain and liquidity.

If the Combined Group's vehicle shipment volumes deteriorate, particularly shipments of pickup
trucks and larger sport utility vehicles in the U.S. market for FCA brands, and shipments of
vehicles in the European market for PSA brands, the Combined Group's results of operations and
financial condition will suffer.

As is typical for automotive manufacturers, FCA and PSA have, and the Combined Group will have,
significant fixed costs primarily due to their substantial investment in product development, property, plant
and equipment and the requirements of collective bargaining agreements and other applicable labor
relations regulations. As a result, changes in certain vehicle shipment volumes could have a
disproportionately large effect on the Combined Group's profitability. In particular, FCA's profitability would
be impacted in the event of lower volumes of pickup trucks and larger SUVs in North America, and PSA's
profitability would be impacted in the event of overall lower volumes in Europe.

FCA's profitability in North America, a region which contributed a majority of FCA's profit in each of the
last three years, is particularly dependent on demand for pickup trucks and larger SUVs. FCA's pickup
trucks and larger SUVs have historically been more profitable than other FCA vehicles and accounted for
approximately 71 percent of FCA's total U.S. retail vehicle shipments in 2019. A shift in consumer demand
away from these vehicles within the North America region, and towards compact and mid-size passenger
cars, whether in response to higher fuel prices or other factors, could adversely affect the Combined
Group's profitability.

FCA's dependence within the North America region on pickup trucks and larger SUVs remained high in
2019 as FCA continued the implementation of its plan to reallocate more production capacity to these
vehicle types after it ceased production in the region of compact and mid-size passenger cars in 2016.
Dependence on these vehicles is expected to continue for the Combined Group. For additional information
on factors affecting FCA's vehicle profitability, see the section entitled "Financial Overview—
Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the
Group—Trends, Uncertainties and Opportunities—Vehicle Profitability” in the FCA 2019 Annual Report
(as defined below), incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

Historically, PSA's operating results have reflected a dependence on European markets, which increased
with the purchase of the Opel and Vauxhall brands in August 2017. PSA generated a substantial majority
of its profits and approximately 77 and 79 percent of its revenue in the European markets in the six months
ended June 30, 2020 and the fiscal year 2019, respectively. In addition, Faurecia generated 49 percent
of its revenue in the European markets during each of the six months ended June 30, 2020 and the
financial year ended December 31, 2019. Therefore, PSA and Faurecia are particularly exposed to a
slowdown or downturn in economic conditions in Europe, as well as enhanced competition in, or a
deterioration of, the European vehicle market, that would trigger a decline in vehicle shipments in that
market. In addition, PSA's larger vehicles, such as SUVs, tend to be priced higher and be more profitable
on a per vehicle basis than smaller vehicles, both across and within vehicle lines. In recent years, the
profitability of these models has been supported by strong consumer preference for SUVs, but there is no
guarantee that this trend will continue in the future. For additional information on factors affecting PSA's
vehicle profitability, see "PSA Operating and Financial Review—Key Factors Affecting Results of
Operations—Profitability”.

31



Moreover, the Combined Group is expected to operate with negative working capital as it will generally
receive payment for vehicles within a few days of shipment, whereas there will be a lag between the time
when parts and materials are received from suppliers and when the Combined Group pays for such parts
and materials; therefore, in periods in which vehicle shipments decline materially, the Combined Group
may suffer a significant negative impact on cash flow and liquidity as it continues to pay suppliers for
components purchased in a high-volume environment during a period in which it will receive lower
proceeds from vehicle shipments. If vehicle shipments decline, or if they were to fall short of the Combined
Group's assumptions, due to recessionary conditions, changes in consumer confidence, geopoalitical
events, inability to produce sufficient quantities of certain vehicles, enhanced competition in certain
markets, loss of market share, limited access to financing or other factors, such decline or shortfall could
have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The Combined Group's businesses may be adversely affected by global financial markets, general
economic conditions, enforcement of government incentive programs, and geopolitical volatility
as well as other macro developments over which the Combined Group will have little or no control.

With operations worldwide, the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations
may be influenced by macroeconomic factors within the various countries in which it will operate, including
changes in gross domestic product, the level of consumer and business confidence, changes in interest
rates for or availability of consumer and business credit, the rate of unemployment, foreign currency
controls and changes in exchange rates, as well as geopolitical risks, such as government instability,
social unrest, the rise of nationalism and populism and disputes between sovereign states.

The Combined Group will be subject to other risks, such as increases in energy and fuel prices and
fluctuations in prices of raw materials, including as a result of tariffs or other protectionist measures,
changes to vehicle purchase incentive programs, and contractions in infrastructure spending in the
jurisdictions in which the Combined Group will operate. In addition, these factors may also have an
adverse effect on the Combined Group's ability to fully utilize its industrial capacity in some of the
jurisdictions in which it operates. Unfavorable developments in any one or a combination of these risks
(which may vary from country to country) could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's
business, financial condition and results of operations and on its ability to execute planned strategies. For
further discussion of risks related to the automotive industry, see "—Risks Related to the Industry in which
the Combined Group Will Operate".

The Combined Group will have operations in a number of emerging markets, including Turkey, China,
Brazil, Argentina, India and Russia. The Combined Group will be particularly susceptible to risks relating
to local political conditions, import and/or export restrictions (including the imposition of tariffs on raw
materials and components it will procure and on the vehicles it will sell), and compliance with local laws
and regulations in these markets.

For example, in Brazil, FCA has historically received certain tax benefits and other government grants,
which have favorably affected FCA's results of operations. These tax benefits were recently extended
through 2025. Expiration of these tax benefits and government grants without their renewal or any change
in the amount of such tax benefits or government grants could have a material adverse effect on the
Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group will also be subject to other risks inherent to operating globally. For a discussion of
certain tax-related risks related to the group operating globally, see "—Risks Related to
Taxation—Stellantis and its subsidiaries will be subject to tax laws and treaties of numerous jurisdictions.
Future changes to such laws or treaties could adversely affect Stellantis and its subsidiaries. In addition,
the interpretation of these laws and treaties is subject to challenge by the relevant governmental
authorities. European developments in data and digital taxation may also negatively affect some of the
Combined Group's automated driving and infotainment connected services. Unfavorable developments in
any one or a combination of these risk areas (which may vary from country to country) could have a
material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations
and on its ability to execute planned strategies.

On June 23, 2016, a majority of voters in a national referendum in the United Kingdom voted in favor of
leaving the European Union. The United Kingdom left the European Union on January 31, 2020 ("Brexit")
and, pursuant to a negotiated withdrawal agreement, there will be an 11-month transition period, ending
on December 31, 2020, during which EU rules will continue to apply in the United Kingdom. During this
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period, the United Kingdom and the European Union will seek to reach an agreement on their future
relationship. An agreement with regard to future trade and cooperation may not be reached prior to the
end of the transition period. In addition, such an agreement may result in greater restrictions on imports
and exports between the United Kingdom and the European Union (including tariffs of ten percent on
vehicles and approximately 3.5 percent on spare parts if no trade agreement is reached), difficulties in
the procurement of parts as a result of the reintroduction of customs formalities and additional regulatory
complexity as well as further global economic uncertainty, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore,
Brexit could lead to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the pound sterling and the euro, which
could adversely impact the sale of vehicles the Combined Group imports into, or exports from, the United
Kingdom. In 2019, PSA sold approximately 395,000 vehicles in the United Kingdom, which represented
approximately 11.4 percent of total vehicles sold by PSA during that period.

In recent years, there has been a significant increase in activity and speculation regarding tariffs and other
barriers to trade imposed between governments in various regions, in particular the United States and its
trading partners, China and the European Union. For example, FCA manufactures a significant
percentage of its vehicles outside the United States (particularly in Canada, Mexico and lItaly) for import
into the United States. FCA also manufactures vehicles in the United States that are exported to China.
Tariffs or duties that would impact the Combined Group's products could reduce consumer demand, make
the Combined Group's products less profitable or the cost of required raw materials more expensive or
delay or limit the Combined Group's access to these raw materials, each of which could have a material
adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
a continued escalation in tariff or duty activity between the United States and its major trading partners
could negatively impact global economic activity, which could in turn reduce demand for the Combined
Group's products.

The Combined Group may be unsuccessful in efforts to increase the growth of some of its brands
that it believes have global appeal and reach, which could have material adverse effects on the
Combined Group's business.

The Combined Group will focus on volume growth and margin expansion strategies, which include the
renewal of key products, the launch of white-space products, the implementation of various electrified
powertrain applications and partnerships relating to the development of autonomous driving technologies.
FCA has experienced challenges in expanding the product range and global sales of certain brands, in
particular, Alfa Romeo. As a result, FCA has rationalized its product plans, which resulted in the
recognition of impairment charges in the third quarter of 2019. PSA has experienced challenges with
respect to the visibility of its brands in China and Russia, which has led to reduced sales for PSA's
products in those markets. In addition, PSA may not be successful in positioning its DS brand as a
premium brand in light of competition from established premium brands that benefit from favorable
reputations and significant marketing budgets.

The Combined Group's strategies will continue to require significant investments in products, powertrains,
production facilities, marketing and distribution networks. If the Combined Group is unable to achieve its
volume growth and margin expansion goals, it may be unable to earn a sufficient return on these
investments, which could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial
condition and results of operations. The Combined Group's growth and investment strategy may also be
adversely impacted by future potential developments of the COVID-19 pandemic; see "—Business
interruptions resulting from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic could continue to cause disruption to
the manufacture and sale of the Combined Group's products and the provision of its services and
adversely impact its business."

The Combined Group's future performance depends on its ability to offer innovative, attractive
and fuel efficient products.

The Combined Group's success will depend on, among other things, its ability to develop innovative, high-
quality products that are attractive to consumers and provide adequate profitability.

The Combined Group may not be able to effectively compete with other automakers with regard to
electrification, autonomous driving, mobility, artificial intelligence and other emerging trends in the industry.
In addition, the Combined Group may fail to sufficiently adapt its business model to new forms of mobility,
such as car-sharing, car-pooling and connected services. Such changes to mobility may also lead to a
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decrease in sales, as new forms of mobility gain market acceptance as alternatives to outright vehicle
ownership by end users.

In certain cases, the technologies that the Combined Group plans to employ are not yet commercially
practical and depend on significant future technological advances by the Combined Group, its partners
and suppliers. These advances may not occur in a timely or feasible manner, the Combined Group may
not obtain rights to use these technologies and the funds that the Combined Group will have budgeted or
expended for these purposes may not be adequate. Further, the Combined Group's competitors and
others are pursuing similar and other competing technologies, and they may acquire and implement
similar or superior technologies sooner than the Combined Group will or on an exclusive basis or at a
significant cost advantage. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, the combined market share
of FCA and PSA in the European battery electric vehicle market (i.e., excluding plug-in hybrid electric
vehicles) was approximately 10%. Even where the Combined Group is able to develop competitive
technologies, it may not be able to profit from such developments as anticipated. For example, the advent
of electric and plug-in hybrid vehicles has fueled highly competitive pricing among automakers in order to
win market share, which may significantly and adversely affect profits with respect to the sale of such
vehicles. Furthermore, technological capabilities acquired through costly investment may prove short-
lived, for example, if hybrid cars were replaced by fully electric cars sooner than expected. In addition,
vehicle electrification may negatively affect after-sales revenues as electric vehicles are expected to
require fewer repairs.

Further, as a result of the extended product development cycle and inherent difficulty in predicting
consumer acceptance, a vehicle that is expected to be attractive may not generate sales in sufficient
qguantities and at high enough prices to be profitable. It takes several years to design and develop a new
vehicle, and a number of factors may lengthen that schedule. For example, if the Combined Group
determines that a safety or emissions defect, mechanical defect or non-compliance with regulation exists
with respect to a vehicle model prior to retail launch, the launch of such vehicle could be delayed until the
Combined Group remedies the defect or non-compliance. Various elements may also contribute to
consumers' acceptance of new vehicle designs, including competitors' product introductions, fuel prices,
general economic conditions and changes in consumer preferences. In addition, vehicles developed by
the Combined Group in order to comply with government regulations, particularly those related to fuel
efficiency, greenhouse gas and tailpipe emissions standards, may not be attractive to consumers or may
not generate sales in sufficient quantities and at high enough prices to be profitable.

If the Combined Group fails to develop products that contain desirable technologies and are attractive to
and accepted by consumers, the residual value of its vehicles could be negatively impacted. In addition,
the increasing pace of inclusion of new innovations and technologies in the Combined Group's and its
competitors' vehicles could also negatively impact the residual value of its vehicles. A deterioration in
residual value could increase the cost that consumers pay to lease the Combined Group's vehicles or
increase the amount of subvention payments that the Combined Group makes to support its leasing
programs.

The failure to develop and offer innovative, attractive and relevant products on a timely basis could have
a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group's success will largely depend on the ability of its management team to
operate and manage effectively and the Combined Group's ability to attract and retain experienced
management and employees.

The Combined Group's success will largely depend on the ability of its senior executives and other
members of management to effectively manage the Combined Group and individual areas of the business.
The Combined Group's management team will be critical to the execution of its direction and the
implementation of its strategies. The Combined Group may not be able to replace these individuals with
persons of equivalent experience and capabilities. Attracting and retaining qualified and experienced
personnel in each of the Combined Group's regions will be critical to its competitive position in the
automotive industry. If the Combined Group is unable to find adequate replacements or to attract, retain
and incentivize senior executives, other key employees or new qualified personnel, such inability could
have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Labor laws and collective bargaining agreements with the Combined Group's labor unions could
impact its ability to increase the efficiency of its operations, and the Combined Group may be
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subject to work stoppages in the event it is unable to agree on collective bargaining agreement
terms or has other disagreements.

Substantially all of the Combined Group's production employees will be represented by trade unions,
covered by collective bargaining agreements or protected by applicable labor relations regulations that
may restrict the Combined Group's ability to modify operations and reduce personnel costs quickly in
response to changes in market conditions and demand for its products. As of December 31, 2019,
approximately 87.3 percent of FCA's employees and 94 percent of PSA's employees were covered by
collective bargaining agreements. See the section "PSA —Trade Unions and Collective Bargaining" of
this Prospectus and the section "Group Overview—Employees" in the FCA 2019 Annual Report,
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, for a description of these arrangements with regard to each
of PSA and FCA. These and other provisions in the Combined Group's collective bargaining agreements
may impede its ability to restructure its business successfully in order to compete more effectively,
especially with automakers whose employees are not represented by trade unions or are subject to less
stringent regulations, which could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the Combined Group may be subject to work
stoppages in the event that the Combined Group and its labor unions are unable to agree on collective
bargaining agreement terms or have other disagreements. Any such work stoppage could have a material
adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

If the Combined Group fails to accurately forecast demand for its vehicles, its profitability may be
affected.

The Combined Group will take steps to improve efficiency in its manufacturing, supply chain and logistics
processes. This includes planning production based on sales forecasts, and in particular producing certain
vehicle models with specified features based on forecasted dealer and end customer orders, which is
expected to allow the Combined Group to more efficiently and cost effectively manage its supply chain.
This practice may result in higher finished goods inventory in certain periods when the Combined Group
anticipates increased dealer and end customer orders. Further, while it is expected that the Combined
Group's analytical tools should enable it to align production with dealer and end customer orders, if such
orders do not meet the Combined Group's forecasts, its profitability on these vehicles may be affected.

The Combined Group's reliance on partnerships in order to offer consumers and dealers financing
and leasing services will expose the Combined Group to risks, including that its competitors may
be able to offer consumers and dealers financing and leasing services on better terms than the
Combined Group's consumers and dealers are able to obtain.

The Combined Group's dealers will enter into wholesale financing arrangements to purchase vehicles
from it to hold in inventory and facilitate retail sales, and retail consumers use a variety of finance and
lease programs to acquire vehicles. Unlike many of its competitors, the Combined Group will not own and
operate a wholly-owned finance company dedicated solely to its mass-market vehicle operations in the
United States and the majority of key markets in Europe, Asia and South America. The Combined Group
will instead partner with specialized financial services providers through joint ventures and commercial
agreements with third parties, including third party financial institutions, in order to provide financing to its
dealers and retail consumers including in the United States and key markets in Europe, Asia and South
America. The Combined Group's reliance on partnerships in these key markets may increase the risk that
its dealers and retail consumers will not have access to sufficient financing on acceptable terms, which
may adversely affect its vehicle sales in the future.

Furthermore, many of the Combined Group's prospective competitors are better able to implement
financing programs designed to maximize vehicle sales in a manner that optimizes profitability for them
and their finance companies on an aggregate basis. Since the Combined Group's ability to compete will
depend on access to appropriate sources of financing for dealers and retail consumers, its reliance on
partnerships in those markets could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Potential capital constraints may impair the financial services providers' ability to provide competitive
financing products to the Combined Group's dealers and retail consumers. For example, any financial
services provider, including the Combined Group's joint ventures and controlled finance companies, will
also face other demands on its capital, including the need or desire to satisfy funding requirements for
dealers or consumers of the Combined Group's competitors as well as liquidity issues relating to other
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investments. Furthermore, they may be subject to regulatory changes that may increase their cost of
capital or capital requirements.

To the extent that a financial services provider is unable or unwilling to provide sufficient financing at
competitive rates to the Combined Group's dealers and retail consumers, such dealers and retail
consumers may not have sufficient access to financing to purchase or lease vehicles. As a result, the
Combined Group's vehicle sales and market share may suffer, which could have a material adverse effect
on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group will face risks related to changes in product distribution methods.

The Combined Group will be exposed to risks inherent in certain new methods of distribution, including
the digitalization of points of sale and, more broadly, the transformation of its sales network in order to
respond to developing trends in the automotive industry such as consumers' shift towards online sales.
Currently, less than 1% of sales by FCA and less than 2% by PSA are carried out online. Delays in the
digital transformation of distribution methods, both at points of sale and in sales networks, as well as
increased costs, whether as a result of the transformation of the Combined Group's sales network or new
distribution methods, could impact the Combined Group's ability to effectively compete with other
automakers. In addition, the Combined Group's employees may lack the necessary skills or training to
implement or utilize such new distribution methods. If there is a delay or failure to implement new
distribution methods or such transitions are not successful, there may be a material adverse effect on the
Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

A significant security breach compromising the electronic control systems contained in the
Combined Group's vehicles could damage the Combined Group's reputation, disrupt its business
and adversely impact its ability to compete.

The Combined Group's vehicles, as well as vehicles manufactured by other original equipment
manufacturers ("OEMs"), will contain complex systems that control various vehicle processes including
engine, transmission, safety, steering, brakes, window and door lock functions. These electronic control
systems, which are increasingly connected to external cloud-based systems, are susceptible to
cybercrime, including threats of intentional disruptions, loss of control over the vehicle, loss of functionality
or services and theft of personal information. These disruptions are likely to increase in terms of
sophistication and frequency as the level of connectivity and autonomy in the Combined Group's vehicles
increases. In addition, the Combined Group may have to rely on third parties for connectivity and
automation technology and services, including for the collection of its customers' data. These third parties
could unlawfully resell or otherwise misuse such information, or suffer data breaches. A significant
malfunction, disruption or security breach compromising the electronic control systems contained in the
Combined Group's vehicles could damage its reputation, expose it to significant liability and could have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

A significant malfunction, disruption or security breach compromising the operation of the
Combined Group's information technology systems could damage the Combined Group's
reputation, disrupt its business and adversely impact its ability to compete.

The Combined Group's ability to keep its business operating effectively will depend on the functional and
efficient operation of its information, data processing and telecommunications systems, including its
vehicle design, manufacturing, inventory tracking and billing and payment systems, as well as other
central information systems and applications, employee workstations and other IT equipment. In addition,
the Combined Group's vehicles will be increasingly connected to external cloud-based systems while its
industrial facilities will become more computerized. The Combined Group's systems, and in particular
those of the Combined Group's financing activities and joint venture partners following the digitalization
of their operations, will be susceptible to cybercrime and will regularly be the target of threats from third
parties, which could result in data theft, loss of control of data processed in an external cloud,
compromised IT networks and stoppages in operations. A significant or large-scale malfunction or
interruption of any one of the Combined Group's computer or data processing systems, including through
the exploitation of a weakness in its systems or the systems of the Combined Group's suppliers or service
providers, could have a material adverse effect on its ability to manage and keep its manufacturing and
other operations running effectively, and may damage its reputation. A malfunction or security breach that
results in a wide or sustained disruption to the Combined Group's business could have a material adverse
effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
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In addition to supporting its operations, the Combined Group's systems will collect and store confidential
and sensitive data, including information about its business, consumers and employees. As technology
continues to evolve, it is expected that the Combined Group will collect and store even more data in the
future and that its systems will increasingly use remote communication features that are sensitive to both
willful and unintentional security breaches. Much of the Combined Group's value will be derived from its
confidential business information, including vehicle design, proprietary technology and trade secrets, and
to the extent the confidentiality of such information is compromised, the Combined Group may lose its
competitive advantage and its vehicle shipments may suffer. The Combined Group will also collect, retain
and use personal information, including data gathered from consumers for product development and
marketing purposes, and data obtained from employees. In the event of a breach in security that allows
third parties access to this personal information, the Combined Group will be subject to a variety of ever-
changing laws on a global basis that could require it to provide notification to the data owners and subject
it to lawsuits, fines and other means of regulatory enforcement.

For example, the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679) (the "GDPR") has
increased the stringency of European Union data protection requirements and related penalties. Non-
compliance with the GDPR can result in fines of the higher of €20 million or four percent of annual
worldwide revenue. GDPR has required changes to FCA's and PSA's existing business practices and
systems in order to ensure compliance and address concerns of customers and business partners. In
addition, the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 became effective on January 1, 2020 and provides
California residents with new data privacy rights. Several other U.S. states are also considering adopting
laws and regulations imposing obligations regarding the handling of personal data. Complying with any
new data protection-related regulatory requirements could force the Combined Group to incur substantial
expenses or require it to change its business practices in a manner that has a material adverse effect on
its business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group's reputation could also suffer in the event of a data breach, which could cause
consumers to purchase their vehicles from its competitors. Ultimately, any significant compromise in the
integrity of its data security could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group's reliance on joint arrangements in certain emerging markets may adversely
affect the development of its business in those regions.

The Combined Group will operate, or is expected to expand its presence, in emerging markets, such as
China and India, through partnerships and joint ventures. For instance, FCA operates the GAC FCA joint
venture with Guangzhou Automobiles Group Co., Ltd., which locally produces the Jeep Cherokee, Jeep
Renegade, Jeep Compass, Jeep Grand Commander and Jeep Commander plug-in hybrid electric
vehicles ("PHEV") primarily for the Chinese market, expanding the portfolio of Jeep SUVs currently
available to Chinese consumers. FCA also has a joint operation with TATA Motors Limited for the
production of certain of its vehicles, engines and transmissions in India. Similarly, PSA operates a joint
venture in China with Dongfeng Motor Group, namely Dongfeng Peugeot Citroén Automobile ("DPCA"),
which manufactures vehicles under the Dongfeng Peugeot and Dongfeng Citroén brands in China, and
Dongfeng Peugeot Citroén Automobile Sales Co ("DPCS"), which markets the vehicles produced by
DPCA in China.

Although sales of FCA and PSA in the markets where these arrangements exist are currently limited, the
ability of the Combined Group to grow in this market is important to its strategy and any issues with these
arrangements may adversely affect those growth prospects. The Combined Group's reliance on joint
arrangements to enter or expand its presence in emerging markets may expose it to the risk of conflict
with its joint arrangement partners and the need to divert management resources to oversee these
arrangements. Further, as these arrangements require cooperation with third party partners, these joint
arrangements may not be able to make decisions as quickly as the Combined Group would if it were
operating on its own or may take actions that are different from what the Combined Group would do on a
standalone basis in light of the need to consider its partners' interests. As a result, the Combined Group
may be less able to respond timely to changes in market dynamics, which could have a material adverse
effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks Related to the Industry in which the Combined Group Will Operate

The automotive industry is highly competitive and cyclical, and the Combined Group may suffer
from those factors more than some of its competitors.

Substantially all of the Combined Group's revenues will be generated in the automotive industry, which is
highly competitive and cyclical, encompassing the production and distribution of passenger cars, light
commercial vehicles and components and systems. The Combined Group will face competition from other
international passenger car and light commercial vehicle manufacturers and distributors and components
suppliers in Europe, North America, Latin America, the Middle East, Africa and the Asia Pacific region.
These markets are all highly competitive in terms of product quality, innovation, the introduction of new
technologies, response to new regulatory requirements, pricing, fuel economy, reliability, safety,
consumer service and financial services offered. Some of the Combined Group's competitors will also be
better capitalized than the Combined Group and command larger market shares, which may enable them
to compete more effectively in these markets. In addition, the Combined Group will be exposed to the risk
of new entrants in the automotive market, which may have technological, marketing and other capabilities,
or financial resources, that are superior to those of the Combined Group and of other traditional
automobile manufacturers and may disrupt the industry in a way that is detrimental to the Combined
Group. For example, the Combined Group will face increased competition from new local market entrants
in China, against the backdrop of a softening economy that led to a significant decline in vehicle sales in
this market in 2019.

If the Combined Group's competitors are able to successfully integrate with one another and the
Combined Group is not able to adapt effectively to increased competition, its competitors' integration could
have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In the automotive business, sales to consumers and fleet customers are cyclical and subject to changes
in the general condition of the economy, the readiness of consumers and fleet customers to buy and their
ability to obtain financing, as well as the possible introduction of measures by governments to stimulate
demand, particularly related to new technologies (for example, technologies related to compliance with
evolving emissions regulations). The automotive industry is characterized by the constant renewal of
product offerings through frequent launches of new models and the incorporation of new technologies in
those models. A negative trend in the automotive industry or the Combined Group's inability to adapt
effectively to external market conditions, coupled with more limited capital than its principal competitors,
could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Intense competition, excess global manufacturing capacity and the proliferation of new products being
introduced in key segments is expected to continue to put downward pressure on inflation-adjusted vehicle
prices and contribute to a challenging pricing environment in the automotive industry for the foreseeable
future. In the event that industry shipments decrease and overcapacity intensifies, the Combined Group's
competitors may attempt to make their vehicles more attractive or less expensive to consumers by adding
vehicle enhancements, providing subsidized financing or leasing programs, or by reducing vehicle prices
whether directly or by offering option package discounts, price rebates or other sales incentives in certain
markets. Manufacturers in countries that have lower production costs may also choose to export lower-
cost automobiles to more established markets. In addition, FCA's, PSA's and the Combined Group's
profitability will depend in part on their ability to adjust pricing to reflect increasing technological costs
(see "The Combined Group's future performance depends on its ability to offer innovative, attractive and
fuel efficient products."”). An increase in any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on the
Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Vehicle retail sales depend heavily on affordable interest rates and availability of credit for vehicle
financing and a substantial increase in interest rates could adversely affect the Combined Group's
business.

In certain regions, including Europe and North America, financing for new vehicle sales has been available
at relatively low interest rates for several years due to, among other things, expansive government
monetary policies. If interest rates rise, market rates for new vehicle financing will generally be expected
to rise as well, which may make the Combined Group's vehicles less affordable to retail consumers or
steer consumers to less expensive vehicles that would be less profitable for the Combined Group,
adversely affecting its financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, if consumer interest rates

38



increase substantially or if financial service providers tighten lending standards or restrict their lending to
certain classes of credit, consumers may not desire or be able to obtain financing to purchase or lease
the Combined Group's vehicles. Furthermore, because purchasers of the Combined Group's vehicles may
be relatively more sensitive to changes in the availability and adequacy of financing and macroeconomic
conditions, its vehicle sales may be disproportionately affected by changes in financing conditions relative
to the vehicle sales of its competitors. As a result, a substantial increase in consumer interest rates or
tightening of lending standards could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group will face risks associated with increases in costs, disruptions of supply or
shortages of raw materials, parts, components and systems used in its vehicles.

The Combined Group will use a variety of raw materials in its business, including steel, aluminum, lead,
polymers, elastomers, resin and copper, and precious metals such as platinum, palladium and rhodium,
as well as electricity and natural gas. Also, as the Combined Group begins to implement various electrified
powertrain applications throughout its portfolio, it will also depend on a significant supply of lithium, nickel
and cobalt, which are used in lithium-ion batteries. The prices for these raw materials fluctuate, and market
conditions can affect the Combined Group's ability to manage its costs. Increased market power of raw
material suppliers may contribute to such prices increasing. Additionally, as production of electric vehicles
increases, the Combined Group may face shortages of raw materials and lithium cells and be forced to
pay higher prices to obtain them. The Combined Group may not be successful in managing its exposure
to these risks. Substantial increases in the prices for raw materials would increase the Combined Group's
operating costs and could reduce profitability if the increased costs cannot be offset by higher vehicle
prices or productivity gains. In particular, certain raw materials are sourced from a limited number of
suppliers and from a limited number of countries, particularly those needed in catalytic converters and
lithium-ion batteries. From time to time these may be susceptible to supply shortages or disruptions. It is
not possible to guarantee that the Combined Group will be able to maintain arrangements with suppliers
that assure access to these raw materials at reasonable prices. In addition, the Combined Group's
industrial efficiency will depend in part on the optimization of the raw materials and components used in
the manufacturing processes. If the Combined Group fails to optimize these processes, it may face
increased production costs.

The Combined Group will also be exposed to the risk of price fluctuations and supply disruptions and
shortages, including due to supplier disputes, particularly with regard to warranty recovery claims, supplier
financial distress, tight credit markets, trade restrictions, tariffs, natural or man-made disasters, epidemics
or pandemics of diseases, or production difficulties. Fluctuations in the price of parts and components can
adversely affect the Combined Group's costs and profitability, and any such effect may be material.
Further, trade restrictions and tariffs may be imposed, leading to increases in the cost of raw materials
and delayed or limited access to purchases of raw materials, each of which could have a material adverse
effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any interruption in the supply or any increase in the cost of raw materials, parts, components and systems
could negatively impact the Combined Group's ability to achieve its vehicle shipment objectives and
profitability and delay commercial launches. The potential impact of an interruption is particularly high in
instances where a part or component is sourced exclusively from a single supplier. Long-term interruptions
in the supply of raw materials, parts, components and systems may result in a material impact on vehicle
production, vehicle shipment objectives, and profitability. Cost increases which cannot be recouped
through increases in vehicle prices, or countered by productivity gains, could have a material adverse
effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations. This risk can
increase during periods of economic uncertainty such as the crisis resulting from the outbreak of COVID-
19, or as a result of regional economic disruptions such as that experienced in LATAM due to the
deterioration in Argentina's economic condition in recent years. With respect to the impact of the current
outbreak of COVID-19 on the supply chain of FCA and PSA, see "Business interruptions resulting from
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic could continue to cause disruption to the manufacture and sale of
the Combined Group's products and the provision of its services and adversely impact its business."”

The Combined Group will be subject to risks related to natural and industrial disasters, terrorist
attacks and climatic or other catastrophic events.

The Combined Group's production facilities will be subject to risks related to natural disasters, such as
earthquakes, fires, floods, hurricanes, other climatic phenomena, environmental disasters and other
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events beyond the Combined Group's control, such as power loss and uncertainties arising out of armed
conflicts or terrorist attacks.

Any catastrophic loss or significant damage to any of the Combined Group's facilities would likely disrupt
its operations, delay production, and adversely affect its product development schedules, shipments and
revenue. For example, in 2011, the earthquake off the coast of Fukushima in Japan disrupted part of
PSA's diesel engine production due to a supply shortage at one of its Japanese suppliers.

The occurrence of a major incident at a single manufacturing site could compromise the production and
sale of several hundred thousand vehicles. In addition, any such catastrophic loss or significant damage
could result in significant expense to repair or replace the facility and could significantly curtail the
Combined Group's research and development efforts in the affected area, which could have a material
adverse consequence on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Measures taken, particularly in Europe, to protect against climate change, such as implementing an
energy management plan, which sets out steps to reuse lost heat from industrial processes, making plants
more compact and reducing logistics-related CO2 emissions, as well as using renewable energy, may also
lead to increased capital expenditures.

The Combined Group will be subject to risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations, interest
rate changes and credit risk.

The Combined Group will operate in numerous markets worldwide and be exposed to risks stemming
from fluctuations in currency and interest rates. The exposure to currency risk will be mainly linked to
differences in the geographic distribution of the Combined Group's manufacturing and commercial
activities, resulting in cash flows from sales being denominated in currencies different from those of
purchases or production activities. Additionally, a significant portion of the Combined Group's operating
cash flow will be generated in U.S. Dollars and, although a portion of its debt will be denominated in U.S.
Dollars, the majority of its indebtedness will be denominated in euro.

The Combined Group will use various forms of financing to cover funding requirements for its activities.
Moreover, liquidity for industrial activities will also be principally invested in variable and fixed rate or
short-term financial instruments. FCA's financial services businesses normally operate a matching policy
to offset the impact of differences in rates of interest on the financed portfolio and related liabilities.
Banque PSA Finance S.A. ("BPF") also operates a matching policy by using appropriate financial
instruments to match interest rates on its loans and related liabilities. Nevertheless, changes in interest
rates can affect the Combined Group's net revenues, finance costs and margins.

In addition, although the Combined Group will manage risks associated with fluctuations in currency and
interest rates through financial hedging instruments, fluctuations in currency or interest rates could have
a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group's financial services activities will also be subject to the risk of insolvency of dealers
and retail consumers. Despite the Combined Group's efforts to mitigate such risks through the credit
approval policies applied to dealers and retail consumers, it may not be able to successfully mitigate such
risks.

Risks Related to the Legal and Regulatory Environment in which the Combined Group Will Operate

Current and more stringent future or incremental laws, regulations and governmental policies,
including those regarding increased fuel efficiency requirements and reduced greenhouse gas
and tailpipe emissions, may have a significant effect on how the Combined Group does business
and may increase its cost of compliance, result in additional liabilities and negatively affect its
operations and results.

As the Combined Group seeks to comply with government regulations, particularly those related to fuel
efficiency, vehicle safety and greenhouse gas and tailpipe emissions standards, it will have to devote
significant financial and management resources, as well as vehicle engineering and design attention, to
these legal requirements. Greenhouse gas emissions standards will also apply to the Combined Group's
production facilities in several jurisdictions in which it will operate, which may require investments to
upgrade facilities and increase operating costs. In addition, a failure to decrease the energy consumption
of plants may lead to penalties, each of which may adversely affect the Combined Group's profitability. In
addition, the European Union's Green Deal could result in changes to laws and regulations, including
requiring, or incentivizing, financial institutions to reduce lending to industries responsible for significant
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greenhouse gas emissions, which could result in an increase in the cost of European financings for the
Combined Group.

The Combined Group's production facilities will also be subject to a broad range of additional requirements
governing environmental, health and safety matters, including those relating to registration, use, storage
and disposal of hazardous materials and discharges to water and air (including emissions of sulphur oxide,
nitrogen oxide, volatile organic compounds and other pollutants). A failure by the Combined Group to
comply with such requirements, or additional requirements imposed in the future, may result in substantial
penalties, claims and liabilities which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations. The Combined Group could also incur substantial cleanup costs and
third-party claims as a result of environmental impacts that may be associated with its current or former
properties or operations.

Regulatory requirements in relation to CO2 emissions from vehicles, such as the Corporate Average Fuel
Efficiency standards in the United States, have been established worldwide and are increasingly stringent.
An increasing number of cities globally have also introduced restricted traffic zones, which do not permit
entry to vehicles unless they meet strict emissions standards. As a result, consumer demand may shift
towards vehicles that are able to meet these standards, which in turn could lead to higher research and
development costs and production costs for the Combined Group. A failure by the Combined Group to
comply with applicable emissions standards may lead to significant fines, vehicle recalls, the suspension
of sales and third-party claims and may adversely affect its reputation. The Combined Group will be
particularly exposed to the risk of such penalties, given its prospective sale of light vehicles in markets
where regulations on fuel consumption are very stringent, particularly in Europe. In addition, the harmful
effects of atmospheric pollutants, including greenhouse gases, on ecosystems and human health have
become an area of major public concern and media attention. As a result, the Combined Group may suffer
significant adverse reputational consequences, in addition to penalties, in the event of non-compliance
with applicable regulations.

The number and scope of regulatory requirements, along with the costs associated with compliance, are
expected to increase significantly in the future, particularly with respect to vehicle emissions. These costs
could be difficult to pass through to consumers, particularly if consumers are not prepared to pay more
for lower-emission vehicles. For a further discussion of the regulations applicable to FCA and PSA, see
the section "PSA —Environmental and Other Regulatory Matters" of this Prospectus and "Group
Overview—Environmental and Other Regulatory Matters" included in the FCA 2019 Annual Report,
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. For example, EU regulations governing passenger car and
LCV fleet average CO2 emissions became significantly more stringent in 2020, imposing material penalties
if targets are exceeded. The increased cost of producing lower-emitting vehicles may lead to lower
margins and/or lower volumes of vehicles sold. Given the significant portion of the Combined Group's
prospective sales in Europe, its vehicles will be particularly exposed to such regulatory changes, as well
as other European regulatory developments (including surcharges), which may have a serious impact on
the number of cars sold by the Combined Group in this region and therefore on its profitability.

For recent developments to CAFE compliance matters, see "Additional Information—Regulatory
Developments".

The U.S. federal government has also challenged the jurisdiction of U.S. states such as California to
impose their own environmental regulatory requirements on the vehicles that the Combined Group sells,
resulting in uncertainty regarding the applicability of these regulations. Uncertainty regarding these
regulations, and the outcome of these proceedings, may increase the Combined Group's costs of
compliance. Furthermore, some of the Combined Group's competitors may be capable of responding
more swiftly to increased regulatory requirements, or may bear lower compliance costs, thereby
strengthening their competitive position compared to the Combined Group; see "The automotive industry
is highly competitive and cyclical, and the Combined Group may suffer from those factors more than some
of its competitors."

Most of the Combined Group's suppliers will face similar environmental requirements and constraints. A
failure by the Combined Group's suppliers to meet applicable environmental laws or regulations may lead
to a disruption of the Combined Group's supply chain or an increase in the cost of raw materials and
components used in production and could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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The Combined Group will remain subject to ongoing diesel emissions investigations by several
governmental agencies and to a number of related private lawsuits, which may lead to further
claims, lawsuits and enforcement actions, and result in additional penalties, settlements or
damage awards and may also adversely affect the Combined Group's reputation with consumers.

On January 10, 2019, FCA announced that FCA US LLC ("FCA US") reached final settlements on civil
environmental and consumer claims with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Department of
Justice, the California Air Resources Board, the State of California, 49 other States and U.S. Customs
and Border Protection, for which €748 million was accrued during the year ended December 31, 2018.
Approximately €350 million of the accrual was related to civil penalties to resolve differences over diesel
emissions requirements. A portion of the accrual was attributable to settlement of a putative class action
on behalf of consumers in connection with which FCA US agreed to pay an average $2,800 per vehicle
for eligible customers affected by the recall. FCA continues to defend individual claims from approximately
3,200 consumers that have exercised their right to opt out of the class action settlement and pursue their
own individual claims against FCA (the "Opt-Out Litigation"). FCA has engaged in further discovery in
the Opt-Out Litigation and participated in court-sponsored settlement conferences, but has reached
settlement agreements with less than 100 of these remaining plaintiffs.

In the United States, FCA remains subject to a diesel emissions-related investigation by the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division. In September 2019, the U.S. Department of Justice filed criminal
charges against an employee of FCA US for, among other things, fraud, conspiracy, false statements and
violations of the Clean Air Act primarily in connection with efforts to obtain regulatory approval of the
vehicles that were the subject of the civil settlements described above. FCA has continued discussions
with the U.S. Department of Justice, Criminal Division to determine whether it can reach an appropriate
resolution of the investigation as it relates to FCA, which may involve the payment of penalties and other
non-financial sanctions. FCA also remains subject to a number of related private lawsuits. In September
2020, FCA settled the diesel emissions-related investigation with the SEC for an amount that is not
material to FCA.

FCA has also received inquiries from other regulatory authorities in a number of jurisdictions as they
examine the on-road tailpipe emissions of several automakers' vehicles and, when jurisdictionally
appropriate, FCA will continue to cooperate with these governmental agencies and authorities.

In Europe, FCA is working with the Italian Ministry of Transport ("MIT") and the Dutch Vehicle Regulator
(Rijksdienst voor het Wegverkeer, "RDW"), the authorities that certified FCA diesel vehicles for sale in the
European Union, and the U.K. Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency in connection with their review of
several of its vehicles.

FCA also initially responded to inquiries from the German authority, the Kraftfahrt-Bundesamt ("KBA"),
regarding emissions test results for its vehicles, and it discussed the KBA-reported test results, its
emission control calibrations and the features of the vehicles in question. After these initial discussions,
the MIT, which has sole authority for regulatory compliance of the vehicles it has certified, asserted its
exclusive jurisdiction over the matters raised by the KBA, tested the vehicles, determined that the vehicles
complied with applicable European regulations and informed the KBA of its determination. Thereafter,
mediations have been held under European Commission ("EC") rules, between the MIT and the German
Ministry of Transport and Digital Infrastructure, which oversees the KBA, in an effort to resolve their
differences. The mediation was concluded with no action being taken with respect to FCA. In May 2017,
the EC announced its intention to open an infringement procedure against Italy regarding Italy's alleged
failure to respond to the EC's concerns regarding certain FCA emission control calibrations. The MIT has
responded to the EC's allegations by confirming that the vehicles' approval process was properly
performed.

In December 2019, the MIT notified FCA that the Dutch Ministry of Infrastructure and Water Management
("I&W") had been communicating with the MIT regarding certain irregularities allegedly found by the RDW
and the Dutch Center of Research TNO in the emission levels of certain Jeep Grand Cherokee Euro 5
models and a vehicle model of another OEM that contains a Euro 6 diesel engine supplied by FCA. In
January 2020, the Dutch Parliament published a letter from the 1&W summarizing the conclusions of the
RDW regarding those vehicles and engines and indicating an intention to order a recall and report their
findings to the public prosecutor, the EC and other Member States. FCA has engaged with the RDW to
present its positions and cooperate to reach an appropriate resolution of this matter. FCA has proposed
certain updates to the relevant vehicles that have been tested and approved by the RDW and are now
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being implemented. In addition, at the request of the French Consumer Protection Agency, the Juge
d'Instruction du Tribunal de Grande Instance of Paris is investigating diesel vehicles of a number of
automakers including FCA, regarding whether the sale of those vehicles violated French consumer
protection laws. In July 2020, unannounced inspections took place at several FCA sites in Germany, Italy
and the UK at the initiative of the public prosecutors of Frankfurt am Main and of Turin, as part of their
investigations of potential violations of diesel emissions regulations and consumer protection laws. FCA
is cooperating with the investigations. Several FCA companies and FCA's Dutch dealers were recently
served with a purported class action filed in the Netherlands by a Dutch foundation seeking monetary
damages and vehicle buybacks in connection with alleged emissions non-compliance of certain FCA E5
and E6 diesel vehicles.

In December 2018, the Korean Ministry of Environment ("MOE") announced its determination that
approximately 2,400 FCA vehicles imported into Korea during 2015, 2016 and 2017 were not emissions
compliant and that the vehicles with a subsequent update of the emission control calibrations voluntarily
performed by FCA, although compliant, would have required re-homologation of the vehicles concerned.
In May 2019, the MOE revoked certification of the above-referenced vehicles and announced an
administrative fine for an amount not material to FCA. FCA has appealed the MOE's decision. FCA's
subsidiary in Seoul, Korea is also cooperating with local criminal authorities in connection with their review
of this matter, with the Korean Fair Trade Commission regarding a purported breach of the Act on Fair
Labeling and Advertisement in connection with the subject vehicles and with the MOE in connection with
their review of other FCA vehicles.

In April 2016, the French Directorate General for Competition, Consumer Affairs and Fraud Control
("DGCCRF") initiated an investigation regarding emissions from diesel engines, including engines used
in PSA vehicles. In February 2017, the French Ministry of Economy issued a press release announcing
that the DGCCRF referred the case to the prosecutor's office of Versailles. None of PSA or its employees
have been charged with any criminal offence. PSA continues to cooperate with the relevant French judicial
authorities and present PSA's position on any concerns raised during this investigation.

PSA is performing recalls of 95,781 Opel vehicles built by Adam Opel GmbH between 2013 and 2016 to
update the emissions control system software. After Opel initiated voluntary field campaigns on these
vehicles, as agreed with the KBA, the KBA ordered in 2018 that these campaigns be changed into
mandatory recalls to update all outstanding vehicles. More than 75 percent of the vehicles have so far
received the software update, and specifically in Germany, more than 95 percent. Opel Automobile GmbH
also faces a number of related private lawsuits (not class actions) and a related investigation by the
Frankfurt public prosecutor in Germany.

The results of the unresolved governmental inquiries and private litigation cannot be predicted at this time
and these inquiries and litigation may lead to further enforcement actions, penalties or damage awards,
any of which may have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition
and results of operations. It is also possible that these matters and their ultimate resolution may adversely
affect the Combined Group's reputation with consumers, which may negatively impact demand for its
vehicles and consequently could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The Combined Group's business operations and reputation may be impacted by various types of
claims, lawsuits, and other contingencies.

The Combined Group will be involved in various disputes, claims, lawsuits, investigations and other legal
proceedings relating to several matters, including product liability, warranty, vehicle safety, emissions and
fuel economy, product performance, asbestos, personal injury, dealers, suppliers and other contractual
relationships, alleged violations of law, environment, securities, labor, antitrust, intellectual property, tax
and other matters. The Combined Group will estimate such potential claims and contingent liabilities and,
where appropriate, record provisions to address these contingent liabilities. The ultimate outcome of the
legal proceedings pending against the Combined Group is uncertain, and such proceedings could have a
material adverse effect on the Combined Group's financial condition or results of operations. Furthermore,
additional facts may come to light or the Combined Group could, in the future, be subject to judgments or
enter into settlements of lawsuits and claims that could have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition and results of operations. While the Combined Group will maintain insurance coverage
with respect to certain claims, not all claims or potential losses can be covered by insurance, and even if
claims could be covered by insurance, the Combined Group may not be able to obtain such insurance on
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acceptable terms in the future, if at all, and any such insurance may not provide adequate coverage
against any such claims. For additional information with regard to FCA and PSA see also "FCA 2019
Annual Report—Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 20 (Provisions) ", and "FCA 2019
Annual Report—Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 25 (Guarantees granted
commitments and contingent liabilities)" and "PSA 2019 Universal Registration Document—Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 17 (Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities)" as incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. Further, publicity regarding such
investigations and lawsuits, whether or not they have merit, may adversely affect the Combined Group's
reputation and the perception of its vehicles with retail customers, which may adversely affect demand for
its vehicles, and have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

For example, in November 2019, General Motors LLC and General Motors Company (collectively, "GM")
filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan against FCA US, FCA N.V.
and certain individuals, claiming violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act
("RICQO"), unfair competition and civil conspiracy in connection with allegations that FCA US paid bribes
to officials of The International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace, and Agricultural Implement Workers
of America, also known as the United Auto Workers ("UAW") that corrupted the bargaining process with
the UAW and as a result FCA US enjoyed unfair labor costs and operational advantages that caused
harm to GM. GM also claimed that FCA US had made concessions to the UAW in collective bargaining
that the UAW was then able to extract from GM through pattern bargaining which increased costs to GM
in an effort to force a merger between GM and FCA N.V. The court dismissed the lawsuit with prejudice
on July 8, 2020 on the basis that the alleged conduct did not constitute a violation of RICO. On August 3,
2020, GM filed a motion requesting that the court amend or alter its judgment, which the court denied. On
August 17, 2020, GM provided notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit. GM has
also filed an action against FCA in Michigan state court, making substantially the same claims as it made
in the federal litigation.

In addition, FCA and other Brazilian taxpayers have significant disputes with the Brazilian tax authorities
regarding the application of Brazilian tax law. FCA believes that it is more likely than not that there will be
no significant impact from these disputes. However, given the current economic conditions and uncertainty
in Brazil, new tax laws or more significant changes such as tax reform may be introduced and enacted.
Changes to the application of existing tax laws may also occur or the realization of accumulated tax
benefits may be limited, delayed or denied. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on
the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

For additional risks regarding certain proceedings, see "—The Combined Group will remain subject to
ongoing diesel emissions investigations by several governmental agencies and to a number of related
private lawsuits, which may lead to further claims, lawsuits and enforcement actions, and result in
additional penalties, settlements or damage awards and may also adversely affect the Combined Group's
reputation with consumers".

The Combined Group will face risks related to quality and vehicle safety issues, which could lead
to product recalls and warranty obligations that may result in direct costs, and any resulting loss
of vehicle sales could have material adverse effects on the Combined Group's business.

The Combined Group's performance will be, in part, dependent on complying with quality and safety
standards, meeting customer expectations and maintaining the Combined Group's reputation for
designing, building and selling safe, high-quality vehicles. Given the global nature of the Combined
Group's business, these standards and expectations may vary according to the markets in which it will
operate. For example, vehicle safety standards imposed by regulations are increasingly stringent. In
addition, consumers' focus on vehicle safety may increase further with the advent of autonomous and
connected cars. If the Combined Group fails to meet or adhere to required vehicle safety standards, it
may face penalties, become subject to other claims or liabilities or be required to recall vehicles.

The automotive industry in general has experienced a sustained increase in recall activity to address
performance, compliance or safety-related issues. For example, in November 2019, FCA voluntarily
recalled more than 700,000 SUVs worldwide due to problems with an electrical connection that could
result in a vehicle stall. FCA's costs related to vehicle recalls have been significant and typically include
the cost of replacement parts and labor to remove and replace parts. The Combined Group's costs related
to vehicle recalls could increase in the future.
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Recall costs substantially depend on the nature of the remedy and the number of vehicles affected and
may arise many years after a vehicle's sale. Product recalls may also harm the Combined Group's
reputation, force it to halt the sale of certain vehicles and cause consumers to question the safety or
reliability of its products. Given the intense regulatory activity across the automotive industry, ongoing
compliance costs are expected to remain high. Any costs incurred, or lost vehicle sales, resulting from
product recalls could materially adversely affect the Combined Group's financial condition and results of
operations. Moreover, if the Combined Group faces consumer complaints, or receives information from
vehicle rating services that calls into question the safety or reliability of one of its vehicles and the
Combined Group does not issue a recall, or if it does not do so on a timely basis, its reputation may also
be harmed and it may lose future vehicle sales. The Combined Group will also be obligated under the
terms of its warranty agreements to make repairs or replace parts in its vehicles at its expense for a
specified period of time. These factors, including any failure rate that exceeds the Combined Group's
assumptions, could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The Combined Group will be subject to laws and regulations, relating to corruption and bribery,
as well as stakeholder expectations relating to human rights in the supply chain and a failure by
the Combined Group to meet these legislative and stakeholder standards could lead to
enforcement actions, penalties or damage awards and may also adversely affect its reputation
with consumers.

The Combined Group will be subject to laws and regulations relating to corruption and bribery, including
those of the United States, the United Kingdom and France, which have an international reach and which
will cover the entirety of the Combined Group's value chain in all countries in which it will operate. The
Combined Group will continue to have significant interactions with governments and governmental
agencies in the areas of licensing, permits, regulatory compliance and environmental matters among
others. A failure by the Combined Group to comply with laws and regulations relating to corruption and
bribery may lead to significant penalties and enforcement actions and could also have a long-term impact
on the Combined Group's presence in one, or more, of the markets in which such compliance failures
have occurred.

In addition, customers of the Combined Group may have expectations relating to the production conditions
and origin of the products they will purchase. Therefore, it will be important for the Combined Group to
demonstrate transparency across the entire supply chain, which may result in additional costs being
incurred. A failure by the Combined Group, or any of its suppliers or subcontractors, to comply with
employment or other production standards and expectations may result in adverse consequences to the
Combined Group's reputation, disruptions to its supply chain and increased costs as a result of remedial
measures needing to be undertaken to meet stakeholder expectations, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group may not be able to adequately protect its intellectual property rights, which
may harm its business.

The Combined Group's success will depend, in part, on its ability to protect its intellectual property rights.
If the Combined Group fails to protect its intellectual property rights, others may be able to compete
against the Combined Group using intellectual property that is the same as or similar to its own. In addition,
there can be no guarantee that the Combined Group's intellectual property rights will be sufficient to
provide it with a competitive advantage against others who offer products similar to its products. For
example, another OEM has been producing a vehicle closely resembling one of FCA's Jeep models for
sale in the United States. FCA has brought proceedings to stop these practices and, while initial rulings
have been in FCA's favor, FCA cannot be certain of the final outcome. More generally, despite the
Combined Group's efforts, it may be unable to prevent third parties from infringing its intellectual property
and using its technology for their competitive advantage. Although no intellectual property right of the
Combined Group is individually material, defense of intellectual property generally is material to the
Combined Group and infringements could have a material adverse effect on the Combined Group's
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The laws of some countries in which the Combined Group will operate do not offer the same protection of
intellectual property rights as do the laws of the United States or Europe. In addition, effective intellectual
property enforcement may be unavailable or limited in certain countries, making it difficult for the
Combined Group to protect its intellectual property from misuse or infringement there. The Combined
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Group's inability to protect its intellectual property rights in some countries could have a material adverse
effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

As an employer with a large workforce, the Combined Group will face risks related to the health
and safety of its employees, as well as reputational risk related to diversity, inclusion and equal
opportunity.

The Combined Group will employ a significant number of people who are exposed to health and safety
risks as a result of their employment. Working conditions can cause stress or discomfort that can impact
employees' health and may result in adverse consequences for the Combined Group's productivity. In
addition, as an automotive manufacturer, a significant number of the Combined Group's employees will
be shift workers in production facilities, involving physical demands which may lead to occupational injury
or illness. The use or presence of certain chemicals in production processes may adversely affect the
health of the Combined Group's employees or create a safety risk. As a result, the Combined Group could
be exposed to liability from claims brought by current or former employees and the Combined Group's
reputation, productivity, business, financial condition and results of operations may be affected.

The Combined Group's stakeholders are expected to place increased emphasis on the importance of
diversity, inclusion and equal opportunity in the workplace, against a backdrop of developing legal
requirements in these areas. The Combined Group may suffer adverse effects on its reputation if it fails
to meet its stakeholders' expectations, which could result in an adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to the Combined Group's Liquidity and Existing Indebtedness

Limitations on the Combined Group's liquidity and access to funding, as well as its significant
outstanding indebtedness, may restrict the Combined Group's financial and operating flexibility
and its ability to execute its business strategies, obtain additional funding on competitive terms
and improve its financial condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group's performance will depend on, among other things, its ability to finance debt
repayment obligations and planned investments from operating cash flow, available liquidity, the renewal
or refinancing of existing bank loans and/or facilities and possible access to capital markets or other
sources of financing. The Combined Group's indebtedness may have important consequences on the
Combined Group's operations and financial results, including:

o the Combined Group may not be able to secure additional funds for working capital, capital
expenditures, debt service requirements or general corporate purposes;

o the Combined Group may need to use a portion of its projected future cash flow from operations
to pay principal and interest on its indebtedness, which may reduce the amount of funds available
to it for other purposes, including product development; and

. the Combined Group may not be able to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions, which may
make it more vulnerable to a downturn in general economic conditions or its business.

The COVID-19 pandemic has put significant pressure on FCA's and PSA's liquidity, leading to an increase
in the level of net indebtedness, which could increase the aforementioned risks. During the six months
ended June 30, 2020, FCA took several actions to secure its liquidity and financial position, including
drawing on existing bilateral lines of credit totaling €1.5 billion, completing an offering of €3.5 billion of
notes under its Medium Term Note Programme, drawing its €6.25 billion syndicated revolving credit facility,
and entering into a new €6.3 billion credit facility with Intesa Sanpaolo, Italy's largest banking group. PSA
also took several actions during the six months ended June 30, 2020 in order to secure its liquidity and
financial position. In April 2020, PSA signed a new €3 billion syndicated line of credit, which was undrawn
as of the date of this Prospectus, and in May 2020, PSA issued €1 billion of 2.75 percent notes due 2026
under its European Medium-Term Notes ("EMTN") program. In addition, measures were taken to reduce
cash outflows, including: a delaying of a significant number of capital expenditure programs; cutting non-
essential spending; and significant reductions to marketing and other discretionary spend. In addition, the
Combined Group's liquidity could be adversely affected if its vehicle shipments decline materially, whether
as a result of COVID-19 or otherwise. For a discussion of factors impacting FCA's and PSA's liquidity,
see the section "Financial Overview—Liquidity and Capital Resources" in the FCA 2019 Annual Report
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus and the section "PSA Operating and Financial Review—
Liquidity and Capital Resources". In addition, the majority of FCA's credit ratings are below investment
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grade, while PSA's credit ratings are investment grade, and any deterioration may significantly affect the
Combined Group's funding and prospects.

The Combined Group could, therefore, find itself in the position of having to seek additional financing or
having to refinance existing debt, including in unfavorable market conditions, with limited availability of
funding and a general increase in funding costs. Any limitations on the Combined Group's liquidity, due
to a decrease in vehicle shipments, the amount of, or restrictions in, its existing indebtedness, conditions
in the credit markets, general economic conditions or otherwise, may adversely impact its ability to
execute its business strategies and impair its financial condition and results of operations. In addition, any
actual or perceived limitations of the Combined Group's liquidity may limit the ability or willingness of
counterparties, including dealers, consumers, suppliers, lenders and financial service providers, to do
business with the Combined Group, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The Combined Group may be exposed to shortfalls in its pension plans which may increase the
Combined Group's pension expenses and required contributions and, as a result, could constrain
liguidity and materially adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Certain of FCA's defined benefit pension plans are currently underfunded. For example, as of December
31, 2019, FCA's defined benefit pension plans were underfunded by approximately €4.3 billion and may
be subject to significant minimum contributions in future years. The Combined Group's pension funding
obligations may increase significantly if the investment performance of plan assets does not keep pace
with benefit payment obligations. Mandatory funding obligations may increase because of lower than
anticipated returns on plan assets, whether as a result of overall weak market performance or particular
investment decisions, changes in the level of interest rates used to determine required funding levels,
changes in the level of benefits provided for by the plans, or any changes in applicable law related to
funding requirements. FCA's defined benefit plans currently hold significant investments in equity and
fixed income securities, as well as investments in less liquid instruments such as private equity, real estate
and certain hedge funds. The external funds covering PSA's pension obligations are invested in equity
and fixed income securities. Due to the complexity and magnitude of certain investments, additional risks
may exist, including the effects of significant changes in investment policy, insufficient market capacity to
complete a particular investment strategy and an inherent divergence in objectives between the ability to
manage risk in the short term and the ability to quickly re-balance illiquid and long-term investments.

To determine the appropriate level of funding and contributions to its defined benefit plans, as well as the
investment strategy for the plans, the Combined Group will be required to make various assumptions,
including an expected rate of return on plan assets and a discount rate used to measure the obligations
under defined benefit pension plans. Interest rate increases generally will result in a decline in the value
of investments in fixed income securities and the present value of the obligations. Conversely, interest
rate decreases will generally increase the value of investments in fixed income securities and the present
value of the obligations. See "FCA 2019 Annual Report—Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements—Note 2 (Basis of preparation—Significant accounting policies—Employee benefits)" as
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus and "PSA 2019 Universal Registration Document—Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 7 (Employee Benefits Expense)" as incorporated by
reference in this Prospectus.

Any reduction in the discount rate or the value of plan assets, or any increase in the present value of
obligations, may increase the Combined Group's pension expenses and required contributions and, as a
result, could constrain liquidity and materially adversely affect its financial condition and results of
operations. If FCA, and after the closing, the Combined Group fails to make required minimum funding
contributions to FCA's U.S. pension plans, it could be subject to reportable event disclosure to the U.S.
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, as well as interest and excise taxes calculated based upon the
amount of any funding deficiency.

Risks Related to Taxation

The French tax authorities may not grant or may deny or revoke in whole or in part the benefit of
the rulings confirming the neutral tax treatment of the Merger for PSA and the PSA Shareholders
and the transfer of tax losses carried forward of the existing PSA French tax consolidated group.

Several tax ruling requests have been filed with the French tax authorities regarding certain tax
consequences of the Merger, which have not been granted yet.
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In particular, a confirmation from the French tax authorities has been requested (i) that the Merger will
fulfill the conditions to benefit from the favorable corporate income tax regime set forth in Article 210 A of
the French Tax Code (which mainly provides for a deferral of taxation of the capital gains realized by PSA
as a result of the transfer of all its assets and liabilities pursuant to the Merger) and (ii) that the French
tax deferral regimes available to PSA Shareholders will be applicable. In addition, as required by law, a
tax ruling request has also been filed with the French tax authorities in order to allow for the transfer of a
large majority of the French tax losses carried forward of the existing PSA French tax consolidated group
to the French permanent establishment of Stellantis and for the carry-forward of French tax losses
transferred to the French permanent establishment of Stellantis against future profits of the French
permanent establishment of Stellantis and certain companies of the existing PSA French tax consolidated
group pursuant to Articles 223 1-6 and 1649 nonies of the French Tax Code.

Such tax regimes and tax rulings are subject to certain conditions being met and may be based on certain
declarations, representations and undertakings of PSA and FCA towards the French tax authorities.

If the French tax authorities consider that the applicable conditions are not fulfilled, the French tax
authorities could deny the benefit of such regimes and therefore refuse to grant the requested tax rulings.
They could also revoke in the future the rulings that have been granted if the relevant declarations,
representations and undertakings, as the case may be, were not correct or complied with.

A decision by the French tax authorities to refuse to grant the tax rulings or to revoke them in the future
would likely result in significant adverse tax consequences to Stellantis that could have a significant effect
on the Combined Group's results of operations or financial position and to the PSA Shareholders (resulting,
as the case may be, in tax consequences that differ from those described in the section entitled "Material
Tax Considerations"). If the requested tax rulings are denied, the main adverse tax consequences would
be that (i) the Merger would trigger the taxation in France of all unrealized capital gains at the level of
PSA; (i) the Merger would trigger the taxation in France of the capital gains derived by certain PSA
Shareholders upon the exchange of their PSA Ordinary Shares for Stellantis Common Shares; and (iii)
the tax losses carried forward currently available at the level of PSA would be forfeited.

It is intended that Stellantis will operate so as to be treated exclusively as a resident of the
Netherlands for tax purposes after the transfer of its tax residency to the Netherlands, but the tax
authorities of other jurisdictions may treat it as also being a resident of another jurisdiction for
tax purposes.

It is intended that Stellantis, which is incorporated in the Netherlands, will have its residency for tax
purposes (including, for the avoidance of doubt, withholding tax and tax treaty eligibility purposes)
exclusively in the Netherlands with effect from 01.00 Central European Time on the day immediately
following the day of the Effective Time, unless a later time or date is mutually agreed upon in writing by
FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. ("Governance Effective Time") (or such other date as FCA N.V. and Peugeot
S.A. may agree sufficiently in advance of the closing of the Merger) and hold permanent establishments
in France and in Italy.

Since Stellantis is incorporated under Dutch law, it is considered to be resident in the Netherlands for
Dutch corporate income tax and Dutch dividend withholding tax purposes. In addition, it is intended that,
with effect from the Governance Effective Time (or such other date as FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. may
agree), Stellantis will set up and maintain its management and organizational structure in such a manner
that it should not be regarded as a tax resident of any other jurisdiction (and in particular of France or
Italy) either for domestic law purposes or for the purposes of any applicable tax treaty (notably any
applicable tax treaty with the Netherlands) and should be deemed resident only in the Netherlands,
including for the purposes of the tax treaty dated March 16, 1973 (as amended) concluded between
France and the Netherlands (the "France-Netherlands Tax Treaty") and the tax treaty dated May 8, 1990
(as amended) concluded between Italy and the Netherlands.

However, the determination of Stellantis's tax residency primarily depends upon Stellantis's place of
effective management, which is a question of fact based on all circumstances. Because the determination
of Stellantis's residency is highly fact sensitive, no assurance can be given regarding the final
determination of Stellantis's tax residency.

If Stellantis were concurrently resident in the Netherlands and in another jurisdiction (applying the tax
residency rules of that jurisdiction), it may be treated as being tax resident in both jurisdictions, unless
such other jurisdiction has a double tax treaty with the Netherlands that includes either (i) a tie-breaker
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provision which allocates exclusive residence to one jurisdiction only or (i) a rule providing that the
residency needs to be determined based on a mutual agreement procedure and the jurisdictions involved
agree (or, as the case may be, are compelled to agree through arbitration) that Stellantis is resident in
one jurisdiction exclusively for treaty purposes. In the latter case, if no agreement is reached in respect
of the determination of the residency, the treaty may not apply and Stellantis could be treated as being
tax resident in both jurisdictions.

A failure to achieve or maintain exclusive tax residency in the Netherlands could result in significant
adverse tax consequences to Stellantis, its subsidiaries, Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special
Voting Shares and could result in tax consequences for the Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special
Voting Shares that differ from those described in the section entitled "Material Tax Considerations". The
impact of this risk would differ based on the views taken by each relevant tax authority and, in respect of
the taxation of Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special Voting Shares, on the specific situation of
each Stellantis Shareholder or each holder of Special Voting Shares.

Stellantis may not qualify for benefits under the tax treaties entered into between the Netherlands
and other countries.

It is intended that, with effect from the Governance Effective Time (or such other date as FCA N.V. and
Peugeot S.A. may agree sufficiently in advance of the closing of the Merger), Stellantis will operate in a
manner such that it will be eligible for benefits under the tax treaties entered into between the Netherlands
and other countries, notably France, Italy and the United States. However, the ability of Stellantis to qualify
for such benefits will depend upon (i) Stellantis being treated as a Dutch tax resident for purposes of the
relevant tax treaty, (ii) the fulfillment of the requirements contained in each applicable treaty as modified
by the Multilateral Convention to Implement Tax Treaty Related Measures to Prevent Base Erosion and
Profit Shifting (including, but not limited to, any principal purpose test clause) and applicable domestic
laws, (iii) the facts and circumstances surrounding Stellantis's operations and management and (iv) the
interpretation of the relevant tax authorities and courts.

The failure by Stellantis to qualify for benefits under the tax treaties entered into between the Netherlands
and other countries could result in significant adverse tax consequences to Stellantis, its subsidiaries,
Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special Voting Shares and could result in tax consequences for
Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special Voting Shares that differ from those described in the
section entitled "Material Tax Considerations".

The tax consequences of the Loyalty Voting Structure are uncertain.

No statutory, judicial or administrative authority directly discusses how the receipt, ownership, or
disposition of Special Voting Shares should be treated for French, Italian, U.K., or U.S. tax purposes, and
as a result, the tax consequences in those jurisdictions are uncertain.

In addition, the fair market value of the Special Voting Shares, which may be relevant to the tax
consequences, is a factual determination and is not governed by any guidance that directly addresses
such a situation. Because, among other things, the Special Voting Shares are not transferrable and a
shareholder will receive amounts in respect of the Special Voting Shares only if Stellantis is liquidated,
FCA and PSA believe and intend to take the position that the value of each Special Voting Share is
minimal. However, the relevant tax authorities could assert that the value of the Special Voting Shares as
determined by Stellantis is incorrect, which could result in significant adverse tax consequences to
shareholders holding Special Voting Shares.

The tax treatment of the Loyalty Voting Structure is unclear and shareholders are urged to consult their
tax advisors in respect of the consequences of acquiring, owning and disposing of Special Voting Shares.
See "Material Tax Considerations" for further discussion.

There can be no assurances that existing U.S. PSA Shareholders will not be required to recognize
again or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes upon the exchange of PSA Ordinary Shares for
Stellantis Common Shares in the Merger.

Although it is intended that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Merger will qualify as a
“reorganization"” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"),
there can be no assurances that the Merger will so qualify. The completion of the Merger, moreover, is
not conditioned on the Merger qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) or
upon the receipt of an opinion of counsel to that effect. In addition, neither PSA nor FCA intends to request
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a ruling from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") regarding the United States federal income tax
consequences of the Merger. Accordingly, even if PSA and FCA conclude that the Merger qualifies as a
"reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a), no assurance can be given that the IRS will not
challenge that conclusion or that a court would not sustain such a challenge.

If the Merger does not qualify as a "reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code,
existing U.S. shareholders will be required to recognize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes
upon the exchange of PSA Ordinary Shares for Stellantis Common Shares in the Merger. See the section
entitled "Material Tax Considerations—Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—U.S. Federal
Income Tax Consequences of the Merger" for further discussion of the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of the Merger.

There may be potential Passive Foreign Investment Company tax considerations for U.S.
Shareholders.

Stellantis would be a "passive foreign investment company” (a "PFIC") for U.S. federal income tax
purposes with respect to a U.S. shareholder (as defined in "Material Tax Considerations—Material U.S.
Federal Income Tax Considerations") if for any taxable year in which such U.S. shareholder held Stellantis
Common Shares, after the application of applicable "look-through rules" (i) 75% or more of Stellantis's
gross income for the taxable year consists of "passive income" (including dividends, interest, gains from
the sale or exchange of investment property and rents and royalties other than rents and royalties which
are received from unrelated parties in connection with the active conduct of a trade or business, as defined
in applicable Treasury Regulations), or (ii) at least 50% of its assets for the taxable year (averaged over
the year and determined based upon value) produce or are held for the production of "passive income".
U.S. persons who own shares of a PFIC are subject to a disadvantageous U.S. federal income tax regime
with respect to the income derived by the PFIC, the dividends they receive from the PFIC, and the gain,
if any, they derive from the sale or other disposition of their shares in the PFIC.

In particular, if Stellantis were treated as a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes for any taxable year
during which a U.S. shareholder owned the Stellantis Common Shares, then any gain realized by the U.S.
shareholder on the sale or other disposition of the Stellantis Common Shares would in general not be
treated as capital gain. Instead, a U.S. shareholder would be treated as if it had realized such gain ratably
over its holding period for the Stellantis Common Shares. Amounts allocated to the year of disposition
and to years before Stellantis became a PFIC would be taxed as ordinary income and amounts allocated
to each other taxable year would be taxed at the highest tax rate applicable to individuals or corporations,
as appropriate, in effect for each such year to which the gain was allocated, together with an interest
charge in respect of the tax attributable to each such year. Similar treatment may apply to certain "excess
distributions" as defined in the Code. In addition, if PSA was or had been in the past a PFIC, the exchange
of PSA Ordinary Shares for Stellantis Common Shares could be taxable to U.S. shareholders.

While FCA and PSA believe that Stellantis Common Shares are not stock of a PFIC for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, this conclusion is a factual determination made annually and thus may be subject
to change. Moreover, Stellantis may become a PFIC in future taxable years if there were to be changes
in Stellantis's assets, income or operations. In addition, because the determination of whether a foreign
corporation is a PFIC is primarily factual and because there is little administrative or judicial authority on
which to rely to make a determination, the IRS may take the position that Stellantis is a PFIC. See "Material
Tax Considerations—Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—U.S. Federal Income Tax
Consequences of Owning Stellantis Common Shares—PFIC Considerations" for a further discussion.

The IRS may not agree with the determination that Stellantis should not be treated as a domestic
corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and adverse tax consequences could result to
Stellantis and Stellantis Shareholders if the IRS were to successfully challenge such determination.

Section 7874 of the Code provides that, under certain circumstances, a non-U.S. corporation will be
treated as a U.S. "domestic" corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In particular, certain
mergers of foreign corporations with U.S. subsidiaries can, in certain circumstances, implicate these rules.

FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. do not believe that Stellantis should be treated as a U.S. "domestic"
corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However, the relevant law is not entirely clear, is subject
to detailed but relatively new regulations (the application of which is uncertain in various respects, and
whose interaction with general principles of U.S. tax law remains untested) and is subject to various other
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uncertainties. Therefore, the IRS could assert that Stellantis should be treated as a U.S. corporation (and,
therefore, a U.S. tax resident) for U.S. federal income tax purposes pursuant to Code Section 7874. In
addition, changes to Section 7874 of the Code or the U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder,
or interpretations thereof, could affect Stellantis's status as a foreign corporation. Such changes could
potentially have retroactive effect. If the IRS successfully challenged Stellantis's status as a foreign
corporation, significant adverse tax consequences would result for Stellantis and for certain of the
Stellantis Shareholders. For example, if Stellantis were treated as a domestic corporation in the U.S.,
Stellantis would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its worldwide income as if it were a U.S. domestic
corporation, and dividends Stellantis pays to non-U.S. shareholders would generally be subject to U.S.
federal withholding tax, among other adverse tax consequences. If Stellantis were treated as a U.S.
domestic corporation, such treatment could materially increase Stellantis's U.S. federal income tax liability.

The closing of the Merger is not conditioned on Stellantis not being treated as a domestic corporation for
U.S. federal income tax purposes or upon a receipt of an opinion of counsel to that effect. In addition,
neither FCA nor PSA intends to request a ruling from the IRS regarding the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of the Merger. Accordingly, while FCA and PSA do not believe that Stellantis will be treated
as a domestic corporation, no assurance can be given that the IRS will agree, or that if it challenges such
treatment, it will not succeed.

The existence of a permanent establishment in France for Stellantis is a question of fact based on
all the circumstances.

It is intended that Stellantis will maintain a permanent establishment in France to which the assets and
liabilities of PSA will be allocated for French tax purposes. However, no assurance can be given regarding
the existence of a permanent establishment in France and the allocation of each asset and liability to such
permanent establishment because such determination is highly fact sensitive and may vary in case of
future changes in the Combined Group's management and organizational structure.

The failure by Stellantis to maintain a permanent establishment in France and to allocate assets and
liabilities to such permanent establishment could result in significant adverse tax consequences to
Stellantis and its subsidiaries. If, at the time of the Merger, Stellantis were to fail to maintain a permanent
establishment in France or to allocate any of PSA's assets and liabilities to such establishment, the main
adverse tax consequences would be that (i) the Merger would trigger the taxation in France of all
unrealized capital gains at the level of PSA and (ii) the tax losses carried forward currently available at
the level of PSA would be forfeited. In the future, if Stellantis were to fail to maintain a permanent
establishment in France, the main adverse tax consequences would be that (i) all unrealized capital gains
at the level of the permanent establishment at that time would be taxed and (ii) the tax losses carried
forward that may still be available at that time would be forfeited. In addition, if, in the future, any of PSA's
assets and liabilities cease to be allocated to such establishment, this may result in (i) Stellantis being
taxed in France on unrealized capital gains or profits with respect to the assets and liabilities deemed
transferred outside of France and (ii) a portion of the tax losses carried forward that may still be available
at the time being forfeited.

Stellantis and its subsidiaries will be subject to tax laws and treaties of numerous jurisdictions.
Future changes to such laws or treaties could adversely affect Stellantis and its subsidiaries and
Stellantis Shareholders and holders of Special Voting Shares. In addition, the interpretation of
these laws and treaties is subject to challenge by the relevant governmental authorities.

Stellantis and its subsidiaries will be subject to tax laws, regulations and treaties in the Netherlands,
France, Italy, the United States and the numerous other jurisdictions in which Stellantis and its affiliates
will operate. These laws, regulations and treaties could change on a prospective or retroactive basis, and
any such change could adversely affect Stellantis and its subsidiaries and Stellantis Shareholders and
holders of Special Voting Shares.

Furthermore, these laws, regulations and treaties are inherently complex and Stellantis and its
subsidiaries will be obligated to make judgments and interpretations about the application of these laws,
regulations and treaties to Stellantis and its subsidiaries and their operations and businesses. The
interpretation and application of these laws, regulations and treaties could differ from that of the relevant
governmental authority, which could result in administrative or judicial procedures, actions or sanctions,
which could be material.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

General

As part of the Merger, new FCA Common Shares will be issued to PSA Shareholders, which will need to
be admitted to trading on the MTA. In addition, FCA N.V. will also apply for listing and admission to trading
of all FCA Common Shares on Euronext Paris, on which the PSA Ordinary Shares are currently listed
(together referred to as the Listing). This Prospectus does not constitute an offer of securities by, or on
behalf of, FCA N.V. or anyone else, and has been prepared in connection with the Listing.

The content of this Prospectus is not to be considered or interpreted as legal, financial or tax advice. It
should not be considered as a recommendation by any of FCA N.V., Peugeot S.A., the members of the
board of directors of FCA N.V. (the "FCA Board"), the members of the management board of Peugeot
S.A. (the "PSA Management Board"), the members of the supervisory board of Peugeot S.A. (the "PSA
Supervisory Board") or any of their respective representatives that any recipient of this Prospectus
should subscribe for or acquire any Stellantis Common Shares. Prior to making any decision whether to
acquire Stellantis Common Shares, prospective investors should read this Prospectus. Investors should
ensure that they read the whole of this Prospectus and not just rely on key information or information
summarized within it. Each prospective investor should consult his or her own stockbroker, bank manager,
lawyer, auditor or other financial, legal or tax advisers before making any investment decision with regard
to the Stellantis Common Shares, to among other things consider such investment decision in light of his
or her personal circumstances. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their
own examination and analysis of FCA, PSA and the Combined Group and the Stellantis Common Shares,
including the merits and risks involved.

FCA N.V. does not undertake to update this Prospectus, unless required pursuant to article 23 of the
Prospectus Regulation, and therefore potential investors should not assume that the information in this
Prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the Latest Practicable Date or the date of this Prospectus,
as applicable. No person is or has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation
in connection with the Listing, other than as contained in this Prospectus, and, if given or made, any other
such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by FCA N.V.,
Peugeot S.A., the members of the FCA Board, the members of the PSA Management Board, the members
of the PSA Supervisory Board or any of their respective affiliates or representatives. The delivery of this
Prospectus at any time after the date hereof will not, under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in FCA's or PSA's affairs since the date hereof or that the information set forth
in this Prospectus is correct as of any time since its date.

No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made or given by Société Générale, the listing agent
with respect to the listing and admission to trading of the FCA Common Shares on Euronext Paris (the
"Listing Agent") or any of its affiliates or any of its respective directors, officers or employees or any
other person, as to the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information or opinions contained in this
Prospectus, or incorporated by reference herein, and nothing in this Prospectus, or incorporated by
reference herein, is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation by the Listing Agent or any of
its respective affiliates or representatives as to the past or future. The Listing Agent accepts no
responsibility whatsoever for the contents of this Prospectus or for any other statements made or
purported to be made by either itself or on its behalf in connection with the Company, the Listing or the
Stellantis Common Shares. Accordingly, the Listing Agent disclaims, to the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, all and any liability, whether arising in tort or contract or which they might otherwise be
found to have in respect of this Prospectus and/or any such statement.

The distribution of this Prospectus may, in certain jurisdictions, be restricted by law, and this Prospectus
may not be used for the purpose of, or in connection with, any offer or solicitation by anyone in any
jurisdiction in. FCA N.V. requires persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes to inform
themselves of and observe all such restrictions. None of FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A. or any of their
respective affiliates or representatives accepts any legal responsibility for any violation by any person of
any such restrictions.

Responsibility Statement

FCA N.V. accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of FCAN.V.'s
knowledge, the information contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and this
Prospectus makes no omission likely to affect its import. In addition, Peugeot S.A. accepts responsibility
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for the information contained in the following sections of this Prospectus: "The Merger—PSA's Reasons
for the Merger", "The Merger—Approval of the Merger by the Supervisory Board of PSA", "The PSA
Shareholder Meeting", "Capitalization and Indebtedness" only with respect to the information contained
in the column "PSA-Actual’, "PSA ", "PSA Operating and Financial Review", "Major Shareholders of FCA
and PSA and Related Party Transactions—Major Shareholders of Peugeot S.A.", "Major Shareholders of
FCA and PSA and Related Party Transactions—Related Party Transactions—PSA", "Unaudited Pro
Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information, only with respect to the column "PSA Historical
Condensed" and the column "Faurecia Distribution", "Additional Information—Material Investments—
PSA", "Additional Information—Material Contracts—PSA", "Additional Information—No Significant
Change—PSA", "Additional Information—Legal and Arbitration Proceedings—PSA" "Additional
Information—Material Contracts—No significant change in number of employees—PSA", as well as for
the PSA Consolidated Financial Statements (as defined below), the PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial
Information (as defined below) and the PSA Q3 2020 Revenue Update (as defined below), and any
information in the summary of this Prospectus which is derived from any of these sections. To the best of
Peugeot S.A.'s knowledge, the information contained in these sections of this Prospectus is in accordance
with the facts and makes no omission likely to affect its import.

Presentation of Financial and Other Information
IFRS information
FCA

This Prospectus incorporates by reference the audited consolidated financial statements (including the
notes thereto) of FCA as at December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31,
2019, 2018 and 2017, contained in FCA N.V.'s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2019 (the
"FCA 2019 Annual Report "), FCA N.V.'s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2018 (the "FCA
2018 Annual Report ") and FCA N.V.'s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2017 (the "FCA
2017 Annual Report"), respectively, which have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"), as well as IFRS as adopted by the European Union and in accordance with Title 9 of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code. There is no effect on these consolidated financial statements resulting from
differences between IFRS as issued by the IASB and IFRS as adopted by the European Union. The
audited consolidated financial statements of FCA together with the notes thereto are referred to as the
"FCA Consolidated Financial Statements". The FCA Consolidated Financial Statements should be read
in conjunction with the auditor's report thereon. The FCA Consolidated Financial Statements have been
audited by Ernst & Young Accountants LLP, independent auditors.

This Prospectus also incorporates by reference the semi-annual condensed consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto of FCA as of and for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2020 ("FCA
2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information"), included in FCA's semi-annual report as of and for the three-
and six months ended June 30, 2020 (the "FCA 2020 Semi-Annual Report") and as of and for the three-
and nine-months ended September 30, 2020 ("FCA Q3 2020 Financial Information"”, together the "FCA
Interim Financial Information"), included in FCA's interim report as of and for the three- and nine months
ended September 30, 2020 (the "FCA Q3 2020 Interim Report"). The FCA Interim Financial Information
has been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard ("IAS") 34. The FCA Interim
Financial Information has not been audited or reviewed.

PSA

This Prospectus also incorporates by reference the audited consolidated financial statements of PSA as
of and for the financial years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and the free translation of the
associated audit reports, contained in the English version of the 2019 Document d'enregistrement
universel of PSA which was filed with the AMF under number D.20-0327 on April 21, 2020 ("PSA 2019
Universal Registration Document"), the English version of the 2018 Document de Référence of PSA
which was filed with the AMF under number D. 19-0201 on March 26, 2019 ("PSA 2018 Registration
Document") and the English version of the 2017 Document de Référence of PSA which was filed with
the AMF under number D. 18-0196 on March 28, 2018 ("PSA 2017 Registration Document"),
respectively. The audited consolidated financial statements of PSA as of and for the financial years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union. The audited consolidated financial statements of PSA as of and for the financial year ended
December 31, 2019 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union and
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in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB. There is no effect on these consolidated financial
statements resulting from differences between IFRS as issued by the IASB and IFRS as adopted by the
European Union. The audited consolidated financial statements of PSA and the notes to the audited
consolidated financial statements of PSA are collectively referred to as the "PSA Consolidated Financial
Statements”. The PSA Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes thereto and the free English translation of the auditor's report thereon. The PSA
Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by Ernst & Young et Autres and Mazars,
independent auditors.

The independent auditors' report to the 2018 consolidated financial statements of PSA includes the
following emphasis of matter: "We draw attention to Note 1.2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the impact of the first-time application of standards of IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts
with customers" and IFRS 9 "Financial instruments". Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter."

The independent auditors' report to the 2019 consolidated financial statements of PSA includes the
following emphasis of matter: "We draw attention to Notes 2.2 and 2.3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which describe the impacts of first-time application of IFRS 16 "Leases". Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter."

This Prospectus also incorporates by reference the English version of the interim consolidated financial
statements of PSA as of and for the six-months ended June 30, 2020 ("PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial
Information"), which has been reviewed in accordance with ISA (ISRE 2410) and of the unaudited and
un-reviewed revenue update as of and for the three- and nine-month period ended September 30, 2020
as set forth in the English version of the press release issued by PSA on October 28, 2020 ("PSA Q3
2020 Revenue Update"). The PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes thereto. The PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information has been
prepared in accordance with IAS 34. The PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information and the PSA Q3
2020 Revenue Update have not been audited.

Non-IFRS financial measures

Certain parts of this Prospectus contain non-IFRS financial measures and ratios, which are not recognized
measures of financial performance or liquidity under IFRS.

The non-IFRS financial measures presented are not measures of financial performance under IFRS, but
measures used by management to monitor the underlying performance of FCA's and PSA's business and
operations and, accordingly, they have not been audited or reviewed. Further, they may not be indicative
of FCA's or PSA's historical operating results, nor are such measures meant to be predictive of FCA's,
PSA's or the Combined Group's future results. These non-IFRS measures are presented in this
Prospectus because management considers them an important supplemental measure of FCA's and
PSA's performance and believes that they and similar measures are widely used in the industry in which
FCA and PSA operate as a means of evaluating a company's operating performance and liquidity.

However, not all companies calculate non-IFRS financial measures in the same manner or on a consistent
basis. As a result, these measures and ratios may not be comparable to measures used by other
companies under the same or similar names. Accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on the
non-IFRS financial measures contained in this Prospectus and they should not be considered as a
substitute for operating profit, profit for the year, cash flow or other financial measures computed in
accordance with IFRS.

The presentation of the non-IFRS measures in this Prospectus should not be construed as an implication
that FCA's, PSA's or the Combined Group's future results will be unaffected by exceptional or non-
recurring items.

FCA

FCA believes that the following non-GAAP financial measures provide useful and relevant information
regarding its operating results and enhance the overall ability to assess its financial performance. They
provide FCA with comparable measures which facilitate management's ability to identify operational
trends, as well as make decisions regarding future spending, resource allocations and other operational
decisions. These and similar measures are widely used in the industry in which FCA operates, however,
these financial measures may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies
and are not intended to be substitutes for measures of financial performance as prepared in accordance
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with IFRS as issued by the IASB as well as IFRS adopted by the European Union. The purpose of the
non-IFRS financial measures outlined below is primarily to provide investors with relevant and useful
information on FCA's financial performance.

FCA's non-IFRS financial measures are defined as follows:

Adjusted EBIT: excludes certain adjustments from Net profit from continuing operations including
gains/(losses) on the disposal of investments, restructuring, impairments, asset write-offs and
unusual income/(expenses) that are considered rare or discrete events that are infrequent in
nature, and also excludes Net financial expenses and Tax expense/(benefit).

Adjusted EBIT is used for internal reporting to assess performance and as part of FCA's
forecasting, budgeting and decision making processes as it provides additional transparency to
FCA's core operations. FCA believes this non-GAAP measure is useful because it excludes items
that FCA does not believe are indicative of its ongoing operating performance and allows
management to view operating trends, perform analytical comparisons and benchmark
performance between periods and among FCA's segments. FCA also believes that Adjusted EBIT
is useful for analysts and investors to understand how management assesses its ongoing
operating performance on a consistent basis. In addition, Adjusted EBIT is one of the metrics
used in the determination of the annual performance bonus and the achievement of certain
performance objectives established under the terms of the 2019-2021 equity incentive plan for
FCA's CEO and other eligible employees, including members of its Group Executive Council.

Adjusted net profit: is calculated as Net profit from continuing operations excluding post-tax
impacts of the same items excluded from Adjusted EBIT, as well as financial income/(expenses)
and tax income/(expenses) considered rare or discrete events that are infrequent in nature.

FCA believes this non-GAAP measure is useful because it also excludes items that FCA does not
believe are indicative of its ongoing operating performance and provides investors with a more
meaningful comparison of FCA's ongoing operating performance. FCA also believes that Adjusted
net profit is useful for analysts and investors to understand how management assesses its
ongoing operating performance on a consistent basis. In addition, Adjusted net profit is one of the
metrics used in the determination of the annual performance bonus for FCA's CEO and other
eligible employees, including members of its Group Executive Council.

Adjusted diluted EPS: is calculated by adjusting Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations for the impact per share of the same items excluded from Adjusted net profit.

FCA believes this non-GAAP measure is useful because it also excludes items that FCA does not
believe are indicative of its ongoing operating performance and provides investors with a more
meaningful comparison of FCA's ongoing quality of earnings. Its purpose is to provide investors
relevant and useful information in this respect.

Industrial free cash flows: is FCA's key cash flow metric, and is calculated as Cash flows from
operating activities less: cash flows from operating activities from discontinued operations; cash
flows from operating activities related to financial services, net of eliminations; investments in
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for industrial activities; adjusted for net
intercompany payments between continuing operations and discontinued operations; and
adjusted for discretionary pension contributions in excess of those required by the pension plans,
net of tax. The timing of Industrial free cash flows may be affected by the timing of monetization
of receivables and the payment of accounts payable, as well as changes in other components of
working capital, which can vary from period to period due to, among other things, cash
management initiatives and other factors, some of which may be outside of FCA's control.

FCA believes this non-GAAP measure is useful because it provides investors with relevant
information on how management assesses and measures its cash flows from ongoing operating
activities and as such is FCA's key cash flow metric. Its purpose is to provide both management
and investors relevant and useful information about FCA's cash generation capacity and
performance.

Constant Currency Information: the discussion of FCA's results includes information about the
results at CER, which is calculated by applying the prior year average exchange rates to translate
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current financial data expressed in local currency in which the relevant financial statements are
denominated.

Although FCA does not believe that this non-GAAP measure is a substitute for GAAP measures,
FCA believes that results excluding the effect of currency fluctuations provide additional useful
information to investors regarding the operating performance and trends in its business on a local
currency basis. The purpose of this non-GAAP measure is to provide such useful formation to
investors.

For a further description of these measures, see the section Non-GAAP Financial Measures and for the
tables presenting the non-IFRS financial measures of FCA and a reconciliation of the non-IFRS measures
to the mostly directly comparable measures, see the section "Financial Overview", both of which are in
the FCA 2019 Annual Report incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

In the FCA 2018 Annual Report, FCA reported on the non-IFRS financial measures Net cash(debt) and
Net Industrial Cash (debt). FCA discontinued reporting on these measures after 2018. Historically, due to
FCA's leveraged position, FCA used Net industrial cash/(debt) as a key metric to focus FCA's team on
the fundamental task of de-leveraging the balance sheet. As FCA's balance sheet de-leveraging was
substantially completed in 2018, FCA has substituted this key metric with a cash flow metric going forward,
specifically Industrial free cash flows.

PSA's non-IFRS financial measures are defined as follows:

. Adjusted operating income (loss): Operating income excluding certain adjustments comprising
restructuring costs, impairment of cash-generating units (CGUs) and other operating income
(expense), which are considered rare or discrete events and are infrequent in nature.

o Capital expenditure: the sum of (i) investments in property, plant and equipment and (ii)
investments in intangible assets.

For a table presenting the non-IFRS financial measure Adjusted operating income (loss) of PSA and a
reconciliation of Adjusted operating income (loss) to the most directly comparable measure, see "PSA
Operating and Financial Review—Adjusted operating income (loss)—Reconciliation".

For a table presenting the non-IFRS financial measure capital expenditure of PSA and a reconciliation of
capital expenditure to the most directly comparable measure, see "PSA Operating and Financial Review—
Capital expenditure—Reconciliation".

Pro forma financial information

In this Prospectus, any reference to "pro forma" financial information is to information which has been
extracted without material adjustment from the unaudited financial information contained in the section of
this Prospectus entitled "Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information”. The
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information (as defined in the section "Unaudited
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information”) is for illustrative purposes only. Because of its
nature, the pro forma financial information addresses a hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not
represent the actual financial position or results of FCA or PSA or what the actual financial position or
results of the Combined Group would have been if the Merger had been completed on the dates indicated.

Future results of operations of the Combined Group may differ materially from those presented in the
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information due to various factors.

Rounding and negative amounts

Certain figures in this Prospectus, including financial data, have been rounded. Accordingly, figures shown
for the same category presented in different tables may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in certain
tables may not be an exact arithmetic aggregation of the figures which precede them.

In preparing the FCA Interim Financial Information, the FCA Consolidated Financial Statements, the PSA
2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information and PSA Consolidated Financial Statements, most numerical
figures are presented in millions of euros. For the convenience of the reader of this Prospectus, certain
numerical figures in this Prospectus are rounded to the nearest one million. As a result of this rounding,
certain numerical figures presented herein may vary slightly from the corresponding numerical figures
presented in the FCA Interim Financial Information, the FCA Consolidated Financial Statements, the PSA
2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information and the PSA Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The percentages (as a percentage of revenues or costs and period-on-period percentage changes)
presented in the textual financial disclosure in this Prospectus are derived directly from the financial
information contained in the FCA Interim Financial Information, the FCA Consolidated Financial
Statements, the PSA 2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information and the PSA Consolidated Financial
Statements. Such percentages may be computed using the numerical figures expressed in thousands of
euros in the FCA Interim Financial Information, the FCA Consolidated Financial Statements, the PSA
2020 Semi-Annual Financial Information and the PSA Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore,
such percentages are not calculated on the basis of the financial information in the textual disclosure that
has been subjected to rounding adjustments in this Prospectus.

In tables, negative amounts are shown between parenthesis. Otherwise, negative amounts may also be
shown by "-" or "negative" before the amount.

Currency

All references in this Prospectus to "euro", "EUR" or "€" are to the currency issued by the ECB. All
references to "US dollars", "US$", "USD" or "$" are to the lawful currency of the United States of America.

Exchange rates

FCA and PSA publish their historical consolidated financial statements in euros. The table below sets
forth, for the periods and dates indicated, period average (the average of the exchange rates on the last
business day of each month for annual averages and the average of the exchange rates on each business
day during the relevant period for monthly averages), high, low and period end exchange rates between
the euro and the US dollar as published by the European Central Bank. This exchange rate information
is solely provided for convenience purposes. The exchange rate of the euro on the Latest Practicable
Date was USD 1.1815 = EUR 1.00.

Date Euro US dollar us dollar UsS dollar US dollar
(High)® (Low)® (Average) (Period end)®

The year ended December

31, 2017 1.00 1.206 1.039 1.137@ 1.199

The year ended December

31, 2018 1.00 1.249 1.126 1.179® 1.145

The year ended December

31, 2019 1.00 1.154 1.089 1.119@ 1.123

The six-month period ended

30 June 2020 1.00 1.146 1.071 1.102® 1.120

The three-month period

September 30, 2020 1.00 1.199 1.120 1.169® 1.171

(1) Based on daily closing rate.
(2) Based on the average of closing month-end rates only.
(3) Based on the daily average in this period.

Accounting Treatment

The Merger will be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with IFRS 3,
Business Combinations ("IFRS 3"), which requires the identification of the acquirer and the acquiree for
accounting purposes. Based on the assessment of the indicators under IFRS 3 and consideration of all
pertinent facts and circumstances, FCA's and PSA's management determined that PSA is the acquirer
for accounting purposes and as such, the Merger is accounted for as a reverse acquisition. See "The
Merger—Accounting Treatment".

Share Ownership and Voting Power

Share ownership and voting power information in respect of FCA Shareholders included in this Prospectus
is based on the information in FCA N.V.'s shareholder register, regulatory filings with the AFM and the
SEC and other sources available to FCA as of the date indicated. See "Major Shareholders of FCA and
PSA and Related Party Transactions—Major Shareholders of FCA N.V."

Market and Industry Information

In this Prospectus, industry and market data is included, incorporated by reference or referred to, including
market share, ranking and other data, derived from or based upon a variety of official, non-official and
internal sources, such as internal surveys and management estimates, market research, publicly available
information and industry publications. Market share, ranking and other data contained or incorporated by
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reference in this Prospectus may also be based on FCA N.V.'s or Peugeot S.A.'s good faith estimates,
knowledge and experience and such other sources as may be available. Market share data may change
and cannot always be verified with complete certainty due to limits on the availability and reliability of raw
data, the voluntary nature of the data-gathering process, different methods used by different sources to
collect, assemble, analyze or compute market data, including different definitions of vehicle segments and
descriptions and other limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey of market shares or
size. Industry publications and surveys and forecasts generally state that the information contained in
such publications, surveys and forecasts has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but
there can be no assurance as to the accuracy or completeness of the included information. Although FCA
N.V. and Peugeot S.A., as the case may be, believe that this information is reliable, the data from third-
party sources has not been independently verified by FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A.. In addition, FCA N.V.
and Peugeot S.A. typically estimate market share for automobiles and commercial vehicles based on
registration data.

In markets where registration data are not available, market share is calculated based on estimates
relating to sales to final customers. Such data may differ from data relating to shipments to dealers and
distributors. While FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. believe internal estimates with respect to the industry are
reliable, internal company surveys and management estimates have not been verified by an independent
expert, and it cannot be guaranteed that a third party using different methods to assemble, analyze or
compute market data would obtain or generate the same result. The market share data presented or
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus represents the best estimates available from the sources
indicated as of the date of this Prospectus or such incorporated document but, in particular as they relate
to market share and future expectations, involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based
on various factors, including those discussed in the section "Risk Factors" of this Prospectus.

Industry publications generally state that their information is obtained from sources believed to be reliable
but that the accuracy and completeness of such information is not guaranteed and that the projections
they contain are based on a number of significant assumptions. Where third-party information has been
sourced in this Prospectus, the source of such information has been identified.

Third-party reports and opinions referenced in this Prospectus include an opinion by Goldman Sachs
International ("Goldman Sachs"), an opinion by d'Angelin & Co Ltd. ("d'Angelin") and an opinion by
Perella Weinberg UK Limited ("Perella Weinberg"). Goldman Sachs' business address is Plumtree Court,
25 Shoe Lane, London EC4A 4AU. For a description of Goldman Sachs' qualifications and, to the best of
FCA N.V.'s knowledge, its interest in FCA, PSA or the Combined Group, see "The Merger—Opinions of
the Financial Advisors to the Board of Directors of FCA—Goldman Sachs International—Miscellaneous”.
The Goldman Sachs opinion was produced at the request of FCA N.V. and was referenced and included
in this Prospectus with the consent of Goldman Sachs. d'Angelin's business address is 1 Love Ln, London
EC2V 7JN, United Kingdom. For a description of d'Angelin's qualifications and, to the best of FCA N.V.'s
knowledge, its interest in FCA, PSA or the Combined Group, see "The Merger—Opinions of the Financial
Advisors to the Board of Directors of FCA—d'Angelin & Co.—Miscellaneous". The d'Angelin opinion was
produced at the request of FCA N.V. and was referenced and included in this Prospectus with the consent
of d'Angelin. Perella Weinberg's business address is 20 Grafton Street, London W1S 4DZ, United
Kingdom. The description and full text of Perella Weinberg's written opinion, dated 14 September, 2020,
which sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered
and qualifications and limitations of the review undertaken by Perella Weinberg, is included in this
Prospectus, see "The Merger—Opinion of the Financial Advisor to the PSA Supervisory Board—Perella
Weinberg UK Limited" and "Index to the Fairness Opinions". Holders of PSA Ordinary Shares are urged
to read Perella Weinberg's opinion carefully and in its entirety. Perella Weinberg's opinion was addressed
to the PSA Supervisory Board for information and assistance in connection with, and for the the purposes
of its evaluation of the Merger. Perella Weinberg's opinion was not intended to be and does not constitute
a recommendation to any holder of PSA Ordinary Shares or FCA Common Shares as to how such holders
should vote or otherwise act with respect to the Merger or any other matter.

The information in this Prospectus that has been sourced from third parties has been accurately
reproduced with reference to these sources in the relevant paragraphs and, as far as FCA N.V. and
Peugeot S.A. are aware and able to ascertain from the information published by that third party, no facts
have been omitted that would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.
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In this Prospectus, FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. make certain statements regarding the characteristics of
the automotive industry as well as its competitive and market position, based on market data and industry
statistics. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. believe such market data and industry statistics to be true, but FCA
N.V. and Peugeot S.A. have not independently verified the information. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A.
cannot guarantee that a third party using different methods to assemble, analyze or compute market data
or public disclosure from competitors would obtain or generate the same results. In addition, FCA's and
PSA's competitors may define their markets and their own relative positions in these markets differently
than FCA or PSA does and may also define various components of their business and operating results
in a manner which makes such figures non-comparable with FCA's or PSA's.

Supplements

If a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included in
this Prospectus which may affect the assessment of the Stellantis Common Shares, arises or is noted
between the date of this Prospectus and the Listing, a supplement to this Prospectus is required. Such a
supplement will be subject to approval by the AFM in accordance with article 23 of the Prospectus
Regulation and will be made public in accordance with the relevant provisions under the Prospectus
Regulation. The summary shall also be supplemented, if necessary, to take into account the new
information included in the supplement. In case a significant new factor, material mistake or material
inaccuracy relating to the information included in this Prospectus which may affect the assessment of the
Stellantis Common Shares arises after the Listing, FCA N.V. will not supplement this Prospectus, unless
it intends to make use of this Prospectus for an offering or listing other than the Listing.

Statements contained in any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference
therein) shall, to the extent applicable, be deemed to modify or supersede statements contained in this
Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. Any statement so
modified or superseded shall, except as so modified or superseded, no longer constitute a part of this
Prospectus.

Notice to Investors

Investors should be aware that the distribution of this Prospectus, delivery, transfer, exercise, purchase
of, subscription for, or trade in the Stellantis Common Shares may, in certain jurisdictions be subject to
specific regulations or restrictions. Persons in possession of this Prospectus are required to inform
themselves about, and to observe, any such regulations or restrictions which may apply in their jurisdiction
and to observe them. Any failure to comply with these regulations or restrictions may constitute a violation
of the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

No action has been or will be taken to permit a public offer or sale of the Stellantis Common Shares, or
the possession or distribution of this Prospectus or any other material in relation to the Listing, in any
jurisdiction

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United States

FCA N.V. has filed the Registration Statement with the SEC. On or about the date of this Prospectus, the
Registration Statement will be declared effective by the SEC. The Registration Statement will be available
on FCA's website (www.fcagroup.com).

Neither this Prospectus nor the prospectus included in the Registration Statement constitute an offer to
buy or sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell, any securities, or a solicitation of a proxy, in any
jurisdiction to or from any person to whom it is unlawful to make any such offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction.

Enforcement of Civil Liabilities

The ability of shareholders in certain countries other than the Netherlands, in particular in the United
States, to bring an action against Stellantis may be limited under law. FCA N.V. is and Stellantis will be a
naamloze vennootschap, or N.V., organized under the laws of the Netherlands with its corporate seat in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands. A majority of its directors and senior management, and some of the experts
named in this Prospectus, currently reside outside the United States. All or a substantial portion of its
assets and the assets of these individuals are located outside the United States. As a result, it may not
be possible to effect service of process within the United States upon non-U.S. resident directors or upon
FCA N.V. or Stellantis, or it may be difficult to enforce judgments obtained in U.S. courts based on the
civil liability provisions of the U.S. securities laws against FCA N.V. or Stellantis.
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FCA N.V. or Stellantis may comply with a U.S. judgment voluntarily, but, if it were not to do so, application
would have to be made to a Dutch, Italian, French or English court for an original judgment. Consequently,
it could prove difficult to enforce civil liabilities solely based on U.S. securities law in the Netherlands, Italy,
France or England. In addition, awards of punitive damages in actions brought in the United States or
elsewhere may not be enforceable in the Netherlands, Italy, France or England.

The Netherlands

A judgment in a civil or commercial matter rendered by a U.S. court cannot be enforced in the Netherlands.
However, if a person has obtained a final judgment without appeal in such a matter rendered by a U.S.
court which is enforceable in the U.S., the Dutch court will generally recognize and give effect to the
judgment insofar as it finds that:

. the jurisdiction of the U.S. court has been based on an internationally accepted ground;

. proper legal procedures have been observed;

. the final judgment does not contravene Dutch public policy; and

o the final judgment is not irreconcilable with a judgment of a Dutch court or an earlier judgment of

a foreign court that is capable of being recognized in the Netherlands.

If a Dutch court upholds and regards as conclusive evidence the final judgment, that court generally will
grant the same judgment without litigating again on the merits.

Shareholders may originate actions in the Netherlands based upon applicable Dutch laws.

In the event that a third party is liable to FCA N.V. or Stellantis, only FCA N.V. or Stellantis itself can bring
civil action against that party. The individual shareholders do not have the right to bring an action on
behalf of FCA N.V. or Stellantis. Only in the event that the cause for the liability of a third party to FCA
N.V. or Stellantis also constitutes a tortious act directly against a shareholder does that shareholder have
an individual right of action against such third party in its own name. The Dutch Civil Code does provide
for the possibility to initiate such actions collectively. A foundation or an association whose objective is to
protect the rights of a group of persons having similar interests can institute a collective action. The
collective action itself cannot result in an order for payment of monetary damages but may only result in
a declaratory judgment (verklaring voor recht). In order to obtain compensation for damages, the
foundation or association and the defendant may reach — often on the basis of such declaratory judgment
— a settlement. A Dutch court may declare the settlement agreement binding upon all the injured parties
with an opt-out choice for an individual injured party. An individual injured party may also itself institute a
civil claim for damages.

Italy

Judgments of U.S. courts may be enforceable in Italy. Final enforceable and conclusive judgments
rendered by U.S. courts, even if obtained by default, may not require retrial and will be enforceable in
Italy, provided that pursuant to article 64 of Italian Law No. 218 of May 31, 1995 (Riforma del sistema
italiano di diritto internazionale privato), the following conditions are met:

o the U.S. court which rendered the final judgment had jurisdiction according to Italian law principles
of jurisdiction;

o the relevant summons and complaint was appropriately served on the defendants in accordance
with U.S. law and during the proceeding the essential rights of the defendants have not been
violated;

o the parties to the proceeding appeared before the court in accordance with U.S. law or, in the
event of non-appearance by a party, the U.S. court ruled on such non-appearance in accordance
with U.S. law;

. the judgment is final (res iudicata) in accordance with U.S. law;

. there is no conflicting final judgment previously rendered by an Italian court;

. there is no action pending in Italy among the same parties and arising from the same facts and

circumstances which commenced prior to the action in the United States; and

. the provisions of such judgment would not violate Italian public policy.
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Italian courts may have jurisdiction on actions based on non-Italian law depending on the nature of the
claims brought by the relevant shareholder and subject to the requirements set forth under the Regulation
(EU) No 1215/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of December 12, 2012 on jurisdiction
and the recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters.

Italian shareholders should seek advice from their own counsel based on the applicable circumstances.
England

The United States and England currently do not have a treaty providing for the reciprocal recognition and
enforcement of judgments (other than arbitration awards) in civil and commercial matters. Consequently,
a final judgment for payment rendered by any federal or state court in the United States based on civil
liability, whether or not predicated solely upon U.S. federal securities laws, would not automatically be
enforceable in England. In order to enforce any U.S. judgment in England, proceedings must be initiated
by way of common law action before a court of competent jurisdiction in England. In a common law action,
an English court generally will not reinvestigate the merits of the original matter decided by a U.S. court
and may order summary judgment on the basis that there is no arguable defense to the claim for payment.
The entry of an enforcement order by an English court is conditional, among other things, upon the
following:

o the U.S. court having had jurisdiction over the original proceeding according to English conflict of
laws principles;

o the judgment being final and conclusive on the merits and being for a debt or a definite sum of
money;

o the judgment not contravening English public policy;

. the judgment being not for a sum payable in respect of taxes or other charges of a like nature, or

in respect of a fine or penalty;

. the judgment is not arrived at by doubling, trebling or otherwise multiplying a sum assessed as
compensation for the loss or damage sustained; and

. the judgment having not been obtained by fraud or in breach of the principles of natural justice.

Enforcement proceedings would normally be required to be commenced within six years of the date of
the judgment. In addition, it is questionable whether an English court would accept jurisdiction and impose
civil liability if proceedings were commenced in England predicated solely upon U.S. federal securities
law.

France

A final judgment for the payment of money rendered by any U.S. federal or state court of competent
jurisdiction based on civil liability, whether or not predicated solely upon the U.S. federal securities laws,
would be recognized and enforced in France, provided that a French judge considers that this judgment
meets the French legal requirements applicable to the recognition and the enforcement of foreign
judgments. In particular, a French court would recognize and grant enforcement of a foreign judgment
without a review of the merits of the underlying claim thereby adjudicated, only if (1) that judgment is
enforceable in the jurisdiction of the U.S. court which rendered it, (2) that judgment was rendered by a
court having "indirect" jurisdiction over the matter, as this concept is defined by French courts in the
context of enforcement of foreign judgments, meaning that (a) the dispute was clearly connected to the
U.S., (b) the choice of the U.S. court was not fraudulent and (c) the French courts did not have exclusive
jurisdiction over the matter, and (3) that judgment is not (a) contrary to French international public policy
(ordre public international) as applicable in the context of enforcement of foreign judgments or (b) tainted
by fraud. A foreign judgment may be found to be contrary to French international public policy in certain
situations, for instance, where such foreign judgment is incompatible with a prior judgment relating to the
same or similar subject matter rendered by a French court or a foreign court, provided that such prior
judgment has been recognized in France. Additionally, awards of punitive damages in actions brought in
the United States or elsewhere may be unenforceable in France.

Based on the foregoing, there can be no assurance that U.S. investors will be able to enforce in France
any judgments obtained in U.S. courts, including judgments under the U.S. federal securities laws, against
FCA N.V. or Stellantis. In addition, there may be doubt as to whether a French court would (i) impose civil
liability on FCA N.V. or Stellantis in an original action predicated solely upon the U.S. federal securities
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laws brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in France or (ii) have the requisite jurisdiction to grant
the remedies sought in such action.

Actions in the United States under the U.S. federal securities laws could also be affected under certain
circumstances by French Law No. 68-678 of July 26, 1968, relating to the communication of documents
and information of an economic, commercial, industrial, financial or technical nature to foreign persons or
entities, as amended from time to time, which may preclude or restrict the obtaining of evidence in France
or from French persons in connection with such actions. Similarly, European and French data protection
regulations (including Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of April
27, 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the
free movement of such data and French Law No. 78-17 of January 6, 1978, as amended from time to
time) can limit under certain circumstances the obtaining of evidence in France or from French persons
in connection with a judicial or administrative U.S. action.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that reflect FCA N.V.'s or Peugeot S.A.'s intentions,
beliefs or current expectations and projections about FCA's, PSA's and/or the Combined Group's future
results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, performance, prospects, anticipated growth, strategies
and opportunities and the markets in which FCA, PSA and the Combined Group operate. Forward-looking
statements involve all matters that are not historical facts. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. have tried to identify

forward-looking statements by using words as "may", "will", "expect", "could", "should", "intend", "aim",

"estimate", "anticipate”, "believe", "remain"”, "on track", "design", "target", "objective", "goal", "forecast",
"projection”, "outlook", "prospects”, "plan”, "can", "would", "future”, "possible", "potential”, "predict" and
similar expressions or negatives thereof or other variations thereof or comparable terminology, or by
discussions of strategy that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements may be found
principally in sections in this Prospectus entitled "Risk Factors", "FCA", "FCA Operating and Financial

Review ", "PSA ", "PSA Operating and Financial Review" and also elsewhere.

The forward-looking statements are based on FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s beliefs, assumptions and
expectations regarding future events and trends that affect FCA's, PSA's and the Combined Group's future
performance, taking into account all information currently available to FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A., and
are not guarantees of future performance. These beliefs, assumptions and expectations can change as a
result of possible events or factors, not all of which are known to FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. or are within
FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s control. If a change occurs, FCA's, PSA's and the Combined Group's
business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, anticipated growth, strategies or opportunities
may vary materially from those expressed in, or suggested by, these forward-looking statements. In
addition, the forward-looking estimates and forecasts reproduced in this Prospectus from third-party
reports could prove to be inaccurate. A number of important factors could cause actual results or
outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement as a result of risks
and uncertainties facing FCA, PSA and the Combined Group. Such risks, uncertainties and other
important factors include, but are not limited to those listed in the section entitled "Risk Factors".

Investors or potential investors should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements in this
Prospectus. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. urge investors to read the sections of this Prospectus entitled
"Risk Factors", "FCA", "FCA Operating and Financial Review ", "PSA ", "PSA Operating and Financial
Review" for a more complete discussion of the factors that could affect FCA's and the Combined Group's
future performance and the markets in which FCA, PSA and the Combined Group operate. In light of the
possible changes to FCA's, PSA's and the Combined Group's beliefs, assumptions and expectations, the
forward-looking events described in this Prospectus may not occur. Additional risks currently not known
to FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. or that FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. have not considered material as of the
date of this Prospectus could also cause the forward-looking events discussed in this Prospectus not to
occur. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties and speak only as of the date
they are made. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. undertake no duty to and will not necessarily update any of
the forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events, except to the extent required
by applicable law.

Definitions

This Prospectus is published in English only, except that it includes a summary in French and Italian.
Definitions used in this Prospectus are defined in "Definitions".
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In this Prospectus, the definition 'FCA Shareholders' also refers to FCA Shareholders acting in their
capacity, where applicable, as holders of special voting shares in FCA's share capital (the "FCA Special
Voting Shares"). For a description of FCA Special Voting Shares and the rights attached thereto, see
"Loyalty Voting Structure" in the FCA 2019 Annual Report and FCA N.V.'s articles of association, both as
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

Prospectus Approval

This Prospectus has been approved by the AFM, as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/
1129. The AFM only approves this Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness,
comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be
considered as an endorsement of the quality of the securities and of the companies (FCA N.V., Peugeot
S.A. and Stellantis) that are the subject of this Prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment
as to the suitability of investing in the securities.

Validity

The validity of this Prospectus will expire on completion of the Listing. The obligation to supplement a
prospectus in the event of significant new factors, material mistakes or material inaccuracies does not
apply when this Prospectus is no longer valid.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

This Prospectus incorporates a number of documents by reference which, as such, form part of this
Prospectus. See "Documents Incorporated by Reference".

No Incorporation of Website

The contents of the FCA and PSA website, including any websites accessible from hyperlinks on the
FCA's or PSA's website, do not form part of and are not incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, and
have not been scrutinized or approved by the AFM.
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COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA

The following tables provide certain per share data of each of FCA and PSA on a stand-alone basis and
the unaudited pro forma combined per share data as of June 30, 2020, after giving effect to the Merger
as if it had occurred as of June 30, 2020 and the unaudited pro forma combined per share data for the six
months ended June 30, 2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2019, after giving effect to the Merger
as if it had occurred as of January 1, 2019.

The unaudited pro forma combined per share data below is presented for both the unaudited pro forma
combined per share data reflecting the terms of the Merger ("Pro Forma Financial Information Before
Faurecia Distribution™) and the unaudited pro forma combined per share data further adjusted to reflect
the intended Faurecia Distribution ("Pro Forma Financial Information Post Faurecia Distribution™). The
Faurecia Distribution is expected to occur promptly after closing subject to approval by the Stellantis
Board and the Stellantis Shareholders. Refer to "Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial
Information” for further detail.

The historical book value per share is calculated by dividing total stockholders' equity of both PSA and
FCA, by the number of outstanding shares in Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. (excluding treasury shares and
FCA Special Voting Shares), respectively, at the end of the period. The unaudited pro forma combined
book value per share is calculated by dividing the unaudited pro forma stockholders' equity by the
unaudited pro forma number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares
and FCA Special Voting Shares). The unaudited pro forma book value per share gives effect to the Merger
as if it had occurred as of June 30, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma earnings per share of Stellantis is calculated by dividing the unaudited pro forma
profit from continuing operations attributable to the Stellantis Shareholders by, in the case of unaudited
basic pro forma earnings per share, the unaudited pro forma weighted-average of Stellantis Common
Shares outstanding over the period, and, in the case of unaudited diluted pro forma earnings per share,
such outstanding Stellantis Common Shares plus the impact of instruments that have been determined to
be dilutive in the event of a share issuance. The unaudited pro forma earnings per share for the six months
ended June 30, 2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2019 give effect to the Merger as if it had
occurred as of January 1, 2019.

The unaudited pro forma earnings per share and unaudited pro forma book value per share, are not
intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated results of operations or financial position that
would have been reported had the Merger been completed as of the dates presented, and should not be
taken as representative of the future consolidated results of operations or financial position of the
Combined Group following the Merger. The actual financial position and results of operations of the
Combined Group following the Merger may significantly differ from the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information reflected in this Prospectus due to a variety of factors. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined financial information is based upon available information and certain
assumptions that management believes are reasonable. For additional details regarding unaudited pro
forma condensed combined financial information, see "Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Financial Information".

The PSA unaudited pro forma equivalent book value per share, and the PSA unaudited pro forma
equivalent post Faurecia Distribution per share, is calculated by multiplying the unaudited pro forma
combined book value per share by the Exchange Ratio of 1.742. The PSA unaudited pro forma equivalent
earnings per share, and the PSA unaudited pro forma equivalent post Faurecia Distribution earnings per
share, is calculated by multiplying the unaudited pro forma earnings per share of the Combined Group by
the Exchange Ratio of 1.742.

The following tables provide the historical financial data as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2020
and as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, for FCA and PSA, respectively, and the historical
financial data as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2020, as of and for the three months ended
June 30, 2020 and as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020 for FCA only. The
following tables also provide the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information and the
PSA unaudited pro forma equivalent as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and for the year
ended December 31, 2019.
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At

At March
September 31, At December
30, 2020 At June 30, 2020 2020 31, 2019
PSA PSA
Pro Forma Unaudited Unaudited
Financial Pro Forma Pro Forma Pro Forma
Information Equivalent Financial Equivalent
Before Before Information Post
Faurecia Faurecia Post Faurecia  Faurecia
FCA FCA PSA Distribution Distribution Distribution  Distribution  FCA FCA PSA
Book value
per share € 1591 €15.74 €21.83 € 11.87 € 20.68 € 11.12 € 19.37 €16.82 €18.21 €21.31
Nine Three months ended
months
ended June March
September September 30, 31,
30, 2020 Six months ended June 30, 2020 30, 2020 2020 2020
PSA PSA
Pro Forma  ynaudited ~Pro Forma  ynaudited
Financial Pro Eorma Financial Pro Eorma
Information  gqujvalent Information  gqujvalent
Before Before Post Post
Faurecia E i Faurecia E i
FCA FCA PSA Distribution pjeiribution Distribution pisripution  FCA FCA  FCA
Earnings/(Loss)
per share from
continuing
operations
Basic
(loss)/earnings
per share € (0.98) €(1.74) €0.66 € (0.56) € (0.98) € (0.56) € (0.98) € 0.76 €(0.66) €(1.08)
Diluted
(loss)/earnings
per share € (0.98) €(1.74) €0.63 € (0.56) € (0.98) € (0.56) € (0.98) € 0.76 €(0.66) €(1.08)
Dividends paid,
per share
Ordinary
dividends paid,
per share € — € — € — € — € — € — € — € — 3 — 5 —
Extraordinary
dividends paid,
per share € — € — € — £ — £ — £ — £ — £ — € — £ —
Year ended December 31, 2019
PSA
Pro Forma Unaudited PSA
Financial Pro Eorma Pro Forma Unaudited
Information Equivalent Financial Pro Forma
Before Before Information Equivalent
Faurecia Faurecia Post Faurecia  Post Faurecia
FCA PSA Distribution Distribution Distribution Distribution
Earnings/(Loss) per share from continuing
operations
Basic (loss)/earnings per share €172 €358 € 2.19 € 3.81 € 2.19 € 3.81
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share €171 €340 € 212 € 369 € 212 € 3.69
Dividends paid, per share
Ordinary dividends paid, per share®® € 0.65 — — — — —
Extraordinary dividends paid, per share € 1.30 — — _ _ _

(1)FCA's ordinary dividends paid, per share are included in the financial year to which the dividends were paid, as these dividends are
normally approved and paid in the financial year following the financial year to which they relate. The €0.65 dividend per ordinary share which
was approved by FCA and paid in 2019, is the dividend for the financial year 2018. In respect of financial year 2019, the Board of Directors
intended to recommend to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders an annual ordinary dividend distribution to holders of FCA common
shares of €0.70 (approximately US$0.79, based on the closing spot rate at December 31, 2019) per common share. On May 13, 2020, the
board of directors of Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. announced the decision to not distribute an ordinary dividend in 2020 related to financial
year 2019, in light of the impact from the COVID-19 crisis
(2) PSA's ordinary dividends paid, per share are included in the financial year to which the dividends relate, although dividends are normally
approved and paid in the financial year following the financial year to which they relate. For example, the €0.78 dividend per ordinary share
for the financial year ended December 31, 2018 is the dividend for the financial year 2018, which was approved by PSA and paid in 2019. On
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May 13, 2020, the PSA Managing Board announced its decision to not distribute an ordinary dividend in 2020 related to financial year 2019,
in light of the impact from the COVID-19 crisis.
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COMPARATIVE MARKET PRICES

FCA Common Shares are currently traded on the NYSE and on the MTA. PSA Ordinary Shares are
currently traded on Euronext Paris.

The following table shows the closing sales prices of FCA Common Shares (as reported on the NYSE
and MTA) and PSA Ordinary Shares (as reported on Euronext Paris) on October 30, 2019, the last full
trading day prior to the first public announcement of the proposed merger on October 31, 2019, and on
December 17, 2019, the last full trading day prior to the announcement of the signing of the Original
Combination Agreement.

Closing price per

share
October 30, 2019
FCA Common Shares — NYSE $ 14.98
FCA Common Shares — MTA € 12.87
PSA Ordinary Shares — Euronext Paris € 26.05

Closing price per

share
December 17,
2019
FCA Common Shares — NYSE $ 15.33
FCA Common Shares — MTA € 13.60
PSA Ordinary Shares — Euronext Paris € 22.11

The following table shows the equivalent per share closing sales price of PSA Ordinary Shares. The
equivalent per share closing sales price of PSA Ordinary Shares was calculated by multiplying the
Exchange Ratio by the closing sales price of FCA Common Shares as reported on the NYSE and MTA
on October 30, 2019, the last full trading day prior to the first public announcement of the proposed merger
on October 31, 2019, and on December 17, 2019, the last full trading day prior to the announcement of
the signing of the Original Combination Agreement.

Closing price per Closing price per
share share
October 30,2019 December 17, 2019

Equivalent per share information for PSA Ordinary

Shares - NYSE $ 26.10 $ 26.70
Equivalent per share information for PSA Ordinary
Shares - MTA € 22.42 € 23.69
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THE MERGER

Background to the Merger

The PSA Managing Board, the PSA Supervisory Board and the FCA Board continually review their
respective companies' results of operations and competitive positions in the industries in which they
operate, as well as their strategic alternatives. In connection with these reviews, each of PSA and FCA,
from time to time, has evaluated a range of potential transactions that would further its strategic objectives,
including participation in industry consolidation. In particular, FCA has for several years advocated the
merits of consolidation in the automotive industry as a means to promote and enable the capital
investments required for the transformation towards electric, connected and autonomous driving. Both
FCA and PSA have recently completed significant consolidation transactions, FCA with the merger of Fiat
and Chrysler, and PSA with the acquisition of Opel Vauxhall.

During the third and fourth quarters of 2018, executives of PSA had several interactions with executives
of FCA in order to explore potential limited cooperation programs. These types of projects are common in
the automotive industry and are typically limited to certain vehicle models or powertrains. At that stage
there were no discussions regarding the opportunity of a potential business combination of the two
companies, nor was any acquisition of either party by the other discussed.

On December 21, 2018, Carlos Tavares, PSA's Chief Executive Officer, contacted Michael Manley, FCA's
Chief Executive Officer, proposing a meeting during the 2019 Geneva International Motor Show,
scheduled to be held between March 7 and March 19, 2019 in Switzerland. The meeting was organized
in order to explore the possibility of a business combination of the two companies, in addition to the
cooperation projects previously discussed. On the same day, Michael Manley confirmed his willingness
to participate in such a meeting.

On February 28, 2019, Olivier Bourges, PSA's Executive Vice President, Programs & Strategy, contacted
Doug Ostermann, FCA's Vice President, Global Head of Business Development and Group Treasurer, in
order to discuss the agenda for the upcoming meeting between Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley, as
well as certain organizational matters intended to facilitate the discussions between the parties.

On March 4, 2019, Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley met in Geneva, Switzerland ahead of the Geneva
International Motor Show. At that meeting, Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley, together with other
representatives from FCA and PSA, reviewed the potential cooperation programs previously identified by
the parties and discussed a potential business combination between the companies and how to assess
the potential synergies resulting from such business combination.

On April 1, 2019, PSA and FCA entered into a confidentiality agreement for the exchange of information
in connection with a potential business combination.

On April 2 and April 3, 2019, PSA executives Olivier Bourges and Christophe Pineau travelled to Detroit
in order to discuss with Doug Ostermann the possibility of FCA joining a battery joint venture project with
PSA. Olivier Bourges took this opportunity to follow-up on the Geneva discussions regarding the potential
business combination between the two companies and confirm whether FCA was prepared to assess the
potential synergies resulting from such business combination.

On April 16, 2019, Doug Ostermann met with Olivier Bourges in Paris to discuss how the synergies and
benefits of a potential business combination could be assessed.

From April 23 to April 25, 2019, members of PSA's and FCA's management teams held several meetings
at the Paris offices of Bredin Prat, legal advisor to PSA, to explore further the process for estimating the
synergies and benefits that could be achieved in a potential business combination, including the potential
convergence of vehicle platforms and powertrains. As part of these conversations, the parties also
reflected on the status of their preliminary discussions, including organizational and regulatory aspects
regarding a reciprocal due diligence investigation and certain regulatory aspects of a potential business
combination.

On May 14, 2019, Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley, together with other representatives of FCA and
PSA, met to review the merits of the potential business combination of PSA and FCA based on synergies
analyses jointly prepared by the PSA and FCA teams over the previous weeks with the support of
McKinsey & Company as strategic consultant. Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley exchanged their
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respective preliminary views on, among other matters, the value creation of such a business combination
and the governance of the Combined Group.

On May 27, 2019, FCA announced that it had delivered a non-binding letter to the board of Groupe Renault
proposing a combination of their respective businesses as a 50/50 merger, following discussions between
the two companies. As a result, the discussions between PSA and FCA ceased.

On June 6, 2019, FCA issued a press release announcing that the FCA Board had decided to withdraw
with immediate effect the merger proposal it had made to Groupe Renault. On the same day, Carlos
Tavares contacted Michael Manley, proposing that PSA and FCA restart their discussions regarding a
potential business combination of the two companies.

On June 19, 2019, Robert Peugeot, permanent representative of PSA's shareholder FFP on the PSA
Supervisory Board, contacted John Elkann, requesting a meeting in order to restart prior discussions
regarding a potential business combination between PSA and FCA.

On July 4, 2019, Robert Peugeot and John Elkann met in Paris to discuss the preliminary terms of a
potential business combination, including potential transaction structures and relative valuation levels.
The potential terms outlined by Robert Peugeot envisaged an acquisition of FCA by PSA structured in
two steps: an initial extraordinary cash dividend distribution by FCA to the FCA Shareholders in an amount
equal to €4.25bn, followed by a cash and stock offer from PSA to the FCA Shareholders.

On July 7, 2019, Robert Peugeot outlined to John Elkann the terms of a potential business combination
in the form of an offer by PSA to acquire FCA at a premium, with the acquisition consideration consisting
of both cash and PSA shares with a similar structure to the one discussed during the meeting held on July
4, 2019. That proposal did not result in any agreement at that stage. Mr. Elkann in particular objected to
the structure of the transaction whereby FCA Shareholders would be significantly diluted following the
combination.

On July 22, 2019, Erik Maris of Messier Maris & Associés ("MMA"), PSA's financial advisor, met with Alain
Minc, one of FCA's advisors, in Paris. Erik Maris presented to Alain Minc a new proposal by PSA for FCA's
consideration regarding a potential business combination of PSA and FCA on the basis of a "merger of
equals” (i.e., a transaction in which the shareholders of each of PSA and FCA would own an equal stake
in the Combined Group), which would be reflected in the initial composition and set-up of the Combined
Group's governing bodies and other management positions, and contemplated both parties making certain
pre-merger distributions to their respective shareholders to reflect the relative value of the two companies.
PSA proposed that it distribute to the PSA Shareholders its stake in Faurecia and FCA distribute to the
FCA Shareholders an amount in cash corresponding to the value of PSA's stake in Faurecia.

On July 28, 2019, representatives of MMA and Goldman Sachs, FCA's financial advisor, met
telephonically to discuss the new proposal. Goldman Sachs, on behalf of FCA, noted that, while the
structure had improved as compared to the prior proposal, the economic terms, including the amount of
the cash distribution, had worsened for FCA and did not sufficiently reflect the relative value of the two
companies.

From August 1 to August 7, 2019, representatives of MMA held various telephonic meetings with Alain
Minc in order to discuss potential improvements to the terms of PSA's proposal, including the amount of
the respective pre-merger distributions to the shareholders of each company in the context of the potential
business combination.

On August 5, 2019, representatives of MMA and Morgan Stanley, PSA's financial advisors, Goldman
Sachs and d'Angelin, FCA's financial advisors, met telephonically to discuss the potential business
combination of PSA and FCA and the economic terms of this merger. During this conference call, Goldman
Sachs provided feedback on the prior proposals made by PSA, including an analysis supporting a larger
cash distribution (compared to the July 4 proposal) to the FCA Shareholders prior to a merger of equals
in the €6-7 billion range.

On August 8, 2019, Erik Maris contacted Alain Minc to organize a meeting among Carlos Tavares, Louis
Gallois, chairman of the PSA Supervisory Board, and John Elkann.

On August 10, 2019, John Elkann met with Carlos Tavares, Louis Gallois and Erik Maris in Boulogne-
Billancourt, France, in order to receive a revised proposal from PSA encompassing a merger of equals
between PSA and FCA, including a revision to the proposed pre-merger distributions to FCA's
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shareholders. However, no agreement was reached, mainly due to a disagreement between PSA and
FCA on the amount of the pre-merger distribution to FCA's shareholders and, as a result, the discussions
were terminated by John Elkann.

On September 11, 2019, Carlos Tavares met with Michael Manley at the Frankfurt International Car Show
where they discussed the termination of previous discussions between PSA and FCA regarding a potential
merger between the two companies. In the course of these discussions, Carlos Tavares invited Michael
Manley to visit PSA's automotive proving ground to test PSA's hybrid and electric vehicles.

During October 2019, various calls took place between MMA and Goldman Sachs, where MMA signaled
PSA's willingness to restart discussions on the basis of a new proposal including more significant pre-
merger distributions to shareholders of both parties.

On October 11, 2019, Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley met at PSA's test center in La Ferté-Vidame,
France. During this meeting, Carlos Tavares indicated PSA's willingness to restart the negotiations that
were terminated in August 2019. Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley discussed potential synergies and
benefits that could be achieved in the proposed business combination, reviewed various options with
respect to structuring the governance and management of the Combined Group and shared their
respective views regarding the relative valuation of the two companies and the proposed structure of the
Merger. Carlos Tavares and Michael Manley also discussed a potential framework for restarting
negotiations which in the first stage would only involve MMA and Goldman Sachs. Following this meeting,
Michael Manley confirmed that John Elkann was in agreement with the proposed process.

During the second half of October 2019, representatives of MMA and Goldman Sachs held various
conference calls, during which they discussed a potential increase of the amounts of the respective pre-
merger distributions by PSA and FCA to their shareholders and the governance structure of the Combined
Group, including the composition of the board of directors of the Combined Group and the future positions
of Carlos Tavares and John Elkann.

On October 23, 2019, Erik Maris sent to Goldman Sachs, and Goldman Sachs shared with FCA on the
same day, an outline of the main terms of the proposed merger, which reiterated the proposal to structure
it as a merger of equals and included a description of the pre-merger distributions to be made by PSA (its
stake in Faurecia) and FCA (a €5.5bn extraordinary dividend and its stake in Comau S.p.A. ("Comau"))
to their respective shareholders, elements regarding the future composition of the board of directors of
the Combined Group and the respective roles of Carlos Tavares, as Chief Executive Officer, and John
Elkann, as Chairman of the Combined Group, as well as a list of undertakings to be requested from PSA's
and FCA's main shareholders.

Between October 25, 2019 and October 27, 2019, PSA informed the representatives of EPF/ FFP, BPI
and Dongfeng of the terms of the proposed business combination.

On October 27, 2019, Carlos Tavares met with John Elkann in Versailles, France. During this meeting,
the parties agreed, subject to approval by the PSA Supervisory Board and the FCA Board, on the main
terms of the business combination structured as a merger of equals, including the distribution by FCA,
prior to the completion of the merger, of a €5.5 billion extraordinary dividend as well as FCA's interest in
Comau to its shareholders while PSA would, in parallel, distribute its 46% stake in Faurecia to its
shareholders. They also discussed the next steps of the process, including due diligence, as well as the
timing and process for the preparation of the Combination Agreement and related documents.

On October 29, 2019, The Wall Street Journal and, over the following days, several other media outlets
reported that PSA and FCA were engaged in discussions regarding a potential business combination.

On October 30, 2019, PSA and FCA each issued a press release confirming that the two parties were
engaged in ongoing discussions regarding a possible business combination.

On October 30, 2019, the PSA Supervisory Board approved in principle the terms of the contemplated
merger.

On October 30, 2019, the FCA Board approved in principle the terms of the contemplated merger.

On October 31, 2019, PSA and FCA issued a joint press release announcing that their respective boards
had each unanimously agreed to work towards a full combination of their respective businesses by way
of a merger of equals and had given the mandate to their respective management teams to finalize their
discussions in order to reach a binding agreement in the coming weeks. The joint press release also
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highlighted the main terms of the contemplated merger, including estimated synergies, the exchange
listings of Stellantis's securities, the agreed governance structure of the Combined Group as well as
information regarding the distributions to be made by the parties to their respective shareholders in
advance of the Merger.

On November 4, 2019, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, legal advisor to FCA, sent a summary of the terms of
the Combination Agreement to Bredin Prat, setting out in more detail the terms of a merger of equals
between PSA and FCA.

Also on November 4, 2019, representatives of PSA and FCA attended various kick-off meetings in Paris,
with the goal of outlining and coordinating the next steps of the process. On the same day, representatives
of FCA and PSA, with the assistance of their respective advisors, commenced a reciprocal due diligence
investigation of the respective companies' businesses. On November 6, 2019, in order to facilitate certain
aspects of the due diligence process, the parties entered into a "clean team" agreement, amending and
supplementing the confidentiality agreement dated April 1, 2019. The parties' reciprocal due diligence
continued until November 23, 2019.

On November 5, 2019, Olivier Bourges and Christophe Pineau together with Doug Ostermann and Silvia
Vernetti, the project managers with respect to the contemplated merger of PSA and FCA, respectively,
met in Paris in order to prepare the final negotiation process and the reciprocal due diligence as well as
to discuss other practical matters, including the timing of the finalization of the contractual documentation.

Between November 12, 2019 and November 19, 2019, PSA sent to EPF/FFP, BPI and Dongfeng a first
draft of the undertaking letter agreement, which included, among other things, a commitment by each
such shareholder to vote, or cause to be voted, all shares owned or controlled by it in favor of any decision
in furtherance of the approval of the Merger between PSA and FCA, as well as standstill and lock-up
commitments.

On November 27, 2019, Carlos Tavares, Michael Manley and John Elkann met in Turin together with their
respective teams and advisors, including representatives of MMA, Goldman Sachs, Sullivan & Cromwell
LLP and Bredin Prat, to continue discussions regarding the contemplated merger, including the valuation
of the two companies, the governance structure of the Combined Group, such as the future composition
of the board of directors, the terms and structure of the Combination Agreement, as well as the final steps
of the negotiation process.

Between November 4, 2019 and December 17, 2019, PSA and FCA engaged in negotiations with respect
to the terms of the contemplated merger including, among others, the future governance of the Combined
Group and its organization (including the location of its statutory and operational seats), the valuation of
and the timing of the proposed distribution of FCA's stake in Comau, the amount of payments in the event
of the termination of the Combination Agreement and other contractual terms relating to representations
and warranties, operating covenants and other obligations to be satisfied by the two parties before the
consummation of the Merger. As a result of continuing discussion among the parties regarding the relative
values of the two companies, it was determined that the distribution of FCA's stake in Comau would be
made to the Stellantis Shareholders after the closing of the Merger, subject to decision by the Stellantis
Board. Following the end of the works council consultation process in France and the subsequent approval
of the proposed merger by the PSA employee representatives, PSA and FCA reached final agreement on
the Combination Agreement.

On December 17, 2019, Peugeot S.A.'s main shareholders, EPF/FFP, BPI and Dongfeng, executed their
respective undertaking letters and FCA's main shareholder, Exor, executed its undertaking letter, pursuant
to which each such shareholder agreed, among other things, to vote its shares in favor of the Merger at
the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V., respectively. In addition,
Peugeot S.A. and Dongfeng entered into an agreement pursuant to which Peugeot S.A. agreed to
purchase and Dongfeng agreed to sell 30,700,000 of the PSA Ordinary Shares held by Dongfeng before
the closing of the Merger.

On December 17, 2019, the PSA Supervisory Board met and, following discussion, approved the Merger
between FCA and PSA (including the governance structure of the combined entity and the exchange ratio
of 1.742 Stellantis Common Shares for each outstanding ordinary share of PSA, which implied a value of
approximately €23.69 per PSA ordinary share based upon the €13.60 closing price per FCA common
share on December 17, 2019). The FCA Board met on the same day to consider the terms of the
Combination Agreement. At the meeting of the FCA Board, representatives of each of Goldman Sachs
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and d'Angelin reviewed a presentation regarding its respective financial analysis of the Merger with the
FCA Board. Following the presentation, each of Goldman Sachs and d'Angelin rendered its respective
oral opinion to the FCA Board, subsequently confirmed by delivery of its respective written opinion dated
December 17, 2019 and December 18, 2019, respectively, to the effect that, as of the date of such
opinions, taking into account the pre-merger distribution to FCA's shareholders (in the amount of €5.5
billion, as provided under the Original Combination Agreement) and based upon and subject to the factors
and assumptions described in the opinions to FCA, the exchange ratio of 1.742 Stellantis Common Shares
for each ordinary share of PSA was fair, from a financial point of view to FCA (the full text of the written
opinion of Goldman Sachs, dated December 17, 2019, which sets forth assumptions made, procedures
followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken in connection with the opinion and
the full text of the written opinion of d'Angelin, dated December 18, 2019, which set forth the assumptions
made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken in connection
with such opinions are included elsewhere in this Prospectus (see "Index to the Fairness Opinions").
Following deliberations, the FCA Board approved the terms of, and the Merger contemplated by, the
Combination Agreement. On the night of December 17, 2019, Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. entered into
the binding Combination Agreement.

On December 18, 2019, prior to the opening of trading markets in Europe, PSA and FCA issued a joint
press release announcing the signing of the Combination Agreement.

On May 23, 2020, Carlos Tavares and John Elkann discussed telephonically, among other matters, the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the businesses of the two companies and the possibility that
amendments to the agreed terms of the combination would be appropriate in order to take into account
the pandemic's impact on the expected balance sheet of Stellantis at the closing of the Merger. Carlos
Tavares and John Elkann agreed to instruct MMA and Goldman Sachs to start exploring such potential
amendments.

During the months of June and July 2020, representatives of MMA and Goldman Sachs held several
preparatory phone calls in order to exchange views on potential amendments to the initial terms of the
combination that would take into account the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the expected balance
sheet of Stellantis at the closing of the Merger, while respecting the balance of the initial economic terms
of the combination.

On August 6, 2020, following the publication of PSA's and FCA's respective semi-annual financial reports,
representatives of MMA and Goldman Sachs met by telephone and discussed a revised structure for the
combination in which (i) PSA's stake in Faurecia would be distributed after the closing of the merger for
the benefit of all Stellantis Shareholders and (ii) the extraordinary dividend to be distributed by FCA to its
shareholders pre-closing would be reduced to account for the value of PSA's retained stake in Faurecia.

Between August 8, 2020 and August 11, 2020, representatives of MMA and Goldman Sachs held several
meetings, during which they discussed the amount by which the extraordinary cash dividend to be
distributed by FCA to its shareholders pre-closing would be reduced, with MMA proposing a reduction
corresponding to the value of PSA's stake in Faurecia at the time of the announcement of the intention to
merge in October 2019, and Goldman Sachs proposing a reduction corresponding to the value of PSA's
stake in Faurecia in August 2020.

On August 11, 2020, Carlos Tavares and John Elkann had a meeting during which they agreed in principle
to propose amendments to the initial terms of the combination by reducing the extraordinary dividend to
be distributed by FCA to its shareholders pre-closing and distributing PSA's stake in Faurecia after the
closing of the Merger for the benefit of all Stellantis shareholders.

On August 13, 2020, a summary of terms was exchanged between MMA and Goldman Sachs, which
included a broad outline of the proposed terms of the revised merger, including notably (1) reducing the
extraordinary cash dividend to be distributed by FCA as described above, (2) distributing PSA's stake in
Faurecia after the closing of the Merger for the benefit of all of the Stellantis Shareholders, subject to
receipt of the requisite corporate approvals, (3) requesting that PSA's reference shareholders, EPF/FFP,
BPI, and Dongfeng, and FCA's reference shareholder, Exor, amend their respective undertaking letter
agreements to include lock-up commitments with respect to the Faurecia ordinary shares after the
distribution of the Faurecia ordinary shares post-closing, (4) providing that each of PSA and FCA would
consider a potential distribution of €500 million to their respective shareholders prior to the closing of the
Merger, provided that each party makes such a distribution, or alternatively a potential €1 billion cash
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distribution by Stellantis to its shareholders following the closing of the Merger and (5) both parties working
on an amendment to the combination agreement reflecting the terms above and related matters with the
goal of presenting the revised terms of the combination to the PSA Supervisory Board and the FCA Board
by mid-September, with a public announcement of the amendment to the combination to follow upon
approval by the respective boards.

On August 14, 2020, following further discussions between their respective financial advisors, Carlos
Tavares and John Elkann agreed in principle to reduce the extraordinary cash dividend to be distributed
by FCA to its shareholders pre-closing by €2.6bn, from €5.5bn as contemplated by the initial terms of the
combination to €2.9bn, and to distribute PSA's stake in Faurecia after the closing of the Merger for the
benefit of all Stellantis Shareholders.

On August 24, 2020 and August 25, 2020 PSA informed EPF/FFP and BPI, and Dongfeng, respectively,
of the amended terms of the Combination Agreement.

On August 28, 2020, Sullivan & Cromwell, counsel to FCA, circulated a more detailed term sheet to Bredin
Prat, counsel to PSA, reflecting the summary of terms and supplementing certain non-economic terms of
the original combination agreement. Between August 20, 2020, and September 7, 2020, the parties
engaged in negotiations on the term sheet and on September 7, 2020, a draft amendment was delivered
by Sullivan & Cromwell to Bredin Prat which included a term intended to confirm that the shareholder
undertakings executed in connection with the Original Combination Agreement would remain in effect. On
September 11, 2020, the parties conducted a management due diligence session regarding Faurecia.

On September 13, 2020, the FCA Board held a meeting by means of video conference and, following
discussion, approved the Combination Agreement Amendment. At the meeting, representatives of
Goldman Sachs and d'Angelin reviewed the financial aspects of the proposed revised terms of the Merger
and a representative of Sullivan & Cromwell reviewed the other terms of the proposed amendment.
Goldman Sachs presented to the FCA Board materials discussing the history of the share prices and
certain financial metrics with respect to FCA, PSA and certain other publicly traded automobile
manufacturers since October 29, 2019 (i.e., the day preceding the announcement by FCA and PSA of
their engagement in ongoing discussions regarding a possible business combination). The materials also
included a comparison of the proposed revised terms of the Merger with the terms of the Merger as
approved by the FCA Board on October 30, 2019, noting in particular that such revised terms included a
reduction in the amount of the pre-closing FCA dividend and, as a result of this change the retention of
additional cash by Stellantis, and also the distribution of the Faurecia stake to the Stellantis Shareholders
promptly after the completion of the Merger. Following the presentations, the FCA Board discussed the
proposed amendment and after discussion, unanimously determined to approve the revised terms and to
reaffirm its recommendation of the Merger.

On September 14, 2020, the PSA Supervisory Board met to consider the terms of the proposed
amendment to the Combination Agreement. At the meeting of the PSA Supervisory Board, representatives
of Perella Weinberg reviewed a presentation regarding their analysis of the financial terms of the proposed
amendment to the Combination Agreement with the PSA Supervisory Board. Following the presentation,
Perella Weinberg rendered to the PSA Supervisory Board its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in
writing, that as of such date and based upon and subject to the various assumptions made, procedures
followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations set forth in their opinion, the Exchange
Ratio provided for in the Combination Agreement was fair from a financial point of view to the holders of
PSA Ordinary Shares (the full text of the written opinion of Perella Weinberg, which sets forth, among
other things, the various assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications
and limitations on the review undertaken by Perella Weinberg, is included elsewhere in this Prospectus
(see "Index to the Fairness Opinions"). Following deliberations, the PSA Supervisory Board approved
unanimously the terms of the Combination Agreement Amendment.

On September 14, 2020, PSA and FCA entered into the Combination Agreement Amendment.

On September 14, 2020, after the closing of trading markets in Europe and the United States, PSA and
FCA issued a joint press release announcing the signing of the Combination Agreement Amendment
following unanimous approval by the companies' boards and strong support by their respective Reference
Shareholders.

Between September 14, 2020 and September 17, 2020, each of PSA's reference shareholders, EPF/FFP,
BPI and Dongfeng, and FCA's reference shareholder, Exor, entered into undertaking letter agreements
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providing lock-up commitments with respect to their Faurecia ordinary shares until the end of a six-month
period following the completion of the proposed distribution of PSA's stake in Faurecia to all Stellantis
Shareholders post-closing.

FCA's Reasons for the Merger

The FCA Board, after due consideration and consultation with FCA's management and external legal and
financial advisors, at a meeting held on December 17, 2019, unanimously approved the Original
Combination Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Original Combination Agreement and,
at a meeting held on September 14, 2020, unanimously approved amendments to certain of the terms of
the Merger. In doing so, the FCA Board considered the business, assets and liabilities, results of
operations, financial performance, strategic direction and prospects of FCA and PSA, with a view to the
best interests of FCA and its stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, debtholders and other
creditors, customers, governments and the environment. In making its determination, the FCA Board
considered a number of factors, including the following expected benefits:

Operational and Strategic Benefits

. A New Industry Leader. The Merger will create an industry leader with the management,
capabilities, resources and scale to successfully capitalize on the opportunities presented by the
new era in sustainable mobility. Following the Merger, the Combined Group is expected to be the
fourth largest global automotive OEM by volume based on 2019 results. The Combined Group
will have a balanced and profitable global presence with a highly complementary and iconic brand
portfolio covering all key vehicle segments from luxury, premium, and mainstream passenger cars
through to SUVs and trucks & light commercial vehicles;

o Greater Geographic Balance. The Merger will add scale and substantial geographic balance, in
addition to product diversity. Thanks to FCA's strength in North America and Latin America and
PSA's solid position in Europe, the Combined Group will have much greater geographic balance
compared to each of FCA and PSA, with approximately 46% of revenues derived from Europe,
Middle East & Africa and Eurasia and approximately 44% from North America, based on combined
2019 revenues, excluding Faurecia. The Merger will also create opportunities for the Combined
Group to reshape the strategy in other geographic regions, including China;

o Stronger Platform for Innovation. With an already strong global R&D footprint comprised of over
51 R&D centers and over 33,000 dedicated employees in the aggregate as of December 31, 2019,
excluding Faurecia, the Combined Group will have a robust platform to foster innovation and
further drive development of transformational capabilities in new energy vehicles, sustainable
mobility, autonomous driving and connectivity. The Combined Group will be able to leverage on
the best among a broad set of platforms, powertrains and vehicles and to converge new vehicle
launches on the most efficient technology. Compared to FCA and PSA separately, the Combined
Group will have the capacity to accelerate the deployment of electrification technologies and to
improve the ability to identify CO2 abating technologies preferred by customers. The Combined
Group would be able to deploy these technologies across its broad range of brands in a shorter
timeframe and react more quickly to changes in regulation and customer preferences;

o Synergies. FCA expects synergies to be achieved in the following four areas: (i) technology,
platforms and products: the sharing and convergence of PSA's and FCA's respective platforms,
products and powertrains along with the optimization of R&D investments and manufacturing
processes is expected to create significant efficiencies, in particular, as investments will be
amortized over the combined production of FCA and PSA,; (ii) purchasing: procurement savings
are expected to result from leveraging the group's enlarged scale, leading to lower product costs
and broader access to new suppliers (in particular in respect to electric or high tech components),
as well as from the harmonization of platforms; (iii) selling, general and administrative expenses
(SG&A): savings are expected from the integration of functions such as sales and marketing, and
the optimization of costs in regions where both parties have a well-established presence (i.e.,
EMEA and LATAM); and (iv) all other functions: synergies are expected from the optimization of
other functions, including logistics, where savings are expected from the optimization of logistics
for new cars and the effect of the procurement volume increase on FCA's and PSA's combined
expenditures, as well as supply chain, quality and after-market operations. The annual industrial
synergies are expected to be in excess of €5 billion, with approximately 80 percent of synergies
to be achieved after four years from the closing of the Merger. Approximately 75 percent of
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synergies are expected to arise from technology, platform and product convergences and
procurement savings, approximately 7 percent from SG&A, and the remaining synergies are
expected from all other functions. The annual run-rate synergies are expected to exceed the costs
necessary to achieve such synergies within the first year following the closing of the Merger, and
the total one-time cost to achieve the synergies is estimated at approximately €4 billion; and

Greater resilience. The transaction will create a more stable and resilient group, significantly
improving its ability to withstand economic downturns, which, in the automotive industry, are
typically exacerbated by high cyclicality and low margins. FCA expects that the more solid balance
sheet and financial flexibility resulting from the Merger, together with the benefit of the synergies
and the improved business balance across geographies, will enhance the resilience of the
Combined Group across market cycles.

Valuation, Governance, Deal Certainty

Exchange Ratio. FCA N.V. believes that the Exchange Ratio is appropriate in light of FCA's and
PSA's relative market capitalization before the Merger was announced, their respective prospects
and earnings potential, and the expected synergies from the Merger, and taking into account the
distributions expected to be made prior to the closing of the Merger. A fixed Exchange Ratio that
will not be adjusted for fluctuations in the market price of PSA Ordinary Shares or FCA Common
Shares is also consistent with the principles underlying a "merger of equals”;

History of Acquisitions. Each of PSA and FCA has a history of acquisitions and business
combinations demonstrating each party's ability to execute acquisitions and integrate separate
businesses and diverse cultures quickly and successfully;

Balanced and Effective Governance Structure. Stellantis's balanced governance structure is
designed to promote strong performance and enable continuity of management, with a strong
executive team drawn from both FCA and PSA, while ensuring contribution from the experience
of long-term shareholders and a majority of independent directors;

Stable and Supportive Shareholder Base. FCA expects that Stellantis will continue to benefit from
the support of a group of long-term FCA Shareholders and PSA Shareholders which include
entities controlled by the founding families of Fiat and Peugeot, respectively. The loyalty voting
program adopted by Stellantis is designed to further promote and enhance long-term
shareholding. For a description of the principal Stellantis Shareholders, including lock-up
commitments of several Reference Shareholders, see "Major Shareholders of FCA and PSA and
Related Party Transactions—Major Shareholders of FCA N.V.", "Major Shareholders of FCA and
PSA and Related Party Transactions—Major Shareholders of Peugeot S.A." and "The
Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and
Shareholder Undertakings —Shareholders Undertakings—Lock-up"; and

Deal Certainty. Each of the Reference Shareholders has committed to vote its shares in favor of
the approval of the Merger at the relevant shareholders' meeting. In addition, the parties have
committed to a very high standard of efforts to obtain regulatory approvals, by agreeing that all
necessary commitments must be offered to regulators in order to obtain competition approvals,
with limited exceptions. FCA believes there is a high likelihood that the conditions to the Merger
set forth in the Combination Agreement as described under "The Combination Agreement and
Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —
Closing Conditions" will be satisfied.

The following provisions of the Combination Agreement, though reciprocal with PSA, are favorable to FCA:

The ability of the FCA Board, in specified circumstances, to change its recommendation to FCA
Shareholders concerning the Merger, as further described under "The Combination Agreement
and Cross Border Merger Terms—Certain Covenants—Board of Directors Recommendations;
Change in Recommendations”;

The restrictions on PSA's ability to solicit alternative business combination transactions and to
provide confidential due diligence information to, or engage in discussions with, a third party
interested in pursuing an alternative business combination transaction with PSA, as further
discussed under "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The
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Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Certain Covenants—Exclusivity; No
Solicitation; Superior Proposal”;

The obligation of PSA to pay FCA a termination fee of €500 million or €250 million upon
termination of the Combination Agreement under specified circumstances as described under
"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement
and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination Fees";

The ability of FCA to terminate the Combination Agreement in the event of a Material Adverse
Effect in respect of PSA (as described under "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border
Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination of the
Combination Agreement"); and

The ability of the FCA Shareholders to vote on the proposed merger, and that approval of the
proposed merger by FCA Shareholders is a condition to FCA's obligation to complete the Merger.

In connection with its deliberations relating to the Merger, the FCA Board also considered potential risks
and negative factors concerning the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement, including the following:

The risk that the transaction might not be completed in a timely manner or at all;

The effect that the length of time from announcement until closing could have on the market price
of FCA Common Shares, FCA's operating results and the relationships with FCA's employees,
shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators, partners and others that do business with FCA,;

The risk that the anticipated benefits of the Merger will not be realized in full or in part, including
the risk that expected synergies will not be achieved or not be achieved in the expected
timeframe;

The risk that the regulatory approval process could result in undesirable conditions, impose
burdensome terms or result in increased transaction costs;

The risk of diverting the attention of FCA's senior management from other strategic priorities to
implement the Merger and make arrangements for the integration of FCA's and PSA's operations
and infrastructure following the Merger;

The fact that the Exchange Ratio is fixed and will not be adjusted in the event of a significant
decrease in the market price of PSA's Ordinary Shares;

The potential impact on the market price of Stellantis Common Shares as a result of the issuance
of the merger consideration to PSA Shareholders;

The potential challenges and difficulties relating to integrating the operations of FCA and PSA,
including the costs to achieve the estimated synergies;

The costs and expenses that FCA has incurred and will incur in connection with the proposed
merger, regardless of whether the Merger is completed; and

The fact that FCA Shareholders will own approximately 50 percent of outstanding Stellantis
Common Shares and, as such, will have less influence over Stellantis than current FCA
Shareholders have over FCA N.V.

The following provisions of the Combination Agreement, though reciprocal with PSA, are unfavorable to

FCA:

The inability of FCA to terminate the Combination Agreement in the event of a third party proposal
for an alternative business combination, unless such proposal meets the value standards set forth
in the Combination Agreement (as described under "The Combination Agreement and Cross
Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Certain
Covenants—Exclusivity; No Solicitation; Superior Proposal”) and FCA complies with certain
procedures;

The restrictions on FCA's ability to solicit alternative business combination transactions and to
provide confidential due diligence information to, or engage in discussions with, a third party
interested in pursuing an alternative business combination transaction with FCA, as described
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under "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination
Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Certain Covenants—Exclusivity; No Solicitation;
Superior Proposal”; and

. The obligation of FCA to pay PSA a termination fee of €500 million or €250 million upon
termination of the Combination Agreement under specified circumstances, as described under
"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement
and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination Fees".

After consideration of these factors, the FCA Board determined that, overall, the potential benefits of the
Merger outweighed the potential risks.

The foregoing discussion of factors considered by the FCA Board is not intended to be exhaustive and
may not include all the factors considered. In view of the wide variety of factors considered in connection
with its evaluation of the Merger and the complexity of these matters, the FCA Board did not attempt to
quantify, rank or otherwise assign any relative or specific weights to the factors that it considered in
reaching its determination to approve the Merger and the Combination Agreement. In addition, individual
members of the FCA Board may have given differing weights to different factors. The FCA Board
conducted an overall review of the factors described above and other material factors, including through
discussions with, and inquiry of, PSA's management and outside legal and financial advisors.

The foregoing description of FCA's consideration of the factors supporting the Merger is forward-looking
in nature. This information should be read in light of the factors discussed in the section entitled
"Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements".

Recommendation of the FCA Board

The FCA Board, having received extensive legal and financial advice, and having given due and careful
consideration to the strategic and financial aspects and consequences of the Merger, at a meeting held
on December 17, 2019, unanimously approved the Merger and, at a meeting held on September 14, 2020,
unanimously approved amendments to certain of the terms of the Merger. On October 23, 2020, the FCA
Board unanimously resolved to approve the Cross-Border Merger Terms (as defined below). Accordingly,
the FCA Board supports and unanimously recommends the Merger and recommends that FCA
Shareholders vote "FOR" adoption and approval of the Cross-Border Merger Terms and the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

In considering the recommendation of the FCA Board with respect to voting "FOR" adoption and approval
of the Cross-Border Merger Terms and the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement,
FCA Shareholders should be aware that certain members of the FCA Board and executive officers of FCA
may have interests in the merger which are different from, or in addition to, the interests of FCA
Shareholders. The FCA Board was aware of and considered these interests, among other matters, in
evaluating and negotiating the transaction agreements and the Merger and in recommending that FCA
Shareholders vote "FOR" adoption and approval of the Cross-Border Merger Terms and the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement. For a discussion of these interests, see "—Interests of
Certain Persons in the Merger".

PSA's Reasons for the Merger

The PSA Supervisory Board, after due consideration and consultation with PSA's management and
external legal and financial advisors, at a meeting held on December 17, 2019, unanimously approved
the Merger in accordance with the Original Combination Agreement, as well as the transactions
contemplated by the Original Combination Agreement and, at a meeting held on September 14, 2020,
unanimously approved amendments to certain of the terms of the Merger. In doing so, the PSA
Supervisory Board considered a variety of substantive factors, both positive and negative, and the
potential benefits and detriments of the Merger to PSA, including the business, assets and liabilities,
results of operations, financial performance, strategic direction and prospects of PSA and FCA, with a
view to the best interests of PSA and PSA Shareholders, employees and other stakeholders. In making
its determination, the PSA Supervisory Board considered a number of factors, including the following
expected benefits:

Operational and Strategic Benefits

. A New Industry Leader. The Merger will create an industry leader with the management,
capabilities, resources and scale to address the opportunities and challenges of the new era of
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sustainable mobility. Following the closing of the Merger, the Combined Group is expected to be
the fourth largest global automotive OEM by volume based on 2019 results. The Combined Group
will have a balanced and profitable global presence with a complementary and well-established
brand portfolio;

Broader Product Range. The Combined Group will be able to offer an expanded range of models
and brands as well as services to better meet customers' changing needs, with a portfolio of
vehicles that will cover all key vehicle segments, from luxury, premium, and mainstream
passenger cars to SUVs, trucks and light commercial vehicles;

Greater Geographic Balance. The Merger will accelerate PSA's entry into significant markets such
as North America, leading to enhanced scale across key regions and geographic balance. PSA's
solid position in Europe and FCA's strength in North America will result in a much greater
geographic balance for the Combined Group compared to each of PSA and FCA, with
approximately 46% of revenues derived from Europe, Middle East & Africa and Eurasia and
approximately 44% from North America, based on combined 2019 revenues, excluding Faurecia.
The Merger will also create opportunities for the Combined Group to reshape strategy in other
geographic regions, including China;

Stronger Platform for Innovation. With an already strong global R&D footprint comprised of 51
R&D centers and over 33,000 dedicated employees in the aggregate as of December 31, 2019,
excluding Faurecia the Combined Group will be able to take advantage of investment efficiencies
across a larger scale in order to develop innovative solutions and advanced technologies for new
energy vehicles, sustainable mobility, autonomous driving and connectivity, allowing it to
effectively compete with other automakers in these emerging trends in the automotive industry.
The Combined Group will benefit from a broad set of platforms, powertrains and vehicles, allowing
it to converge new vehicle launches on the most efficient technology. The Combined Group would
be able to deploy these technologies across its broad range of brands in a shorter timeframe and
react more quickly to changes and customer preferences, in particular with respect to new energy
vehicles. In addition, the Combined Group would be able to adapt more easily to changes in
regulations that impose increasingly stringent requirements, particularly with respect to fuel
economy and emissions of COz and other pollutants;

Synergies. PSA expects synergies to be achieved in the following four areas: (i) technology,
platforms and products: the sharing and convergence of PSA's and FCA's respective platforms,
products and powertrains along with the optimization of R&D investments and manufacturing
processes is expected to create significant efficiencies, in particular, as investments will be
amortized over the combined production of PSA and FCA; (ii) purchasing: procurement savings
are expected to result from the Combined Group's enlarged scale, leading to lower production
costs and broader access to new suppliers (in particular in respect of electric or high tech
components), as well as from the convergence of platforms; (iii) selling, general and
administrative expenses (SG&A): savings are expected from the integration of functions such as
sales and marketing, and the optimization of costs in regions where both parties have a well-
established presence (i.e., EMEA and LATAM); and (iv) all other functions: synergies are
expected from the optimization of other functions, including logistics, where savings are expected
from the optimization of logistics for new cars and the effect of the procurement volume increase
on PSA's and FCA's combined expenditure, as well as supply chain, quality and after-market
operations. The annual industrial synergies are expected to be in excess of €5 billion, with
approximately 80 percent of synergies to be achieved after four years from the closing of the
Merger. Approximately 75 percent of synergies are expected to arise from technology, platform
and product convergences and procurement savings, approximately 7 percent from SG&A, and
the remaining synergies are expected from all other functions. The annual run-rate synergies are
expected to exceed the costs necessary to achieve such synergies within the first year following
the closing of the Merger, and the total one-time cost to achieve the synergies is estimated at
approximately €4 billion; and

Greater resilience. The transaction will create a more stable and resilient group, significantly
improving its ability to withstand economic downturns, which, in the automotive industry, are
typically exacerbated by high cyclicality; PSA expects that the more robust combined balance
sheet and financial flexibility resulting from the Merger, together with the benefit of the synergies
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and the improved business balance across geographies, will enhance the resilience of the
Combined Group across market cycles.

Valuation, Governance, Support for the Merger

Exchange Ratio. Peugeot S.A. believes that the Exchange Ratio is appropriate in light of PSA's
and FCA's relative market capitalization before the Merger was announced, their respective
prospects and earnings potential, and the expected synergies from the combination, and taking
into account the distributions expected to be made prior to the closing of the Merger. A fixed
Exchange Ratio that will not be adjusted for fluctuations in the market price of PSA Ordinary
Shares or FCA Common Shares is also consistent with the principles underlying the "merger of
equals" structure of the combination;

History of Acquisitions. Each of PSA's and FCA's management teams has a strong track record
in relation to acquisitions and business combinations, demonstrating each party's ability to
execute acquisitions and integrate separate businesses and diverse cultures quickly and
successfully;

Balanced and Effective Governance Structure. Stellantis's proposed governance and
management structure is expected to enable continuity of management, with a strong executive
team drawn from both PSA and FCA, and an effective and timely integration of the two companies'
operations, reflecting the fact that the transaction was structured as a "merger of equals" rather
than an acquisition by one party of the other. See "Stellantis—Senior Management of Stellantis".
In addition, Stellantis's initial governance structure ensures the involvement of experienced long-
term shareholders and includes a majority of independent directors;

Stable and Supportive Shareholder Base. PSA expects that Stellantis will continue to benefit from
the support of a group of long-term PSA Shareholders and FCA Shareholders, who will be
represented on the board of Stellantis and include entities controlled by the founding families of
Fiat and Peugeot, respectively, as well as BPI. The loyalty voting program adopted by Stellantis
is designed to further promote long-term shareholding. For a description of the principal Stellantis
Shareholders, including lock-up commitments of several Reference Shareholders, see "Major
Shareholders of FCA and PSA and Related Party Transactions”, "Major Shareholders of FCA and
PSA and Related Party Transactions—Major Shareholders of Peugeot S.A." and "The
Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and
Shareholder Undertakings —Shareholders Undertakings—Lock-up";

Support for the Merger. Each of the Reference Shareholders has committed to vote its shares in
favor of the approval of the Merger at the relevant shareholders' meeting. In addition, the parties
have committed to a very high standard of efforts to obtain regulatory approvals, by agreeing that
all necessary commitments must be offered to regulators in order to obtain competition approvals,
with limited exceptions. PSA believes there is a high likelihood that the conditions to the Merger
set forth in the Combination Agreement as described under "The Combination Agreement and
Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —
Closing Conditions" will be satisfied.

The following provisions of the Combination Agreement, although reciprocal with FCA, are favorable to

PSA:

The ability of the PSA Supervisory Board, in specified circumstances, to change its
recommendation to PSA Shareholders concerning the Merger, as further described under "The
Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—Certain Covenants—Board of
Directors Recommendations; Change in Recommendations";

The restrictions on FCA's ability to solicit alternative business combination transactions and to
provide confidential due diligence information to, or engage in discussions with, a third party
interested in pursuing an alternative business combination transaction with FCA, as further
discussed under "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The
Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Certain Covenants—Exclusivity; No
Solicitation; Superior Proposal”;

The obligation of FCA to pay PSA a termination fee of €500 million or €250 million upon
termination of the Combination Agreement under specified circumstances as described under
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"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement
and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination Fees";

. The ability of PSA to terminate the Combination Agreement in the event of a Material Adverse
Effect in respect of FCA (as described under "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border
Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination of the
Combination Agreement"); and

o The ability of the PSA Shareholders to vote on the proposed Merger, and that approval of the
proposed Merger by PSA Shareholders is a condition to PSA's obligation to complete the Merger.

In connection with its deliberations relating to the Merger, the PSA Supervisory Board also considered
potential risks and negative factors concerning the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by
the Combination Agreement, including the following:

o The risk that the transaction might not be completed in a timely manner or at all, including as a
result of the failure of the PSA Shareholders to approve the proposed merger or the failure of the
FCA Shareholders to approve the proposed Merger;

o The effect that the length of time from announcement until closing could have on the market price
of PSA Ordinary Shares, PSA's operating results and the relationships with PSA's employees,
shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators, partners and others that do business with PSA,;

o The risk that the anticipated benefits of the Merger will not be realized in full or in part, including
the risk that expected synergies will not be achieved or not be achieved in the expected
timeframe;

. The risk that the regulatory approval process could result in undesirable conditions, burdensome

terms or increased transaction costs;

. The risk of diverting the attention of PSA's senior management from other strategic priorities in
order to implement the Merger and make arrangements for the integration of PSA's and FCA's
operations and infrastructure following the Merger;

o The fact that the Exchange Ratio is fixed and will not be adjusted in the event of a significant
decrease in the market price of FCA's Common Shares;

o The potential impact on the market price of the Stellantis Common Shares as a result of the
issuance of the merger consideration to PSA Shareholders;

o The potential challenges and difficulties relating to integrating the operations of PSA and FCA,
including the costs to achieve the estimated synergies;

o The costs and expenses that PSA has incurred and will incur in connection with the proposed
Merger, regardless of whether the Merger is completed;

. The fact that PSA Shareholders will own approximately 50 percent of outstanding Stellantis
Common Shares and, as such, will have less influence over Stellantis than current PSA
Shareholders have over Peugeot S.A; and

. The obligation of PSA to pay FCA a termination fee of €500 million or €250 million upon
termination of the Combination Agreement under specified circumstances as described under
"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement
and Shareholder Undertakings —Termination Fees".

After consideration of these factors, the PSA Supervisory Board determined that, overall, the potential
benefits of the Merger outweighed the potential risks.

The foregoing discussion of factors considered by the PSA Supervisory Board is not intended to be
exhaustive and may not include all the factors considered. In view of the wide variety of factors considered
in connection with its evaluation of the Merger and the complexity of these matters, the PSA Supervisory
Board did not attempt to quantify, rank or otherwise assign any relative or specific weights to the factors
that it considered in reaching its determination to approve the Merger and the Combination Agreement.
In addition, individual members of the PSA Supervisory Board may have given differing weights to different
factors. The PSA Supervisory Board conducted an overall review of the factors described above and other
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material factors, including through discussions with, and inquiry of, FCA's management and outside legal
and financial advisors.

The foregoing description of PSA's consideration of the factors supporting the Merger is forward-looking
in nature. This information should be read in light of the factors discussed in the section entitled
"Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements".

Recommendation of the Supervisory Board of PSA

The PSA Supervisory Board, having received extensive legal and financial advice, and having given due
and careful consideration to the strategic and financial aspects and consequences of the Merger, at a
meeting held on December 17, 2019, unanimously approved the Merger and, at a meeting held on
September 14, 2020, unanimously approved amendments to certain of the terms of the Merger. On
October 27, 2020, the PSA Supervisory Board unanimously resolved to approve the Cross-Border Merger
Terms. Accordingly, the PSA Supervisory Board supports and unanimously recommends the Merger and
recommends that PSA Shareholders vote "FOR" adoption and approval of the Cross-Border Merger
Terms and the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

In considering the recommendation of the PSA Supervisory Board with respect to voting "FOR" adoption
and approval of the Cross-Border Merger Terms and the transactions contemplated by the combination
agreement, PSA Shareholders should be aware that certain members of the PSA Supervisory Board and
executive officers of PSA may have interests in the merger which are different from, or in addition to, the
interests of PSA Shareholders. The PSA Supervisory Board was aware of and considered these interests,
among other matters, in evaluating and negotiating the transaction agreements and the Merger and in
recommending that PSA Shareholders vote "FOR" adoption and approval of the Cross-Border Merger
Terms and the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement. For a discussion of these
interests, see "—Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger".

Opinions of the Financial Advisors to the Board of Directors of FCA

Below is a description of the opinions rendered and financial analyses performed by Goldman Sachs
International and d'Angelin in connection with FCA N.V.'s entry into the Original Combination Agreement
signed on December 17, 2019. On September 14, 2020, FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. entered into the
Combination Agreement Amendment, amending certain terms of the Merger, as described under "The
Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholder
Undertakings—The Combination Agreement Amendment”. FCA N.V. has determined that the
Combination Agreement Amendment does not materially alter the value of the combination to its
shareholders, and, therefore, FCA N.V. has not obtained a new fairness opinion from Goldman Sachs
International or from d'Angelin in connection with the Combination Agreement Amendment. Therefore,
the definitive documentation reviewed by Goldman Sachs International and the documentation reviewed
by d'Angelin for the purpose of their opinions does not include the Combination Agreement Amendment.

Goldman Sachs International

Goldman Sachs rendered its opinion to the FCA Board that, as of December 17, 2019, and taking into
account the FCA Extraordinary Dividend (in the amount of €5.5 billion as provided in the Original
Combination Agreement) and based upon and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in such
opinion, the exchange ratio pursuant to the definitive documentation to be entered into pursuant to the
Combination Agreement was fair from a financial point of view to FCA N.V.

The full text of the written opinion of Goldman Sachs, dated December 17, 2019, which sets forth
assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review
undertaken in connection with the opinion, is included elsewhere in this Prospectus (see "Index
to the Fairness Opinions"). Goldman Sachs provided advisory services and its opinion for the
information and assistance of the FCA Board in connection with its consideration of the Merger.
The Goldman Sachs opinion is not arecommendation as to how any FCA Shareholder should vote
with respect to the Merger or any other matter.

In connection with rendering the opinion described above and performing its related financial analyses,
Goldman Sachs reviewed, among other things:

o the Combination Agreement;
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. annual reports to shareholders and annual reports on Form 20-F of FCA N.V and the registration
documents of Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia, in each case for the three years ended December 31,

2018;

. interim reports to shareholders of FCA N.V, Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia for the periods ended
June 30, 2019 and September 30, 2019;

o certain other communications from FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. to FCA Shareholders and PSA
Shareholders, respectively;

o certain publicly available research analyst reports for FCA N.V., Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia;

o certain publicly available management guidance for Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia; and

o certain internal financial analyses and forecasts for Peugeot S.A. (excluding Faurecia) on a

standalone basis, as prepared by the management of Peugeot S.A. and approved for Goldman
Sachs' use by FCA N.V., which are referred to as the "PSA Forecasts"; and certain internal
financial analyses and forecasts for FCA N.V. on a standalone basis and pro forma for the Merger
(including certain operating synergies, net of implementation costs, projected to result from the
Merger, as prepared by third-party consultants engaged by FCA N.V. and approved for Goldman
Sachs' use by FCA N.V., which are referred to as the "Synergies"), in each case as prepared by
the management of FCA N.V. and approved for Goldman Sachs' use by FCA N.V., which are
referred to as the "FCA Forecasts".

Goldman Sachs also held discussions with members of the senior managements of FCA and PSA
regarding their assessment of the strategic rationale for, and the potential benefits of, the Merger and the
past and current business operations, financial condition, and future prospects of PSA and with members
of the senior management of FCA regarding their assessment of the past and current business operations,
financial condition and future prospects of FCA; reviewed the reported price and trading activity for the
FCA Common Shares, the PSA Ordinary Shares and the ordinary shares of Faurecia; compared certain
financial and stock market information for FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. with similar information for certain
other companies the securities of which are publicly traded; and performed such other studies and
analyses, and considered such other factors as it deemed appropriate.

For purposes of rendering its opinion, Goldman Sachs, with FCA's consent, relied upon and assumed the
accuracy and completeness of all of the financial, legal, regulatory, tax, accounting and other information
provided to, discussed with or reviewed by it, without assuming any responsibility for independent
verification of any such information. In that regard, Goldman Sachs assumed with FCA's consent that the
PSA Forecasts and the FCA Forecasts, including the Synergies, were reasonably prepared on a basis
reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the management of FCA. Goldman
Sachs did not make an independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets and liabilities (including any
contingent, derivative or other off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities) of FCA, PSA or Faurecia or any of
their respective subsidiaries and it was not furnished with any such evaluation or appraisal. Goldman
Sachs assumed that all governmental, regulatory or other consents and approvals necessary for the
consummation of the Merger will be obtained without any adverse effect on FCA or PSA or on the
expected benefits of the Merger in any way meaningful to its analysis. Goldman Sachs also assumed that
the Merger will be consummated on the terms set forth in the Combination Agreement, in each case
without the waiver or modification of any term or condition the effect of which would be in any way
meaningful to its analysis. Goldman Sachs also assumed that the terms set forth in the definitive
documentation will not differ from those set forth in the Combination Agreement in any way meaningful to
its analysis. In addition, Goldman Sachs assumed with FCA's consent that the FCA Extraordinary
Dividend will have been paid in an amount of €5.5 billion, and that the Faurecia Distribution (contemplating,
in accordance with the Original Combination Agreement, the distribution by Peugeot S.A. to its
shareholders prior to the closing of the Merger, by special or interim dividend, of all the shares held by
Peugeot S.A. in Faurecia) will have been completed, in each case prior to the closing of the Merger.

Goldman Sachs' opinion does not address the underlying business decision of FCA to engage in the
Merger or the relative merits of the Merger as compared to any strategic alternatives that may be available
to FCA; nor does it address any legal, regulatory, tax or accounting matters. Goldman Sachs' opinion
addresses only the fairness from a financial point of view to FCA, as of the date of the opinion and taking
into account the payment of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend (in the amount of €5.5 billion, as provided
under the Original Combination Agreement), of the Exchange Ratio pursuant to the Combination
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Agreement. Goldman Sachs' opinion does not express any view on, and does not address, any other term
or aspect of the Combination Agreement or the Merger or any term or aspect of any other agreement or
instrument contemplated by the Combination Agreement or entered into or amended in connection with
the Merger, any modifications to the voting rights of the FCA Common Shares as a result of the Merger,
the fairness of the Merger to, or any consideration received in connection therewith by, the holders of any
other class of securities, creditors, or other constituencies of FCA; nor as to the fairness of the amount or
nature of any compensation to be paid or payable to any of the officers, directors or employees of FCA or
PSA, or class of such persons, in connection with the Merger, whether relative to the Exchange Ratio
pursuant to the Combination Agreement or otherwise. Goldman Sachs' opinion was necessarily based on
economic, monetary, market and other conditions, as in effect on, and the information made available to
it as of the date of the opinion and Goldman Sachs assumed no responsibility for updating, revising or
reaffirming its opinion based on circumstances, developments or events occurring after the date of its
opinion. In addition, Goldman Sachs does not express any opinion as to the prices at which the FCA
Common Shares will trade at any time or as to the impact of the Merger on the solvency or viability of
FCA or PSA or the ability of FCA or PSA to pay its obligations when they come due. Goldman Sachs'
opinion was approved by a fairness committee of Goldman Sachs.

The following is a summary of the material financial analyses delivered by Goldman Sachs to the FCA
Board in connection with rendering the opinion described above. The following summary, however, does
not purport to be a complete description of the financial analyses performed by Goldman Sachs, nor does
the order of analyses described represent relative importance or weight given to those analyses by
Goldman Sachs. Some of the summaries of the financial analyses include information presented in tabular
format. The tables must be read together with the full text of each summary and are alone not a complete
description of Goldman Sachs' financial analyses. Except as otherwise noted, the following quantitative
information, to the extent that it is based on market data, is based on market data as it existed on or
before (i) October 29, 2019 for FCA, PSA and Faurecia (i.e., the last undisturbed market price before the
publication of rumors relating to the Merger) and (ii) December 11, 2019 for the Selected Companies (as
defined below), and is not necessarily indicative of current market conditions.

Illustrative Present Value of Future Share Price Analysis

Goldman Sachs performed illustrative analyses of the implied present value of an illustrative future price
per FCA Common Share on a standalone basis and pro forma for the Merger. These analyses are
designed to provide an indication of the present value of a theoretical future value of a company's equity
as a function of such company's estimated future earnings and financial multiples.

FCA Standalone

Goldman Sachs first calculated illustrative values per FCA Common Share as of October 29, 2021, for
FCA on a standalone basis exclusive of FCA's net industrial cash position, by applying illustrative price
to the next twelve months ("NTM") cash adjusted earnings per share ("Cash Adjusted P/E") multiples of
3.5x to 5.5x to estimates of 2022 earnings per share using the FCA Forecasts, as adjusted to exclude
interest income on the net industrial cash positions as of December 31, 2021 at an illustrative interest rate
of 0.5% per annum and a 25% tax rate. This illustrative range of multiples was derived by Goldman Sachs
utilizing its professional judgment and experience, taking into account the current and historical NTM Cash
Adjusted P/E multiple ranges for the FCA Common Shares, the PSA Ordinary Shares, the ordinary shares
of Faurecia and the securities of the Selected Companies, which multiples were calculated in the manner
described under "Selected Companies Trading Multiples". Goldman Sachs then added to such illustrative
values the value of FCA's estimated net industrial cash position as of December 31, 2021, and discounted
the sum to present value as of October 29, 2019 using a range of illustrative discount rates of 9.5% to
10.5%, reflecting an estimate of FCA's cost of equity. Goldman Sachs derived such discount rates by
application of the capital asset pricing model ("CAPM"), which requires certain company-specific inputs,
including a beta for the FCA Common Shares as well as certain financial metrics for the European financial
markets generally. Goldman Sachs then added to such values the present value of the cumulative
dividends expected to be paid to the FCA Shareholders in the second quarter of 2020 (presumed to be
€1.1 billion in the aggregate pursuant to the Combination Agreement) and in 2021, based on the FCA
Forecasts, an illustrative assumed payout ratio of 20% and illustrative discount rates ranging from 9.5%
to 10.5%. This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied present values per FCA Common Share,
rounded to the nearest euro, of €17 to €26.
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Pro Forma Combined Group

Goldman Sachs first calculated illustrative values per share of common stock of the pro forma combined
group as of October 29, 2021, exclusive of the value of the pro forma combined group's estimated net
industrial cash position, by applying illustrative NTM Cash Adjusted P/E multiples of 3.5x to 5.5x to
estimates of the pro forma combined group's 2022 earnings per share, as adjusted to exclude interest
income on the pro forma net industrial cash positions as of December 31, 2021 at an illustrative interest
rate of 0.5% per annum and a weighted average tax rate of 23% (reflecting the relative contributions of
FCA and PSA (excluding Faurecia) to adjusted earnings before interest and taxes ("EBIT") in 2022), for
the pro forma combined group, based on the FCA Forecasts and the PSA Forecasts, (A) without the
Synergies (the "No Synergies Analysis"), (B) taking into account only a portion of the Synergies for 2022
(the "Phased Synergies Analysis"), and (C) taking into account the run-rate Synergies as projected (the
"Run-rate Synergies Analysis"). This illustrative range of multiples was derived by Goldman Sachs utilizing
its professional judgment and experience, taking into account the current and historical NTM Cash
Adjusted P/E multiple ranges for the FCA Common Shares, the PSA Ordinary Shares, the ordinary shares
of Faurecia and the securities of the Selected Companies as described above under "FCA Standalone".
Goldman Sachs then added to such illustrative values the value of the pro forma combined group's
estimated net industrial cash position as of December 31, 2021 (calculated as the combined net industrial
cash position of FCA and PSA (excluding Faurecia) using the FCA Forecasts and the PSA Forecasts,
less the FCA Extraordinary Dividend, plus cash flows from the Synergies realizable in 2021), and
discounted the sum to present value as of October 29, 2019 using illustrative discount rates ranging from
9.0% to 10.0%, reflecting an estimate of the pro forma combined group's cost of equity. Goldman Sachs
derived such discount rates by application of CAPM, which requires certain company-specific inputs,
including a beta for the pro forma combined group, as well as certain financial metrics for the European
financial markets generally. Goldman Sachs then added to such values the FCA Extraordinary Dividend
per FCA Common Share and the present value of the cumulative dividends expected to be paid to the
FCA Shareholders in the second quarter of 2020 and in 2021, determined based on the FCA Forecasts,
an illustrative assumed payout ratio of 20% per guidance from the management of FCA and a range of
illustrative discount rates of 9.0% to 10.0%.

No Synergies

For the No Synergies Analysis, Goldman Sachs took into account no Synergies in the estimate of 2022
cash adjusted earnings per share. This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied equity values per
FCA common share, rounded to the nearest euro, of €20 to €27.

Phased Synergies

For the Phased Synergies Analysis, Goldman Sachs took into account only a portion of the Synergies
potentially realizable in 2022, based on a schedule prepared by the management of FCA and approved
for Goldman Sachs' use by FCA, and taxed at a weighted average tax rate of 23%, to the estimate of
2022 cash adjusted earnings per share while Goldman Sachs assumed that the estimated pro forma net
industrial cash position as of December 31, 2021 included the estimated cash flow from the Synergies
realizable in 2021. This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied equity values per FCA Common
Share, rounded to the nearest euro, of €21 to €29.

Run-rate Synergies

For the Run-rate Synergies Analysis, Goldman Sachs took into account the run-rate Synergies as
projected, taxed at a weighted average tax rate of 23%, to the estimate of 2022 cash adjusted earnings
per share while Goldman Sachs assumed the estimated pro forma net industrial cash position as of
December 31, 2021 included the estimated cash flow from the Synergies realizable in 2021. This analysis
indicated a range of illustrative implied equity values per FCA Common Share, rounded to the nearest
euro, of €23 to €32.

Illustrative Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

Using the FCA Forecasts, the PSA Forecasts and the Synergies, Goldman Sachs performed illustrative
discounted cash flow analyses with respect to FCA on a standalone basis and pro forma for the Merger.

FCA Standalone

Using discount rates ranging from 7.0% to 9.0%, reflecting estimates of FCA's weighted average cost of
capital ("WACC"), Goldman Sachs discounted to present value as of June 30, 2019 (i) estimates of the
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projected unlevered free cash flow for FCA for the six months ended December 31, 2019 and calendar
years 2020 through 2022, and (ii) a range of illustrative terminal values for FCA derived by applying
enterprise value, which is the market value of common equity plus net debt, to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") multiples ("EV/EBITDA multiples") ranging from 1.5x to
3.0x to a terminal year estimate of FCA's EBITDA as reflected in the FCA Forecasts (which multiples
mathematically implied negative perpetuity growth rates ranging from (3.7)% to (15.2)%). The range of
EV/EBITDA multiples was derived by Goldman Sachs utilizing its professional judgment and experience,
taking into account current and historical last 12 months' EV/EBITDA multiples for FCA, PSA, Faurecia
and the Selected Companies. Goldman Sachs derived such discount rates by application of CAPM, taking
into account certain company-specific inputs including FCA's target capital structure weightings, the cost
of long-term debt, after-tax yield on permanent excess cash, if any, future applicable marginal cash tax
rate and a beta for the FCA Common Shares, as well as certain financial metrics for the European financial
markets generally. Goldman Sachs derived the ranges of illustrative enterprise values for FCA by adding
the ranges of present values it derived as described above. Goldman Sachs then added to such a range
of illustrative enterprise values the amount of FCA's net industrial cash as of June 30, 2019, and
subtracted therefrom (x) the amount of FCA's unfunded pension liabilities, taxed at an illustrative tax rate
of 25%, and (y) FCA's non-controlling interests as of June 30, 2019, as provided by the management of
FCA, to derive a range of illustrative equity values for FCA as of June 30, 2019. Goldman Sachs then
accreted the illustrative equity values for FCA as of June 30, 2019 to present values as of October 29,
2019, by using an illustrative cost of equity of 10%. This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied
equity values per FCA Common Share, rounded to the nearest euro, of €21 to €37.

Pro Forma Combined Group

No Synergies

Using discount rates ranging from 7.0% to 9.0%, reflecting estimates of WACC for the pro forma combined
group, Goldman Sachs discounted to present value as of June 30, 2019 (i) estimates of the projected
unlevered free cash flow for the pro forma combined group for the six months ended December 31, 2019,
and calendar years 2020 through 2022 and (ii) a range of illustrative terminal values for the pro forma
combined group derived by applying EV/EBITDA multiples ranging from 1.5x to 3.0x to a terminal year
estimated EBITDA of the pro forma combined group as reflected in the FCA Forecasts and the PSA
Forecasts (which multiples mathematically implied negative perpetuity growth rates ranging from (4.8)%
to (16.9)%). The range of EV/EBITDA multiples was derived by Goldman Sachs utilizing its professional
judgment and experience, taking into account the current and historical last 12 months' EV/EBITDA
multiples for FCA, PSA, Faurecia and the Selected Companies. Goldman Sachs derived such discount
rates by application of CAPM, taking into account certain company-specific inputs including the pro forma
combined group's target capital structure weightings, the cost of long-term debt, after-tax yield on
permanent excess cash, if any, future applicable marginal cash tax rate and a beta for the pro forma
combined group, as well as certain financial metrics for the European financial markets generally.
Goldman Sachs derived the ranges of illustrative enterprise values for the pro forma combined group by
adding the ranges of present values it derived as described above. Goldman Sachs then added to such
a range of illustrative enterprise values the amount of the estimated net industrial cash of the pro forma
combined group as of June 30, 2019 (before the FCA Extraordinary Dividend is deducted), and subtracted
therefrom (x) the amount of unfunded pension liabilities of each of FCA and PSA (excluding Faurecia) as
of June 30, 2019, taxed at an illustrative tax rate of 25% and 20%, respectively, and (y) estimated pro
forma non-controlling interests as of June 30, 2019, as provided by the management of FCA, to derive a
range of illustrative equity values for the pro forma combined group as of June 30, 2019. Goldman Sachs
then accreted the illustrative equity values for the pro forma combined group as of June 30, 2019 to
present values as of October 29, 2019, by using an illustrative cost of equity of 9.5%, and deducted from
such values the amount of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend per share of common stock of the pro forma
combined group. Goldman Sachs then added to the illustrative equity values per share of common stock
of the pro forma combined group the amount of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend per FCA Common Share.
This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied equity values per FCA Common Share, rounded to
the nearest euro, of €22 to €34.

Including Synergies

Goldman Sachs also performed an illustrative discounted cash flow analysis to determine the net present
value of the Synergies. Using discount rates ranging from 7.0% to 9.0%, reflecting estimates of WACC
for the pro forma combined group, Goldman Sachs discounted to present value as of October 29, 2019
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(i) estimates of the projected unlevered free cash flow comprising the Synergies for calendar years 2021
to 2029, and (ii) a range of illustrative terminal values for the Synergies by applying the same range of
EV/EBITDA multiples (1.5x to 3.0x) to a terminal year estimated EBIT contribution of the Synergies. This
analysis indicated a range of illustrative present values of €13 billion to €17 billion, which values were
added to the range of illustrative implied equity values for the pro forma combined group described above.
The sum was then divided by the number of fully diluted outstanding shares of the pro forma combined
group to arrive at per share values. This analysis indicated a range of illustrative implied equity values
per FCA Common Share, rounded to the nearest euro, of €26 to €40.

Selected Companies Trading Multiples

For purposes of the lllustrative Present Value of Future Stock Price Analysis and the lllustrative
Discounted Cash Flow Analysis described above, using publicly available information, Goldman Sachs
calculated the following for FCA, PSA excluding Faurecia, PSA and each of GM; Ford Motor Company
("Ford"); Volkswagen AG ("VW"); Daimler AG ("Daimler"); and Bayerische Motoren Werke AG ("BMW"
and, together with GM, Ford, VW, and Daimler, the "Selected Companies"): (i) the share price to earnings
ratio calculated using estimated earnings for 2020 ("2020E P/E"); (ii) Cash Adjusted P/E multiples using
estimated earnings for 2020, computed by reducing the share price by the amount of net cash per share
and reducing the earnings by the implied loss of interest income corresponding to the deemed elimination
of cash (assuming a 0.5% per annum interest rate and a tax rate of 25%); in computing 2020E Cash
Adjusted P/E multiples, Goldman Sachs used the net industrial cash position as of June 30, 2019 for FCA,
PSA excluding Faurecia and PSA, and as of September 30, 2019 for the Selected Companies; and (iii)
enterprise value, which is the market value of common equity plus net industrial debt as of June 30, 2019
for FCA, PSA excluding Faurecia and PSA, and as of September 30, 2019 for the Selected Companies,
as a multiple of estimated EBITDA for 2019 ("2019E EV/ EBITDA") and 2020 ("2020E EV/ EBITDA").

The following table presents the multiples calculated by Goldman Sachs:

Median of the

PSA ex- Selected
FCA Faurecia PSA GM Ford VW Daimler BMW Companies
2020E P/IE  4.1x 6.1x 6.3x 55x 6.9x 6.2x 9.5x 7.9x 6.6x
2020E
Cash
Adjusted
Jp/E 3.4x 3.0x 4.2x 5.1x 5.6x 5.7x 7.8x 5.3x 5.5x
2019E
EV/EBITDA 1.8x 1.7x 2.2x  2.7x 3.4x 3.0x 3.6x 2.7x 2.9x
2020E
EV/EBITDA 1.7x 1.6x 2.2x  2.4x 3.0x 3.0x 3.1x 2.5x 2.7x

Although none of the Selected Companies is directly comparable to FCA and PSA, the Selected
Companies included were chosen because they are publicly traded companies with operations that for
purposes of analysis may be considered similar to certain operations of FCA and PSA.

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to partial
analysis or summary description. Selecting portions of the analyses or of the summary set forth above,
without considering the analyses as a whole, could create an incomplete view of the processes underlying
Goldman Sachs' opinion. In arriving at its fairness determination, Goldman Sachs considered the results
of all of its analyses and did not attribute any particular weight to any factor or analysis considered by it.
Rather, Goldman Sachs made its determination as to fairness on the basis of its experience and
professional judgment after considering the results of all of its analyses. No company or transaction used
in the above analyses as a comparison is directly comparable to FCA or PSA or the contemplated Merger.

Goldman Sachs prepared these analyses for purposes of Goldman Sachs providing its opinion to the FCA
Board as to the fairness from a financial point of view to FCA, as of the date of the opinion and taking into
account the payment of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend (in the amount of €5.5 billion, as provided under
the Original Combination Agreement), of the Exchange Ratio pursuant to the definitive documentation to
be entered into pursuant to the Combination Agreement. These analyses do not purport to be appraisals
nor do they necessarily reflect the prices at which businesses or securities actually may be sold. Analyses
based upon forecasts of future results are not necessarily indicative of actual future results, which may
be significantly more or less favorable than suggested by these analyses. Because these analyses are
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inherently subject to uncertainty, being based upon numerous factors or events beyond the control of the
parties or their respective advisors, none of FCA, PSA, Goldman Sachs or any other person assumes
responsibility if future results are materially different from those forecasted.

The Exchange Ratio was determined through arm's-length negotiations between FCA and PSA and was
approved by the FCA Board. Goldman Sachs provided advice to FCA during these negotiations. Goldman
Sachs did not, however, recommend any specific exchange ratio to FCA or its board of directors or that
any specific exchange ratio constituted the only appropriate exchange ratio for the Merger.

Miscellaneous

As described above, Goldman Sachs' opinion to the FCA Board was one of many factors taken into
consideration by the FCA Board in making its determination to approve the Combination Agreement. The
foregoing summary does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses performed by Goldman
Sachs in connection with the fairness opinion and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the written
opinion of Goldman Sachs as included elsewhere in this Prospectus (see "Index to the Fairness
Opinions").

Goldman Sachs and its affiliates are engaged in advisory, underwriting and financing, principal investing,
sales and trading, research, investment management and other financial and non-financial activities and
services for various persons and entities. Goldman Sachs and its affiliates and employees, and funds or
other entities they manage or in which they invest or have other economic interests or with which they co-
invest, may at any time purchase, sell, hold or vote long or short positions and investments in securities,
derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments of FCA,
PSA, any of their respective affiliates and third parties, including Exor, a significant shareholder of FCA,
EPF/FFP, a significant shareholder of PSA, Dongfeng, a significant shareholder of PSA, and BPI, a
significant shareholder of PSA, and their respective affiliates and, as applicable, portfolio companies, or
any currency or commodity that may be involved in the transaction contemplated by the Combination
Agreement. Goldman Sachs acted as financial advisor to FCA in connection with, and participated in
certain of the negotiations leading to, the Merger. Goldman Sachs has provided certain financial advisory
and/or underwriting services to FCA and its affiliates from time to time for which the Investment Banking
Division of Goldman Sachs has received, and may receive, compensation, including having acted as
financial advisor to FCA with respect to its sale of Magneti Marelli S.p.A. in May 2019. During the two-
year period ended December 17, 2019, Goldman Sachs has recognized compensation for financial
advisory and/or underwriting services provided by its Investment Banking Division to FCA and/or its
affiliates (excluding Exor and/or its affiliates) of approximately $6.2 million. Goldman Sachs also has
provided certain financial advisory and/or underwriting services to PSA and its affiliates from time to time
for which the Investment Banking Division of Goldman Sachs has received, and may receive,
compensation, including having acted as bookrunner to Faurecia with respect to its offering of 3.125%
senior notes due 2026 (aggregate principal amount €500,000,000) in March 2019. During the two-year
period ended December 17, 2019, Goldman Sachs has recognized compensation for financial advisory
and/or underwriting services provided by its Investment Banking Division to PSA and/or its affiliates
(excluding EPF/FFP, Dongfeng, BPI and their respective affiliates) of approximately $0.3 million. Goldman
Sachs also has provided certain financial advisory and/or underwriting services to Exor and its affiliates
from time to time for which the Investment Banking Division of Goldman Sachs has received, and may
receive, compensation, including having acted as bookrunner to CNH Industrial Capital LLC, an affiliate
of Exor, with respect to the public offering of its 4.200% notes due 2024 (aggregate principal amount
$500,000,000) in August 2018; as bookrunner to PartnerRe Limited, an affiliate of Exor, with respect to
the public offering of its 3.700% senior notes due 2029 (aggregate principal amount $500,000,000); and
as bookrunner to CNH Industrial N.V., an affiliate of Exor, with respect to the public offering of its 1.625%
notes due 2029 (aggregate principal amount €500,000,000) in June 2019. During the two-year period
ended December 17, 2019, Goldman Sachs has recognized compensation for financial advisory and/or
underwriting services provided by its Investment Banking Division to Exor and/or its affiliates of
approximately $4.0 million. Goldman Sachs also has provided certain financial advisory and/or
underwriting services to BPI and its affiliates from time to time for which the Investment Banking Division
of Goldman Sachs has received, and may receive, compensation, including having acted as bookrunner
to Bpifrance Financement S.A., an affiliate of BPI, in connection with the public offering of its 0.250%
notes due 2023 (aggregate principal amount €1,000,000,000) in February 2018; as bookrunner to
Bpifrance Financement S.A. in connection with the public offering of its 0.625% notes due 2026
(aggregate principal amount €750,000,000) in July 2019; and as bookrunner to BPI France Investissement,
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an affiliate of BPI, with respect to the public offering of its 0.875% notes due 2028 (aggregate principal
amount €50,000,000) in July 2019. During the two-year period ended December 17, 2019, based on
Goldman Sachs' books and records, Goldman Sachs has recognized compensation for financial advisory
and/or underwriting services provided by its Investment Banking Division to BPI and/or its affiliates of
approximately $0.6 million. Goldman Sachs also has provided certain financial advisory and/or
underwriting services to the government of the People's Republic of China (including its agencies and
instrumentalities), a significant shareholder of Dongfeng, and their respective affiliates from time to time
for which the Investment Banking Division of Goldman Sachs has received, and may receive,
compensation. Goldman Sachs may also in the future provide financial advisory and/or underwriting
services to PSA, PSA, Exor, EPF/FFP, Dongfeng, BPI, the government of the People's Republic of China
(including its agencies and instrumentalities) and their respective affiliates and, as applicable, portfolio
companies, for which the Investment Banking Division of Goldman Sachs may receive compensation.
Affiliates of Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC also may have co-invested with Exor and its affiliates from time to
time and may have invested in limited partnership units of affiliates of Exor from time to time and may do
so in the future.

The FCA Board selected Goldman Sachs as its financial advisor because it is an internationally
recognized investment banking firm that has substantial experience in transactions similar to the Merger.
Pursuant to a letter agreement dated November 4, 2019, FCA engaged Goldman Sachs to act as its
financial advisor in connection with the Merger. The engagement letter between FCA and Goldman Sachs
provides for a transaction fee that is estimated, based on the information available as of the date of
announcement, at approximately $35 million, $7.5 million of which became payable at announcement of
the Combination Agreement, and the remainder of which is contingent upon consummation of the Merger.
In addition, FCA has agreed to reimburse Goldman Sachs for certain of its expenses, including attorneys'
fees and disbursements, and to indemnify Goldman Sachs and related persons against various liabilities,
including certain liabilities under the federal securities laws.

d'Angelin & Co.

FCA has retained d'Angelin to act as its financial advisor in connection with the Merger. FCA selected
d'Angelin to act as its financial advisor based on its employees' qualifications and experience, d'Angelin’s
reputation as an internationally recognized investment banking firm and d'Angelin's familiarity with FCA.
As part of this engagement, FCA requested that d'Angelin evaluate the fairness to FCA, from a financial
point of view, of the exchange ratio pursuant to the Combination Agreement, subject to the FCA
Extraordinary Dividend (in the amount of €5.5 billion, as provided under the Original Combination
Agreement) and the Faurecia Distribution (contemplating, in accordance with the Original Combination
Agreement, the distribution by Peugeot S.A. to its shareholders prior to the closing of the Merger, by
special or interim dividend, of all of the shares held by Peugeot S.A. in Faurecia) (together, the "Proposed
Distributions™").

At a meeting of the FCA Board held on December 17, 2019, d'Angelin rendered to the FCA Board its
opinion, which d'Angelin subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated as of December
18, 2019 (the "Opinion Date") to the effect that, as of December 17, 2019 and the Opinion Date,
respectively, and based upon and subject to the various assumptions made, procedures followed, matters
considered and qualifications and limitations on the scope of review undertaken by d'Angelin described
in d'Angelin's opinion, the exchange ratio pursuant to the Combination Agreement was fair, from a
financial point of view, to FCA.

The full text of d'Angelin's written opinion, dated December 18, 2019, which sets forth, among
other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications
and limitations on the scope of review undertaken by d'Angelin in delivering its opinion, is
included elsewhere in this Prospectus (see "Index to the Fairness Opinions"). The description of
d'Angelin's written opinion set forth in this Prospectus is qualified in its entirety by the full text of
such opinion. d'Angelin's opinion does not constitute a recommendation to the FCA Board or to
any other persons in respect of the Merger, including as to how any holder of FCA Common Shares
should vote or act with respect to the Merger. Prospective investors are encouraged to read
d'Angelin's opinion carefully and in its entirety.

In connection with delivering its opinion, d'Angelin, among other things:

. reviewed a draft of the Combination Agreement in the form provided to d'Angelin;
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. reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial
information of FCA N.V., Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia;

. reviewed FCA's and PSA's internal business plan financial projections for the period 2019 through
2022 ("Management Figures"), which were provided to d'Angelin, and approved for d'Angelin's
use, by FCA's management;

o reviewed certain publicly available research analysts' consensus financial forecasts for FCA N.V.,
Peugeot S.A. and Faurecia for the period 2019 through 2022 ("Consensus Figures");

o reviewed certain estimates relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits
anticipated from the Merger, including projected synergies ("Synergies"), which were provided to
d'Angelin, and approved for d'Angelin's use, by FCA's management;

o discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of FCA with
senior executives of FCA;

o reviewed the pro forma impact of the transaction on earnings per share to the holders of FCA
Common Shares and certain other financial metrics, including the potential value creation and
investment returns;

. reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for the listed and or reported trading of the FCA
Common Shares, PSA Ordinary Shares and Faurecia shares;

. compared, to the extent publicly available, the financial performance of FCA and PSA and the
prices and trading activity of the FCA Common Shares and PSA Ordinary Shares, with those of
certain other publicly traded companies that were deemed relevant, and their securities; and

o performed such other analyses and reviewed such other material and information as deemed
appropriate.

For purposes of its analysis and opinion, d'Angelin assumed and relied upon the accuracy and
completeness of the financial and other information publicly available, and all of the information supplied
or otherwise made available to d'Angelin by FCA, without any independent verification of such information
(and does not assume responsibility or liability for any independent verification of such information), and
further relied upon the assurance of the management of FCA that they were not aware of any facts or
circumstances that would make such information inaccurate or misleading. With respect to the
Management Figures and the Synergies, d'Angelin assumed with FCA's consent that they were
reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and good faith judgments
of the management of FCA as to the future financial performance of FCA and PSA and the other matters
covered thereby. d'Angelin relied, at the direction of FCA, on the assessments of the managements of
FCA and PSA as to the ability to achieve the Synergies. d'Angelin expressed no view as to the
Management Figures and the Synergies, or the assumptions on which they are based.

For purposes of its analysis and opinion, d'Angelin assumed, in all respects material to its analysis, that
(i) the representations and warranties of each party contained in the Combination Agreement were true
and correct, (ii) the Proposed Distributions will occur prior to the Merger, (iii) each party would perform all
of the covenants and agreements required to be performed by it under the Combination Agreement, (iv)
all conditions to the completion of the Merger would be satisfied without waiver or modification of such
conditions, and (v) the definitive Combination Agreement would not differ in any material respect from the
draft of the Combination Agreement furnished to d'Angelin. d'Angelin further assumed, in all respects
material to d'Angelin's analysis, that all governmental, regulatory or other consents, approvals or releases
necessary for the completion of the Merger would be obtained without any delay, limitation, restriction or
condition that would have an adverse effect on FCA, PSA or the completion of the Merger or reduce the
contemplated benefits to FCA of the Merger.

d'Angelin was not asked to pass upon, and expressed no opinion with respect to, any matter other than
the fairness to FCA, from a financial point of view, of the Exchange Ratio (which, for the avoidance of
doubt, contemplates the consummation of the Proposed Distributions prior to the Merger) as of the
Opinion Date. d'Angelin did not express any view on, and d'Angelin's opinion did not address, the fairness
of the proposed merger to, or any consideration received in connection therewith by the officers, directors
or employees of FCA or PSA, or any class of such persons, whether relative to the consideration to be
paid to the holders of FCA Common Shares in the Merger or otherwise. d'Angelin was not asked to, nor
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did it express any view on, and d'Angelin’'s opinion did not address, the valuation of the Faurecia stake
distributed to PSA Shareholders other than the value observable in the market on December 12, 2019,
nor any other term or aspect of the Combination Agreement or the Merger, including, without limitation,
the Proposed Distributions, the structure or form of the Merger, or any term or aspect of any other
agreement or instrument contemplated by the Combination Agreement or entered into or amended in
connection with the Combination Agreement. d'Angelin’s opinion did not address the relative merits of the
Merger as compared to other business or financial strategies that might be available to FCA, nor did it
address the underlying business decision of FCA to engage in the Merger. d'Angelin did not express any
view on, and d'Angelin's opinion did not address, what the value of FCA Common Shares actually would
be when issued or the prices at which FCA Common Shares would trade at any time, including following
announcement or completion of the Merger. d'Angelin is not a legal, regulatory, accounting or tax advisor
and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of assessments by FCA
and its advisors with respect to legal, regulatory, accounting and tax matters.

Set forth below is a summary of the material financial analyses reviewed by d'Angelin with the FCA Board
on December 17, 2019 in connection with rendering its opinion. The following summary, however, does
not purport to be a complete description of the analyses performed by d'Angelin. The order of the analyses
described and the results of these analyses do not represent relative importance or weight given to these
analyses by d'Angelin. Except as otherwise noted, d’Angelin's opinion summarized below was based upon
information made available to d'Angelin as of the Opinion Date and financial, economic, monetary, market,
regulatory and other conditions and circumstances as they existed and as could be evaluated on such
date, with the exception of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. share prices and Consensus Figures, which were
reviewed as of October 29, 2019 (the "Undisturbed Date"). d'Angelin has no obligation to update, revise
or reaffirm its opinion based on subsequent developments.

For purposes of its analyses and reviews, d'Angelin considered general business, economic, market and
financial conditions, industry sector performance and other matters, as they existed and could be
evaluated as of the Opinion Date, many of which are beyond the control of FCA and PSA. These include,
among other things, the impact of competition on the business of FCA, PSA and the automotive and
automotive finance industries generally, industry growth, and the absence of any material adverse change
in the financial condition and prospects of FCA, PSA and the automotive and automotive finance industries,
or in the financial markets in general. The estimates contained in d'Angelin's analyses and reviews, and
the ranges of valuations resulting from any particular analysis or review, are not necessarily indicative of
actual values or predictive of future results or values, which may be significantly more or less favorable
than those suggested by d'Angelin's analyses and reviews. In addition, analyses and reviews relating to
the value of companies, businesses or securities do not purport to be appraisals or to reflect the prices at
which companies, businesses or securities actually may be sold. Accordingly, the estimates used in, and
the results derived from, d'Angelin's analyses and reviews are inherently subject to substantial uncertainty
and d'Angelin assumes no responsibility if future results are materially different from those forecasted in
such estimates.

The following summary of d'Angelin’s financial analyses includes information presented in tabular
format. In order to fully understand the analyses, the tables should be read together with the full
text of each summary. The tables are not intended to stand alone and alone do not constitute a
complete description of d'Angelin's financial analyses. Considering the tables below without
considering the full narrative description of d'Angelin's financial analyses, including the
methodologies and assumptions underlying such analyses, could create a misleading or
incomplete view of such analyses. Furthermore, mathematical analysis is not in itself a meaningful
method of using the data referred to below.

Summary of d'Angelin’'s Financial Analyses

For the purposes of the valuation analyses set forth in the sections below, d'Angelin reviewed and
compared certain financial information of FCA and PSA to corresponding financial multiples and ratios for
the following selected publicly traded companies in the automotive Original Equipment Manufacturer
industry, referred to as the "Automotive Peers":

. BMW;
o Daimler;
o Ford;
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. GM;

. Renault SA, referred to as "Renault"; and

. VW,

For each of the Automotive Peers, in addition to FCA and PSA, d'Angelin calculated:

. Total industrial enterprise value (defined as market capitalization, less financial services equity
value, plus preferred stock, plus net industrial debt, plus non-controlling interests, plus unfunded
pension obligations, less investments in unconsolidated affiliates) as a multiple of estimated
calendar year 2020 EBIT (defined as earnings before interest and taxes) and EBITDA (defined
as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), referred to as 2020E
EV/EBIT and 2020E EV/EBITDA, respectively;

o Total enterprise value as a multiple of next-twelve-months EBIT and EBITDA, calculated on a
daily basis for the three years prior to December 12, 2019, referred to as Historical EV/EBIT and
Historical EV/EBITDA, respectively; and

. The price of a share of common stock as a multiple of estimated calendar year 2020 EPS
(defined as earnings per share), referred to as 2020E P/E.

In evaluating the Automotive Peers, d'Angelin made judgments and assumptions with regard to general
business, economic and market conditions affecting the Automotive Peers and other matters, as well as
differences in the Automotive Peers' financial, business and operating characteristics. Such analysis
involves complex considerations and judgments regarding many factors that could affect the relative
values of the Automotive Peers and the multiples derived from the Automotive Peers, including market
positioning, geographical exposure and specific business perspectives. Mathematical analysis, such as
determining the mean or median of valuation multiples cannot, in itself, be deemed a meaningful method
of using the data of the Automotive Peers.

When conducting valuation analyses involving Automotive Peers' trading multiples, d'Angelin assessed
the value of FCA and PSA based on both Management Figures and Consensus Figures. For all other
valuation analyses, d'Angelin focused primarily on Management Figures. Financial data of the Automotive
Peers was based on S&P Capital I1Q, public filings and other publicly available information.

In calculating the implied exchange ratios as reflected in the financial analyses described below, d'Angelin
used the ranges of implied share prices of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A., adjusted for the FCA Extraordinary
Dividend (€5.5bn) and the Faurecia Distribution (at market value as of December 12, 2019 and
contemplating, in accordance with the Original Combination Agreement, the distribution by PSA to its
shareholders prior to the closing of the Merger, by special or interim dividend, of all of the shares held by
PSA in Faurecia), respectively (the "Distribution-Adjusted Share Prices"). d'Angelin divided the lowest
Distribution-Adjusted Share Price for PSA by the highest Distribution-Adjusted Share Price for FCA, to
obtain the low end of the exchange ratio range; and divided the highest Distribution-Adjusted Share Price
for PSA by the lowest Distribution-Adjusted Share Price for FCA, to obtain the high end of the exchange
ratio range.

In valuing FCA Common Shares and PSA Ordinary Shares, d'Angelin used both sum-of-the-parts ("SOTP")
valuation methodologies and consolidated valuation methodologies (see below), as set forth in the
sections below. Under SOTP valuation methodologies, d'Angelin assessed the valuation of core industrial
activities ("Industrial Activities") separately from financial services activities ("Financial Services") for
both FCA and PSA. Under consolidated valuation methodologies, Industrial Activities and Financial
Services were valued together on a consolidated basis.

SOTP Valuation Methodologies
FCA

Financial Services Valuation

For the purpose of valuing FCA's Financial Services separately from Industrial Activities, d'Angelin
reviewed (i) Price-to-Book Value ("P/BV") multiples from listed trading comparables, (ii) P/BV from PSA's
acquisition of GM's European Financial Services, and (iii) P/BV implied from a regression analysis of P/BV
— LTM RoE from a list of banking peers, each in an attempt to provide an implied value of FCA's Financial
Services by comparing it to companies conducting similar activities that are publicly traded and a
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transaction in the industry in which it operates, respectively. Based on the foregoing and based on its
professional judgment and experience, d'Angelin applied the P/BV multiple ranges summarized in the
table below:

FCA
Financial
Services
Implied
Equity
Valuation Methodology P/BV Range Valuation
PSA's Acquisition of GM's European Financial Services 0.8x €1.6 bn
Trading Comparables 1.1x €2.2 bn
€1.8 bn -
ROE - P/BV Regression 0.9x - 1.1x €2.2 bn
€1.6 bn -
Selected Range 0.8x - 1.1x €2.2 bn

Industrial Activities Valuation | Based on Trading Multiples

d'Angelin performed a comparable company trading analysis in an attempt to provide an implied value of
FCA's Industrial Activities by comparing it to companies conducting similar activities that are publicly
traded. For the purpose of valuing FCA's Industrial Activities using trading multiples, d'Angelin split FCA's
Industrial Activities into (i) North America, (ii) rest of the world ("ROW"), and (iii) Maserati, each valued
separately on an EV/EBITDA basis, in line with research analysts' methodology in valuing U.S. automotive
businesses. Based on selected Automotive Peers' EV/EBITDA and based on its professional judgment
and experience, d'Angelin derived the following valuation, using both Management Figures and
Consensus Figures:

Valuation Based on Management Figures

FCA
Industrial
Activities
2020E Implied Implied
Industrial Enterprise
Division EV/EBITDA Value
€31.5 bn -
Industrial Activities (North America + ROW + Maserati) 2.4x - 2.9x €37.9 bn
Valuation Based on Consensus Figures
FCA
Industrial
Activities
2020E Implied Implied
Industrial Enterprise
Division EV/EBITDA Value
. L : . €29.4 bn -
Industrial Activities (North America + ROW + Maserati) 2.4x - 2.9x €35.4 bn

Industrial Activities Valuation | Based on Discounted Cash Flows ("DCF")

d'Angelin performed a discounted cash flow analysis, which is designed to provide an implied value of
FCA's Industrial Activities by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows and terminal
value of FCA's Industrial Activities. For the purpose of such valuation, d'Angelin calculated the estimated
present value of Industrial Activities' unlevered, after-tax free cash flows that FCA was forecasted to
generate during FCA's fiscal years 2019 through 2022 based on Management Figures. For purposes of
this analysis, unlevered after-tax free cash flows were calculated as EBITDA, less taxes, plus / minus
change in net working capital and less capital expenditures. d'Angelin calculated terminal values for FCA's
Industrial Activities by applying an exit EV/EBIT multiple range of 2.5-3.0x, based on Automotive Peers'
Historical EV/EBIT multiples and d'Angelin's professional judgment and experience, to a terminal year
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estimate of the unlevered, after-tax free cash flows that FCA was forecasted to generate based on
Management Figures. The cash flows and terminal values in each case were then discounted to present
value as of December 12, 2019 using the mid-year cash flow discounting convention and a discount rate
of 8.1%, which discount rate was selected, upon the application of d'Angelin's professional judgment and
experience, to reflect a weighted average cost of capital calculation for FCA Industrial Activities. The DCF
assumptions and implied valuation are summarized in the table below:

DCF Assumptions

FCA Industrial Activities Implied
WACC Exit EBIT Margin Exit NTM EV/EBIT Enterprise Value

8.1% 6.0% - 8.0% 2.5x - 3.5x €32.2 bn - €39.7 bn

Sum-of-the-Parts

Using the foregoing valuations of FCA's Financial Services and Industrial Activities, along with FCA's
forecasts and the number of fully diluted outstanding FCA Common Shares as provided to d'Angelin by
FCA's management, this valuation analysis indicated the following ranges of equity value of FCA and
implied per share equity value for FCA Common Shares:

Industrial Industrial

Activities Activities Financial Implied
Valuation Enterprise Value Industrial  Services Equity Implied FCA FCA Share
Methodology (EV) EV Bridge Value Equity Value Price
Trading

Multiples (Mgmt €30.4 bn - €37.5 €19.19 -
Case) €31.5bn-€37.9bn €2.6)bn €1.6 bn-€2.2 bn bn €23.66
Trading

Multiples (Cons. €28.4 bn - €35.0 €17.89 -
Case) €29.4bn-€354bn €2.6)bn €1.6bn-€2.2bn bn €22.05
DCF

(Management €31.2 bn - €39.3 €19.64 -
Case) €32.2bn-€39.7bn €(2.6)bn €1.6 bn-€2.2 bn bn €24.78

Note: Industrial EV Bridge is defined as the negative sum of net industrial debt, plus non-controlling interests, plus unfunded pension
obligations, less investments in unconsolidated affiliates

PSA
Financial Services Valuation

For the purpose of valuing PSA's Financial Services, and in line with the valuation performed for FCA's
Financial Services, d'Angelin reviewed (i) P/BV multiples from listed trading comparables, (ii) P/BV from
PSA's acquisition of GM's European Financial Services, and (iii) P/BV implied from a regression analysis
of P/BV — LTM RoE from a list of European banking peers, each in an attempt to provide an implied value
of PSA's Financial Services by comparing it to companies conducting similar activities that are publicly
traded and a transaction in the industry in which it operates, respectively. Based on the foregoing and
based on its professional judgment and experience, d'Angelin applied the P/BV multiple ranges
summarized in the table below:
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PSA

Financial
Services
Implied
. Equity
Valuation Methodology P/BV Range Valuation
PSA's Acquisition of GM's European Financial Services 0.8x €2.4 bn
Trading Comparables 1.1x €3.3 bn
ROE - P/BV Regression 0.9 - 1.1x €2.7.bn-
€2.4 bn -
Selected Range 0.8x - 1.1x €3.3 bn

Industrial Activities Valuation | Based on Trading Multiples

d'Angelin performed a comparable company trading analysis in an attempt to provide an implied value of
PSA's Industrial Activities by comparing it to companies conducting similar activities that are publicly
traded. For the purpose of valuing PSA's Industrial Activities using trading multiples, d'Angelin valued
Industrial Activities on an EV/EBIT basis, in line with research analysts' methodology in valuing European
automotive businesses. Based on selected Automotive Peers' EV/EBIT and based on its professional
judgment and experience, d'Angelin applied the trading multiple reference ranges summarized in the table
below:

Valuation Based on Management Figures
Selected Multiples PSA Industrial

o 2020E Implied Activities
Division Industrial EV/EBIT Implied
. L : €22.6 bn - €25.1
Industrial Activities (Peugeot-Citroen + Opel-Vauxhall) 4.0x - 4.5x bn

Valuation Based on Consensus Figures

Selected Multiples PSA Industrial

2020E Implied Activities
Division Industrial EV/EBIT Implied
Industrial Activities (Peugeot-Citroen + Opel-Vauxhall) 4.0x - 4.5x €18.4 bn - €20.4

Industrial Activities Valuation | Based on Discounted Cash Flows

d'Angelin performed a discounted cash flow analysis, which is designed to provide an implied value of
PSA's Industrial Activities by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows and terminal
value of PSA's Industrial Activities. For the purpose of such valuation, d'Angelin calculated the estimated
present value of Industrial Activities' unlevered, after-tax free cash flows that PSA was forecasted to
generate during PSA's fiscal years 2019 through 2022 based on Management Figures. For purposes of
this analysis, unlevered after-tax free cash flows were calculated as EBITDA, less taxes, plus / minus
change in net working capital and less capital expenditures. d'Angelin calculated terminal values for PSA's
Industrial Activities by applying an exit EV/EBIT multiple range of 2.5-3.0x, based on Automotive Peers'
Historical EV/EBIT multiples and d'Angelin's professional judgment and experience, to a terminal year
estimate of the unlevered, after-tax free cash flows that PSA was forecasted to generate based on
Management Figures. The cash flows and terminal values in each case were then discounted to present
value as of December 12, 2019 using the mid-year cash flow discounting convention and a discount rate
of 8.4%, which discount rate was selected, upon the application of d'Angelin's professional judgment and
experience, to reflect a weighted average cost of capital calculation for PSA's Industrial Activities. The
DCF assumptions and implied valuation are summarized in the table below:

DCF Assumptions

PSA Industrial Activities
WACC Exit EBIT Margin Exit NTM EV/EBIT Implied Enterprise Value

8.4% 6.0% - 8.0% 2.5x - 3.5x €22.0 bn - €26.1 bn

Sum-of-the-Parts

Using the foregoing valuations of PSA's Financial Services and Industrial Activities, along with PSA's
forecasts and the number of fully diluted outstanding PSA Ordinary Shares as provided to d'Angelin by
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FCA's management, this valuation analysis indicated the following ranges of equity value of PSA and
implied per share equity value for PSA Ordinary Shares:

) o Industrial ) ) Implied
Industrial Activities Activities Financial PSA
Valuation Enterprise Value  Industrial Services Implied PSA  Share
Methodology (EV) EV Bridge Equity Value Equity Value Price
Trading Multiples €22.6 bn - €25.1 €2.4bn-€3.3 €33.5 bn - €35_'57
(Management Case) bn €5.4 bn bn €36.9 bn £€39.17
Trading Multiples €18.4 bn - £€20.4 €2.4bn - €33 €293bn-  €81.12
(Consensus Case) bn €5.4 bn bn €32.3 bn £24 92
DCF (Management €22.0 bn - €26.1 €2.4bn-€3.3 €330bn-  €85.02
Case) bn €5.4 bn bn €38.0 bn £40 95

Note: Industrial EV Bridge is defined as the negative sum of net industrial debt, plus non-controlling interests, plus unfunded pension
obligations, less investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Implied Exchange Ratios

Utilizing the implied equity value reference ranges derived for FCA and PSA described above, d'Angelin
calculated the following implied exchange ratio ranges (as explained above), in each case compared to
the Exchange Ratio of 1.742 pursuant to the Combination Agreement:

Sum-of-the-Parts (SOTP) Valuation

Valuation Methodology Range of Implied Exchange Ratios
Trading Multiples (Management Case) 1.59x - 2.28x
Trading Multiples (Consensus Case) 1.49x - 2.14x
Discounted Cash Flows (Management Case) 1.48x - 2.28x

Consolidated Valuation | Based on Trading Multiples
FCA

For the purpose of valuing FCA's consolidated business using trading multiples, d'Angelin used a trading
P/E valuation methodology. Based on selected Automotive Peers' P/E and based on its professional
judgment and experience, d'Angelin applied the trading multiple reference ranges summarized in the table
below:

Valuation Based on Management Figures

Selected Multiples 2020E PSA Implied
P/E

Division Share Price
Consolidated (Industrial Activities + Financial
Services) 5.7x - 7.7x €23.45 - €31.46
Valuation Based on Consensus Figures

Selected Multiples 2020E PSA Implied
Division P/E Share Price
Consolidated (Industrial Activities + Financial
Services) 5.7x - 7.7x €22.07 - €29.62
PSA

For the purpose of valuing PSA's consolidated business using trading multiples, d'Angelin used a trading
P/E valuation methodology. Based on selected Automotive Peers' P/E and based on its professional
judgment and experience, d'Angelin applied the trading multiple reference ranges summarized in the table
below:

96



Valuation Based on Management Figures

Selected Mu}tiples 2020E FCA Implied
P/E

Division Share Price
Consolidated (Industrial Activities + Financial
Services) 5.7x - 7.7X €17.69 - €23.74
Valuation Based on Consensus Figures

o Selected Multiples 2020E PSA Implied
Division P/E Share Price
Consolidated (Industrial Activities + Financial
Services) 5.7x - 7.7x €15.58 - €20.90

Implied Exchange Ratios

Utilizing the implied equity value reference ranges derived for FCA and PSA described above, d'Angelin
calculated the following implied exchange ratio ranges (as explained above), in each case compared to
the Exchange Ratio of 1.742 pursuant to the Combination Agreement:

Consolidated Valuation

Valuation Methodology Range of Implied Exchange Ratios
Trading Multiples (Management Case) 0.99x - 1.97x
Trading Multiples (Consensus Case) 1.07x - 2.17x

Other Factors

d'Angelin also noted certain other factors, which were not considered material to its financial analyses
with respect to its opinion, but were referenced for informational purposes only, including, among other
things, the following:

52-Week Trading Range Analysis

FCA

d'Angelin reviewed historical trading prices of FCA Common Shares during the 12-month period ended
on the Undisturbed Date, noting that the low and high closing prices during such period ranged from
approximately €10.71 to approximately €13.15 per FCA Common Share, respectively, and a range of
equity value of €17.0 billion to €20.9 billion, respectively.

PSA

d'Angelin reviewed historical trading prices of PSA Ordinary Shares during the 12-month period ended on
the Undisturbed Date, noting that the low and high closing prices during such period ranged from
approximately €16.63 to approximately €25.04 per PSA Ordinary Share, respectively, and a range of
equity value of €15.7 billion to €23.6 billion, respectively.

Exchange Ratio

The 52-week trading range analysis implies an exchange ratio range of 1.37x - 2.99x.
Equity Research Analyst Target Prices
FCA

d'Angelin reviewed selected public market trading price targets for the FCA Common Shares prepared
and published by equity research analysts that were publicly available prior to the Undisturbed Date.
These price targets, which ranged from €12.00 to €14.70 per FCA Common Share (excluding first and
last quartiles, to remove outliers), reflect analysts' estimates of the future public market trading price of
the FCA Common Shares at the time the price target was published. The price targets range implied a
range of equity value of approximately €19.0 billion to approximately €23.3 billion. Public market trading
price targets published by equity research analysts do not necessarily reflect current market trading prices
for the FCA Common Shares and these target prices and the analysts' earnings estimates on which they
were based are subject to risk and uncertainties, including factors affecting the financial performance of
FCA and future general industry and market conditions.
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PSA

d'Angelin reviewed selected public market trading price targets for the PSA Ordinary Shares prepared
and published by equity research analysts that were publicly available prior to the Undisturbed Date.
These price targets, which ranged from €21.00 to €28.25 per PSA Ordinary Share (excluding first and last
quartiles, to remove outliers), reflect analysts' estimates of the future public market trading price of the
PSA Ordinary Shares at the time the price target was published. The price targets range implied a range
of equity value of approximately €19.8 billion to approximately €26.6 billion. Public market trading price
targets published by equity research analysts do not necessarily reflect current market trading prices for
the FCA Common Shares and these target prices and the analysts' earnings estimates on which they
were based are subject to risk and uncertainties, including factors affecting the financial performance of
FCA and future general industry and market conditions.

Exchange Ratio
The equity research analyst target prices imply an exchange ratio range of 1.57x - 2.91x.
Internal Rate of Return ("IRR") Analysis

d'Angelin reviewed the illustrative IRR to FCA Shareholders, calculated over a three-year period, under
several scenarios: (i) FCA standalone, (ii) FCA merger with PSA assuming phased synergies (with
potential re-rating), and (iii) FCA merger with PSA assuming phased synergies until 2022 and steady state
synergies by 2023 (with potential re-rating). The analysis assumes the purchase of one FCA Common
Share on the Undisturbed Date, 20% payout ratio during the three-year period and the payment of FCA's
€5.5 billion special dividend. Under Management Figures, this analysis resulted in an illustrative IRR to
FCA Shareholders of 29.2% - 66.6% under the two merger scenarios above, compared to 21.3%
standalone. Under Consensus Figures, this analysis resulted in an illustrative IRR to FCA Shareholders
of 19.3% - 49.7% under merger scenarios, compared to 11.1% standalone.

Miscellaneous

The foregoing summary of d'Angelin's financial analyses does not purport to be a complete description of
the analyses or data presented by d'Angelin to the FCA Board. In connection with the review of the Merger
by the FCA Board, d'Angelin performed a variety of financial and comparative analyses for purposes of
rendering its opinion. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily
susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. Selecting portions of the analyses or of the
summary described above, without considering the analyses as a whole, could create an incomplete view
of the processes underlying d'Angelin's opinion. In arriving at its fairness determination, d'Angelin
considered the results of all the analyses and did not draw, in isolation, conclusions from or with regard
to any one analysis or factor considered by it for purposes of its opinion. Rather, d'’Angelin made its
determination as to fairness on the basis of its professional judgment and experience after considering
the results of all the analyses. In addition, d'Angelin may have given various analyses and factors more
or less weight than other analyses and factors, and may have deemed various assumptions more or less
probable than other assumptions. As a result, the ranges of valuations resulting from any particular
analysis or combination of analyses described above should not be taken to be the view of d'Angelin with
respect to the actual value of the FCA Common Shares at any time. Rounding may result in total sums
set forth in this section not equaling the total of the figures shown.

d'Angelin’'s financial advisory services and its opinion were provided for the information and benefit of the
FCA Board (in its capacity as such) in connection with its evaluation of the proposed merger. The issuance
of d'Angelin's opinion was approved by d'Angelin's Fairness Opinion Committee in accordance with
d'Angelin's customary practice. d'’Angelin's opinion and its presentation to the FCA Board was one of
many factors taken into consideration by the FCA Board in deciding to consider, approve and declare the
advisability of the Combination Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby. Consequently, the
analyses described above should not be viewed as determinative of the opinion of the FCA Board with
respect to the Exchange Ratio pursuant to the Combination Agreement or of whether the FCA Board
would have been willing to agree to a different exchange ratio.

The Exchange Ratio was determined by FCA and PSA through arm's-length negotiations and was
approved by the FCA Board. d'Angelin did not recommend any specific exchange ratio to FCA or the FCA
Board or opine that any specific exchange ratio constituted the only appropriate exchange ratio for the
Merger.

98



d'Angelin acted as financial advisor to FCA in connection with, and participated in certain of the
negotiations leading to, the Merger. d'Angelin has provided certain financial advisory services to FCA and
its affiliates from time to time, in particular starting from January 2019, for which d'Angelin received, and
may receive, compensation, including acting as financial advisor to FCA with respect to FCA's exploration
of a potential business combination with Groupe Renault. During the two-year period prior to the Opinion
Date d'Angelin recognized compensation for its financial advisory services provided to FCA and/or its
affiliates of approximately €0.4 million. In addition, pursuant to the terms of d'’Angelin's engagement letter
dated March 4, 2019 and subsequent addendums with FCA, FCA paid or agreed to pay d'Angelin fees for
its services with respect to the Merger in the aggregate amount of approximately €6.5 million, €2 million
of which became payable in connection with advice relating to the Merger and the delivery of a fairness
opinion and €4.5 million of which will become payable upon completion of the Merger. FCA has also
agreed to reimburse d'Angelin for its expenses and to indemnify d'Angelin against certain liabilities arising
out of its engagement.

In addition, during the two-year period prior to the Opinion Date, d'Angelin was not engaged to provide
financial advisory or other services to PSA and d'Angelin did not receive any compensation from PSA.
d'Angelin may provide financial advisory or other services to FCA and PSA in the future in connection
with which d'Angelin may receive compensation.

d'Angelin regularly engages in a wide range of activities for its own accounts and the accounts of
customers, including corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, capital markets advisory and related
activities.

Opinion of the Financial Advisor to the PSA Supervisory Board
Perella Weinberg UK Limited

The PSA Supervisory Board retained Perella Weinberg to act as its financial advisor in connection with a
potential transaction involving FCA N.V. Peugeot S.A. selected Perella Weinberg based on Perella
Weinberg's qualifications, expertise and reputation and its knowledge of the business and affairs of PSA
and the industries in which PSA conducts its business. Perella Weinberg, as part of its investment banking
business, is continually engaged in performing financial analyses with respect to businesses and their
securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, leveraged buyouts and other transactions as well
as for corporate and other purposes.

On September 14, 2020, Perella Weinberg rendered to the PSA Supervisory Board its oral opinion,
subsequently confirmed in writing that, as of such date and based upon and subject to the various
assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations set forth
in its opinion, the Exchange Ratio provided for in the combination agreement was fair from a financial
point of view to the holders of PSA Ordinary Shares.

The full text of Perella Weinberg's written opinion, dated September 14, 2020, which sets forth,
among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and
qualifications and limitations on the review undertaken by Perella Weinberg, is included elsewhere
in this Prospectus (see "Index to the Fairness Opinions") Holders of PSA Ordinary Shares are
urged to read Perella Weinberg's opinion carefully and in its entirety. Perella Weinberg's opinion
is for the information and assistance of the PSA Supervisory Board in connection with, and for the
purposes of its evaluation of, the contemplated revised merger pursuant to the Combination
Agreement (the "Amended Transaction"). Perella Weinberg's opinion was not intended to be and
does not constitute a recommendation to any holder of PSA Ordinary Shares or FCA Common
Shares as to how such holders should vote or otherwise act with respect to the Amended
Transaction or any other matter and does not in any manner address the prices at which the PSA
Ordinary Shares or FCA Common Shares will trade at any time. In addition, Perella Weinberg
expressed no opinion as to the fairness of the Amended Transaction to, or any consideration
received in connection with the Amended Transaction by, the holders of any other class of
securities, creditors or other constituencies of PSA. This summary of the opinion of Perella
Weinberg is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, Perella Weinberg, among other things:

o reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial
information with respect to PSA, Faurecia, and FCA, including research analyst reports;
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. reviewed certain publicly available financial forecasts prepared by research analysts relating to
PSA and FCA (the "Public Forecasts");

. reviewed estimates of synergies anticipated by PSA's management to result from the Amended
Transaction (collectively, the "Anticipated Synergies");

. discussed the past and current business, operations, financial condition and prospects of PSA,
including the Anticipated Synergies and matters relating to Faurecia, with members of the PSA
Supervisory Board, and discussed the past and current business, operations, financial condition
and prospects of FCA with the PSA Supervisory Board;

o reviewed the relative financial contributions of PSA and FCA to the future financial performance
of Stellantis on a pro forma basis;

o compared the financial performance of PSA and FCA with that of certain publicly-traded
companies which Perella Weinberg believed to be generally relevant;

o compared the financial terms of the Amended Transaction with the publicly available financial
terms of certain transactions which Perella Weinberg believed to be generally relevant;

. reviewed the historical trading prices and trading activity for the PSA Ordinary Shares and the
FCA Common Shares, and compared such price and trading activity of the PSA Ordinary Shares
and FCA Common Shares with each other and with that of securities of certain publicly-traded
companies which Perella Weinberg believed to be generally relevant;

. participated in discussions with certain representatives of PSA and the PSA Supervisory Board,
and their respective advisors;

o reviewed the Original Combination Agreement and a draft, dated September 10, 2020, of the
Combination Agreement Amendment (the "Draft Amendment"); and

o conducted such other financial studies, analyses and investigations, and considered such other
factors, as Perella Weinberg deemed appropriate.

In arriving at its opinion, Perella Weinberg assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the
accuracy and completeness of the financial and other information supplied or otherwise made available
to it (including information that is available from generally recognized public sources) for purposes of its
opinion and further relied upon the assurances of the PSA Supervisory Board that, to the PSA Supervisory
Board's knowledge, the information furnished, or approved for Perella Weinberg's use, by the PSA
Supervisory Board for purposes of Perella Weinberg's analysis did not contain any material omissions or
misstatements of material fact. Perella Weinberg assumed with the PSA Supervisory Board's consent that
there were no material undisclosed liabilities of PSA or FCA for which adequate reserves or other
provisions had not been made. As the PSA Supervisory Board was aware, Perella Weinberg had not been
provided with, and did not have access to, financial forecasts relating to PSA or FCA, prepared either by
the management of PSA or FCA. In that regard, Perella Weinberg had been advised by the PSA
Supervisory Board and assumed, with the PSA Supervisory Board's consent, that the Public Forecasts
were a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the future financial performance of PSA and FCA and
Perella Weinberg used the Public Forecasts in performing its analysis. Perella Weinberg assumed, with
the PSA Supervisory Board's consent, that the Anticipated Synergies and potential strategic implications
and operational benefits (including the amount, timing and achievability thereof) anticipated by the
management of PSA to result from the Amended Transaction would be realized in the amounts and at the
times projected by the management of PSA, and Perella Weinberg expressed no view as to the
assumptions on which they were based. Perella Weinberg relied without independent verification upon
the assessment by the management of PSA and the PSA Supervisory Board of the timing and risks
associated with the integration of PSA and FCA. In arriving at its opinion, Perella Weinberg did not make
any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities (including any contingent, derivative or
off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities) of PSA or FCA, nor was it furnished with any such valuations or
appraisals, nor did it assume any obligation to conduct, nor has it conducted, any physical inspection of
the properties or facilities of PSA or FCA. In addition, Perella Weinberg did not evaluate the solvency of
any party to the combination agreement, including under any state, federal or other laws relating to
bankruptcy, insolvency or similar matters. Perella Weinberg assumed that the final Combination
Agreement Amendment would not differ in any material respect from the Draft Amendment reviewed by
them and that the Amended Transaction would be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth
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in the Combination Agreement, without material modification, waiver or delay, in particular regarding the
FCA Extraordinary Dividend, and that all representations and warranties in the Original Combination
Agreement were true and correct when made and that all representations and warranties in the
Combination Agreement would be true and correct as of the closing of the Amended Transaction. In
addition, Perella Weinberg assumed that in connection with the receipt of all the necessary approvals of
the proposed Amended Transaction, no delays, limitations, conditions or restrictions would be imposed
that could have an adverse effect on PSA, FCA or the contemplated benefits expected to be derived in
the Amended Transaction. Perella Weinberg relied as to all legal matters relevant to rendering its opinion
upon the advice of counsel.

Perella Weinberg's opinion addressed only the fairness from a financial point of view, as of the date
thereof, of the Exchange Ratio provided for in the combination agreement to the holders of the PSA
Ordinary Shares. Perella Weinberg was not asked to, nor did it, offer any opinion as to any other term of
the Combination Agreement or any other document contemplated by or entered into in connection with
the Combination Agreement or the form or structure of the Amended Transaction or the likely timeframe
in which the Amended Transaction would be consummated. In addition, Perella Weinberg expressed no
opinion as to the fairness of the amount or nature of any compensation to be received by any officers,
directors or employees of any parties to the Combination Agreement, or any class of such persons,
whether relative to the Exchange Ratio or otherwise. Perella Weinberg did not express any opinion as to
any tax or other consequences that may result from the transactions contemplated by the combination
agreement or any other related document, nor did its opinion address any legal, tax, regulatory or
accounting matters, as to which it understood Peugeot S.A. had received such advice as it deemed
necessary from qualified professionals. Perella Weinberg's opinion does not address Peugeot S.A.'s
underlying business decision to enter into the Combination Agreement or the relative merits of the
Amended Transaction as compared with any other strategic alternative which may be available to Peugeot
S.A. Perella Weinberg was not authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, indications of interest in a
transaction with Peugeot S.A. from any party.

Perella Weinberg's opinion was necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions
as in effect on, and the information made available to Perella Weinberg as of, the date of its opinion. In
particular, the financial, credit and stock markets had been experiencing unusual volatility and Perella
Weinberg expressed no view or opinion as to the potential effects of such volatility on PSA, FCA or the
Amended Transaction. It should be understood that subsequent developments may affect Perella
Weinberg's opinion and the assumptions used in preparing it, and Perella Weinberg does not have any
obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm its opinion. The issuance of Perella Weinberg's opinion was
approved by a fairness opinion committee of Perella Weinberg.

For the avoidance of doubt, Perella Weinberg's opinion was not delivered pursuant to Article 261-1 of the
Réglement général of the AMF (the "RG-AMF") and should not be considered a "rapport d'expert
indépendant” nor an "expertise indépendante" or "attestation d'équité", nor shall Perella Weinberg or its
affiliates be considered an "expert indépendant”, in each case within the meaning of the RG-AMF (in

particular Book Il, Title VI thereof).
Summary of Financial Analyses

The following is a summary of the material financial analyses performed by Perella Weinberg and
reviewed by the PSA Supervisory Board in connection with Perella Weinberg's opinion relating to the
Amended Transaction and does not purport to be a complete description of the financial analyses
performed by Perella Weinberg. The order of analyses described below does not represent the relative
importance or weight given to those analyses by Perella Weinberg.

Some of the summaries of the financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. In order
to fully understand Perella Weinberg's financial analyses, the tables must be read together with the text
of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses.
Considering the data below without considering the full narrative description of the financial analyses,
including the methodologies and assumptions underlying the analyses, could create a misleading or
incomplete view of Perella Weinberg's financial analyses.

Selected Publicly-Traded Companies Analysis

Perella Weinberg performed a selected publicly-traded companies analysis, which is a method of deriving
an implied value range for a company's equity securities based on a review of selected publicly-traded
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companies generally deemed relevant for comparative purposes. Perella Weinberg reviewed financial
market multiples and ratios of the following selected publicly-traded companies:

. General Motors Company;
. Ford Motor Company;

N Volkswagen AG;

o Groupe Renault.

Although none of the above companies is identical to PSA or FCA, Perella Weinberg selected these
companies because they had publicly traded equity securities and were deemed to be similar to PSA and
FCA in one or more respects.

For each of the selected public-traded companies, Perella Weinberg calculated and compared financial
information and financial market multiples and ratios based on company filings for historical information
and consensus third party research estimates for forecasted information.

For each of the selected publicly-traded companies, Perella Weinberg reviewed (i) the ratio of automobile
enterprise value (which represents fully diluted equity value based on such company's closing share price
as of September 9, 2020 less net industrial cash, plus unfunded pension obligations post tax, plus non-
controlling interests, less equity accounted investments and less the value of the company's financing
services divisions ("Auto EV")) to estimated calendar year 2021 EBITDA adjusted for capitalized R&D
expenses and financial services contribution (“Adjusted EBITDA") based on consensus third party
research estimates and (ii) the ratio of fully diluted equity value based on such company's closing share
price as of September 9, 2020 less net industrial cash to estimated calendar year 2021 netincome ("Cash
P/E") based on consensus third party research estimates. The results of these analyses are summarized
in the following table:

2021E Auto EV /
Adjusted EBITDA  2021E Cash P/ E

General Motors Company 4.7x 8.3x
Ford Motor Company 3.4x 13.2x
Volkswagen AG 1.9x 5.3x
Groupe Renault 2.2x n.m.

Based on the analysis of the relevant metrics described above and on professional judgments made by
Perella Weinberg, Perella Weinberg selected and applied a median multiple from Groupe Renault and
Volkswagen AG of 2.00x, implying a range of multiples of 1.75x to 2.25x, to the 2021E Adjusted EBITDA
of PSA using the Public Forecasts, and applied a median multiple from Groupe Renault, Volkswagen AG,
Ford Motor Company and General Motors Company of 2.75x implying a range of multiples of 2.50x to
3.00x, to the 2021E Adjusted EBITDA of FCA using the Public Forecasts.

For the purpose of valuing PSA and FCA's financing services, Perella Weinberg reviewed PSA's
acquisition multiple of General Motors Company's European Financial Services of 0.8x Price-to-book
Value, and the valuation of Original Equipment Manufacturers' Financial Services by selected equity
research analysts at 0.8X Price-to-Book Value. Perella Weinberg applied such ratio to the book value of
each of PSA's and FCA's respective financing services business to determine the value of such
businesses.

From these analyses, Perella Weinberg derived ranges of implied equity values per share for each of PSA
and FCA. Perella Weinberg calculated implied values per share by dividing the implied equity values by
the applicable fully diluted shares (based upon the number of issued and outstanding shares and the
number of shares resulting from dilutive instruments) ("Implied Values per Share"). The ranges of Implied
Values per Share derived from these calculations are summarized in the following table:
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Implied Value Range Per

Metric Share
PSA
Public Forecasts 2021E Adjusted EBITDA €17.2 - €21.3
FCA
Public Forecasts 2021E Adjusted EBITDA €9.1-€11.9

Although the selected publicly-traded companies were used for comparison purposes, no business of any
selected company was either identical or directly comparable to PSA's or FCA's business. Perella
Weinberg's comparison of selected publicly-traded companies to PSA and FCA and analysis of the results
of such comparisons were not purely mathematical, but instead necessarily involved complex
considerations and judgments concerning differences in financial and operating characteristics and other
factors that could affect the relative values of the selected publicly-traded multiples.

Standalone Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

Perella Weinberg performed a standalone discounted flow analysis, which is a method of deriving an
implied value for a company's equity securities based on the sum of the company's unlevered after tax
free cash flows over a forecast period and the terminal value at the end of the forecast period. In
performing this analysis, Perella Weinberg used the Public Forecasts and:

. calculated, in each case, the present value as of June 30, 2020 of the estimated standalone
unlevered after tax free cash flows that each of PSA and FCA could generate from July 1, 2020
through the end of fiscal year 2022 using the Public Forecasts, and using discount rates ranging
from 8.25% to 9.25% for PSA and 8.75% to 9.75% for FCA, in each case based on estimates of
the weighted average cost of capital of each company; and

. calculated, in each case, the present value of terminal values for each of PSA and FCA by
applying an exit Enterprise Value / EBITDA last twelve months multiple, as of 2022, of 1.7x for
PSA and 2.1x for FCA based on historical observations of such multiples and upon the application
of Perella Weinberg professional judgment and experience, and using discount rates ranging from
8.25% to 9.25% for PSA and 8.75% to 9.75% for FCA, in each case based on estimates of the
weighted average cost of capital of each company.

The standalone discounted cash flow analysis did not consider the Anticipated Synergies resulting from
the proposed merger.

From these analyses, Perella Weinberg derived ranges of implied equity values per share for each of PSA
and FCA. The ranges of Implied Values per Share derived from these calculations are summarized in the
following table:

Implied Value Range Per Share

PSA €25.7 - €30.8
FCA €12.5-€16.3

Historical Stock Trading Analysis

Perella Weinberg reviewed the historical closing market prices for each of the PSA Ordinary Shares and
FCA Common Shares for the 52-week period ended October 29, 2019 and used a range midpoint defined
as the October 29, 2019 last three months Volume weighted average price ("VWAP") trading price per
PSA Ordinary Share and per FCA Common Share. The midpoint and the ranges of Implied Values per
Share derived from these calculations are summarized in the following table:
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Value Per Share or

Metric Value Range Per Share
PSA
Historical Stock Trading Last three months VWAP €22.1
Historical Stock Trading 52-week trading range €17.2 - €25.0
FCA
Historical Stock Trading Last three months VWAP €11.9
Historical Stock Trading 52-week trading range €11.1-€15.2

Equity Research Target Price Analysis

Perella Weinberg reviewed target prices for PSA and FCA from publicly available research reports
covering both companies: (i) ten selected equity research reports publicly available prior to October 29,
2019 and (ii) twelve selected equity research reports publicly available prior to September 9, 2020. Perella
Weinberg noted that the range of these equity research analyst target prices was (i) €21.0 to €32.0 per
PSA Ordinary Share and €10.0 to €16.5 per FCA Common Share as of October 29, 2019 and (ii) €9.3 to
€25.0 per PSA Ordinary Share and €4.6 to €14.9 per FCA Common Share as of September 9, 2020.

Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio

Perella Weinberg then calculated the Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio for each PSA Ordinary Share,
based on the ratio between PSA's and FCA's value per share, for each of the selected valuation
methodologies. In calculating the Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio, Perella Weinberg adjusted the FCA
value per share determined by the selected valuation methodology for the payment of the FCA
Extraordinary Dividend divided by FCA's fully diluted number of common shares.

Valuation Methodology Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio
Publicly-Traded Companies 1.658x — 2.855x%
Standalone Discounted Cash Flow 1.726x — 2.798x
Historical Stock Trading (as of 29-Oct-19) 1.242x — 2.629x

Equity Research Target Price

As of 29-Oct-19 1.883x — 2.856x

As of 09-Sep-20 1.622x — 3.307x

For the Equity Research Target Price Analysis, Perella Weinberg divided the value per share for PSA by
the value per share for FCA, adjusted for the value per share of the payment of the FCA Extraordinary
Dividend for each equity research report covering both companies. Perella Weinberg then retained (i) the
lowest of these ratios to obtain the low end of the Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio range; and (ii) the
highest of these ratios to obtain the high end of the Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio range.

For the other selected valuation methodologies, Perella Weinberg divided the lowest value per share for
PSA by the highest value per share for FCA, adjusted for the value per share of the payment of the FCA
Extraordinary Dividend, to obtain the low end of the Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio range; and divided
the highest value per ordinary share for PSA by the lowest value per common share for FCA, adjusted for
the value per share of the payment of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend, to obtain the high end of the
Implied Adjusted Exchange Ratio range.

Miscellaneous

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to partial
analysis or summary description. Selecting portions of the analyses or of the summary set forth in this
prospectus, without considering the analyses or the summary as a whole, could create an incomplete
view of the processes underlying Perella Weinberg's opinion. In arriving at its fairness determination,
Perella Weinberg considered the results of all of its analyses and did not attribute any particular weight to
any factor or analysis considered. Rather, Perella Weinberg made its determination as to fairness on the
basis of its experience and professional judgment after considering the results of all of its analyses. No
company or transaction used in the analyses described in this prospectus as a comparison is directly
comparable to PSA, FCA or the Amended Transaction.
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Perella Weinberg prepared the analyses described in this prospectus for purposes of providing its opinion
to the PSA Supervisory Board as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, as of the date of its opinion,
of the Exchange Ratio provided in the combination agreement to the holders of PSA Ordinary Shares.
These analyses do not purport to be appraisals or necessarily reflect the prices at which businesses or
securities actually may be sold. Perella Weinberg's analyses were based on third party research analyst
estimates, which are not necessarily indicative of actual future results, and which may be significantly
more or less favorable than suggested by Perella Weinberg's analyses. Because these analyses are
inherently subject to uncertainty, being based upon numerous factors or events beyond the control of the
parties to the combination agreement or their respective advisors, none of PSA, FCA, Perella Weinberg
or any other person assumes responsibility if future results are materially different from those forecasted
by the third parties.

As described above, the opinion of Perella Weinberg to the PSA Supervisory Board was one of many
factors taken into consideration by the PSA Supervisory Board in making its determination to approve the
Amended Transaction. Perella Weinberg was not asked to, and did not, recommend the Exchange Ratio
provided for in the combination agreement, which consideration was determined through arm-length
negotiations between Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. Perella Weinberg did not recommend any specific
exchange ratio to the holders of PSA ordinary shares or the PSA Supervisory Board or that any specific
exchange ratio constituted the only appropriate exchange ratio or consideration for the Amended
Transaction.

Pursuant to the terms of the engagement letter between Perella Weinberg and the PSA Supervisory Board
dated October 28, 2019, as amended on September 14, 2020, PSA (i) paid Perella Weinberg monthly
retainer fees since August 1, 2019 for a total amount paid to date of €175,000 (creditable against the
other fees) and an announcement fee of €1 million, and (ii) further agreed to pay Perella Weinberg €1
million (creditable against the success fee) upon the delivery of Perella Weinberg's opinion, as well as a
success fee of €6 million upon the consummation of the Amended Transaction and a discretionary fee of
up to €1 million. PSA has agreed to indemnify Perella Weinberg and related persons for certain liabilities
and other items that may arise out of its engagement by the PSA Supervisory Board and the rendering of
its opinion.

During the two-year period prior to the date of its opinion, neither Perella Weinberg nor its affiliates have
had material relationships, other than the services provided in connection with the Amended Transaction
and the rendering of its opinion, with PSA or FCA or their respective affiliates for which compensation
was received or is intended to be received by Perella Weinberg or its affiliates. Perella Weinberg and its
affiliates may in the future provide investment banking and other financial services to Peugeot S.A., FCA
N.V. and their respective affiliates and for which it would expect to receive compensation for the rendering
of such services. In the ordinary course of their business activities, Perella Weinberg or its affiliates may
at any time hold long or short positions, and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for their own
account or the accounts of customers or clients, in debt or equity or other securities (or related derivative
securities) or financial instruments (including bank loans or other obligations) of Peugeot S.A., FCA N.V.
or any of their respective affiliates.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger
FCA

Certain of the directors and officers of FCA may have interests in the Merger that are different from, or in
addition to, the interests of the FCA Shareholders. The FCA Board was aware of these interests during
its deliberations on the merits of the Merger or approved the related arrangements in the context of the
discussions regarding the Merger. For purposes of the disclosure below, FCA's officers consist of John
Elkann, Chairman; Michael Manley, Chief Executive Officer; Richard Palmer, Chief Financial Officer;
Pietro Gorlier, Chief Operating Officer EMEA and Global Head of Parts & Service; Antonio Filosa, Chief
Operating Officer LATAM; Mark Stewart, Chief Operating Officer North America; Davide Grasso, Chief
Operating Officer Maserati; and Giorgio Fossati, General Counsel. These interests include the following:

. Positions in Stellantis. The Combination Agreement provides that Mr. Elkann will serve as the
Chairman of Stellantis as from the Governance Effective Time. Additionally, certain directors and
officers of FCA may continue to serve as directors or officers of Stellantis following the Merger.

o Treatment of Equity Awards. At the Effective Time, each holder of outstanding FCA equity awards
will be entitled to receive a substitute Stellantis restricted share unit award, with respect to a
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number of Stellantis Common Shares equal to the number of FCA Common Shares subject to the
original FCA equity award (assuming performance at target or, in the event that FCA's
performance exceeds the target level as assessed by the FCA Board or a committee of the FCA
Board immediately before the effective time of the Merger, at that assessed level). Each Stellantis
restricted share unit award will continue to be governed by the same terms and conditions
(including service-based vesting terms, but not performance-based vesting terms) as were
applicable to the relevant FCA equity awards immediately prior to the Effective Time.

Retention Arrangements. Certain officers of FCA are entitled to retention benefits under which
they are eligible to receive a one-time cash award, payable either entirely at the time of closing
of the Merger or 50 percent at the time of closing of the Merger and 50 percent on the 12-month
anniversary of the closing of the Merger. The officers eligible to receive these retention benefits
in connection with the Merger consist of Messrs. Pietro Gorlier, Antonio Filosa, Mark Stewart,
Davide Grasso and Giorgio Fossati. Additionally, under FCA's Equity Incentive Plan, certain
changes in role following the closing of the Merger (including no longer serving as a member of
the board of directors) entitle plan participants to a qualifying termination of employment, with
accelerated vesting of all outstanding awards under the plan and severance payments as
contemplated by their employment agreement as applicable. With respect to Michael Manley,
FCA's Chief Executive Officer, such entitlements have been replaced with the right to receive a
cash retention award, which is payable on a specified date after closing of the Merger upon the
satisfaction of certain conditions. Mr. Manley's entitlement will (1) replace, effective as of the
closing of the Merger, Mr. Manley's outstanding FCA performance share units and FCA restricted
share units, with such portion of the retention award calculated based on the value of such awards
at the closing of the Merger, (2) replace certain other severance rights, with such portion of the
retention award equal to one times Mr. Manley's annual base salary, and (3) provide Mr. Manley
a recognition award with a value equivalent to approximately five times his annual base salary. In
addition Mr. Manley will be entitled to certain facilitations regarding the purchase of vehicles
manufactured by FCA. With respect to Richard Palmer, FCA's Chief Financial Officer, the above
mentioned entitlements have been replaced with the right to receive a cash retention award,
payable on a specified date after closing of the Merger upon satisfaction of certain conditions Mr.
Palmer's entitlement will (1) replace, effective as of the closing of the Merger, Mr. Palmer's
outstanding FCA performance share units and FCA restricted share units, with such portion of
the retention award calculated based on the value of such awards at the closing of the Merger,
(2) replace certain other severance rights, with such portion of the retention award equal to two
times Mr. Palmer's annual base salary, and (3) provide Mr. Palmer a recognition award with a
value equivalent to approximately two times his annual base salary. Each of FCA's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer will also be subject to a hon-competition covenant
and non-solicitation of employees covenant, which continue for two years and three years,
respectively, following any termination of his employment.

Severance Arrangements. Officers in the United States are employed by FCA on the basis of an
employment agreement for an indefinite period of time and are employed at will, meaning that
either party can terminate the employment relationship at any time. In the event of a termination
of employment without cause or by the officer for good reason (as defined in the employment
agreements) within 24 months after a change of control of FCA, the officer would be entitled to
severance and accelerated vesting of outstanding awards under FCA's Equity Incentive Plan.
Severance equals not more than two times the officer's base salary, and generally is subject to
non-competition and other restrictive covenants. Officers outside the United States are employed
by FCA either on the basis of an employment agreement, or in some cases pursuant to labor
agreements. Severance payable to officers outside the United States in the event of a qualifying
termination of employment after a change of control of FCA generally requires up to 12 months'
notice of termination and entitles the officer to severance of between 10 and 36 months' base
salary, which generally is subject to non-competition and other restrictive covenants. In the event
of a change of control of FCA, those officers also would be entitled to accelerated vesting of
outstanding awards under FCA's Equity Incentive Plan and, in certain cases, a payment
calculated by reference to certain retirement plan contributions. The relevant severance amounts
for FCA's Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer would be 12 months, 12
months and 24 months of base salary, respectively; provided that such severance rights for FCA's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer generally will be replaced by their retention
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awards as discussed above. The Compensation Committee of the FCA Board has determined
that the consummation of the Merger will be a change of control of FCA for purposes of FCA's
Equity Incentive Plan.

. Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurance. The Combination Agreement requires Stellantis to
maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance for a period of at least six years from the
Effective Time covering all persons covered by FCA's or PSA's directors' and officers' liability
insurance policies prior to the effective time of the merger for actions taken by such persons prior
to the effectiveness of the merger on terms no less favorable than the terms of such prior
insurance coverage.

In light of the above mentioned arrangements, which would result in certain directors and officers of FCA
having the prospect of a management position in the Combined Group, or receiving compensation or
benefits that they would not receive if the Merger did not occur, such persons may have interests in the
Merger that are not shared by FCA Shareholders. Such interests may influence these persons in making
their recommendation that FCA Shareholders vote in favor of approval of the Merger and the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement. See also "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to the
Merger—Certain of FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s directors and executive officers have benefit
arrangements and other interests that may result in their interests in the Merger being different from those
of other FCA Shareholders or PSA Shareholders."”

PSA

Certain of the directors and officers of PSA may have interests in the Merger that are different from, or in
addition to, the interests of the PSA Shareholders. The PSA Supervisory Board was aware of, and
considered, these interests during its deliberations on the merits of the Merger or approved the related
arrangements in the context of the discussions regarding the Merger. For purposes of the disclosure
below, PSA's officers consist of: Carlos Tavares, Chairman of the Managing Board, Jean-Philippe
Imparato, Executive Vice President Peugeot Brand, Vincent Cobée, Executive Vice President Citroén
Brand, Béatrice Foucher, Executive Vice President DS Automobiles Brand, Michael Lohscheller,
Executive Vice President Opel Automobile GmbH, Patrice Lucas, Executive Vice President Latin America
Region, Maxime Picat, Executive Vice President, Director Europe Region, Samir Cherfan, Executive Vice
President, Middle-East and Africa Region, Emmanuel Delay, Executive Vice President India-Asia-Pacific
Region, Michelle Wen, Executive Vice President, Global Purchasing and Supplier Quality, Philippe de
Rovira, Chief Financial Officer, Arnaud Deboeuf, Executive Vice President, Manufacturing and Supply
Chain, Olivier Bourges, Executive Vice President, Programs and Strategy, Nicolas Morel, Executive Vice
President Research & Development, Xavier Chéreau, Executive Vice President, Human Resources and
Transformation, Digital and Real Estate, Brigitte Courtehoux, Executive Vice President Free2Move Brand,
Grégoire Olivier, General Secretary, Executive Vice President China and Jean-Christophe Quémard,
Executive Vice-President Quality and Customer Satisfaction. These interests include the following:

. Positions in Stellantis. The Combination Agreement provides that Mr. Tavares will serve as Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of as from the Governance Effective Time. Additionally,
Robert Peugeot, who is the Chairman and Managing Director of FFP, will serve as a non-
executive director of Stellantis. Certain officers of PSA may continue to serve as officers of
Stellantis following the Merger.

. Treatment of PSA Equity Awards. At the Effective Time, each holder of equity incentive awards
with respect to PSA ordinary shares will be entitled to have such award converted into a restricted
share unit award with respect to a number of Stellantis Common Shares equal to the product of
the number of PSA Ordinary Shares underlying the PSA equity incentive award and the Exchange
Ratio (with the number of Stellantis Common Shares to be received by each holder rounded down
to the nearest whole number without any cash compensation paid or due to such holder). In
determining the number of PSA ordinary shares underlying an equity incentive award subject to
performance conditions, the PSA Managing Board, subject to the approval of the PSA Supervisory
Board, will examine whether the performance conditions should be deemed satisfied (and, as the
case may be, if such performance conditions are satisfied in full or in part) prior to the Effective
Time. Following the Effective Time, each such restricted share unit will continue to be governed
by the same terms and conditions (including service-based vesting terms, but not, subject to the
abovementioned decisions, performance-based vesting terms) as were applicable to it
immediately prior to the Effective Time.
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. PSA equity awards held by PSA's officers consist solely of annual performance share awards that
will be treated as described above in connection with the merger. Awards are not subject to
accelerated vesting upon a termination of employment, including following the completion of the
Merger, other than in the case of death, disability or retirement. Members of the PSA Supervisory
Board do not hold any PSA equity awards.

o Incentive Payments. Each of Messrs. Carlos Tavares, Olivier Bourges, Grégoire Olivier, Philippe
de Rovira and Xavier Chéreau are eligible to receive incentive payments in connection with the
Merger, in order to retain and incentivize these individuals in connection with the consummation
of the Merger.

Incentive payments for Messrs. Tavares and Bourges are equal to €1,700,000 and €580,000,
respectively, and will be payable upon the completion of the Merger, subject to continued
employment through the completion and the achievement of performance conditions related to
the merger, as approved by the PSA Supervisory Board. Awards for other eligible officers will be
paid 50 percent on completion of the Merger and 50 percent on the one-year anniversary of the
completion of the Merger, in each case, subject to continued employment through the applicable
date and the achievement of performance conditions related to the Merger, as approved by the
PSA Supervisory Board, including, in the case of the second tranche, implementation of a plan
confirming the announced synergy gains.

. Other Compensation. As disclosed to PSA Shareholders in connection with the PSA general
shareholders' meeting on June 25, 2020, PSA has proposed increasing the base compensation
and annual bonus targets for certain of its officers in consideration of their enhanced
responsibilities, including in connection with the Merger.

o Indemnification and Insurance. Pursuant to the Combination Agreement, Stellantis is required to
maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance for a period of at least six years from the
Effective Time covering all persons who were previously covered by PSA's directors' and officers'
liability insurance policies prior to the Effective Time for actions taken by such persons prior to
the completion of the Merger on terms no less favorable than the terms of such prior insurance
coverage.

In light of the above mentioned arrangements, which would result in certain directors and officers of PSA
having the prospect of a management position in the Combined Group, or receiving compensation or
benefits that they would not receive if the Merger did not occur, such persons may have interests in the
Merger that are not shared by PSA Shareholders. Such interests may influence these persons in making
their recommendation that PSA Shareholders vote in favor of approval of the Merger and the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement. See also "Risk Factors—Risks Related to the
Merger—Certain of FCA N.V.'s and Peugeot S.A.'s directors and executive officers have benefit
arrangements and other interests that may result in their interests in the Merger being different from those
of other FCA Shareholders or PSA Shareholders.”

Dissenters’, Appraisal, Cash Exit or Similar Rights
FCA

FCA Shareholders will not have dissenters', appraisal, cash exit or similar rights in connection with the
Merger.

PSA

PSA Shareholders will not have dissenters', appraisal, cash exit or similar rights in connection with the
Merger.

Accounting Treatment

The Merger will be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with IFRS 3,
which requires the identification of the acquirer and the acquiree for accounting purposes. Based on the
assessment of the indicators under IFRS 3 and consideration of all pertinent facts and circumstances,
FCA and PSA's management determined that Peugeot S.A. is the acquirer for accounting purposes and
as such, the Merger is accounted for as a reverse acquisition.

In identifying Peugeot S.A. as the acquiring entity, notwithstanding that the Merger is being effected
through an issuance of FCA Common Shares, the most significant indicators were (i) the composition of

108



the Combined Group's board, which will comprise 11 directors, six of whom are to be nominated by PSA,
PSA Shareholders or PSA employees, or are current PSA executives, (ii) the Combined Group's first CEO,
who is vested with the full authority to individually represent the Combined Group, is the current president
of the PSA Managing Board, and (iii) the payment of a premium by pre-merger PSA Shareholders.

As a result, PSA will apply the acquisition method of accounting and the assets and liabilities of FCA will
be recorded, as of the completion of the Merger, at their respective fair values. Any excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of FCA's assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be
recorded as goodwill. PSA's assets and liabilities together with PSA's operations will continue to be
recorded at their pre-merger historical carrying values for all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements of the Combined Group. Following the completion of the Merger, the earnings of the
Combined Group will reflect the impacts of purchase accounting adjustments, including any changes in
amortization and depreciation expense for acquired assets.

The final amount of the consideration transferred will be determined as of the date of the completion of
the Merger. The purchase accounting adjustments have not yet been completed. The completion of the
purchase accounting, in which FCA's assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be recognized at their
respective fair values, will be finalized after the completion of the Merger and could result in significantly
different valuations, as well as differences in amortization, depreciation and other expenses, compared to
those presented in the unaudited pro forma financial information.

Tax Treatment

It is intended that, for French corporate income tax purposes, the Merger benefits from the favorable
regime set forth in Article 210 A of the French Tax Code, with PSA's assets and liabilities to be allocated
to a French permanent establishment of Stellantis pursuant to the Merger. This tax regime mainly provides
for a deferral of taxation of the capital gains realized by PSA in connection with the transfer of all its assets
and liabilities as a result of the Merger. A ruling has been requested from the French tax authorities to
confirm the applicability of such regime.

In addition, it is also intended that a new French tax consolidated group is set up by the French permanent
establishment of Stellantis, with effect as from January 1 of the tax year during which the Merger is
completed, and includes certain companies of the existing PSA French tax consolidated group. As
required by law, a tax ruling request has been filed with the French tax authorities in order to allow for the
transfer of a large majority of the French tax losses carried forward of the existing PSA French tax
consolidated group to the French permanent establishment of Stellantis and for the carry-forward of
French tax losses transferred to the French permanent establishment of Stellantis against future profits
of the French permanent establishment of Stellantis and certain companies of the existing PSA French
tax consolidated group.

Fees and Expenses Relating to the Merger

Whether or not the Merger is completed, pursuant to the Combination Agreement, each party will bear its
own financial, accounting and other costs in connection with the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement, except that the parties will share equally in any material
filing or similar fees in connection with any governmental or self-regulatory review, registration, approval,
permit or license, stock exchange listing or similar requirements with respect to the Merger and the other
transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

Regulatory Approvals Required to Complete the Merger

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement, the Merger is subject to certain conditions precedent, including
(i) the expiry or termination of all waiting periods (and any extensions thereof) in connection with the
Competition Approvals (as defined below) and the granting of the Competition Approvals, (ii) the obtaining
of the Consents (as defined below), other than Competition Approvals and Consents for which the failure
to be obtained or made would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Substantial Detriment, and (iii)
the obtaining of the ECB Clearance. For additional information on the conditions precedent to the Merger,
see "The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and
Shareholder Undertakings—Closing Conditions" (where "Competition Approvals" and "Consents" are
defined). Below is a summary description of the current status of such approvals.
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Antitrust

The Combination Agreement provides that before the Merger may be completed, any waiting period (or
extension of such waiting period) applicable to the Merger must have expired or been terminated, and
any competition approvals, consents or clearances required in connection with the Merger must have
been received, in each case, under the applicable antitrust laws of the European Union, under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended ("HSR"), and under the competition laws
of the Federative Republic of Brazil, the Republic of Chile, the United Mexican States, the People's
Republic of China, Japan, the Republic of India, the Republic of South Africa, the Kingdom of Morocco,
Israel, the Swiss Confederation, Ukraine, the Russian Federation, the Republic of Serbia and the Republic
of Turkey. The consummation of the Merger might be delayed due to the time required to fulfill the requests
for information by the relevant regulatory authorities. In addition, in certain jurisdictions, there can be
unforeseen or other extensions of deadlines by the relevant antitrust authorities for the review of the
Merger. Such extensions are more likely to happen in the context of the current COVID-19 crisis. The
terms and conditions of any antitrust approvals, consents and clearances that are ultimately granted may
impose conditions, terms, obligations or restrictions on the conduct of Stellantis's business.

FCA and PSA are obligated under the Combination Agreement to take or cause to be taken all actions,
and do or cause to be done all things, necessary, proper or advisable on their part to consummate and
make effective the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement as
soon as reasonably practicable after the date of the Combination Agreement, including the relevant
competition approvals and to offer and comply with such commitments to the relevant regulatory
authorities as would be necessary to enable the regulatory authorities to grant such competition approvals.
As an exception to the foregoing, neither FCA nor PSA may, without the consent of the other party, offer
or comply with any commitments or take any action (i) with respect to any assets, businesses or interests
other than those of Stellantis, FCA, PSA or their respective subsidiaries and non-consolidated joint
ventures; (ii) if any such commitment or action, individually or in the aggregate, would, or would reasonably
be expected to, result in a substantial detriment to the Combined Group; or (iii) unless any such
commitment or action is conditioned upon the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

Regulatory authorities may impose conditions, and any such conditions may have the effect of delaying
the consummation of the Merger or imposing additional material costs on, or materially limiting the
revenues of, the Combined Group following the consummation of the Merger. In addition, any such
conditions may result in the delay or abandonment of the Merger. FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. may each
terminate the Combination Agreement if the Merger has not been completed by June 30, 2021. Refer to
"The Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and
Shareholder Undertakings —Termination Fees—Termination of the Combination Agreement” for details.

As of the date of this Prospectus and as set out in more detail below, competition approvals have been
obtained in twelve jurisdictions including in the United States of America, the People's Republic of China,
the Republic of India, Japan, the Republic of South Africa, Israel, the Republic of Serbia, the Kingdom of
Morocco, the Swiss Confederation, the United Mexican States, the Federative Republic of Brazil and the
Russian Federation. As of the date of this Prospectus, the review of the Merger by antitrust authorities is
ongoing in four jurisdictions including the European Union, the Republic of Chile, the Republic of Turkey
and Ukraine. The parties have also made a notification in respect of the Merger in the Argentine Republic,
where the review of the Merger is ongoing, but the merger control regime is currently non-suspensory.
With respect to the People's Democratic Republic of Algeria, FCA and PSA have determined that antitrust
approval from the competition authority will not be required in this jurisdiction and, pursuant to the
Combination Agreement Amendment, agreed to exclude such jurisdiction from those whose approval is a
condition precedent to the consummation of the Merger. In addition, the period during which an EU
member state (or the United Kingdom) can request a referral of the Merger has expired and, therefore,
the Merger will not be subject to the review by a national competition authority of an EU member state (or
the United Kingdom).

Jurisdictions where antitrust approvals have been granted

In the United States of America, the HSR filings relating to the Merger were submitted to the U.S. Federal
Trade Commission and the U.S. Department of Justice Antitrust Division on April 10, 2020 and the HSR
waiting period expired on May 11, 2020. Following the entry into the Combination Agreement Amendment
on September 14, 2020, the Staff of the U.S. Federal Trade Commission advised that new filings were
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required to be submitted as a result of the revised terms of the Merger. These filings were submitted on
October 7, 2020, and the relevant waiting period expired on November 6, 2020.

In the People's Republic of China, the notification of the Merger to the State Administration for Market
Regulation was submitted on February 25, 2020 and unconditional antitrust approval was granted on May
7, 2020.

In the Republic of India, the notification of the Merger to the Competition Commission of India was
submitted on April 15, 2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on June 4, 2020.

In Japan, the notification of the Merger to the Japan Fair Trade Commission was submitted on April 17,
2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on May 8, 2020.

In the Republic of South Africa, the notification of the Merger to the Competition Commission in South
Africa was submitted on February 19, 2020 and conditional clearance was granted on April 28, 2020. The
Competition Commission approved the transaction subject to certain employment conditions providing
that the Combined Group will not retrench any employees in South Africa as a result of the Merger for a
period of two years after closing.

In Israel, the notification of the Merger to the Israel Competition Authority was submitted on January 23,
2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on March 11, 2020.

In the Republic of Serbia, the notification of the Merger to the Commission for Protection of Competition
was submitted on February 28, 2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on May 26, 2020.

In the Kingdom of Morocco, the notification of the Merger to the Competition Council (Conseil de la
concurrence) was submitted on February 7, 2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on June 5,
2020.

In the Swiss Confederation, the notification of the Merger to the Secretariat of the Competition
Commission was submitted on May 11, 2020 and unconditional clearance was granted on June 9, 2020.

In the United Mexican States, the notification of the Merger to the Comisién Federal de Competencia
Econémica ("COFECE") was submitted on February 14, 2020 and unconditional clearance was granted
on September 10, 2020. Following the entry into the Combination Agreement Amendment, the parties
determined that a new notification of the Merger was required, which was submitted to COFECE on
October 2, 2020. On October 22, 2020, COFECE granted unconditional clearance.

In the Federative Republic of Brazil, the notification was submitted to the Brazilian Administrative Council
for Economic Defense (Conselho Administrativo de Defesa Econémica) ("CADE") on May 6, 2020 and
unconditional clearance was granted on November 3, 2020. A waiting period of 15 calendar days from
the publication of a summary of the clearance decision by CADE must be observed (i.e., until November
20, 2020) before the Merger can be closed. CADE will declare the clearance to be final after this waiting
period has expired and there has been no challenge of the decision during this period.

In the Russian Federation, the notification of the Merger to the Federal Antimonopoly Service ("FAS") was
originally submitted on February 14, 2020, and unconditional clearance had been granted on May 6, 2020.
Following the entry into the Combination Agreement Amendment, the parties determined that a new
notification was required, which was submitted to the FAS on October 13, 2020. On November 12, 2020,
the FAS granted unconditional clearance.

Jurisdictions where the merger review is ongoing
European Union

As of the date of this Prospectus, the review of the Merger by the European Commission is ongoing. The
Form CO for notifying the European Commission of the Merger was submitted formally on May 8, 2020.
The Phase 1 review period is 25 business days from formal submission of the Form CO and is extendable
by ten additional business days if a remedy is proposed in Phase 1 or if an EU member state (or the
United Kingdom) requests referral of the merger for review by its national competition authority. As
indicated above, the period during which an EU member state (or the United Kingdom) can request a
referral of the transaction has expired and, therefore, the Merger will not be subject to review by any
national competition authority of an EU member state (or the United Kingdom). In addition, on June 4,
2020, FCA and PSA informed the European Commission that they do not intend to propose a remedy in
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Phase 1. On June 17, 2020, the European Commission adopted a decision triggering a Phase 2
investigation.

The Phase 2 review period is 90 business days from the decision of the European Commission to initiate
proceedings and is extendable by (i) 15 additional business days if remedies are offered by the notifying
parties between 55 to 65 business days since the inception of Phase 2, and (ii) by up to 20 additional
business days with the consent of the notifying parties. On July 3, 2020, following agreement with FCA
and PSA, the European Commission extended the period within which to complete its Phase 2
investigation by 15 business days. On July 20, 2020, the European Commission suspended the review
period because it determined that it requires further information from the parties. The suspension of the
review period ended on September 28, 2020. On September 25, 2020, the parties submitted commitments
to the European Commission.

Argentine Republic

In the Argentine Republic, the review of the Merger by the National Commission of Competition Defense
of Argentina (Comision Nacional de Defensa de la Competencia) ("CNDC") is ongoing. The notification
relating to the Merger was submitted on April 23, 2020. The CNDC has a 45 business day review period,
extendable by up to 120 additional business days if a preliminary statement of objection is issued.
However, the review period is suspended each time the CNDC sends an information request until the
CNDC considers that it has received a satisfactory response. Reviews of transactions with substantive
overlaps can take in excess of 24 months. If the CNDC does not issue a decision within the relevant
review period (including extensions), the transaction will be deemed approved. The merger control regime
in the Argentine Republic is currently non suspensory.

In response to the COVID-19 crisis, the CNDC has suspended all deadlines until October 25, 2020,
without prejudice to the validity of the acts that were already carried out. As a result of this suspension,
the statutory review period commenced on October 26, 2020.

Republic of Chile

In the Republic of Chile, the review of the Merger by the Chilean competition authority (Fiscalia Nacional
Econdémica) ("FNE") is ongoing. The notification of the Merger was submitted on March 3, 2020. In Chile,
the Phase 1 review period of the merger is of up to 30 business days. On May 19, 2020, FCA and PSA
agreed with the FNE to a suspension of the Phase 1 review period for 20 business days.

On June 26, 2020, the FNE opened a Phase 2 investigation. The Phase 2 review period is of up to 90
additional business days. The FNE and the notifying parties can agree to suspend the review periods
once for up to 30 business days during Phase 1 and up to 60 business days during Phase 2. If the notifying
parties offer remedies, the procedure is suspended for up to ten business days during Phase 1 and up to
15 business days during Phase 2. The legal maximum total review period is 130 business days
(approximately seven months), excluding pre-notification and any suspensions of the review periods. If
the FNE does not issue a decision within the relevant review period (Phase 1 or Phase 2, including
extensions), the Merger will be deemed approved. On October 7, 2020, the parties submitted remedies
to the FNE, which suspended the review period by 15 business days. On November 11, 2020, the parties
submitted revised remedies to the FNE, which suspended the review period by 15 business days (i.e.,
until December 2, 2020).

In response to the COVID-19 crisis, the FNE continues to accept and review notifications but has
requested that notifying parties limit notifications to urgent and essential ones.

Republic of Turkey

In the Republic of Turkey, the review of the Merger by the Turkish Competition Authority ("TCA") is
ongoing. The notification of the Merger was submitted on February 21, 2020. The Phase 1 review period
is up to 30 calendar days from formal notification. The TCA can re-start the Phase 1 review period by
issuing a request for information. Following multiple requests for information issued in Phase 1, which
restarted the statutory review period, the TCA opened a Phase 2 investigation by a decision dated July
17, 2020.

The Phase 2 review period is of up to six calendar months from July 17, 2020, extendable by up to six
additional calendar months at the discretion of the TCA. This period may be followed by a maximum of
two written responses by the notifying parties and a final oral hearing before the competition board (the
deciding organ of the TCA) until the adoption of the final decision of the competition board. The maximum
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total review period under normal conditions is approximately 21 calendar months, excluding the re-starts
of the Phase 1 review.

Notwithstanding the COVID-19 crisis, the TCA is still accepting and reviewing notifications according to
the pre-existing statutory procedures. There have been no announcements about delays or extensions.

Ukraine

In Ukraine, the review of the Merger by the Anti-Monopoly Committee ("AMC") is ongoing. The notification
of the Merger was submitted on February 13, 2020. The pre-review period is of up to 15 calendar days.
The Phase 1 review period is of up to 30 additional calendar days. The AMC cannot suspend the review
period during Phase 1. On March 27, 2020, the AMC opened a Phase 2 investigation. The Phase 2 review
period is of up to 135 calendar days from the day on which the Phase 2 notice is sent to the parties, unless
the parties request the AMC to prolong such period due to the necessity to submit additional information.
The deadline of the Phase 2 review under Ukrainian law was August 12, 2020. However, given that the
AMC provided additional requests for information and the parties agreed to provide their response to such
requests, the review period is extended until the AMC has enough information to make its decision.

Notwithstanding the COVID-19 crisis, the AMC is still accepting and reviewing notifications according to
the pre-existing statutory procedures. There have been no announcements about delays or extensions.

CFIUS

On May 15, 2020, the parties submitted a joint voluntary notice ("Notice") to the Committee on Foreign
Investment in the United States ("CFIUS") regarding the Merger. CFIUS formally accepted the Notice and
began its review of the Merger on June 9, 2020. On September 4, 2020, CFIUS approved the Merger.

Regulatory approvals for financing companies

In connection with the Merger, certain regulatory approvals are required with respect to the regulated
finance activities of FCA and PSA. The lItalian, French and German prudential regulators have
acknowledged completeness of the filings submitted in Italy, France and Germany by FCA and PSA. FCA
and PSA expect to receive the non-opposition decision by the ECB as well as regulators in Germany, Italy
and France in December. Regulatory approvals have been obtained thus far in the United Kingdom, the
Republic of Malta, the Russian Federation, the Kingdom of Belgium, the Federative Republic of Brazil,
the Kingdom of Spain and the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

Settlement

The FCA Common Shares issued as part of the Merger and represented by the book-entry positions
referred to below, will be issued and allotted to Cede & Co, as nominee for DTC, for inclusion in the
centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France, and ultimately, directly or
indirectly, on behalf and for the benefit of the former holders of PSA Ordinary Shares.

Each book-entry position previously representing PSA Ordinary Shares (other than any PSA Ordinary
Share held in treasury by Peugeot S.A. or by FCA N.V., if any (collectively, the "Excluded PSA Shares"),
which includes all PSA Ordinary Shares (other than any Excluded PSA Shares) held in:

(a) pure registered form (nominatif pur);
(b) administered registered form (nominatif administré); and
(©) bearer form (au porteur),

will following the implementation of the Merger be exchanged for book-entry positions representing FCA
Common Shares issued and allotted in accordance with the Exchange Ratio, provided that:

(a) the book-entry positions representing PSA Ordinary Shares held in pure registered form
(nominatif pur) will be exchanged for book-entry positions representing FCA Common Shares in
pure registered form (nominatif pur);

(b) the book-entry positions representing PSA Ordinary Shares held in administered registered form
(nominatif administré) will be exchanged for book-entry positions representing FCA Common
Shares in administered registered form (nominatif administré);
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(© at no time will there be any conversion of book-entry positions representing PSA Ordinary
Shares held (i) in pure registered form (nominatif pur) or (ii) in administered registered form
(nominatif administré) into book-entry positions in bearer form (au porteur); and

(d) the book-entry positions representing FCA Common Shares in pure registered form (nominatif
pur) will be recorded by Société Générale Securities Services within Euroclear France.

Depending on each PSA Shareholder's custodian/depository, the book-entry positions representing FCA
Common Shares are expected to be recorded in the securities accounts of the PSA Shareholders between
the first business day following the Effective Time and the effective delivery date of the positions in
Euroclear France (which is expected to be the third business day after the Effective Time).

No fractional FCA Common Shares will be issued and allotted and any fractional entitlements in
connection with the Merger will be settled as further described under "The Combination Agreement and
Cross Border Merger Terms—The Combination Agreement and Shareholders Undertakings—Fractional
Entitlement to FCA Common Shares".

Each Excluded PSA Share, if any, will be cancelled by operation of law in accordance with Article 2:325(4)
of the Dutch Civil Code and no consideration will be delivered in exchange for such Excluded PSA Share.

Following implementation of the Merger, any holder of FCA Common Shares registered in the name of
Cede & Co, as nominee for DTC, and included in the centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC
and Euroclear France is entitled to request, through its intermediary for such FCA Common Shares, to be
registered in its own name in FCA's shareholders' register, provided that such FCA Common Shares will
no longer be included in the centralized depository and clearing systems of DTC and Euroclear France
and may no longer be traded on Euronext Paris.

Security over PSA Ordinary Shares or a Security Account in which PSA Ordinary Shares are
Registered

PSA Shareholders that have granted a right of pledge or security interest over PSA Ordinary Shares or a
security account in which PSA Ordinary Shares are registered, whether such PSA Ordinary Shares are
held in (a) pure registered form (nominatif pur), (b) administered registered form (nominatif administré) or
(c) bearer form (au porteur) as well as related pledgees should note that any such right of pledge or
security interest may not automatically apply over the book-entry positions representing FCA Common
Shares to be received by those PSA Shareholders under the Merger. As a result, the right of pledge of
security interest could cease to exist as a result of the Merger which may give rise to a default or trigger
rights of the pledgees, or recipients of such right of pledge or security interest, including termination rights
where available. If any PSA Shareholder or related pledgee is in any doubt about the impact of the Merger
on any right of pledge or security interest granted over PSA Ordinary Shares or the securities accounts
in which PSA Ordinary Shares are registered, such PSA Shareholder or related pledgee is urged to seek
her own independent advice immediately.
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THE COMBINATION AGREEMENT AND CROSS BORDER MERGER TERMS

The Combination Agreement and Shareholder Undertakings

The Combination Agreement was entered into by FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. on December 17, 2019 and
subsequently amended by the parties on September 14, 2020. In addition, certain FCA Shareholders and
PSA Shareholders have made undertakings to support the Merger and, among other things, vote their
shares in favor of the Merger at the respective extraordinary general meetings of shareholders. The
following summary provides information regarding the Combination Agreement and Cross Border Merger
Terms (as defined below).

Transaction Structure and Effectiveness of the Merger

If the Merger is approved by the requisite votes of the FCA Shareholders and the PSA Shareholders and
the other conditions precedent to the Merger are satisfied or, to the extent permitted under the
Combination Agreement and by applicable law, waived, Peugeot S.A. will be merged with and into FCA
N.V., which will be renamed "Stellantis N.V." on the day immediately following the date on which the
closing of the Merger occurs.

Unless another time, date and place is mutually agreed upon in writing by Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V.,
the closing of the Merger will take place on the second Friday after satisfaction or (to the extent permitted
under the Combination Agreement and applicable law) waiver of the closing conditions described under
"—Closing Conditions".

The Merger will be effective at the "Effective Time" (00:00 a.m. Central European Time on the first day
after the date on which a Dutch civil law notary executes a notarial deed of cross-border merger with
respect to the Merger between FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. in accordance with applicable Dutch law and
French law (the "Merger Deed")), at which Effective Time, the separate corporate existence of Peugeot
S.A. will cease, and FCA N.V. will continue as the sole surviving corporation, and, by operation of law,
FCA N.V., as successor to Peugeot S.A., will succeed to and assume all of the rights and obligations and
other legal relationships, as well as the assets and liabilities, of Peugeot S.A. in accordance with Dutch
law and French law. FCA N.V. will be renamed Stellantis at the Governance Effective Time. Pursuant to
the Combination Agreement (and subject to applicable Dutch law and French law), the Merger will be
deemed to enter into effect retroactively as from the first day of the calendar year during which the
Effective Time occurs (the "Retroactive Effective Date"), so that (i) Stellantis will be deemed to have had
the use of all the assets of Peugeot S.A. as from the Retroactive Effective Date, (ii) all transactions of
Peugeot S.A. as from the Retroactive Effective Date will be treated as being those of Stellantis, and (iii)
all of the profits and losses derived from such transactions for the period starting as from the Retroactive
Effective Date will be deemed realized by Stellantis.

Merger Consideration

At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any holder of PSA
Ordinary Shares or FCA Common Shares, FCA N.V. will issue for each outstanding PSA Ordinary Share
(other than any PSA Ordinary Shares held in treasury by PSA or held by FCA, if any) 1.742 FCA Common
Shares, the PSA Ordinary Shares will no longer be outstanding and automatically cease to exist and each
issued and outstanding FCA Common Share will remain unchanged as an FCA Common Share.

In the event that, between the date of the Combination Agreement and the Effective Time, the outstanding
PSA Ordinary Shares or FCA Common Shares change into a different number of shares or a different
class, by reason of any stock dividend, subdivision, reclassification, recapitalization, split, combination,
consolidation or exchange of shares, or any similar event will have occurred, then any number or amount
contemplated in the Combination Agreement (including the Exchange Ratio) which is based upon the
number of PSA Ordinary Shares or FCA Common Shares, as the case may be, will be appropriately
adjusted to provide to both the PSA Shareholders and the FCA Shareholders the same economic effect
as contemplated by the Combination Agreement prior to such event.

Fractional Entitlement to FCA Common Shares

No fractional FCA Common Shares shall be issued and allotted as part of the Merger consideration. Any
fractional entitlements in connection with the Merger will be settled as follows: (A) with respect to fractional
entitlements of the former holders of PSA Ordinary Shares held in administered registered form (nominatif
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administré) or bearer form (au porteur), each relevant authorized intermediary in the centralized
depository and clearing systems of Euroclear France will (i) aggregate such fractional entitlements of such
holders, (ii) sell the corresponding FCA Common Shares on behalf of such holders in the market for cash
and subsequently (iii) distribute the net cash proceeds to such holders proportionate to each such holder's
fractional entitlements; and (B) with respect to fractional entittements of former holders of PSA Ordinary
Shares held in pure registered form (nominatif pur), Société Générale Securities Services will (i)
aggregate such fractional entitlements of such holders, (ii) sell the corresponding FCA Common Shares
on behalf of such holders in the market for cash and subsequently (iii) distribute the net cash proceeds to
such holders proportionate to each such holder's fractional entitlements. Without prejudice to the
foregoing, each holder of PSA Ordinary Shares that benefits from a fractional entitlement to an FCA
Common Share may waive this right or any cash consideration in respect thereto. In addition, FCA and
PSA have agreed that PSA will be permitted to acquire or sell up to 1,000 PSA Ordinary Shares to ensure
that FCA N.V. may issue to former PSA Shareholders a round number of new FCA Common Shares upon
the closing of the Merger.

In the event where the number of FCA Common Shares to be issued upon the Merger calculated in
accordance with the Exchange Ratio would not be a rounded number, the total number of issued and
allotted FCA Common Shares would be rounded down to the nearest full number and any fractional
entitlement would be paid in cash, such cash amount to be calculated based on the stock market quotation
upon the closing of the market of the FCA Common Shares on the last trading day before the day on
which a Dutch civil law notary executes the Dutch notarial deed of cross-border merger to effect the
Merger.

Treatment of Loyalty Voting Shares

After the effectiveness of the Merger, there will be no carryover of the existing double voting rights
currently held by Exor in FCA N.V. pursuant to the existing FCA N.V. loyalty voting structure. To that end,
the Combination Agreement provides that at the Effective Time all FCA Special Voting Shares held by
Exor will be repurchased by FCA N.V. for no consideration. With respect to the outstanding FCA Special
Voting Shares held by shareholders other than Exor, such shares will constitute class B Special Voting
Shares of Stellantis in accordance with, and upon the effectiveness of, Stellantis Articles of Association
(as defined below). Additionally, the annual general meeting of the shareholders of FCA N.V. held in June
2020 resolved to suspend the right of any such shareholders to register additional FCA Common Shares
in the loyalty register of FCA N.V. For a description of the loyalty voting structure contemplated for
Stellantis after the Merger, please refer to "The Stellantis Shares, Articles of Association and Terms and
Conditions of the Special Voting Shares—Loyalty Voting Structure, General Meeting and Voting Rights—
Voting Limitations".

Treatment of Warrants

At the Effective Time, each outstanding warrant with respect to PSA Ordinary Shares will, except to the
extent they have been cancelled prior to the Effective Time, automatically and without any required action
on the part of the holder of such warrant, cease to represent an equity warrant giving entittement to
subscribe for PSA Ordinary Shares and will be converted into one equity warrant giving entitlement to
subscribe for a number of FCA Common Shares equal to the exercise ratio of the outstanding warrants
with respect to PSA Ordinary Shares in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, multiplied by the
Exchange Ratio at an exercise price per equity warrant with respect to FCA Common Shares equal to
one euro. Following the Effective Time, each such warrant will continue to be governed by the same terms
and conditions (including vesting and exercisability terms) as were applicable to it immediately prior to
the Effective Time.

Treatment of Equity Awards

At the Effective Time, each outstanding equity incentive award with respect to PSA Ordinary Shares will,
automatically and without any required action on the part of the holder of such award, be converted into
restricted share unit awards with respect to FCA Common Shares ("FCA RSUs"). Each FCA RSU will
represent the right to receive one FCA Common Share. The number of FCA RSUs into which an equity
incentive award with respect to PSA Ordinary Shares is converted will equal the product of the number of
PSA Ordinary Shares underlying such equity incentive award and the Exchange Ratio (with the number
of FCA RSUs to be received by each holder to be rounded down to the nearest whole number without any
cash compensation paid or due to such holder). In determining the number of PSA Ordinary Shares
underlying an equity incentive award subject to performance conditions, the PSA Managing Board, subject
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to the approval of the PSA Supervisory Board, will examine whether performance conditions should be
deemed satisfied or not (and, as the case may be, if such performance conditions are satisfied in full or
in part) prior to the Effective Time. Following the Effective Time, each such FCA RSU will continue to be
governed by the same terms and conditions (including service-based vesting terms, but not, subject to
the abovementioned decision, performance-based vesting terms) as were applicable to the relevant equity
incentive award immediately prior to the Effective Time.

Following the Effective Time, each outstanding FCA N.V. performance share unit and outstanding FCA
N.V. restricted share unit under FCA N.V.'s equity incentive plan will continue to be governed by the same
terms and conditions (including service-based vesting terms, but not performance-based vesting
conditions, which will be eliminated) as were applicable to such FCA N.V. equity award immediately prior
to the Effective Time. In determining the number of FCA Common Shares underlying each outstanding
FCA N.V. performance share unit, performance conditions will be deemed satisfied at target level or, in
the event that FCA N.V.'s performance exceeds the target level, as assessed by the FCA Board or a
committee of the FCA Board immediately before the Effective Time , at that assessed level.

Representations and Warranties

The Combination Agreement contains representations and warranties made by FCA N.V. to Peugeot S.A.
and representations and warranties made by Peugeot S.A. to FCA N.V. These representations and
warranties were made solely for the benefit of the parties to the Combination Agreement. In reviewing this
summary, please note that they have been included to provide prospective investors with information
regarding the terms of the Combination Agreement and are not intended to provide any other factual
information about Peugeot S.A., FCA N.V. or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates. The
statements embodied in those representations and warranties were made for purposes of the Combination
Agreement and are subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed by the parties in connection
with the negotiation of the terms of the Combination Agreement (including the fact that all of FCA N.V.'s
and Peugeot S.A.'s representations and warranties are qualified by any and all information fairly disclosed
in all of FCA N.V.'s filings with the SEC and all public reports and/or filings made by Peugeot S.A. pursuant
to applicable laws setting forth the transparency requirements for French public companies, in each case,
made on or after December 31, 2018 and on or before the business day preceding the date of the
Combination Agreement). In addition, some of those representations and warranties may be subject to a
contractual standard of materiality that is different from that generally applicable to shareholders or from
what may be viewed as material by shareholders or other investors, may have been made for the principal
purposes of establishing the circumstances in which a party to the Combination Agreement may have the
right not to close the Merger if the representations and warranties of the other party proved to be untrue
due to a change in circumstance or otherwise, and may be for the purpose of allocating risks between the
parties to the Combination Agreement rather than establishing matters as facts. Moreover, information
concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties, which does not purport to be
accurate as of the date of this Prospectus, may have changed since the date of the Combination
Agreement and subsequent developments or new information qualifying a representation or warranty may
have been included in this Prospectus. Finally, the representations and warranties in the Combination
Agreement will not survive the Effective Time or the termination of the Combination Agreement. For the
foregoing reasons, the representations, warranties and covenants or any description of those provisions
should not be read alone, but instead should be read together with the information provided elsewhere in
this Prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference into this Prospectus. See the section
entitled "Information Incorporated By Reference".

Each of Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. will be deemed to reiterate their respective representations and
warranties on the closing date of the Merger (giving effect to the materiality and de minimis exceptions
set forth in the Combination Agreement) as a condition to the closing. The representation and warranties
of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. will not survive the effectiveness of the Merger.

Each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. made representations and warranties to the other relating to,
including in particular the following:

. due organization, existence, good standing and authority to carry on its and its subsidiaries'
businesses;
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. corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the
Combination Agreement and, consummate the transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement, and the enforceability of the Combination Agreement;

. capitalization, information on its option, restricted share unit, performance unit and share
appreciation right plans, the absence of pre-emptive rights, options, commitments, or rights of
any kind obligating it or any of its subsidiaries to issue or sell any shares, other equity interests
or any securities (whether voting or otherwise);

o required consents and approvals and absence of any violation of or default under its
organizational documents, any contract, law or order;

o their respective annual reports in the relevant form being compliant in all material respects with
applicable laws and regulations and not misleading;

o absence of certain changes or events constituting a Material Adverse Effect (as described below)
since their respective latest audited financial statements;

. their respective last annual and interim consolidated financial statements and internal accounting
controls;

. since January 1, 2017 compliance with applicable law, including anti-bribery and anti-money-
laundering laws and laws relating to employment;

. absence of sanctions;

. the absence of certain defaults or breaches under any contracts;

. continuation of relationship with suppliers following the closing of the Merger;

o litigation (including labor disputes);

. taxes;

o absence of defective product claims, product recalls or investigations;

o environmental matters;

o financial advisors; and

o intellectual property and IT.

Many of the representations and warranties in the Combination Agreement made by each of FCA N.V.
and Peugeot S.A. are qualified as to "materiality” or "Material Adverse Effect." For purposes of the
Combination Agreement, a "Material Adverse Effect" with respect to FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A. means
any facts, circumstances, changes, events or developments (including any material worsening of any
existing fact, circumstance or event) which may occur from the date of the Combination Agreement that,
individually or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect (or is reasonably likely to materially adversely
affect) the business, financial condition or results of operations, taken as a whole, of FCA N.V. and its
subsidiaries and its non-consolidated ventures, taken as a whole (the "FCA Group"), or Peugeot S.A. and
its subsidiaries and its non-consolidated ventures, taken as a whole (the "PSA Group"), (or in each case
the Combined Group), respectively; provided that the following, alone or in combination, will not in and of
itself or themselves constitute a Material Adverse Effect: (A) any change or development in general
economic or regulatory, legislative or political conditions or securities, credit, financial or other capital
markets conditions, in each case in any jurisdiction; (B) any change or development affecting the global
automotive industry generally; (C) any change or development to the extent resulting from any failure of
the FCA Group, the PSA Group or the Combined Group, respectively, to meet any internal or published
projections, forecasts, estimates or predictions in respect of revenues, earnings or other financial or
operating metrics for any period (it being understood that the facts and circumstances giving rise to such
failure may be deemed to constitute, and may be taken into account in determining whether there has
been, a Material Adverse Effect); (D) any change in the market price, credit rating (with respect to such
party or its securities) or trading volume of such party's securities (it being understood that the facts and
circumstances giving rise to such change may be deemed to constitute, and may be taken into account
in determining whether there has been, a Material Adverse Effect); (E) any change in applicable law,
regulation or IFRS (or any authoritative interpretation of such applicable law, regulation or IFRS) of
general applicability; (F) geopolitical conditions, the outbreak or escalation of hostilities, any acts of war
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(whether or not declared) or terrorism, or any escalation or worsening of any such acts of war or terrorism
threatened or underway as of the date of the Combination Agreement; or (G) any hurricane, tornado, flood,
earthquake or other weather or natural disaster; provided, further, that, with respect to clauses (A), (B),
(E), (F) and (G), such change or development will be taken into account in determining whether a Material
Adverse Effect has occurred or is reasonably likely to occur to the extent (and only to the extent) it
disproportionately affects the FCA Group or the PSA Group (or in each case the Combined Group),
respectively. Pursuant to the Combination Agreement Amendment, each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A.
agreed that any reference to a "Material Adverse Effect” in the Combination Agreement will take into
account facts and circumstances occurring or existing subsequent to the date of the Combination
Agreement Amendment, and prior to the date of the Combination Agreement Amendment only to the
extent to which a party invoking a Material Adverse Effect had not received notice of and was not otherwise
aware of such facts or circumstances on or prior to the date of the Combination Agreement Amendment.

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement Amendment, each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. confirmed that
no facts or circumstances occurring or existing on or prior to the date of the Combination Agreement
Amendment of which it was aware on or prior to such date will give rise to a claim of breach of any
representation, warranty or covenant under the Combination Agreement. Each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot
S.A. ratified any actions taken or failed to be taken by the other party, notice of which has been given or
of which it is otherwise aware prior to the date of the Combination Agreement Amendment.

Conduct of Business Prior to Closing

Under the Combination Agreement, each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. has agreed that, subject to certain
exceptions agreed between the parties, from the date of the Combination Agreement until the Effective
Time, FCA and PSA will (i) conduct their respective activities in all material respects in the ordinary course
of business consistent with past practice (the "ordinary course"), (ii) use their commercially reasonable
efforts to preserve intact their business organizations and maintain in all material respects their
relationships with material customers, suppliers and others having significant business dealings with them,
and (iii) not take any action that would reasonably be likely to cause any of their respective representations
and warranties in the Combination Agreement to be untrue in any material respect as of any date any
such representations and warranties are made or deemed to be made, or prevent, impair or materially
delay the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement.

Subject to certain exceptions agreed between FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. (including the Pre-Merger
Distributions (as defined and described below) and the preparation of the Comau Separation (as defined
and described below)) from the date of the Combination Agreement until the Effective Time, without the
prior written consent of the other party (which will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned),
except as otherwise expressly contemplated by the Combination Agreement, as required by applicable
law or publicly announced by such party before the date of the Combination Agreement (other than with
respect to the Comau Separation), each party will not and will not permit its subsidiaries to, among other
things:

. set aside or make any dividend, distribution or other payments related to equity interests (other
than the payment of the Pre-Merger Distributions, and intra-group dividends in the ordinary
course);

. amend its organizational documents, except as otherwise required by applicable law or to make

ministerial changes, or effect a split or reclassification or other adjustment of its capital stock or
other equity interests or a recapitalization of such capital stock or other equity interests (other
than internal reorganizations of such party's subsidiaries (including the dissolution or liquidation
of such subsidiaries) that do not adversely impact the transactions contemplated by the
Combination Agreement (including by preventing, impairing or delaying the closing of the Merger)
or the intended French and U.S. tax treatments of the Merger);

o make or change any material tax election or adopt or change any material method of tax
accounting, or settle or compromise any tax claim or proceeding resulting in a tax liability in
excess of €250 million, unless and to the extent such tax liability is specifically reserved for in the
financial statements of the relevant party (or subsidiary), for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2018 or any subsequently published interim financial statements on or prior to the date of the
Combination Agreement;
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except for the withholding or disposition of shares of capital stock or other equity interests in
connection with the forfeiture of FCA N.V. equity awards or Peugeot S.A. equity awards, as
applicable (or to satisfy withholding tax obligations with respect to such FCA N.V. equity awards
or Peugeot S.A. equity awards), in each case outstanding on or awarded prior to the date of the
Combination Agreement or otherwise granted in accordance with the Combination Agreement,
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of its capital stock or other equity interests
or securities convertible in shares of its capital stock or other equity interests, as applicable;

acquire (including by merger or consolidation) any entity, business or division of an entity or
business, or any equity interest (other than acquisitions of portfolio assets and acquisitions in the
ordinary course) in a transaction (or series of related transactions) that would be reasonably likely,
individually or in the aggregate, to prevent, impair or materially delay the closing of the Merger,
or for a consideration exceeding €250 million on an individual basis and €500 million in the
aggregate, other than intra-group transactions;

except in connection with intra-group internal reorganizations in the ordinary course or otherwise
pursuant to contracts in existence as of the date of the Combination Agreement, which, in each
case, will not adversely affect the intended French and U.S. tax treatments of the Merger, effect
any issuance or sale of securities or create any encumbrance on any securities, except (A) in
respect of capital stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for capital
stock with a fair value or sale price in excess of €250 million of any subsidiary of a party, or (B)
shares issuable or transferable pursuant to FCA N.V.'s equity awards or Peugeot S.A. equity
awards outstanding on or awarded prior to the date of the Combination Agreement or otherwise
granted in accordance with the Combination Agreement;

effect dispositions or encumber any material portion of the assets of a party, including the capital
stock or other equity securities of any subsidiary of a party, not in the ordinary course and with a
fair value or sale price, individually or in the aggregate, in excess of €250 million (other than intra-
group transactions);

dispose of, encumber or license any material intellectual property, other than non-exclusive
licenses, covenants not to sue, releases, waivers or other rights under intellectual property rights,
in each case, granted in the ordinary course (other than intra-group transactions);

discharge or satisfy any indebtedness in excess of €500 million, other than when due in
accordance with its terms as of the date of the Combination Agreement or intra-group
indebtedness;

incur, assume or otherwise become liable for any indebtedness for borrowed money or issue any
debt securities, or change the material terms of any existing indebtedness for borrowed money
except (i) in connection with refinancings of existing indebtedness for borrowed money upon
market terms and conditions, (ii) for drawdowns of credit facilities outstanding as of the date of
the Combination Agreement (or refinancings of such credit facilities permitted under clause (i)) in
the ordinary course, (iii) for an amount not to exceed €1,000 million, (iv) as to FCA, for the purpose
of financing the FCA Extraordinary Dividend, or (v) intra-group indebtedness;

other than as is required by the terms of a benefit plan or collective bargaining agreement, in each
case, as outstanding on the date of the Combination Agreement or as adopted or modified in
accordance with the Combination Agreement or as agreed between the parties, (i) increase the
compensation or benefits of any of its employees (except for increases in salary or wages in the
ordinary course with respect to employees who are not legal representatives, directors or officers)
or grant or pay any bonus in relation to the Merger, (ii) grant any severance or termination pay to
any of its employees not provided under any benefit plan, (iii) establish, amend or terminate, grant
any awards under, increase or promise to increase the funding under or exercise any discretion
to accelerate the time of payment or vesting of any compensation or benefits under any benefit
plan or (iv) forgive any loans to any of its employees;

liquidate, dissolve or wind up itself or any of its subsidiaries;

adopt, enter into, amend or terminate in any material respect any material collective bargaining
agreement, except in the ordinary course (including as a result of the expiration of any such
agreements) or as required by applicable law;
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. enter into any agreement or arrangement that grants "most favored nation" status to any
counterparty or contains "exclusivity," "non-compete" or other similar provisions outside of the
ordinary course or, in any case, that would materially restrict, following the closing of the Merger,
the business of Stellantis or any of its successors and its subsidiaries taken as a whole;

. enter into any purchase orders, commitments or agreements, in each case for capital
expenditures, outside of the ordinary course exceeding €250 million in the aggregate in
connection with any single project or group of related projects (other than those contemplated in
the applicable party's current business plan or budget);

o enter into any contract with any of its shareholders or their affiliates, other than (i) in the ordinary
course and (ii) intra-group transactions;

o enter into or amend any contract with Faurecia, or have any other dealing with Faurecia, other
than in the ordinary course;

o adopt any change in financial accounting principles, policies or practices, except to the extent
that any such changes are required by IFRS;

. agree to any settlement which would result in a payment or liability in excess of €500 million,
unless and to the extent such payment or liability is specifically reserved for in the financial
statements of the relevant party for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018 or any subsequently
published interim financial statements on or prior to the date of the Combination Agreement;

. take any action that is reasonably expected to prevent, impair or materially delay the
consummation of the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement (including the satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the Merger set forth in the
Combination Agreement); and

o agree to any of the foregoing.

The foregoing restrictions do not apply to Faurecia (in respect of Peugeot S.A.), provided that Peugeot
S.A. has agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to avoid any action by Faurecia that could
reasonably be expected to result in a breach of such covenants.

Certain Covenants

FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. each have agreed to take certain actions between the date of the Combination
Agreement and the Effective Time and following the Effective Time. Among other things, FCA N.V. and
Peugeot S.A. have undertaken as follows:

Listing of Stellantis Common Shares

FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. will cause the FCA Common Shares, including the FCA Common Shares
issued in the Merger, to be approved for listing on the NYSE, Euronext Paris and the MTA.

Pre-Merger Distributions

Prior to the Effective Time (i) an amount of €2.9 billion may be declared by FCA N.V. to be paid to the
FCA Shareholders (with a record date prior to the closing of the Merger, and which will be paid to such
FCA Shareholders of record on a payment date as soon as practicable after the closing of the Merger)
(the "FCA Extraordinary Dividend"), (ii) an ordinary dividend for an amount of €1.1 billion (or a lower
amount that represents the lowest maximum distributable amount of either party) (the "2019 Ordinary
Dividend") in respect of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019 may be paid by each of FCA N.V. and
Peugeot S.A., and (iii) if the closing of the Merger has not occurred before the 2021 annual general
meetings of Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V., an ordinary dividend (together with the FCA Extraordinary
Dividend and the 2019 Ordinary Dividend, the "Pre-Merger Distributions") in respect of the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2020 for an amount to be agreed by FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. on the basis of
their respective distributable amounts, may be paid by each of Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. On May 13,
2020 the parties decided that, in light of the impact of the COVID-19 crisis, neither FCA N.V. nor Peugeot
S.A. will pay an ordinary dividend in 2020 relating to the fiscal year 2019. Pursuant to the Combination
Agreement Amendment, the parties agreed that the amount of the FCA Extraordinary Dividend would be
reduced to €2.9 billion (from €5.5 billion as was provided in the Original Combination Agreement).
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Faurecia Distribution

Following agreement between PSA and FCA, on October 29, 2020, PSA sold 9,663,000 ordinary shares
of Faurecia, representing approximately seven percent of the share capital of Faurecia with proceeds of
approximately €308 million. FCA and PSA intend that, promptly following the Effective Time, Stellantis
will distribute to its shareholders through a dividend or other form of distribution (including through a
reduction of the share capital of Stellantis) (i) its remaining Faurecia ordinary shares, representing
approximately 39 percent of the share capital of Faurecia, and (ii) cash equal to the proceeds of the sale
of the Faurecia ordinary shares described above, subject to any corporate approvals required in relation
thereto (including the prior approval of the Stellantis Board and the Stellantis Shareholders), which will be
sought promptly following the closing of the Merger. PSA has undertaken (i) to convert, prior to the
Effective Time, the manner in which it holds its remaining Faurecia ordinary shares, resulting in the loss
of the double voting rights attached to such Faurecia ordinary shares and (ii) to cause its representatives
on the board of directors of Faurecia to resign effective the day preceding the Effective Time, which will
collectively eliminate PSA's influence over Faurecia and result in a loss of control prior to the Effective
Time. FCA and PSA have also undertaken to each other and to Faurecia that Stellantis will not exercise
control over Faurecia following the closing of the Merger. PSA has agreed that prior to the closing of the
Merger there will be with no material changes in any currently existing commercial arrangements between
PSA and Faurecia, other than amendments in the ordinary course, and that it will not effect the Faurecia
Distribution prior to the closing of the Merger. The parties will, prior to the closing of the Merger, work
diligently to prepare for the Faurecia Distribution in order to enable the Faurecia Distribution to be
completed promptly following the closing of the Merger, including by making any filings, seeking any
consents, authorizations or other permits as necessary or desirable with respect to the Faurecia
Distribution (but in all events subject to the aforementioned corporate approvals).

Comau Separation

Promptly following the Effective Time, Stellantis is permitted to allocate to the Stellantis Shareholders
through a demerger or similar transaction all the shares held by Stellantis in Comau or implement other
value-creating alternative structures, including the sale of all the shares held by Stellantis in Comau (each
of such transactions, the "Comau Separation”). FCA N.V. will, prior to the closing of the Merger, work
diligently to prepare for the Comau Separation to enable the Comau Separation to be completed promptly
following the closing of the Merger, including by establishing the perimeter, capital structure and
governance of Comau in consultation with Peugeot S.A. and, if applicable, preparing all necessary
documentation for the listing of Comau shares on the appropriate securities exchange.

Additional Distribution

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement Amendment, FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. have agreed that
Peugeot S.A. will review with the PSA Managing Board and the PSA Supervisory Board and FCA will
review with the FCA Board a potential distribution of €500 million to be paid by each party to its
shareholders prior to the closing of the Merger, but solely if such distribution is paid by both parties, or, in
the alternative, a potential cash distribution of €1.0 billion to be paid by Stellantis to its shareholders
following the closing of the Merger.

Incentive Plans

FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. have agreed to coordinate between the date of the Combination Agreement
and the closing of the Merger regarding the issuance of equity or other long-term incentive awards, with
the intent that any awards granted will be consistent, including with respect to value, with awards granted
by FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. in the ordinary course prior to the date of the Combination Agreement.

Regulatory Filings

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement, other than with respect to the ECB Clearance (as defined below)
each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. agreed to take or cause to be taken all actions, and do or cause to
be done all things, necessary, proper or advisable on its part to consummate and make effective the
Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement as soon as reasonably
practicable after the date of the Combination Agreement, including (i) preparing and filing as promptly as
practicable all documentation to effect all necessary notices, reports and other filings and to obtain as
promptly as practicable all consents, registrations, approvals, authorizations and other permits (including
the required approvals from the relevant antitrust authorities (the "Competition Approvals")) (collectively,
the "Consents") necessary to be obtained (if any) in order to consummate the Merger and the other
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transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement, (i) offering and complying with such
commitments to the relevant regulatory authorities as would be necessary to enable the regulatory
authorities to grant the Consents, and (iii) the execution and delivery of any additional instruments
necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement and to fully carry
out the purposes of the Combination Agreement; provided that such undertakings will not require FCA
N.V. or Peugeot S.A. to, and neither FCA N.V. nor Peugeot S.A. may, without the consent of the other
party, offer or comply with any commitment to any person, governmental entity or self-regulatory
organization, or take any action (i) with respect to any assets, businesses or interests other than those of
Stellantis, FCA N.V., Peugeot S.A. or their respective subsidiaries and non-consolidated joint ventures;
(ii) if any such commitment or action, individually or in the aggregate, would, or would reasonably be
expected to, result in a Substantial Detriment (as defined below); or (iii) without limiting clause (ii) above,
unless any such commitment or action is conditioned on the consummation of the Merger and the other
transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement. For purposes of the Combination Agreement,
a "Substantial Detriment" means, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse impact (or a
reasonably likely material adverse impact) on the value of the Combined Group after the closing of the
Merger (taking into account the parties' contemplated plans for combining the businesses of PSA and
FCA after the closing of the Merger and the value reasonably expected to be realized in connection with
the Merger) or the imposition (or the reasonably likely imposition) of criminal penalties or sanctions.

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement Amendment, FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. agreed to take or cause
to be taken any and all actions necessary, proper or advisable in light of such amendment to obtain or
confirm, to the extent necessary, all Consents, including those obtained prior to the date of the
Combination Agreement Amendment, required in order to consummate the Merger and the other
transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

In connection with the obtaining of the approval of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated
by the Combination Agreement from the European Central Bank (the "ECB Clearance"), FCA N.V. and
Peugeot S.A. agreed pursuant to the Combination Agreement to cooperate with each other and take (and
cause their respective subsidiaries to take) or cause to be taken all actions, and do or cause to be done,
as promptly as practicable, all things, necessary, proper or advisable under the Combination Agreement
and applicable law, including:

. taking, and causing their subsidiaries to take, any and all actions necessary to avoid, eliminate
and resolve any and all impediments under applicable law that may be asserted by the European
Central Bank, the French banking regulator (Autorité de contréle prudentiel et de resolution) or
any other person or governmental entity with respect to the ECB Clearance and to obtain all
consents, approvals and waivers in connection with the ECB Clearance; provided that Peugeot
S.A. and FCA N.V. will not be obligated to take any action (i) unless such action is expressly
conditioned upon the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement, and (ii) if such action is reasonably expected to have, individually or in the aggregate,
a Substantial Detriment; and

o if any action or proceeding is instituted (or threatened) challenging the granting of the ECB
Clearance or otherwise delaying or prohibiting the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement, taking any and all actions necessary to contest
and defend any such claim, cause of action, or proceeding to avoid entry of, or to have vacated,
lifted, reversed, repealed, rescinded or terminated, any decree, order, judgment or injunction
(whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that prohibits, prevents or restricts consummation
of the Merger and other transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

The Combination Agreement contains certain other covenants and agreements, including covenants
relating to, among other matters:

. the parties providing each other with the opportunity to review and comment upon all submissions
and filings to any governmental entity or self-regulatory organization (if applicable) in connection
with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated in the Combination Agreement;

o each party keeping the other one appraised of the status of matters related to the completion of
the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement and promptly notifying the other
party of material developments related to the Consents;
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. the treatment of sensitive or privileged information in connection with the Consents; and

. subject to confidentiality obligations and applicable law, access by each party to the other party's
employees and properties as well as certain information about the other party during the period
prior to the Effective Time.

Exclusivity; No Solicitation; Superior Proposal

Pursuant to the Combination Agreement, each of FCA N.V. and Peugeot S.A. agreed, subject to certain
limitations set forth in the Combination Agreement, that, from and after the date of the Combination
Agreement until the earlier of the closing of the Merger and the termination of the Combination Agreement,
neither it nor any of its subsidiaries nor any of their respective officers, directors or employees may, and
each of them will instruct and cause its and its subsidiaries' representatives not to, directly or indirectly:

. initiate, solicit, encourage, facilitate, or induce any inquiry or the making, submission or
announcement of, any proposal or offer that constitutes, or could reasonably be expected to result
in, an Acquisition Proposal (as defined below);

o have any discussion with any person relating to any Acquisition Proposal (other than to decline
to engage in discussions), engage in any negotiations concerning an Acquisition Proposal, or
facilitate any effort or attempt to make an Acquisition Proposal,;

o provide any information or data to any person in relation to an Acquisition Proposal;

. approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any Acquisition Proposal;
or

. approve or recommend, propose publicly to approve or recommend, or execute or enter into, any

letter of intent, agreement in principle, memorandum of understanding, merger agreement,
acquisition agreement, business combination agreement or other similar agreement or propose
publicly or agree to do any of the foregoing related to any Acquisition Proposal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time following the date of the Combination Agreement in the case
of FCA N.V., prior to the receipt of the FCA Shareholders Approval and in the case of Peugeot S.A., prior
to the receipt of the PSA Shareholders Approval:

. FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A., as applicable, has received a bona fide written Acquisition Proposal
from a third party that did not result from a violation of the foregoing limitations, which the FCA
Board or the PSA Supervisory Board, as applicable, determines in good faith constitutes, or could
reasonably be expected to result in, a Superior Proposal (as defined below); and

o the FCA Board or the PSA Supervisory Board, as applicable, determines in good faith that failure
to take such action would be inconsistent with the directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law,

then FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A., as applicable, may (A) furnish information (including non-public
information) to such person that has delivered the bona fide written Acquisition Proposal and (B) engage
in discussions or negotiations with such person with respect to the Acquisition Proposal; provided that (1)
prior to so furnishing such information or engaging in any such discussion or negotiations, as the case
may be, the applicable party receives from such person an executed confidentiality agreement on terms
no less restrictive, in the aggregate, than those contained in the confidentiality agreement currently in
force between Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V., and (2) any non-public information concerning FCA N.V. or
Peugeot S.A., as applicable, provided or made available to such person will, to the extent not previously
provided or made available to FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A., as applicable, be provided or made available to
such party as promptly as reasonably practicable (and in no event later than 24 hours) after it is provided
or made available to such person.

For purposes of the Combination Agreement, "Acquisition Proposal”, with respect to FCA N.V. or
Peugeot S.A., as applicable, means any offer or proposal for, or any indication of interest in:

o any combination, sale, transfer, tender offer, share exchange, merger, consolidation or similar
transaction involving all or a substantial portion of the shares or assets of FCA N.V., Peugeot S.A.
or any of their respective material subsidiaries;

o an acquisition or purchase by any third party of the voting securities of, or equity interest in, FCA
N.V., Peugeot S.A. or any of their respective material subsidiaries or significant investees; and
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. any other transaction that would reasonably be expected to prevent, impair or delay the
consummation of the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the Combination
Agreement.

For purposes of the Combination Agreement, "Superior Proposal" means, with respect to FCA N.V. or
Peugeot S.A., as applicable, a bona fide written Acquisition Proposal that did not result from a breach of
the covenants described above in this section for or in respect of two-thirds or more of the issued and
outstanding share capital of FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A., as applicable, or all or substantially all of the
assets of FCA N.V. and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, or Peugeot S.A. and its subsidiaries, on
a consolidated basis, as applicable, in each case on terms that the FCA Board or the PSA Supervisory
Board, as applicable, determines in good faith, taking into account, among other things: (i) all legal,
financial, regulatory, timing and other aspects of the Acquisition Proposal and the Combination Agreement
reasonably deemed relevant by the FCA Board or the PSA Supervisory Board, as applicable (including
conditions to, expected timing and risks of consummation of, and the ability of the party making such
proposal to obtain financing for such Acquisition Proposal, if applicable), (ii) in the case of FCA N.V., all
other factors that the FCA Board is permitted to consider pursuant to Dutch law, (iii) in the case of Peugeot
S.A., the corporate interest (intérét social) of PSA and all other factors that the PSA Supervisory Board is
permitted to consider pursuant to French law, and (iv) any improved terms that the other party may have
offered pursuant to provisions described under "Board of Directors Recommendations; Change in
Recommendations" are substantially more favorable to FCA N.V. or Peugeot S.A. and their respective
shareholders and other stakeholders, as the case may be, than the transactions contemplated by the
Combination Agreement (after taking into account any such improved terms), if applicable; provided that
the PSA Supervisory Board and the FCA Board, as applicable, may not, given the substantial strategic
benefits of the transactions contemplated by the Combination Agreement, determine an Acquisition
Proposal to be substantially more favorable unless it constitutes at least a ten percent premium to the
value reasonably expected to be realized by such party's shareholders through the transactions
contemplated by the Combination Agreement.

Board of Directors Recommendations; Change in Recommendations

Each of Peugeot S.A. and FCA N.V. agreed pursuant to the Combination Agreement to cause their
respective boards to recommend the respective PSA Shareholders and FCA Shareholders approve the
Cross-Border Merger Terms (as defined below) and the transactions contemplated by the Cross-Border
Merger Terms and the Combination Agreement (in this Prospectus, such recommendations are referred
to as the "FCA Recommendation” or "PSA Recommendation," as applicable). See "The Merger—
Approval of the Merger by the FCA Board" and "The Merger—Approval of the Merger by the Supervisory
Board of PSA."

Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time prior to the earlier of (i) receipt of the FCA Shareholders
Approval or the PSA Shareholders Approval, as the case may be, and (ii) the termination of the
Combination Agreement, the FCA Board or the PSA Supervisory Board will be entitled to effect a Change
in Recommendation (as defined below), in each case, if such party receives an Acquisition Proposal that
did not result from a breach of the covenants described above under "—Exclusivity; No Solicitation;
Superior Proposal" and which the applicable board reasonably determines in good faith it constitutes a
Superior Proposal; provided, however, that the FCA Board or the PSA Supervisory Board will be entitled
to effect a Change in Recommendation, in each case, only to the extent such board has first complied
with its obligations described in the following paragraph and then reasonably determines in good faith that
the failure to effect such a Change in Recommendation would be inconsistent with the directors' fiduciary
duties under applicable law. For the purposes of the Combination Agreement "Change in
Recommendation” means that the board of the relevant party (1) determines to make no
recommendation for the Merger, (2) fails to include the FCA Recommendation or PSA Recommendation,
as applicable, in the relevant shareholders' circular, registration statement or information document, (3)
withdraws, modifies or qualifies (or publicly proposes or publicly resolves to withdraw, modify or qualify)
its recommendation for the Merger in a manner that is adverse to the other party, or (4) fails to recommend
against any Acquisition Proposal structured as a public offer (openbaar bod) (or any material modification
thereto) within five business days after commencement of such offer (or such material modification).

Neither the FCA Board nor the PSA Supervisory Board will be entitled to effect a Change in
Recommendation unless the party that intends to take such action has provided the other party with a
written notice to that effect (the "Change in Recommendation Notice"), which notice includes, as
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applicable, an un-redacted copy of the Superior Proposal that is the basis of such action (including the
identity of the person making the Superior Proposal). During the five business day period following the
receipt of the Change in Recommendation Notice, the notifying party will, and will cause its
representatives to, negotiate with the other party in good faith (to the extent such other party desires to
negotiate) to make such adjustments in the terms and conditions of the Combination Agreement so that
such Superior Proposal ceases to constitute a Superior Proposal; and following the end of the five
business day period, the board of the notifying party will determine in good faith, taking into account any
changes to the Combination Agreement proposed in writing by the other party in response to the Change
in Recommendation Notice or otherwise, whether the Superior Proposal giving rise to the Change in
Recommendation Notice continues to constitute a Superior Proposal. Any amendment to the financial
terms or any other material amendment of such Superior Proposal will require a new Change in
Recommendation Notice and the party intending to make a Change in Recommendation will be required
to comply again with the requirements and procedure described in the Combination Agreement; provided,
however, that for purposes of this sentence, references to the five business day period above will be
deemed to be references to a three business day period.

Each party is entitled to terminate the Combination Agreement in the event of a Change in
Recommendation of the other party and upon such termination the party terminating the agreement will
be entitled to the payment by the other party of a termination fee in an amount of €500 million.

Governance Arrangements

The Combination Agreement provides for c